EDGAROnline

MOBILEYE N.V.

FORM 20-F

(Annual and Transition Report (foreign private issuer))

Filed 03/05/15 for the Period Ending 12/31/14

Telephone 972-2-541-7333
CIK 0001607310
Symbol MBLY
SIC Code 7372 - Prepackaged Software
Fiscal Year 12/31

Powere d By EDGA;Rbn]ine

http://www.edgar-online.com
© Copyright 2015, EDGAR Online, Inc. All Rights Reserved.
Distribution and use of this document restricted under EDGAR Online, Inc. Terms of Use.


http://www.edgar-online.com

TABLE OF CONTENTS

UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 20-F
(Mark One)
0 REGISTRATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 12(b) OB) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:
OR

n| ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF EFSBECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
For the fiscal year endeDecember 31, 2014
OR
n| TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(df ®HE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19:
OR
n| SHELL COMPANY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 1p@F THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 19!
Date of event requiring this shell company report

For the transition period from to

Commission file number 001-36566

Mobileye N.V.

(Exact name of Registrant as specified in its @nprt
Not Applicable
(Translation of Registrant's name into English)

The Netherlands

(Jurisdiction of incorporation or organization)

Har Hotzvim, 13 Hartom Street
P.O. Box 45157
Jerusalem 9777513, Israel
(Address of principal executive offices)
Ofer Maharshak
Chief Financial Officer
Mobileye N.V.

Har Hotzvim, 13 Hartom Street
P.O. Box 45157
Jerusalem 9777513, Israel
+972 2 541 7333
(Name, Telephone, E-mail and/or Facsimile number/dress of Company Contact Person)

Securities registered or to be registered pursioaBéction 12(b) of the Act:

Title of each clas Name of each exchange on which registt
Ordinary shares, nominal value €0.01 New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered or to be registered pursiwaféction 12(g) of the Act.

None
(Title of Class)

Securities for which there is a reporting obligatmsuant to Section 15(d) of the Act.

None
(Title of Class)

Indicate the number of outstanding shares of etedssue’s classes of capital or common stock as of theeaddshe period covered by the annual report. Z4(%1
ordinary share

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a vikelbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 405%dBéturities Act. Yes [1  Nol
If this report is an annual or transition repangicate by check mark if the registrant is not megglito file reports pursuant to Section 13 or }&ftthe Securities Exchan
Act of 1934. N/A Yes [ Nor

Note— Checking the box above will not relieve any registrrequired to file reports pursuant to Sectiomi35(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 193®#itheir obligation:
under those Section

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Seeti or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of4l88ring the precedir
12 months (or for such shorter period that thestegmt was required to file such reports), anché®) been subject to such filing requirements fergist 90 days.Yes[| No
O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant nésntted electronically and posted on its corpokilb site, if any, every Interactive Data File riegd to be submitte
and posted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation §2B%.405 of this chapter) during the preceding batims (or for such shorter period that the registveas required to submit
and post such files).Yes [ No 0

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlezge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, nok-accelerated filer. See definition “accelerated filer and lar¢
accelerated file’ in Rule 12I-2 of the Exchange Act. (Check on

Large accelerated filer O Accelerated filer [ Nor-accelerated file [

Indicate by check mark which basis of accountirgrérgistrant has used to prepare the financiamsttts included in this filing
U.S. GAAP [ International Financial Reporting Standards aseidsu Other [J
by the International Accounting Standards Board

If “Other” has been checked in response to the pus\joiestion, indicate by check mark which finanstatement item the registrant has elected tovioll/A 0
Item 17 [Jltem 18

If this is an annual report, indicate by check maHether the registrant is a shell company (asddfin Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). N/Xes ) NoOJ



(APPLICABLE ONLY TO ISSUERS INVOLVED IN BANKRUPTCY ROCEEDINGS DURING THE PAST FIVE YEARS
Indicate by check mark whether the registrant Hed &ll documents and reports required to be filgcBections 12, 13 or 15(d) of the Securities BExcfe Act of 193«
subsequent to the distribution of securities uradglan confirmed by a court. N/AYes [ No 0




TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRODUCTION

Part |
ITEM 1. Identity of Directors, Senior ManagementiaAdvisers
ITEM 2. Offer Statistics and Expected Timetable
ITEM 3. Key Information
ITEM 4. Information on the Company
ITEM 4A. Unresolved Staff Comments
ITEM 5. Operating and Financial Review and Protpec
ITEM 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees
ITEM 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Taatisns
ITEM 8. Financial Information
ITEM 9. The Offer and Listing
ITEM 10. Additional Information
ITEM 11. Quantitative And Qualitative Disclosurbout Market Risk
ITEM 12. Description of Securities other than BEguBecurities

Part Il
ITEM 13. Defaults, Dividend Arrearages and Deliagcies
ITEM 14, Material Modifications to the Rights oé&urity Holders and Use of Proceeds
ITEM 15. Controls and Procedures
ITEM 16. [Reserved]
ITEM 16A. Audit Committee Financial Expert
ITEM 16B.  Code of Ethics
ITEM 16C. Principal Accountant Fees And Services
ITEM 16D. Exemptions From The Listing Standards Aodit Committees
ITEM 16E.  Purchase of Equity Securities by Theidéssand Affiliated Purchasers
ITEM 16F.  Change in Registrant’s Certifying Acctamt
ITEM 16G. Corporate Governance

Part 1l
ITEM 17. Financial Statements
ITEM 18. Financial Statements
ITEM 19. Exhibits

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SIGNATURES

24
45
45
68
82
86
87
88
10z
10z

104
104
104
10t
10t
10t
10t
10t
10€
10€
10€

107
107
107




TABLE OF CONTENTS

Glossary

INTRODUCTION

In this Annual Report on Form 20-F, unless the exnotherwise requires:

References to Mobileye N.V.,” “ Mobileye ,” the “Company,” “ we,”“ our ,” “ ours,
similar terms refer to Mobileye N.V. together witk subsidiaries.

us” or

”ou

Reference to brdinary shares,” “ our shares” and similar expressions refer to the Company’s
ordinary shares, nominal value €0.01.

References todollars ,” “ U.S. dollars” and “$” are to United States Dollars.
References toNIS ” are to New Israeli Shekels, the Israeli currency.

References to theSEC” are to the United States Securities and Exch&agamission.
ADAS means Advanced Driver Assistance Systems.

Adaptive Cruise Control (ACC) systems automatically adjust a vehicle’s speedamtain a safe
following distance from the vehicle in front ofuising cameras, radar or lidar sensors in frontbef t
vehicle to detect the time-to-contact and distasfdbe vehicle ahead of it.

Adaptive High Beam Control (AHC) automatically adjusts the height of the high-beattgon
depending on traffic conditions to give the drittee maximum amount of illumination.

Autonomous Emergency Braking (AEB)avoids and/or mitigates an imminent collision wathother
vehicle by automatically applying the brakes tanstiown the vehicle. Depending on the host car
speed, the collision can be avoided or mitigateelBAs equivalent to crash imminent brakinGIg ),
which is the term preferred by the NHTSA.

Construction Zone Assistsystems sense and measure the position of possabienary obstacles
located in the periphery of the driving path toldeeaautomatic lateral control of the vehicle tadfia
“clear path” moving forward in a cluttered scersuch as construction areas.

Deep Layered Networkrefers to a machine learning architecture congjstifeed-forward layers
starting from the input image (or sequence of insagith or without meta-data) going through
operations of convolution and pooling and endingrabutput layer consisting of meta-data such as
location and identity of objects in the scene. Dhé\ architecture’s parameters are determined
through optimization over a large labeled trainsed

Drivable Path Delimiter Featuresprovide the sensing technology underlying the stppio
Construction Zone Assist, whose aim is to findemclpath moving forward in a cluttered scene.

Dynamic Brake Support (DBS)provides additional support when a driver hasateil insufficient
brake pedal input to avoid a crash.

Forward Collision Warning (FCW) systems use cameras, radar or lidar sensors tdondme area i
front of a vehicle and alert the driver of a poigntear-end collision with another vehicle.

Free-Space Analysiss synonymous with Drivable Path Delimiter Features

Headway Monitoring and Warning (HMW) recognizes the preceding vehicles in the host \&hic
lane and adjacent lanes and provides accurateringe (range divided by host car speed) estimation
for contact with the targets.

Lane Departure Warning (LDW) systems use visible lane markers to track vehig$itipn within a
lane and issue a warning for an unintended roadrtige.

Lane Keeping and Support (LKS)is a steering system that provides torque overaases where
the host vehicle approaches the lane marker wittheuturn signal having been activated, both aig
the driver of a lane departure and directing tH@ate to stay in the lane.
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» Lane Keeping Assistant (LKA)is a Lane Departure Warning (LDW) system in which tontroller
sends torque input to the steering system in dadkeep the vehicle inside lane boundaries.

*  NCAP means a New Car Assessment Program.

* NHTSA means the U.S. National Highway Traffic Safety Adistration, a U.S. federal government
agency.

 OEMSs, or “original equipment manufacturers,” are vehiglanufacturers.

»  Pedestrian Autonomous Emergency Braking (Ped-AEBis similar to AEB, but here the imminent
collision threatens a pedestrian who is stationagfking, running or emerging behind an occlusion
boundary.

»  Pedestrian Collision Warning (PCW)warns the driver about potential collision with psttians.
» Tier 1 companies are automotive systems integrators thaha direct suppliers to OEMs.

»  Traffic Jam Assist systems control the car autonomously up to a prepeed during traffic jams by
controlling following distance as well as providiagtive steering input.

»  Traffic Sign Recognition (TSR)notifies and warns the driver which restrictionsyrba effective on
the current stretch of road.

*  Vector accelerators (called VMP, PMA, MPC), includig off-the-shelf vector accelerators (like
DSPs, GPUs, FPGAsare silicon cores that parallelize certain famibésomputations to enable
much higher throughput per silicon area comparead@PU architecture.

»  Speed Limit Indicator (SLI) is the equivalent to TSR, but limited to recognigspeed limit traffic
signs.

Forward-Looking Statements

This Annual Report on Form 20-F contains forwardkiog statements about us and our industry. These
statements involve known and unknown substanskriuncertainties and other factors, as desciibddtail
under “ltem 3. Key Information — Risk Factors” inig Annual Report on Form 20-F, that may causeactual
results, levels of activity, performance or achieeat to be materially different from those expresseimplied
by the forward-looking statements. All statementber than statements of historical fact, incluthethis
Annual Report on Form 20-F regarding our stratégfyre operations, future financial position, fieuevenues,
projected expenses, prospects and plans and egieci management are forward-looking statementsoine
cases, you can also identify forward-looking staeta by terms such as “anticipate,” “believe,” liestte,”
“expect,” “intend,” “may,” “might,” “plan,” “projed,” “will,” “would,” “should,” “could,” “can,” “pre dict,”
“potential,” “continue,” “objective,” or the negats of these terms, and similar expressions inttta@entify
forward-looking statements. However, not all forddooking statements contain these identifying vgorll
forward-looking statements reflect our current \8eatbout future events and are based on assumgtioins
subject to risks and uncertainties.

”

Forward-looking statements in this Annual Reporfonm 20-F include, but are not limited to, statatae
about:

e our growth strategies;
e competition from existing or new entrants in tharket and changes to the competitive landscape;
» the primacy of monocular camera processing @slitiminant sensor modality in the ADAS industry;

«  our belief that our relationship with STMicroefonics N.V., the sole supplier for our Ey8Q chips
will continue without disruption;

* the expected timeline of development of our aatoous driving ADAS systems, including statements
about launch dates and potential size of the mahleeéfor;
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«  the expected timeline for development of addiidunctions and of our Eye@4 chip;
* our ability to retain our largest customers tmdnplement our technology in their car models;
» the growing public awareness and acceptanceD#3y

» the growth of regulatory requirements and safating incentives to original equipment manufaetar
(“OEMSs") for OEMs to include ADAS in their vehiclmodels;

» our future prospects, business development|tsesiioperations and financial condition;
e our ability to retain Professor Amnon Shashua amdaw Aviram, whom we refer to as our Foundt
* our ability to retain key personnel and attraeity talent;

e our ability to protect our intellectual property

» our forecast of the strength of the aftermafeADAS;

» our use of forecasts in establishing our glahalrates;

» the effects of our internal reorganization;

» the risks that litigation and recalls of our guots pose to our business;

* our ability to predict and maintain appropriateentory;

e our ability to raise additional capital in theure;

» the strength of the automotive industry; and

. worldwide economic conditions.

You should not rely upon forward-looking statemeagspredictors of future events. The occurrendbef
events described, and the achievement of the eegbeesults, depend on many events, some or alhimhware
not predictable or within our control. Actual resuinay differ materially from expected results. Sigem 3. Key
Information — Risk Factors,” “Item 5. Operating arithancial Review and Prospects” and elsewherkign t
Annual Report on Form 20-F for a more completeuision of these risks, assumptions and uncertsiatid
for other risks and uncertainties. These risksymgtions and uncertainties are not necessarilyfalie
important factors that could cause actual resaltiiffer materially from those expressed in anypof forward-
looking statements. Other unknown or unpredictéddéors also could harm our results. All of theafard-
looking statements we have included in this AnRegbort on Form 20-F are based on information alvizileo
us on the date of this Annual Report on Form 2B8x€ept as required by law, we undertake no obligatnd
specifically decline any obligation, to update pciglor revise any forward-looking statements, wiegtas a
result of new information, future events or othessviln light of these risks, assumptions and uau#its, the
forward-looking events discussed in this Annual &tepn Form 20-F might not occur.

This Annual Report on Form 20-F also includes eatiz® of market share and industry data and forecast
that we have obtained from industry publicationsysys and forecasts, which generally state theat th
information contained therein has been obtainewh fsources believed to be reliable. In additiors #mnual
Report on Form 20-F includes market share and ingddsta that we have prepared primarily basedwn o
knowledge of the industry in which we operate. Wrletherwise noted, internal analysis and estinfetes not
been verified by independent sources. Our estimatgrrticular as they relate to market share@ndyeneral
expectations, involve risks and uncertainties aedsabject to change based on various factorgjdirgy those
discussed in “Iltem 3. Key Information — Risk Fastdin addition, while all information regarding oomarket
and industry is based on the latest data currentiylable to us, in some cases, some of the infiomanay be
several years old. Further, some of the data amd#sts that we have obtained from industry putitina and
surveys and/or internal company sources are prdvidéreign currencies.
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PART I

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISERS
Not applicable

ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE
Not applicable

ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION

A. Selected Financial Datz

The following table summarizes our financial datéée have derived the summary consolidated stateofient
operations data for the three years ended Decer@beP014, 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated balahee
data as of December 31, 2014 and 2013 from ourtaddionsolidated financial statements includedvetheze
in this Annual Report on Form 20-F. The consolidattatement of operations data for the year ended
December 31, 2011 and the consolidated balance sla¢® as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 are deffied
our audited financial statements not included iis thnnual Report on Form 20-F. We prepare our fitiah
statements in accordance with U.S. generally aezbptcounting principles (“U.S. GAAP”). Our histoail
results are not necessarily indicative of the resthiat should be expected in the future. The sugnofaour
consolidated financial data set forth below shdoddread together with our audited consolidated fitial
statements and the related notes, as well as “Bef@perating and Financial Review and Prospectagluded
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Statement of Operations Data

Revenue: $143,63° $ 81,24' $40,28: $19,16¢
Cost of Revenues 37,04( 21,13( 12,21¢ 6,86:
Gross Profi 106,59° 60,11¢ 28,06¢ 12,30¢
Operating Costs and Expenses

Research and Development, 36,93( 22,30¢  15,86¢ 15,373
Sales and Marketin 12,91: 12,33: 6,43¢ 6,13«
General and Administrative 71,43; 10,277 7,41¢ 2,56
Operating Profit (Loss (14,68:) 15,19¢ (1,652) (11,779)
Interest Incom 1,30¢ 1,05¢ 1,531 1,545
Financial Income (Expenses), net (4,442) 1,38¢ 40z (2,70¢)
Profit (Loss) Before Taxes on Incor (17,81¢)  17,64¢ 281 (12,93¢)
Benefit (Taxes) on Income (12,26%) 2,27¢ (334) (447)
Net Income (Loss $(30,08:) § 19,92 $ (53) $(13,38¢)
Basic and Diluted Loss per Sharé

Amount Allocated to Participating Sharehold $ — $(16,108) $§ — % —
Adjustment as a Result of Benefit to ParticipatBigareholdel (229,83.) — —

Net Income (Loss) Applicable to Ordinary Shares2oi4
and Applicable to Class A Ordinary Shares for 2Q218,2
and 2011 $(30,08¢) $(226,01') $ (53) $(13,38¢)

Basic and Diluted $ (028)$ (6.0:) $ — $ (0.329)
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Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Weighted Average Number of Shares Used In Computatn
of
Loss per Ordinary Share for 2014 and per Class A
Ordinary Share for 2013, 2012 and 2011

Basic and Diluted 107,94. 37,47. 40,19 40,19:
Pro Forma Earnings (Loss) per Share (Unaud

Net Income $(30,08¢)

Basic $ (0.1%)

Diluted $ (0.1%)

Weighted Average Number of Shares Used In Compurtati
of Pro Forma Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic 207,21
Diluted 207,21

December 31
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Balance Sheet Data
Cash, Cash Equivalents, Restricted Short-Term Disparsd

Marketable Securities $375,09: $124,36. $ 61,01
Inventories 17,62¢ 11,35¢ 9,27¢
Long-Term Asset: 18,06: 12,997 9,681
Total Assets 436,40t 168,22¢ 89,99/
Long-Term Liabilities 14,16: 9,71¢ 7,11¢
Accumulated Defici (130,97:) (100,88) (120,80)
Total Shareholde’ Equity 394,67: 142,63t 71,56¢

December 31
2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Other Financial Data
Net Income (Loss) Before Sh-Based Compensatid? $46,76¢ $33,05. $1,80:  $(12,26¢)

(1) Until all of our then outstanding shares of anysslaonverted into ordinary shares on July 31, 2014
“Share Recapitalization”) shortly prior to our iaitpublic offering (the “IPO”)pur issued share capital v
composed of Class A ordinary shares (with no ligtiah preference), ordinary shares (with liquidatio
preference), Class B, C, D, E, F1 and F2 Sharkat BUR 0.01 par value, and the only class oftantiing
shares without a liquidation preference was theLhordinary shares. Therefore, under U.S. GAAP,
earnings per share had to be computed based outstanding Class A ordinary shares. For additional
information, see Note 8 to our audited consolidéiteehcial statements included elsewhere in thiausd
Report on Form 20-F and see “Item 5. OperatingRindncial Review and Prospects — Comparison of
Results of Operations for 2014, 2013 and 2— Earnings Per Sha”

(2) We prepare this non-GAAP measure to eliminateripact of items that we do not consider indicatif’e o
our overall operating performance. To arrive atmam-GAAP net income (loss), we exclude share-based
compensation expense from our U.S. GAAP net incass). We believe that this non-GAAP measure is
useful to investors in evaluating our operatingganance for the following reasons:

*  We believe that elimination of share-based camp#on expense is appropriate because treatment of
this item may vary for reasons unrelated to ouraVeperating performance;
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*  We use this non-GAAP measure in conjunction with U.S. GAAP financial measure for planning
purposes, including the preparation of our annpatating budget, as a measure of operating
performance and the effectiveness of our businestegies and in communications with our board of
directors concerning our financial performance;

*  We believe that this non-GAAP measure providettelb comparability with our past financial
performance, facilitates better period-to-periothparisons of operational results and may facilitate
comparisons with similar companies, many of whicyralso use similar non-GAAP financial
measures to supplement their U.S. GAAP reporting; a

»  Ourinvestor presentations and those of seearénalysts include ndBAAP measures to evaluate ¢
overall operating performance.

Non-GAAP measures should not be considered as amailtee to gross profit, income (loss) from
operations, net income (loss) or any other measufiaancial performance calculated and presented i
accordance with U.S. GAAP. Our non-GAAP measure nabe comparable to similarly titted measures
of other organizations because other organizatiwamg not calculate non-GAAP measures in the same
manner. See “ltem 5. Operating and Financial Rewrd/ Prospects — Key Performance Indicators —
Reconciliation of Non-GAAP Measures.” Set forthdaelis the reconciliation of Net Income (Loss) Befor
Share-Based Compensation to Net Income (Loss):

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012 2011
(in thousands)

Net Income (Loss $(30,08:) $19,92( $ (53) $(13,38¢)

Share-Based Compensation 76,85 13,13 1,85¢ 1,11¢

Net Income (Loss) Before Sh-Based Compensation $ 46,76¢ $33,05. $1,80: $(12,26¢)

B. Capitalization and Indebtednes:

Not applicable

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Procee

Not applicable

D. Risk Factors

An investment in our ordinary shares involves antdggree of risk. An investor should carefully ides
the risks and uncertainties described below andbther information in this Annual Report on FormR®efore
making an investment in our ordinary shares. Owibess, financial condition or results of operatarould be
materially and adversely affected if any of thésksroccurs and, as a result, the market priceunfavdinary
shares could decline and an investor could los@maflart of its investment. This Annual Report amrf 20-F
also contains forward-looking statements that imealisks and uncertainties. See “Introduction —\kard-
Looking Statemen” Our actual results could differ materially and aersely from those anticipated in these
forward-looking statements.

Risks Related to Our Busines:

There is no assurance that monocular camera proéegswill be the dominant sensor modality in the AL¥
industry.

Although we believe that monocular camera procegsshe technology behind our ADAS, is, and will
continue to be, the industry standard for ADASs possible that other sensor modalities, sucladarror lidar
—or a new, disruptive modality based on new or @gstechnology—will achieve acceptance or dominance in
the market. If ADAS based on other sensory modalitjain acceptance by the market, regulators dety sa
organizations in place of or as a substitute fonawolar camera processing, and we do not win autditi
production models to the same extent as we hastatey our business, results of operations anddiahn
condition would be adversely affected.
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If we are unable to develop and introduce new ADA®ctions and improve existing functions in a ce
effective and timely manner, our business, reswfperations and financial condition would be adeely
affected.

Our business and future operating results will deljpen our ability to complete development of exigti
ADAS programs and to develop and introduce newearfthtnced ADAS functions that incorporate the latest
technological advancements in outdoor image prawg$srdware, software and camera technologiesand
satisfy evolving customer, regulatory and safetingarequirements. This will require us to investaurces in
research and development and also require that we:

» design innovative and safety- and comfamhancing features that differentiate our prodfrots those
of our competitors;

»  cooperate effectively on new designs with ouMD&nd Tier 1 customers;
» respond effectively to technological changeproduct announcements by our competitors; and

e adjust to changing market conditions and regmjaand rating standards quickly and cost-effetyive

If there are delays in or we fail to complete oxistng and new development programs, we may neite
to win additional production models or satisfy @QEM customers’ requirements, and our businessltsesi
operations and financial condition would be advgra&ected. In addition, we cannot assure you that
investment in research and development will leaantp corresponding increase in revenue, in whicke car
business, results of operations and financial cmdwould also be adversely affected.

We depend on STMicroelectronics N.V. to manufacturer EyeQ® chips.

We currently purchase all of our Ey&Q chips fromMi&Foelectronics N.V. All of our Eye® chips are
currently produced at a single facility in Frangece our Eye@ chip is incorporated in all of otmgucts, any
problems that occur and persist in connection thithmanufacture, delivery, quality or cost of tkeeanbly and
testing of our Eye® chips could have a materiakest effect on our business, results of operatiods
financial condition that might not be fully offsey any inventory of Eye® chips that we maintainc8ese of
the complex proprietary nature of our EyBQ chips, mansition from STMicroelectronics N.V. to a new
supplier or, if there were a disaster at the fggiliringing a new facility online, would take asificant period
of time to complete and could potentially resulbimr having insufficient inventory, which could asely affec
our business, results of operations and financiatlition. In addition, our contractual relationskjih
STMicroelectronics N.V. does not lock in ratesttoe long term, and both we and STMicroelectronicg. dre
free to terminate the arrangement at any time heurtve are vulnerable to the risk that STMicroetadcs N.V.
may become bankrupt.

We may incur material costs as a result of actualadleged product defects, product liability suitsnd
warranty and recall claims.

Our software and Eye® chips are complex and coave hor could be alleged to have, defects in design
or manufacturing or other errors or failures. STidéalectronics N.V. is responsible for quality cahtnd
procedures for testing and manufacturing of our@E$echips to our specifications, but we retain ligpifor
failure in production caused by defective EyY8Q alepign or error, or if the software design doesfmaction
as represented. Material defects in any of ouryxctsdcould thus result in decreasing revenuesalaéd\verse
publicity, increased operating costs due to legpkases and the possibility of consumer produatsliiy.
Although we have product liability insurance oftopan aggregate d§50 million, there is no assurance that ¢
insurance will be adequate to cover all of our ptité losses. Accordingly, we could experience sigant
costs, including defense costs, if we were requive@call our products or if we experience mateviarranty or
product liability losses in the future. Producblidty claims present the risk of protracted litigan, financial
damages, legal fees and diversion of managemdtaistian from the operation of our business. We use
disclaimers, limitations of liability and similargvisions in our agreements, but we have no assartémat any c
all of these provisions will prove to be effectivarriers to product liability claims.
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Furthermore, the automotive industry in generaliigject to litigation claims due to the nature efgpnal
injuries that result from traffic accidents. Asmaider of products related to, among other thipgsyenting
traffic accidents, we could be subject to litigatfor traffic-related accidents, even if our protduar services or
the failure thereof did not cause any particulaident. The emerging technologies of ADAS and aoioous
driving have not yet been litigated or legislatedtpoint whereby their legal implications are witumented.
As a provider of such products, we may becomedifdnl losses that exceed the current industry egdlatory
norms. If such a punitive liability landscape deps, we may also incur demand-related losses dae to
reduction in the number of OEMs offering such texbgy.

In the event that we are required to pay significleemages as a result of one or more lawsuitsatieatnot
covered by insurance or that exceed our coveragtsliit could materially harm our business, resaoft
operations and financial condition. The defenseérsgauch claims— even if they are ultimately unsuccesstul
could cause us to incur significant expenses asultrim a diversion of management’s attention.

In addition, if any of our products are, or aregéd to be, defective, we may be required to ppatie in a
recall of such products if the defect or the altedefect relates to motor vehicle safety. OEMsimeceeasingly
looking to their suppliers for contribution whercéal with product liability, warranty and recall iches.
Depending on the terms under which we supply oodycts, an OEM may hold us (through our Tier 1 ausr
that sold our products to the OEM) responsiblesfime or all of the entire repair or replacementsobthese
products under the OEM’s new vehicle warranties. €usts associated with recalls or providing praduc
warranties could be material. Product liability,rveaty and recall costs could have an adverseteffeour
business, results of operations and financial deomdi

We invest effort and money seeking OEM validatiohoair products, and there can be no assurance that
will win production models, which could adversel§fect our future business, results of operationsdn
financial condition.

We invest effort and money from the time of outiaicontact with an OEM to the date on which tHeEND
chooses our technology for ADAS applications tonm®rporated into one or more specific vehicle nisde be
produced by the OEM. The OEM acquires our prodiictsugh a Tier 1 supplier, which integrates our
proprietary software and Eye®) chip into a comphPAS product that it manufactures. This selectioncess
is known as a “design win.” We could expend oupteses without success. After a design win, iyEdally
quite difficult for a product or technology thatidiot receive the design win to displace the winurgil the
OEM issues a new request for quotation (“RFQ”) iseait is very unlikely that an OEM will change qaex
technology until a vehicle model is revamped. Iditioin, the firm with the winning design may have a
advantage with the OEM going forward because otstablished relationship between the winning fuma
such OEM, which could make it more difficult forckufirm’s competitors to win the designs for other
production models. If we fail to win a significamimber of OEM design competitions in the future, lousines:
results of operations and financial condition wolddadversely affected.

The period of time from a design win to implemeritat is long and we are subject to the risks of cafiation
or postponement of the contract or unsuccessful Iempentation.

Our products are technologically complex, incorp@raany technological innovations and are typically
intended for use in safety applications. Prospedi¥M customers generally must make significant
commitments of resources to test and validate oadtyxts before including them in any particular eiod
vehicle. The development cycles of our product$iwigw OEM customers are approximately one to theaes
after a design win, depending on the OEM and tmeptexity of the product. These development cyctssilt in
our investing our resources prior to realizing aeyenues from the production models. Further, wesabject tc
the risk that an OEM cancels or postpones impleatiemt of our technology, as well as that we wilt he able
to implement our technology successfully. Furtler, sales could be less than forecast if the velmwdel is
unsuccessful, including for reasons unrelated taexhnology. Long development cycles and product
cancellations or postponements may adversely afiacbusiness, results of operations and finamcatlition.

We are dependent on our Foundel

We are dependent on Professor Amnon Shashua, éemwader, Chief Technology Officer, Chairman and
a director, and Mr. Ziv Aviram, our co-Founder, $ident, Chief Executive Officer and a
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director. We refer to them as our “Founders.” Betlunders have substantial equity holdings in ushiMge
Vision Technologies Ltd., our Israeli subsidiariM{/T"), has entered into employment agreements with
Professor Shashua and Mr. Aviram. Under these agmets, Professor Shashua and Mr. Aviram are also no
permitted to compete with us or to hire our empésyduring the term of their employment and for I$hths
thereafter if they were to leave our company for @ason. Furthermore, each of Professor Amnontsiaaand
Ziv Aviram has agreed not to terminate his employmmtil the earlier of the third anniversary oéttiosing of
our IPO, or August 6, 2017, or an Acquisition (adimkd), and has agreed not to compete with ug solicit
any of our employees, subject to customary excegtiBee “Item 7. Major Shareholders and Relatety Par
Transactions — Related Party Transactions — Compaaynders Agreement.” The enforceability of non-
competition covenants in Israel is subject to lati@ns. In addition, we do not have key-man lifeurance for
either of our Founders.

Pursuant to his employment agreement, Profess@h8has permitted to spend up to 50 hours per month
on teaching and graduate student supervision ai¢feew University and on business activities watesl to us,
so long as such activities do not involve compaimdaisinesses substantially similar to our businBsirsuant
to his agreement, Mr. Aviram is also permittedgersd up to 20 hours per month on business actuitieelatet
to us so long as such activities do not involve ganies in businesses substantially similar to ogiiess.
Professor Shashua is a co-founder and the Chidfribéagy Officer and Chairman of OrCam, which regent
launched an assistive product for the visually imgzhbased on advanced computerized visual intexioa
capabilities. Mr. Aviram is also a dounder and is the President and Chief Executife€@fof OrCam. Each ¢
them is expected to spend a part of his permittad tinrelated to us on OrCam. For additional infation
about our relationship with OrCam, see “ltem 7. dieghareholders and Related Party Transactions latdele
Party Transactions — Relationship with OrCam Tedtdgies Ltd.” The loss of either Professor Shashusio
Aviram or other key members of management, or mifsd@nt diminution in their contribution to us, aid
adversely affect our business, financial conditomesults of operations.

We may be unable to attract and retain key persdnméiich could seriously harm our busines

We compete in a market that involves rapidly chaggéchnological and other developments, which
requires us to employ a workforce with a broado$etxpertise and intellectual capital. In order disrto
successfully compete and grow, we must attractyitecetain and develop the necessary softwargineering,
technical and other personnel who can provide #eglad expertise across the entire spectrum ofiteltectual
capital needs. The market for qualified personsmiebimpetitive and we may not succeed in recruditdjtional
personnel, retaining current personnel or effettiveplacing current personnel who may depart. \afenot
assure you that qualified employees will contirubé employed by us or that we will be able teaattand
retain additional qualified personnel in the futufailure to retain or attract key personnel cchddle an adverse
effect on our business, results of operations arah€ial condition.

We depend on licenses for certain technologies frifnind parties for which we pay royaltie:

We integrate certain technologies developed andedvay third parties into our products, including th
central processing unit core of our Ey8Q chipsyugh license and technology transfer agreementsetJn
these agreements, we are obligated to pay royédtiesach unit of our products that we sell thabiporates
such third party technology. If we are unable ton@én our contractual relationships with the thpakty
licensors on which we depend, we may not be abii@doreplacement technology to integrate into pruoducts
on a timely basis or for a similar royalty feewhich case our business, results of operationdiaadcial
condition would also be adversely affected.

Our aftermarket segment is subject to a number ik, including our ability to forecast demand faur
aftermarket products, our ability to market our &ftmarket products effectively and risks relatedtie
manufacture of our aftermarket products in China.

We sell our aftermarket products in part througtependent dealers and distributors worldwide. Ifuve
our dealers and distributors do not forecast denaandrately, we may not be able to supply them wuitfficient
products in a timely manner, which could causeresults of operations to suffer and adversely affec
relationships with our dealers and distributorsthie future, we may not be able to retain or
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attract a sufficient number of qualified dealerd dristributors. Failure to maintain relationshipghvwdealers and
distributors, or to expand our aftermarket prodais¢ribution channels, could have an adverse effeour
business, results of operations and financial deomdi

ADAS aftermarket products are also relatively néve seek to sell our aftermarket products in bulk to
fleets, telematics providers, insurance compamesogher potential bulk purchasers as a way fantte
depending on their particular needs, monitor aradyae driver behavior, set premiums, reduce couds a
otherwise prevent accidents. If we are not abladoket our aftermarket products effectively, ousihass,
results of operations and financial condition cduddadversely affected.

Furthermore, our aftermarket products are manufaedtby a contract manufacturer in China that presid
surface-mount technology services as well as adgetebting, packaging and logistics services. Thinese
contract manufacturer is subject to laws, regutetialuties and tariffs of the Chinese governmenthé future
China may eliminate, adjust or impose new quotases, tariffs, safeguard measures, cargo restnstfo
prevent terrorism, restrictions on the transfecwfency, product safety regulations or other chsuay
restrictions, any of which could affect our abilityprocure our aftermarket products or sell oterafarket
products at affordable prices, which, in turn, coadlversely affect our business, results of opmratand
financial condition. If we had to replace this aaict manufacturer for any reason, we believe itcttake
between four to nine months to have a new manufarcai full capacity. There is no assurance thatcthsts of
such a new arrangement might not exceed our cucosts, and during the transition period, it isgigle that wi
might not have sufficient inventory and our afterked sales and results of operations could be ader
affected.

In addition, we use a broad range of manufactuoedponents and raw materials in our aftermarket
products, including electronic and electro-mechantomponents, finished sub-components, moldediplasd
rubber parts. Some of the parts for our aftermgrkeducts, including the camera and certain mechaparts,
are provided by sole suppliers. Replacing thostspesuld take time and could also involve engimegefforts.
Although we maintain inventory of product partssipossible that the amount of products neededagiven
time will exceed our inventory levels, which wotdthder our ability to sell aftermarket products. fdover, if
the costs for products components increase, anchweot pass the increased costs on to our custametwle
or in part, the profitability of our aftermarketggeent would decrease.

Our business would be adversely affected if cert@®BMs were to change their ADAS technology and |
include our products in future models.

In 2014, sales through our Tier 1 suppliers to eddbur OEMs accounted for more than 10% of otalto
revenues. Revenues related to these four main QEkmers were comprised of sales attributable t©aB5
models of which four production programs each antedifor more than 10% of our total revenues. Weetily
are in production phase with 22 OEMs for 247 cadet® by 2016 through arrangements with Tier 1 congsa
We also have a number of advanced developmentraddigtion programs with other OEMs. We have separat
production programs for each vehicle model incluithegn RFQ that incorporates our products. Howefany
OEM were to determine not to incorporate our tedbmin their future models generally, or if welfai win a
significant number of additional future models frome or more OEMs, our business, results of oersitnd
financial condition would be adversely affected.

If we do not maintain sufficient inventory, we cadilose sales

Changing consumer demands and uncertainty surnogmdiw vehicle model launches could expose us to
inventory risk. Demand for ADAS technology, partamly vehicle models containing our products, cocténge
unexpectedly, and it is possible that we will netable to time our purchases of inventory to coiaciith OEM
requirements. We cannot assure you that we canaebupredict OEM demand and avoid under-stocking
EyeQ® chips, which could cause us to lose sales.

We may not be able to adequately protect or enfayaeintellectual property rights, and our effort® do sc
may be costly.

If we are not able to adequately protect or enftiheeproprietary aspects of our technology, contqreti
could be able to access our proprietary technofoglyour business, results of operations and
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financial condition could be adversely affected. Werently attempt to protect our technology thitmag
combination of patent, copyright, trademark anddraecret laws, employee and third party nondisotos
agreements and similar means. Despite our effattier parties may attempt to disclose, obtain eraus
technologies or systems. Our competitors may atsabtte to independently develop similar productdesign
around our patents. In addition, the laws of soaneifin countries do not protect our proprietanptigas fully a
do the laws of the United States. As a result, vag not be able to protect our proprietary rightscadhtely in
the United States or abroad.

In addition, any litigation initiated by us concerg the violation by third parties of our intelleel property
rights is likely to be expensive and time-consunang could lead to the invalidation of, or render
unenforceable, our intellectual property, or contiderwise have negative consequences for us. We been,
and in the future may be, a party to claims angdtton as a result of alleged infringement bydhparties of our
intellectual property. Even when we sue other parfdr such infringement, that suit may have advers
consequences for our business. Any such suit méiyneeconsuming and expensive to resolve and magridi
our management’s time and attention from our bgsinEurthermore, it could result in a court or goweental
agency invalidating or rendering unenforceablegaients or other intellectual property rights updrich the
suit is based, which would seriously harm our besn

We may become subject to litigation brought by thpparties claiming infringement by us of their inlectual
property rights.

The industry in which our business operates isagttarized by a large number of patents, some aftwhi
may be of questionable scope, validity or enfordippand some of which may appear to overlap vather
issued patents. As a result, there is a signifiaamtunt of uncertainty in the industry regardingepaprotection
and infringement. In recent years, there has biggifisant litigation globally involving patents drother
intellectual property rights. We could become sabje claims and litigation alleging infringement bs of
third-party patents and other intellectual propgeyerally, including by academic institutions. 3@elaims and
any resulting lawsuits, if resolved adversely tpamild subject us to significant liability for dages, impose
temporary or permanent injunctions against our petslor business operations, or invalidate or rende
unenforceable our intellectual property. In additibecause patent applications can take many yeétshe
patents issue, there may be applications now pgrafiwhich we are unaware, which may later resulssued
patents that our products may infringe. If any @f products infringes a valid and enforceable gatamf we
wish to avoid potential intellectual property ldiion on any alleged infringement of such produetscould be
prevented from selling, or elect not to sell, spobducts unless we obtain a license, which mayrlaailable.
Alternatively, we could be forced to pay substdntigalties or to redesign one or more of our piduo avoid
any infringement or allegations thereof. Additidpalve may face liability to our customers, busmpartners c
third parties for indemnification or other remedieshe event that they are sued for infringemertannection
with their use of our products.

We also may not be successful in any attempt tesigd our products to avoid any alleged infringetnén
successful claim of infringement against us, orfaiure or inability to develop and implement niofiringing
technology, or license the infringed technology aoneptable terms and on a timely basis, couldmadye
adversely affect our business and results of ojpasatFurthermore, such lawsuits, regardless af guecess,
would likely be time-consuming and expensive t@hes and would divert management’s time and atbenti
from our business, which could seriously harm ausitess. Also, such lawsuits, regardless of theicess,
could seriously harm our reputation with our OEMs dier 1 customers and in the industry at large.

We may be required to pay monetary remuneratioretoployees who develop inventions, even if the rigiot
such inventions have been assigned to

We enter into agreements with our employees putdoamhich such individuals agree that any invemgio
created in the scope of their employment are asdigmus or owned exclusively by us, dependinghen t
jurisdiction, without the employee retaining anghtis. A significant portion of our intellectual perty has bee
developed by our employees in the course of tmepleyment for us. Under the Israeli Patent Law, 51267,
or the Patent Law, inventions conceived by an eygaaluring the scope
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of his or her employment with a company are regaete“service inventions,” which belong to the eoypt,
absent a specific agreement between the employkeraployer giving the employee service inventigts.
The Patent Law also provides that if there is rdhsagreement between an employer and an empldyee, t
Israeli Compensation and Royalties Committee, eiGbmmittee, a body constituted under the Patent Ehalll
determine whether the employee is entitled to resmation for his or her inventions. Recent decisiopshe
Committee and the Israeli Supreme Court have ataateertainty in this area, as the Supreme Coludtthat
employees may be entitled to remuneration for theivice inventions despite having specificallywedi any
such rights. There is currently a motion pendinfpteethe Israeli Supreme Court challenging a May420
decision of the Committee that provided that, dejpgmon the circumstances, a generally phrasedenaiv
claims may suffice as a waiver of the right to reeeemuneration under the Patents Law. Further, th
Committee has not yet determined the method fautating this Committee-enforced remuneration. éilthh
our employees have agreed that any rights relatéuktr inventions are owned exclusively by us,may face
claims demanding remuneration in consideratiorstmh acknowledgement. As a consequence of suchglai
we could be required to pay additional remuneratioroyalties to our current and/or former empl®/e® be
forced to litigate such claims, which could negeltyvaffect our business.

In addition to patented technology, we rely on aumpatented proprietary technology, trade secretegesse!
and know-how.

We rely on proprietary information (such as tradersts, know-how and confidential information) to
protect intellectual property that may not be ptble, or that we believe is best protected by radlaat do not
require public disclosure. We generally seek tdqmiothis proprietary information by entering into
confidentiality agreements, or consulting, servicesmployment agreements that contain non-discéoand
non-use provisions with our employees, consultamstractors, scientific advisors and third partléswever,
we may fail to enter into the necessary agreemantseven if entered into, these agreements maydaehed
or may otherwise fail to prevent disclosure, thpatty infringement or misappropriation of our priepary
information, may be limited as to their term andymat provide an adequate remedy in the event of
unauthorized disclosure or use of proprietary imfation. We have limited control over the protectidrrade
secrets used by our third-party manufacturers apglgrs and could lose future trade secret priotedt any
unauthorized disclosure of such information occrsddition, our proprietary information may otivése
become known or be independently developed by empetitors or other third parties. To the exteat thur
employees, consultants, contractors, scientifiégsaas and other third parties use intellectual propowned by
others in their work for us, disputes may ariséoabe rights in related or resulting know-how émeentions.
Costly and time-consuming litigation could be nsegg to enforce and determine the scope of ourrjatapy
rights, and failure to obtain or maintain protentfor our proprietary information could adverseffeat our
competitive business position. Furthermore, lawsiréing trade secret rights in certain markets e/er
operate may afford little or no protection to owade secrets.

We also rely on physical and electronic securitysuees to protect our proprietary information, wat
cannot provide assurance that these security mesaulilt not be breached or provide adequate prioteébr our
property. There is a risk that third parties mataogband improperly utilize our proprietary infortizan to our
competitive disadvantage. We may not be able teatietr prevent the unauthorized use of such inféomar
take appropriate and timely steps to enforce detlectual property rights.

If we acquire companies, assets, products or tedbg@s, we may face integration risks and costsoasated
with those acquisitions that could adversely affectr business, results of operations and financ@indition.

If we are presented with appropriate opportunities,may acquire or make investments in complemgntar
companies, products or technologies. We do not hayeresent commitments to acquire any specific
companies, assets, products or technologies, @nél tan be no assurance that we will be able &ndo
Furthermore, such acquisition may be subject toettedder approval under the provisions of Dutch tavthe
requirements of the NYSE, which may not be obtailfedte acquire any such companies, assets, preduct
technologies, we may face risks, uncertaintiesdisidiptions associated with the integration prociestuding
difficulties in the integration of the operationfsam acquired
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company, integration of acquired technology with products, diversion of our management’s attenfiom
other business concerns, the potential loss oEkegloyees or customers of the acquired business and
impairment charges if future acquisitions are ros@accessful as we originally anticipate. In additiour
operating results may suffer because of acquisitdated costs or amortization expenses or chasdasng to
acquired intangible assets. Any failure to suceslgsintegrate other companies, assets, productsabmologies
that we may acquire may have a material adversetesh our business and results of operationshéurtore,
we may have to incur debt or issue equity secsrttepay for any additional future acquisitionsrarestments,
the issuance of which could be dilutive to our Brgsshareholders.

Disruptions to our IT system may disrupt our opeiats and materially adversely affect our businesw:
results of operations.

Our servers and equipment may be subject to compiuiteses, break-ins and similar disruptions from
unauthorized tampering with computer systems. Wiepcavide no assurance that our current information
technology (“IT”) system is fully protected agaitisird-party intrusions, viruses, hacker attackfimation or
data theft or other similar threats. A cyber-attddt bypasses our IT security systems causing aedurity
breach may lead to a material disruption of oubliiness systems and/or the loss of business iafam Any
such event could have a material adverse effecuoibusiness until we recover using our back-uprmftion.
To the extent that such disruptions or uncertasmiéssult in delays or cancellations of customegmms or
misappropriation or release of our confidentiabdat our intellectual property, our business arsdilte of
operations could be materially and adversely aéfibct

Although we had net income in accordance with UGAAP in the year ended December 31, 2013, we h.
net loss in accordance with U.S. GAAP in the yeaded December 31, 2014, and there is no assuraheg t
we will become and remain profitable.

Mobileye has a history of losses. Although we wenafitable on both an operating profit and net imeo
basis as determined in accordance with U.S. GAARIB, we had a net loss in accordance with U.SAG &
2014 and an accumulated deficit$£31.0 million as of December 31, 2014. If ourarewe does not grow
sufficiently, or if increases in our research aestelopment costs and other operating expensestfellowed
by commensurate increases in revenue, our busiressdts of operations and financial condition i
adversely affected. Additionally, we might not l@eato decrease our research and developmentaosts
operating expenses, many of which are fixed, ifrewvenue does not grow at a sufficient rate. Tloeegfwe
cannot assure you that we will maintain or increasgeprofitability in the future.

We may need to raise additional capital in the fud)which may not be available on terms acceptatol@s, or
at all.

Since inception through December 31, 2014, ourractated deficit was $131.0 million and we generated
net income only in 2013. A majority of our operatiexpenses are for research and development agiv@ur
capital requirements will depend on many factorsluding, but not limited to:

» technological advancements;

* market acceptance of our products and produamrements, and the overall level of sales of our
products;

» research and development expenses;

» our relationships with OEMs, Tier 1 customerd anppliers;

e our ability to control costs;

» sales and marketing expenses;

« enhancements to our infrastructure and systemhgay capital improvements to our facilities;
+  potential acquisitions of businesses and prolilues; and

e general economic conditions, including the efeaf international conflicts and their impact b t
automotive industry in particular.
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If our capital requirements are materially diffearéiom those currently planned, we may need aduktio
capital sooner than anticipated. If additional fsiade raised through the issuance of equity orextitie debt
securities, the percentage ownership of our sh&detmwat that point in time will be reduced. Adalital
financing may not be available on favorable teromsa timely basis, or at all. If adequate fundsrareavailable
or are not available on acceptable terms, we maynbéle to continue our operations as planned,|dews
enhance our products, expand our sales and magketigrams, take advantage of future opportunities
respond to competitive pressures.

We are exposed to currency fluctuatior

Although our financial results are reported in W8llars, a significant portion of our operatingperses
are accrued in New Israeli Shekels (primarily edatio payroll) and, to a lesser extent, the Eutbather
currencies. Our profitability is affected by moverteof the U.S. dollar against the New Israeli ®he#nd, to a
lesser extent, the Euro and other currencies iclwivie generate revenues, incur expenses and nmadatstn
balances. We generate revenues in New Israeli &htilad partially offset the New Israeli Shekel egpre. Our
prices in most countries are denominated primamily.S. dollars. Although our products are mainlyghased
in U.S. dollars, foreign currency fluctuations nayo affect the prices of our products. If thera &gnificant
devaluation of a particular currency, the priceswf products will increase relative to the locadrency and
may be less competitive. Despite our efforts toimize foreign currency risks, significant longrm fluctuation
in relative currency values, in particular a sigr@ift change in the relative values of New Isr8élkekel and, to a
much lesser extent, the Euro and other currengasist the U.S. dollar could have an adverse effeaiur
profitability and financial condition. For exampkm increase of 1% in the value of the New Isr@bkkel
against the U.S. dollar would have increased opersges by approximately $0.3 million in the yeatezh
December 31, 2014. Although we seek to limit oygasure to currency exchange rate risk by maintginin
similar levels of assets and liabilities in Newalsli Shekels and U.S. dollars, to the extent comiaky feasible
we cannot fully eliminate the effects of currenkycfuations.

We are subiject to risks associated with doing besis globally

Our operations are subject to risks inherent irdooting business globally and under the laws, e@qns
and customs of various jurisdictions and geographieaddition to risks related to currency exclearages,
these risks include changes in exchange contriedg)ges in taxation, importation limitations, expattrol
restrictions, changes in or violations of appliealalws, including the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Pracgtiéet and the
U.K. Bribery Act of 2010, economic and politicaktability, disputes between countries, diminished o
insufficient protection of intellectual propertynagdisruption or destruction of operations in angigant
geographic region regardless of cause, including t@erorism, riot, civil insurrection or social igst. Failure to
comply with, or material changes to, the laws agltations that affect our global operations cddde an
adverse effect on our business, results of operatad financial condition.

Risks Related to Our Industry

Adverse conditions in the automotive industry ofetlglobal economy more generally could have adve
effects on our results of operations.

Our business depends on, and is directly affecgethle global automobile industry. Automotive protian
and sales are highly cyclical and depend on geeemiomic conditions and other factors, includingsumer
spending and preferences, changes in interesesatts and credit availability, consumer confiderfoel costs,
fuel availability, environmental impact, governmaribcentives and regulatory requirements, andipali
volatility, especially in energy-producing coungriand growth markets. In addition, automotive potidm and
sales can be affected by our OEM customers’ alidityontinue operating in response to challengoanemic
conditions, such as the financial crisis that bega2007, and in response to labor relations issegsilatory
requirements, trade agreements and other facttybal®/, OEMs and their suppliers continue to exgrre
significant difficulties from weakened economiesl dightened credit markets, and many are still vedag
from the financial crisis. The volume of automotp®duction in North America, Europe and the réshe
world has fluctuated, sometimes
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significantly, from year to year, and such fluctaas give rise to fluctuations in the demand for products.
Any significant adverse change in any of theseofagtincluding, but not limited to, general economonditions
and the resulting bankruptcy of an OEM customeherclosure of an OEM manufacturing facility, magult in
a reduction in automotive sales and productionuyy@EM customers, and could have a material ad\affset
on our business, results of operations and finaooiadition.

If there is a slowing of the increasing requirementor active safety technology, our business, résuwoif
operations and financial condition would be advelgaffected.

We have seen an increased demand for our technatudjthe growth of our business that correlatels wit
driver awareness and acceptance of the safetyrésabur ADAS provides. This acceptance and awaseBes
primarily due to the influence of regulators antégaorganizations that provide both mandates andritives,
such as star ratings, to OEMs to include activetgaéchnology in their vehicle models. We beliévat this
trend in regulation and ratings will continue anvere accelerate over the next decade, thus incigeasiareness
and acceptance of, and consequently demand foreaztfety technology. However, should there blwaiag
of the increasing requirements for active safethelogy, our growth might be limited and our besis, results
of operations and financial condition would be adeéy affected.

If our OEM customers are unable to maintain and irease consumer acceptance of ADAS technology,
business, results of operations and financial cotidih would be adversely affected.

Our future operating results will depend on thdighdf OEMs to maintain and increase consumer
acceptance of ADAS generally and of our cameraétsghnology and autonomous driving specificallgefie
is no assurance that OEMs can achieve these olgjsecNlarket acceptance of ADAS, our camera-based
technology and autonomous driving depends upon rfetgrs, including regulatory requirements, evadyi
safety standards, cost and driver preferences. éfladceptance of our products also depends orbiliy af
market participants, including Mobileye, to resolgehnical challenges for increasingly complex ADA%
timely and cost-effective manner. Consumers wilbaileed to be made aware of the advantages oamera-
based ADAS compared to competing technologies,ifspaty those with different sensor modalities buas
radar or lidar. If consumer acceptance of ADAS tetbgy in the OEM market does not increase, sdlesiio
aftermarket products could also be adversely aftect

Autonomous driving is a complex set of technologa¥ there is no assurance that additional autononst
driving applications will develop in the near futeror that a market for fully autonomous driving Witlevelop.

Autonomous driving is a complex set of technologwsich requires the continuing development of both
sensing technology and control technology. Funstienmd capabilities are in different stages of dgwalent and
their reliability must continue to improve in ordermeet the higher standards required for automnsnioiving.
Sensing technology provides information to thearat includes new sensors, communication and guedanc
technology, and software. Although we have desigrswith four OEMs and development programs with
four additional OEMs for hands-free highway drivjtigere can be no assurance that we can finalize th
development and validate that our technology hasidtessary reliability for fully autonomous driyin
Similarly, we are still in early development of mext generation setfriving features (namely, our country rc
capabilities and city traffic capabilities), whiwlill require significant algorithmic innovation hys. There can |
no assurance that we can complete such developmarimely manner. If we cannot achieve designswor
these additional capabilities or if, following asych design win, our product is not fully validatet does not
go into serial production, our future business peass and results of operations could be matergaiyersely
affected.

Further, we do not develop control technology fmia production, such as brakes and steering.oétgh
control functions already are in production fortsapplications as Autonomous Emergency Brakingel.an
Keeping and Assist and Adaptive Cruise Controltglean be no assurance that those applicationsecan
developed and validated at the high reliabilityngird required in a cost-effective and timely mantiehe
control technology is not ready to be deployedehigle models when our sensing technology is reladych o
serial production could be delayed, perhaps fogmifecant time period,
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which could also materially adversely affect ousibess, results of operations and financial coowlitT here are
also a number of additional challenges to autonaaiving, all of which are not within our contrahcluding
market acceptance of autonomous driving, partibufally autonomous driving, state licensing reguments,
concerns regarding electronic security and privacyyal and threatened litigation (whether or nptdgment is
rendered against us) and the general perceptivthéa&ehicle is not safe because there is no hudriaer.
There can be no assurance that the market wilbaerg vehicle model including our technology, ihigh case
our future business, results of operations andfire condition could be adversely affected.

We operate in a highly competitive mark

The ADAS industry is highly competitive. Competitics based primarily on technology, innovation,
quality, delivery and price. Our future success délpend on our ability to develop superior advance
technology and to maintain our leading competipesition with respect to our technological advarmesr our
existing and any new competitors. Although we he&ithat we are the only provider of ADAS with theaunt
and type of validation data necessary to compé¢etdfely in the ADAS industry, and that there aignificant
other barriers to developing a feasible competamgsery modality, we face potential competition frémar 1
companies and other technology companies, soméichvhave significantly greater resources than weFor
example, Google Inc.’s autonomous car program éeesived significant public attention. It is possittiat a
competitor or potential competitor, including Goaghc., could create a competitive ADAS that gaiigsifican:
market share, although we believe that they woxfieeence the same five-to-seven year developnraetine
with an OEM as we do. If we were to lose a sigaificnumber of design wins to a new entrant, owréut
business, results of operations and financial ¢ammdivould be adversely affected.

Risks Related to Operations in Israe

Conditions in Israel affect our operations and méiynit our ability to produce and sell our product

Although we are incorporated under the laws of Weéherlands, our headquarters and research and
development center are located in the State oéllsPalitical, economic and military conditionsigrael directly
affect our operations. Since the State of Israal @stablished in 1948, a number of armed contliate
occurred between Israel and its Arab neighborhdgh Israel has entered into various agreemettisBgypt,
Jordan and the Palestinian Authority, there comtsnio be unrest and terrorist activity in Israddjol has
continued with varying levels of severity, and oimgphostilities and armed conflicts between Isa@ the
Palestinian Authority and other groups in the VBastk and Gaza Strip. The effects of these hossliéind
violence on the Israeli economy and our operatéasunclear, and we cannot predict the effect oof asfurthe
increase in these hostilities or any future armadlict, political instability or violence in theegion. We could
be harmed by any major hostilities involving Isrdbé interruption or curtailment of trade betwésnael and its
trading partners or a significant downturn in tker@mic or financial condition of Israel. In theeew of war, we
and our Israeli aftermarket product subcontraciois suppliers may cease operations, which may clags ii
the distribution and sale of our aftermarket prdduln the event that our principal executive @fis damaged
as a result of hostile action, or hostilities othise disrupt the ongoing operation of our officas; ability to
operate could be materially adversely affectedtifemmore, since 2011, there has been civil wayimaSnd
since early 2013, the region has seen the growtteoflslamic State” and increased internal hdgdiin Irag.
The impact of these circumstances on Israel’siogiatwith its Arab neighbors, in general, or on operations
in the region, in particular, remains uncertaine Bstablishment of new fundamentalist Islamic regior
governments more hostile to Israel could have ser@amnsequences for the peace and stability iretfien,
place additional political, economic and militagnéines upon Israel, materially adversely affeat @perations
and limit our ability to sell our products to cotias in the region.

Additionally, several countries, principally in thMiddle East, still restrict doing business withasl and
Israeli companies, and additional countries andigsdave imposed or may impose restrictions ongdoin
business with Israel and Israeli companies if fities in Israel or political instability in the géon continues or
increases. These restrictions may limit materially ability to obtain manufactured components avd r
materials from these countries or sell our prodtetompanies in these countries.
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Any hostilities involving Israel or the interruptior curtailment of trade between Israel and iesent trading
partners, or significant downturn in the economidimancial condition of Israel, could adverselyeat our
business, results of operations and financial deomdi

Our operations may be disrupted by the obligatiafpersonnel to perform military servici

Some of our employees in Israel are obligated tiopm annual reserve duty in the Israeli militandaare
subject to being called for additional active dubder emergency circumstances. In response tcaisede
tension and hostilities, there have been occasaiblps of military reservists, and it is possitthat there will
be additional call-ups in the future. We cannotmethe full impact of these conditions on ushe future,
particularly if emergency circumstances or an egial in the political situation occurs. If manyafr
employees are called for active duty, our operatiarisrael and our business may not be able tctimat full
capacity, and our business, results of operatindsiaancial condition could be adversely affected.

The tax benefits that are available to us underdsti law require us to meet various conditions andy be
terminated or reduced in the future, which coulddrease our costs and taxes.

Our Israeli subsidiary was eligible for certain teenefits provided to “Benefited Enterprises” unter
Israeli Law for the Encouragement of Capital Inweestits, 1959, referred to as the Investment Law. In
May 2014, our Israeli subsidiary made an electidfective as of January 1, 2014, under the Investrhaw to
change its tax status from a “Benefited Enterprised “Preferred Company” in connection with a J2014
ruling we received from the Israeli Tax Authoritye believe this ruling will provide us with bensfisubject to
the fulfillment of conditions stipulated in the kestment Law and in accordance with the terms anditions of
the law and of the ruling. Specifically, the stambeorporate tax rate for Israeli companies wassiased to 25%
in 2012 and 2013 and further increased to 26.5%204#4 and thereafter. We expect to benefit froexaate of
9% as a “Preferred Company.” If these tax benafiésreduced, cancelled or discontinued, for whateason
including lack of compliance with the requiremeotshe law and the ruling, our Israeli taxable imsowould by
subject to standard Israeli corporate tax ratesnanchay be required to refund any tax benefitsweahave
already received, plus indexation, interest andhftis thereon. Additionally, if we increase outities outsid:
of Israel through acquisitions, for example, oupanded activities might not be eligible for inclusiin future
Israeli tax benefit programs. See “Material Isrdelk Considerations and Government Prograsnisraeli
Taxation and Government Programd.aw for Encouragement of Capital Investments, 19%8e Israeli
government may furthermore independently deterrdrreduce, phase out or eliminate entirely the fiene
programs under the Investment Law, regardless etlvdr we then qualify for benefits under those ot at
the time, which would also adversely affect outbgliatax rate and our results of operations. See Bdb our
audited consolidated financial statements incluglsdwhere in this Annual Report on Form 20-F for a
discussion of our current tax obligations. See dison 5. Operating and Financial Review and Protpe—
Corporate Information and Reorganization.”

Our income tax rate is complex and subject to untzénty.

Computations of our taxes on income and withholdibligations are complex because they are based on
the laws of numerous taxing jurisdictions. Thesegotations require significant judgment on the aapion of
complicated rules governing accounting for tax sions under GAAP. The international nature of stnucture
and operations creates uncertainties as to theadilbkm of our global results among the variousspligtions in
which we operate as a result of different rulesrdipg taxable presence and changes thereto, ttinsand
transfer pricing. Taxes on income for interim qaestis based on a forecast of our global tax @téhe year,
which includes forward looking financial projectmrSuch financial projections are based on numerous
assumptions, including the expectations of prafi bbss by jurisdiction. We may not accurately @t the
various items that comprise the projections. Initasitl in connection with our reorganization ingrdel (see
“ltem 5. Operating and Financial Review and Protped-actors Affecting Our Operating Resutts
Reorganization”), although we have received opisifsam Cyprus counsel and Dutch counsel that the
reorganization should not result in any tax lidigi under the laws of Cyprus or The Netherlartfueset can be
no assurance that the relevant tax authorities tdigtermine that such taxes are not owed.
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Risks Related to Our Ordinary Shares

The market price of our ordinary shares may flucttega and you could lose all or part of your investnie

The stock market in general has been, and the inarrice of our ordinary shares in particular ishjsat to
fluctuation, whether due to, or irrespective off operating results and financial condition. Thekeaprice of
our ordinary shares on the New York Stock Exchdtige“NYSE”) may fluctuate as a result of a numbger
factors, some of which are beyond our control udgig, but not limited to:

announcements by regulators, new car assesgmagrams and other safety organizations regarding
ADAS and related technology;

market acceptance of our products;

announcements of the results of research anel@@went projects by us or our competitors;
announcements by others relating to ADAS teabmphbnd its adoption by OEMSs;
development of new competitive systems and prtsdoy others;

changes in earnings estimates or recommenddiipascurities analysts;

developments concerning our intellectual propaghts;

loss of key personnel, particularly our Foungers

changes in the cost of satisfying our warrartjgations;

loss of key customers;

delays between our expenditures to develop aarttehnew or enhanced products and the generation
of sales from those products;

changes in the amount that we spend to devatapjire or license new products, technologies or
businesses;

changes in our research and development andtipgexpenditures;
variations in our and our competitors’ result®perations and financial condition;

our sale or proposed sale or the sale by ouif&ignt shareholders of our ordinary shares oewoth
securities in the future; and

general market conditions and other factorduiting factors unrelated to our operating perforogan

These factors and any corresponding price fluatnatmay materially and adversely affect the mapkiee
of our ordinary shares and result in substantgdds being incurred by our investors. Market prioesecurities
of technology companies historically have been wetatile. The market for these securities has ftione to
time experienced significant price and volume fhattons for reasons unrelated to the operatingopeence of
any one company. In the past, following periodmafket volatility, public company shareholders haften
instituted securities class action litigation ie tnited States. If we were involved in securititégation, it coulc
impose a substantial cost upon us and divert thaurees and attention of our management from csinbss.

Our financial results may vary significantly fromuprter-to-quarter due to a number of factor:

Our quarterly revenue and results of operations waay significantly from quarter-to-quarter. These
fluctuations are due to numerous factors, including

fluctuations in demand for our products;
our ability to correlate our inventory purchaséthh OEM orders;
seasonal cycles in consumer spending on vehicles

our ability to design, manufacture and delivexducts in a timely and cost-effective manner;
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» the timing of the introduction of new vehicle dets containing our products;
* our ability to timely obtain adequate quantitifthe components used in our products;
e unanticipated increases in costs or expenses; an

» fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.

For example, we typically experience our lowesesah the first calendar quarter, but this apparent
seasonality has been partially masked becauserafvevall growth in revenues in recent years. Tdredoing
factors are difficult to forecast, and these, al asother factors, could materially and adversdfgct our
guarterly and annual results of operations. Intimdia significant amount of our operating expense
relatively fixed due to our research and developgmeanufacturing, sales and marketing and general
administrative efforts. Any failure to adjust spamgquickly enough to compensate for a revenuetfdiiocould
magnify the adverse impact of such revenue shbaifabur results of operations.

Your rights and responsibilities as our shareholdeill be governed by Dutch law, which may differ some
respects from the rights and responsibilities ofasbholders of U.S. corporations.

We are incorporated under Dutch law and the rightsresponsibilities of our shareholders are gaaiy
our articles of association and Dutch law. Thetdgif shareholders and the responsibilities of nermbf our
board of directors may be different from the rigbitshareholders and responsibilities of direchorsompanies
governed by the laws of U.S jurisdictions. In tleefprmance of its duties, our board of directort b requirec
by Dutch law to consider the interests of our conyp#s shareholders, its employees and other Btd#ters, in
all cases with due observation of the principleseafonableness and fairness. It is possible tina¢ ®f these
parties will have interests that are different franin addition to, your interests as a sharehol8ee “Item 6.
Directors, Senior Management and Employees — BBaadtices,” “Item 6. Directors, Senior Managemenrt a
Employees — Directors and Senior Management” ateh{|10. Additional Information — Memorandum and
Articles of Association — Differences in Corporaiaw.”

Our Founders have a significant level of control evmost matters requiring shareholder approv

Professor Amnon Shashua and Mr. Ziv Aviram corft@Po and 9.2%, respectively, of our ordinary shares
If they were to act in concert, our Founders wdiddable to exercise a significant level of contnaér most
matters requiring shareholder approval, includimgyelection of directors, amendment of our artioles
association and approval of significant corpored@sactions. This control could have the effectalfying or
preventing a change of control of our company angjes in management and could make the approcatiair
transactions difficult without their support, inding transactions in which you might otherwise reea
premium for your shares over the thaurrent market price. Further, our Founders argrattibited from sellin
their interests in us to a third party and may @evihout shareholder approval and without providior a
purchase of other shareholders’ ordinary sharasadditional information on these shareholdings, ‘¢&em 6.
Directors, Senior Management and EmployeeBirectors and Senior Management” and “Iltem 7. Major
Shareholders and Related Party Transactiomdajer Shareholders.”

Our articles of association contain provisions thatay discourage a takeover attem

Provisions of our articles of association imposeotes procedural and other requirements that maerita
more difficult for shareholders to effect certaormorate actions and may make it more difficultdahird party
to acquire us, even if doing so might be benefiwialur shareholders.

For example, our articles of association provide thur shareholders may only suspend or remove the
members of our board of directors when two-thirfithe votes are cast in favor of the resolutionsiespension
or removal, provided that the votes cast in favidhe resolution represent more than 50% of atwfissued
and outstanding shares. In addition, under outlastiof association the following actions can drgytaken by
us when two-thirds of the votes are cast in faddhe resolution for taking the relevant actiompyided that the
votes cast in favor of the resolution represententban 50% of all issued and outstanding shares:
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» amendment of our articles of association;

» sale of all or substantially all of our business

»  certain joint ventures and divestitures thatinegshareholder approval under Dutch law;
»  statutory merger or statutory demerger of thenGany;

* liguidation or dissolution of the Company; and

* acquisitions of, and investments in, other conmmfor an amount in excess of 20% of our average
market capitalization during a period of up to 2§sl(as determined by our board of directors) pa:
execution of a definitive agreement for the acdjoisior investment.

In addition, all of the actions described aboveyal as any acquisition by us of, or investmentbyin,
another company which is required to be approveshiayeholders under Dutch law, can only be takesuaunt
to a proposal by our board of directors.

See “Item 10. Additional Information — MemorandundaArticles of Association — General Meeting of
Shareholders” for more detailed information.

Moreover, our general meeting of shareholders Haptad a resolution delegating to our board ofodiines
the power to issue shares and to grant optionsamaror other rights to acquire shares, and ttudgre-
emptive rights with respect to all issuances ofehand grants of the right to acquire shares. fEsislution will
continue in force until July 10, 2019. We also estge propose a similar resolution for approvafuiture annual
shareholders meetings. Based on this delegatiantbbrity, our board of directors will have thelarity to
issue shares at such prices (but generally nothessnominal value), and upon such terms and tiondj as ot
board of directors deems appropriate, based atetermination of what is in our best interestdattime shares
are issued or the right to acquire shares is giaear board of directors also has the authoritgxcude pre-
emptive rights with respect to any issuance ofeshar grant of the right to acquire shares, iftsdiscretion, it
believes that any such exclusion is in our bestésts. Issuance of shares by our board of diectarld,
depending on the circumstances, have the effaoaéifng it more difficult for a hostile acquirer take control
of the Company.

In evaluating a response to a takeover offer, wdrdtbstile or friendly, our board of directors égjuired
under Dutch law to take into account not only thteriests of shareholders, but also the interesa#f other
stakeholders in the Company, including employees]itors, customers and other contract parties edtids
legal standard, our board of directors would béatized to reject a takeover offer that it viewdess beneficie
to the interests of our employees and other std#etothan a competing offer, even if the rejecifer were fo
a higher price than the offer that is accepteds Thie would also apply in an “auction” situatiohave the
Company is actively encouraging competing offeradquire the Company or its business.

Only approximately one-third of our board of dist will be elected each year. The fact that nafabur
directors will be elected each year could haveeffect of delaying the date at which a hostile aeguvho
acquires a controlling interest in our shares wdngldhble to actually take control of the Company.

We are a holding company

We are a holding company. Accordingly, our abitiyconduct our operations, service any debt thatnay
incur in the future and pay dividends, if any, &dndent upon the earnings from the business cteatibyg our
subsidiaries, particularly MVT, our Israeli subsidi. The distribution of those earnings or advarwesther
distributions of funds by our subsidiaries to usweell as our receipt of such funds, are continggon the
earnings of our subsidiaries and are subject towsibusiness considerations and applicable lasiyding the
laws of The Netherlands and Israel. If our subsig$are unable to make sufficient distributiongdvances to
us, or if there are limitations on our ability #ceive such distributions or advances, we may ae¢ the cash
resources necessary to conduct our corporate apeatvhich could have a material adverse effeaun
business, results of operations and financial ¢mrdi
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We do not expect to pay dividends in the foreseedisture.

We have not paid any dividends since our incorpamaEven if future operations were to lead to gigant
levels of profits that would allow us to pay divitks, we currently intend to retain all availablada for
reinvestment in our business. Any decision to decad pay dividends in the future will be madthat
discretion of our general meeting of sharehold@rtng pursuant to a proposal by our board of ttrsg and
will depend on, among other things, our resultegsrations, financial condition, future prospectstractual
restrictions, restrictions imposed by applicable énd other factors our board of directors or gelhmeeting of
shareholders may deem relevant. Moreover, futwigeid distribution may be subject to additional & MVT.
Accordingly, investors cannot rely on dividend ineofrom our ordinary shares and any returns on an
investment in our ordinary shares will likely dedesmtirely upon any future appreciation in the @i our
ordinary shares.

We are a foreign private issuer and, as a resule are not subject to U.S. proxy rules and are subj@
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (“Exchange Act”), reporting obligations that, to soeextent, are more
lenient and less frequent than those of a U.S. datiepublic company.

We report under the Exchange Act as a non-U.S. eompiith foreign private issuer status. Because we
qualify as a foreign private issuer under the ErgieaAct and although we are subject to Dutch laves a
regulations with regard to such matters and interfdrnish quarterly financial information to th&S, we are
exempt from certain provisions of the Exchangethat are applicable to U.S. domestic public comgsni
including (i) the sections of the Exchange Act laging the solicitation of proxies, consents orawizations in
respect of a security registered under the Exchaweg(ii) the sections of the Exchange Act requirinsiders t
file public reports of their stock ownership anading activities and liability for insiders who fiitdrom trades
made in a short period of time; and (iii) the rulesler the Exchange Act requiring the filing witle tSEC of
quarterly reports on Form 10-Q containing unauditeancial and other specified information (althbuge
intend to provide quarterly information on Form §-Kr current reports on Form 8-K, upon the ocawreeof
specified significant events. We also follow Dutatvs and regulations that are applicable to puptielded
Dutch companies listed outside the European Urtlm “EU”). However, Dutch laws and regulations applice
to Dutch companies whose shares are not listech &l asecurities exchange do not contain any prowssi
comparable to the U.S. proxy rules, the U.S. redéeting to the filing of reports on Form 10-Q @rf 8-K or
the U.S. rules relating to liability for insidersa profit from trades made in a short period ofgtjras referred to
above. In addition, foreign private issuers arerequired to file their annual report on Form 20+l 120 days
after the end of each fiscal year, while U.S. ddinéssuers that are accelerated filers are reduodile their
annual report on Form 10-K within 75 days afterehd of each fiscal year. Foreign private issusgsatso
exempt from Regulation FD, which is intended tovpre issuers from making selective disclosures atiemal
information, although we are subject to Dutch land regulations having substantially the same effec
Regulation FD. As a result of all of the above, glaunot have the same protections afforded to bbéders of a
company that is not a foreign private issuer.

As we are ¢ foreign private issue” and intend to follow certain home country corporag@vernance
practices, our shareholders do not have the sametgetions afforded to shareholders of companiestthee
subject to all NYSE corporate governance requirene|

As a foreign private issuer, we have the optiofoliow certain Dutch corporate governance practiegisel
than those of the NYSE, provided that we disclbgerequirements we are not following and desctileehbme
country practices we are following. We rely on ttigreign private issuer exemption” with respecttie NYSE
requirements to have the Audit Committee appointestiernal auditors, NYSE rules relating to quorwand
record dates for shareholder meetings and NYSE relguiring shareholders to approve equity compimsa
plans and material revisions thereto. See “ltem.X&@porate Governance.” We may in the future dlect
follow home country practices in The Netherlandthwegard to other matters. As a result, our stwdeins do
not have the same protections afforded to sharet®olf companies that are subject to all NYSE cateo
governance requirements. For an overview of oypa@aite governance practices, see also “ltem 6ciirg,
Senior Management and Employees — Board Practices.”
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We do not comply with certain requirements of theioh Corporate Governance Cod

Dutch public companies are encouraged to complly thi¢ provisions of the Dutch Corporate Governance
Code adopted by the Dutch Corporate Governance Gib@enon December 9, 2003, as amended and regtated
December 2008 (the “Dutch Code”). However, compamiay elect not to comply with some or all of the
provisions of the Dutch Code, provided that such-compliance and the reasons for the non-complianee
disclosed. Most of the provisions of the Dutch Cadeidentical to, or substantially the same asvipions
applicable to publicly traded U.S. companies, aedmend to comply with those provisions of the @u€Code.
Other provisions of the Dutch Code, however, argremy to customary market practice in the Unitéatés for
publicly traded companies or are otherwise in adgment inappropriate. See “Item 6. Directors, &eni
Management and Employees — Board Practices — DTiechorate Governance Code.”

We are an“emerging growth compan” and we cannot be certain if the reduced reportirgguirements
applicable to “emerging growth companies” will malaur ordinary shares less attractive to investors.

We are an “emerging growth company,” as definethénJumpstart Our Business Startups Act of 2012 (th
“JOBS Act”). For as long as we continue to be améeging growth company,” we may take advantage of
exemptions from various reporting requirements #natapplicable to other public companies thahate
“emerging growth companies,” including not beinguieed to comply with the auditor attestation regments
of Section 404 of SOX. As an “emerging growth comgave are required to report fewer years of seléct
historical financial data than that reported byeothublic companies. We may take advantage of these
exemptions until we are no longer an “emerging ghosompany.” We could be an “emerging growth conypan
for up to five years from the date of our IPO, altbh circumstances could cause us to lose thasstatlier,
including if the market value of our ordinary staheld by noreffiliates exceeds $700 million as of any Junt
(the end of our second fiscal quarter), in whickecave would no longer be an “emerging growth comgpas of
the following December 31 (our fiscal year end). ¥danot predict if investors will find our ordinashares less
attractive because we may rely on these exemptibssme investors find our ordinary shares legsetive as
result, there may be a less active trading mardeddir ordinary shares and the price of our orgirstiares may
be more volatile.

The requirements of being a public company in thaitéd States may strain our resources and distraat
management, which could make it difficult to manager business, particularly after we are no longan
“emerging growth company.”

Since our IPO in August 2014, we have been requoe@dmply with various regulatory and reporting
requirements, including those required by the SE@nplying with these reporting and regulatory regpients
is time consuming, results in increased costs @nascould have a negative effect on our busimesslts of
operations and financial condition.

As a public company in the United States, we abgesti to the reporting requirements of the Exchaligle
and the requirements of SOX. These requirementsplaayg a strain on our systems and resources. The
Exchange Act requires that we file annual and eunreports with respect to our business and firenci
condition. The Sarbanes-Oxley Act (“SOX”) requitkat we maintain effective disclosure controls and
procedures and internal controls over financiabrépg. To maintain and improve the effectivenessuwy
disclosure controls and procedures, we have cornignificant resources, hired additional staff provided
additional management oversight. We have also imgiged additional procedures and processes for the
purpose of addressing the standards and requirsrappticable to public companies in the Unitedestalhese
activities may divert management’s attention fraimeo business concerns, which could have a matatiadrse
effect on our business, financial condition andiltssof operations.

As an “emerging growth company,” as defined ini8S Act, we may take advantage of certain
temporary exemptions from various reporting requiats, including, but not limited to, not beinguigqd to
comply with the auditor attestation requirementSettion 404 of SOX (and the rules and regulatairire SEC
thereunder). When these exemptions cease to applgxpect to incur additional expenses and devaieased
management effort toward ensuring compliance vigmt.
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If we fail to maintain an effective system of inteal control over financial reporting, we may not kable to
accurately report our financial results or prevefitaud. As a result, shareholders could lose confide in our
financial and other public reporting, which woulddrm our business and the trading price of our ordiry
shares.

Effective internal controls over financial repogiare necessary for us to provide reliable findnejgorts
and, together with adequate disclosure controlspaockedures, are designed to prevent fraud. Ayréato
implement required new or improved controls, oficlifities encountered in their implementation cocddise us
to fail to meet our reporting obligations. In adulit, any testing by us conducted in connection Bigetion 404
of SOX, or any subsequent testing by our indepermegistered public accounting firm, may revealidehcies
in our internal controls over financial reportifat are deemed to be material weaknesses or tlyatagaire
prospective or retroactive changes to our finarate@iements or identify other areas for furthesrdton or
improvement. Inferior internal controls could atsuse investors to lose confidence in our repditeacial
information, which could have a negative effectlomtrading price of our ordinary shares. See “Ii&D.
Controls and ProceduresChanges in International Control Over Financial étdpg” for a discussion of a
material weakness in our internal control overtiicial reporting as of December 31, 2013 that watifled
prior to our IPO.

We are required to disclose changes made in oaimiak controls and procedures annually and our
management will be required to assess the effewssof these controls annually. However, for ag ks we
are an “emerging growth company” under the JOBS @éut independent registered public accounting firith
not be required to attest to the effectivenesaofrternal controls over financial reporting puaatito Section
404. We could be an “emerging growth company” fottaifive years. An independent assessment of the
effectiveness of our internal controls could defgoblems that our management’s assessment might no
Undetected material weaknesses in our internatalsntould lead to financial statement restatemants
require us to incur the expense of remediation.cdldd be an “emerging growth company” for up teefixears
from the date of our IPO. An independent assessofaht effectiveness of our internal controls codétect
problems that our management’s assessment might/ndetected material weaknesses in our interngtais
could lead to financial statement restatementsreqdire us to incur the expense of remediation.

If securities or industry analysts publish inaccuteor unfavorable research, or cease to publisheasch
about our business, the price of our ordinary sharand our trading volume could decline.

The trading market for our ordinary shares couldet& in part on the research and reports thatitesusr
industry analysts publish about us or our busingesurities or industry analysts commenced covevéger
company following our IPO, and the effects of thresearch reports could adversely affect the topgiice for
our ordinary shares. If one or more of the analydts cover us downgrade our ordinary shares origubl
inaccurate or unfavorable research about our bssjitliee price of our ordinary shares would likedglihe.
Further, if one or more of these analysts ceaserege of our company or fail to publish reportaismregularly
or too few analysts cover our company, demand dioroodinary shares could decrease, which mightethes
price of our ordinary shares and trading volumdedoline.

We may be classified as a passive foreign investneempany and, as a result, our U.S. shareholdersy
suffer adverse tax consequenct

Generally, if (taking into account certain look-through ruleshaiespect to the income and assets of our
subsidiaries) for any taxable year 75% or moreufgross income is passive income, or at least 608tir
assets are held for the production of, or prodpassive income, we would be characterized gmasive foreig
investment company” (“PFIC”) for U.S. federal incerrax purposes. Such a characterization couldtresul
adverse U.S. federal income tax consequences td.@uishareholders, including having gains real@ethe
sale of our ordinary shares be treated as ordinapme, as opposed to capital gain, and havingasteharges
apply to such sale proceeds. Because the valugrafross assets is likely to be determined in Ipaye by
reference to our market capitalization, a declmthe value of our ordinary shares may result inbmcoming a
PFIC. U.S. shareholders should consult with thein &J.S. tax advisors with respect to the U.S. tax
consequences of investing in our ordinary sharase® upon our calculations, we believe that we weta
PFIC in 2014. However, PFIC status is determineof éise end of a taxable year and depends on a euaib
factors, including the value of a corporation’sedissind the amount and type of its gross incometefbre, we
cannot assure you that we will not be a PFIC fdr520r in any future year.
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It may be difficult to enforce a U.S. judgment agesit us, our officers and directors in The Netherlds, Israel
or the United States, or to assert U.S. securitess claims in The Netherlands or Israel or serveopess on
our officers and directors.

We are incorporated in The Netherlands. None ofaecutive officers and a limited number of our
directors are residents of the United States. @aocipal offices and operations are located inStete of Israel.
Our officers and some of our directors reside s$tate of Israel and all or a significant portidrthe assets of
such officers and directors and substantially ftiwr assets are located in the State of Israadrdthre, it may
be difficult for an investor, or any other persareatity, to enforce a U.S. court judgment basezhupe civil
liability provisions of the U.S. federal securiti@svs against us or any of these persons in a $1&gli or Dutct
court, or to effect service of process upon theseqns in the United States. There is no treatydmst the
United States and The Netherlands for the mutualgeition and enforcement of judgments (other than
arbitration awards) in civil and commercial matt@rserefore, a final judgment for the payment ofenp
rendered by any federal or state court in the dri@ates based on civil liability, whether or notgicated sole
upon the U.S. federal securities laws, would no¢tferceable in The Netherlands unless the undherlgiaim is
relitigated before a Dutch court of competent gidson. Under current practice, however, a Dutehrt will
generally, subject to compliance with certain pdagal requirements, grant the same judgment withoeview
of the merits of the underlying claim {f) the relevant judgment is a final and conclesimoney judgmerih
personarr(other than for multiple or punitive damages, arddine or a tax or a penalty); (ii) that judgment
resulted from legal proceedings compatible withdbutotions of due process; (iii) that judgment does
contravene public policy of The Netherlands; (i furisdiction of the U.S. federal or state caartdering the
judgment was compatible with internationally aceejprinciples in respect of jurisdictional mattekg;the
judgment was not obtained by fraud; and (vi) no melmissible relevant evidence is admitted in thecb
courts. Based on the foregoing, there can be noasse that U.S. investors will be able to enfaog
judgments obtained in U.S. courts in civil and coencral matters, including judgments under the {e8eral
securities laws, against us or members of our bofditectors or officers or certain experts narheckin who
are residents of The Netherlands or countries dtizr the United States. In addition, there is daslto
whether a Dutch court would impose civil liabilibyn us, the members of our board of directors acef or
certain experts named herein in an original agtiedicated solely upon the U.S. federal securities brought
in a court of competent jurisdiction in The Netlheds against us or such directors or officers,aetsely.
Similarly, there is doubt as to the enforceabilitgyhe State of Israel, either in original actiamsn actions for
enforcement of judgments of U.S. courts, of cinbllities predicated on the U.S. federal secusitavs.

ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

Our legal and commercial name is Mobileye N.V. Wealimited liability company ifaamloze
vennootschap organized under the laws of The Netherlands. d¥figial registered office, principal executive
offices and management headquarters are locatédrafotzvim, 13 Hartom Street, P.O. Box 45157, Salem
9777513, Israel and our telephone number at thiread is +972 2 541 7333.

We were founded in Israel in 1999 by Professor Am8bashua, our Chief Technology Officer, Chairman
and a director, and Mr. Ziv Aviram, our Presidetitjef Executive Officer and a director, whom weeretb
together as our Founders. In 2001, we incorporisliebileye B.V. as the holding company in The Netaeds
for all of our worldwide activities. In July 200Blobileye B.V. was converted into Mobileye N.V., atth
limited liability company. Our management is lochie Israel.

On August 6, 2014, we closed our IPO in which veeiégl 8.325 million new ordinary shares for net
proceeds o0f$197.4 million (including proceeds from optionattkvere exercised in connection with our IPO).
We also listed our ordinary shares on the NYSEthay are traded under the symbol “MBLY.”

In January 2015, we filed a registration statenfien& secondary public offering of ordinary shaxebe
sold by shareholders who acquired their shares fwriour IPO. As of the date of filing of this AnaluReport on
Form 20-F, the Company'Board of Directors has not determined whetheethéll be sufficient demand on tl
part of selling shareholders to proceed with ttappsed secondary offering.
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Our capital expenditures for the years ended Deeei®b, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $5.6 million, $3.0
million and $1.6 million, respectively. Our curreratpital expenditures relate to increasing our beawt across
Research and Development, Sales and Marketing andr&l and Administrative as well as for data gferat
our recovery site.

B. Business Overviev

Please see the Introduction to this Annugdd®eon Form 20F for a glossary of certain terms and acrony
used herein

Mobileye is the global leader in the design andettgyment of software and related technologies for
camera-based Advanced Driver Assistance SystenBASK). Our technology keeps passengers safer on the
roads, reduces the risks of traffic accidents, séives and has the potential to revolutionizedtieing
experience by enabling autonomous driving. Our petary software algorithms and Ey&Q chips perform
detailed interpretations of the visual field in erdo anticipate possible collisions with other icéds,
pedestrians, cyclists, animals, debris and othstaghes. Our products are also able to detect rapdmarkings
such as lanes, road boundaries, barriers and siiteitas, as well as to identify and read traffigns and traffic
lights. Our products combine high performance, émgrgy consumption and low cost, with automotivader
standards. Our technology was first included imas@nodels in 2007. We estimate that our produetsew
installed in approximately 5.2 million vehicles wdwide through December 31, 2014. As of December 31
2014, our technology is available in 160 car moftelsn 18 original equipment manufacturers. Furinar
products have been selected for implementatioerilgoroduction of 247 car models from 22 OEMS20\.6.
Mobileye’s more than 16 years of research and dgweént and data collected from millions of milesig¥ing
experience give us a significant technological |éa the past seven years, we have won more b#nd the
serial productions for which we have been requestgaovide a quotation.

We believe that we are well-positioned to take atkge of two key industry trends:

e Thefirst trend is the evolution in the demaadADAS, one of the fastest growing segments within
the automotive electronics industry. The rapid éase in the demand for ADAS is driven by growing
public acceptance and awareness of driver safelytdogies and by the rising influence of regulaitor
and national and international safety organizatibasissue safety ratings to encourage manufasture
to include safety features in their new or revampadmodels. As regulators and safety organizations
continue to increase the types and functions of Slvplications required to maintain high ratings,
ADAS will become standard on more vehicle models tie market for our products will continue to
expand significantly. Our experience to date vaéidahe exponential increase in demand for ADAS
technology. It took approximately five years fro@0Z to ship the first 1.0 million Eye® chips. In
the year ended December 31, 2014, we shipped appatety 2.7 million chips. Moreover, in early
2010 our technology was sourced by seven OEMsfbugion in 36 car models. As of December 31,
2014, our technology is available in 160 car moétels1 18 OEMs worldwide.

*  The second trend is the race to develop autonsrddving. Autonomous driving will require ADAS
technological innovations of increasing complex@pmpletely autonomous driving, where the driver
is not actively engaged in driving the vehicle éatended periods of time, cannot be achieved in one
step. In the near future, we believe that therkhweilat least three technological innovations #nat
likely to revolutionize the driving experience. Thiest innovation involves hands-free-capable dviyi
at highway speeds and in congested traffic sitnatiVe have design wins from four OEMs to launch
these features in 2032018, and are in development programs with fouitexhél OEMs for
potential launch in 2018. The next two innovatiomkich we believe could launch as early as 2018,
are the inclusion of country road capabilities aitg traffic capabilities. These innovations should
require only minor additional sensing hardware, digiificant algorithmic advances, which we are
currently developing. We believe the cost of oual@img technology, including hardware, software,
packaging and related elements, will be well with@teptable automotive industry levels, which will
provide us with a competitive advantage and acatdehe migration of the technology from premium
to mass market car models.
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We offer the only camera-based ADAS technology tleaers all major safety and convenience-related
functions available in the market today:

e  Safety Functions
» Lane functions—Lane Departure Warning (LDW) and Lane Keeping anpgp®rt (LKS);

»  Vehicle detection functionrs-Forward Collision Warning (FCW), Headway Monitoriagd
Warning (HMW), Adaptive Cruise Control (ACC), Trafflam Assist and Automatic Emergency
Braking (AEB);

e Pedestrian detection functiorsPedestrian Collision Warning (PDW) and PedestriatoAatic
Emergency Braking;

»  Convenience and Driving Enhancement Functieamtelligent High Beam Control (IHC), Traffic
Sign Recognition (TSR) and Speed Limit IndicatdrljSand

»  Autonomous Driving Technologi— Drivable path delimiter capabilities, including eetion of curbs
barriers, construction zone obstructions, gendrssiaxles, road bumps, potholes and debris. Addilt
capabilities include path planning for determinthg drivable path in situations where lane marks do
not exist or are too weak to rely on.

We have strong direct relationships with OEMs. Meye’s products are or will be available in prodoict
vehicles from most of the global OEMSs, including:

Adam Opel AG General Motors Company- PSA Peugeot Citroén Peugeot
Audi AG Buick, Cadillac, Chevrolet an and Citroén
Bayerische Motoren Werke GMC Renault S.A.
(BMW) AG— BMW, Mini and Honda Motor Company, Ltd Scania Aktiebolag (publ)
Rolls Royce HKMC — Hyundai and Kia Ssangyong Motor Company
Chrysler Group LLG— Chrysler, Jaguar Land Rover Automotive  SAIC Motor
Dodge and Jee PLC— Jaguar and Land Rover  Tesla Motors, Inc.
Fiat S.p.A. MAN SE Volvo Car Corporation
Ford Motor Company— Ford and  Mitsubishi Group Yulon Motor Co., Ltd.
Lincoln Mazda Motor Corporation IVECO

Nissan Motor Co., Ltt— Nissan

and Infiniti

We supply our technology to OEMs through automosiystem integrators, known as Tier 1 companies,
which are direct suppliers to vehicle manufactur8edes to OEMs (the “OEM segment”) represented
approximately 85%% and 78% of our total revenudbényears ended December 31, 2014 and 2013,
respectively. Our Tier 1 customers include Autolig., Delphi Automotive Plc, Gentex CorporatiorniRidin,
Key Safety Systems, Leopold Kostal GmbH, Magna tEdeics Inc., Mando Corporation, Nidec Elesys, Sony
Corporation, Taiwan Calsonic, TRW Automotive HolgknCorp. (“TRW”) and Valeo, as well as Bendix
Corporation and Mobis Transportation Alternativies, working jointly with TRW.

We also offer our technology as an aftermarket pcoth vehicles that do not come pre-equipped witth
technology. Our aftermarket customers include comiakand governmental fleets, telematics providers
insurance companies. Through December 31, 2014fmmarket products have been installed in
approximately 165,000 vehicles. Aftermarket satggesented approximately 15% and 22% of our total
revenues in the years ended December 31, 201404r8] &spectively.

We have experienced significant growth in reveringle last three years. For the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, our total reveweee $143.6 million, $81.2 million and $40.3 ioifl,
respectively, representing year-over-year growttoial revenues of 77% and 102% for our two mostme
fiscal years. Our net income excluding the effeftshare-based compensation, a @®RAP measure, was $4t
million, $33.1 million and $1.8 million in 2014, 28 and 2012, respectively, compared to our netniecfloss)
in accordance with U.S. GAAP &(30.1) million, $19.9 million and $(53,000) fod?4, 2013 and 2012,
respectively. See “Item 5. Operating and FinariR&liew and Prospects — Key Performance Indicators —
Non-GAAP Financial Measures” for a reconciliation aftNncome (Loss) Before Share-Based Compensation to
Net Income (Loss)
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Market Opportunity

Road traffic accidents and injuries remain a majmesolved problem worldwide. The World Health
Organization (the “WHQO”) estimates that there wk4 million deaths on the worklroads in 2010. The WH
also estimates that road traffic accidents canradiyeaffect 1-3% of a country’s gross domesticdpiai. In
2011, AAA estimated that auto accidents cost thiedrStates $300 billion annually. As a resultueidg
traffic injuries has been a critical priority foogernments, safety organizations and the automatohestry.

Making vehicles safer has been critical to reducoay traffic injuries. These efforts began in 1960s
with seat-belts and expanded to include crumplezpoair bags and artiek brakes. The U.S. Insurance Insti
for Highway Safety (the “lIHS”) cites studies fimgj that more than 90% of vehicular accidents aeetdu
human factors. Other organizations cite similatistias. [IHS has estimated that if all vehicles&equipped
with forward collision warning, lane departure wiag) side-view assist, and adaptive headlightspasy as 1.9
million crashes involving passenger vehicles cdidgrevented or mitigated each year, including tiboa of
every three fatal crashes and one of every fiviesgior moderate injury crashes.

The ADAS market is a new and growing market. Wéebel that major regulatory changes, together with
increased customer awareness of the benefits ivtagzfety technology, will drive ADAS adoptiontte point
where the vast majority of new cars produced véllguipped with one or more ADAS capabilities. \§tneate
that, as the ADAS market continues to grow, oualtatidressable market (“TAM”) will reach $4.5-6lioih
annually in the next several years. Furthermor@uasnomous driving gains acceptance, we expect our
addressable market to be significantly greatertdube use of multiple cameras and sensors reqtoredable
this technology.

In addition, there are an estimated one billiorstxg automobiles on the road worldwide which cdugd
retrofitted with certain ADAS capabilities. Altholngafety legislation and ratings have not focused o
retrofitting, other organizations and interest gr@usuch as insurance companies, fleets and pdatisportation
companies, have shown interest in adapting ADA®Rdaoice road traffic injuries and damage from ciollis. We
believe this represents a meaningful growth opmitstun future years.

Regulations and Ratings Drive ADAS Mar

Automobile safety is driven by both regulation dhd availability to consumers of independent asseat
of the safety performance of different car modetsich have encouraged OEMSs to produce cars thatedes
than those required by law. In many countries, NEAfrticularly the European NCAP, and the U.S. IRCA
administered by the U.S. National Highway Traffef&@y Administration (the “NHTSA”), have created a
“market for safety.” Car manufacturers seek to destrate that their new and revamped car modelsfgdiie
NCAF's highest rating, typically five stars, or carnckithe box” on the new car sticker.

National NCAPs will continue to add specific ADABgications to their evaluation items over the next
several years, led by the European NCAP. We betteatethis global rollout will lead to harmonized
requirements across key geographic areas. Signifid@AP actions include the following:

»  Europe —In 2014, the European NCAP increased its activetgafeighting to 20% from 10%,
meaning that a 5-star rating will require one orenactive safety systems on each vehicle model. The
active safety technologies include speed assistsystem, known as adaptive cruise control (ACC),
electronic stability control, lane departure wagfiane keeping assist and autonomous emergency
braking (AEB). The European NCAP also plans to A& in front of pedestrians in 2016, and will
require active safety functions to achieve a fatar-rating by 2017. Accordingly, it is expectedttthe
ADAS fitment rates in Europe will increase from 5@92015 to 100% in 2017 for OEMs that intend
on receiving a four-star or five-star safety ratiognew models manufactured during these years.

e United States—On January 22, 2015, the NHTSA announced thaaigpto add crash imminent
braking (CIB) and dynamic brake support (DBS) systéo the recommended advanced safety fee
included under its NCAP and to continue to encoer@dgyvelopment and

27




TABLE OF CONTENTS

commercialization of additional promising safetjated vehicle automation technologies. According
to NHTSA data, one-third of all police-reportedstras in 2013 involved a rear-end collision with
another vehicle at the start of the crash. The N&@Bo found that a large number of drivers invdl

in rear-end crashes either did not apply the brakedl or did not apply the brakes fully priortte
crash. According to the NHTSA, CIB and DBS systeaus intervene by automatically applying the
vehicle’s brakes or supplementing the driver’s brgleffort to mitigate the severity of the crashtar
avoid it altogether. On March 31, 2014, the NHTSsuied a final rule requiring rear visibility
technology in all new vehicles under 10,000 poumndMay 2018 in order to prevent backover
accidents. In 2011, the NHTSA, as a part of thegdoment 5-Star Safety Ratings program, provided
consumers with information on effective crash amoitk technologies that can help reduce the risk of
vehicle crashes including FCW systems, LDW systentsrearview video systems (RVS). In addit
the IIHS has added collision avoidance technolaghsas FCW to its criteria for awarding a “Top
Safety Pick+” rating.

« Japan and Australia — The Japanese Ministry of Land Infrastructure Trantsand Tourism
(“MLIT") has announced AEB mandates for 2016. Thestkalasian ANCAP announced similar
measures since 2012.

The impact of these NCAP evaluations is clear.é¢xample, since the NHTSA began promoting these
technologies, OEMs have responded by integrating/F@d LDW into their fleets. According to the NHTSA
LDW systems were available in 124 vehicle model@0dh3, 69 vehicle models in 2012 and 51 vehicle efouh
2011; and FCW systems were available in 167 veliddels in 2013, 79 vehicle models in 2012 andéditicle
models in 2011.

The Autonomous Driving Revoluti

" ou

In recent years, there has been increasing emptrasaitonomous,” “automated” or “self-driving”
vehicles. Self-driving vehicles are those in whigteration of the vehicle occurs without direct driinput to
control the steering, acceleration and braking,ameddesigned so that the driver is not expectedawitor the
roadway constantly while operating in self-drivimgpde. Self-driving vehicles range from single aqagtiions
with the driver required to continuously monitaaffic to semi-autonomous or fully autonomous driyvimhere
the driver increasingly relinquishes control. Semtenomous driving, under certain conditions, saghighway
driving, means the driver does not have to monitdfic continuously but must be ready to contta wehicle.
Fully autonomous driving under all situations witit require any driver input. In May 2013, the NN iSsued
its first statement on automated or self-drivingiekes, including its plans for research on relaafity issues
and recommendations for states related to thentgsitensing and regulation of autonomous or dgifing
vehicles.

The move to the autonomous vehicle is expectedttoduce significant potential economic savings/alf
as further reduce traffic accidents. In October@fie ENO Center for Transportation, a neutrah-partisan
think-tank that promotes policy innovation in thartsportation industry, identified potential sadrigpm fully
autonomous vehicles. Assuming half of U.S. vehialesautonomous, the ENO Center’s analysis, wisich i
subject to significant assumptions, estimatestti@transition from manual driving to autonomousidg would
save 9,600 lives per year and reduce car crashg&®hbyillion per year, while generating crash @astings of
$158 billion and $37 billion in fuel cost savingsih more efficient route selections.

While fully autonomous driving is not expected lie thear future, we believe that there will be ongoi
introductions of semi-autonomous driving capalaifitiWe believe these capabilities will start witimtis-free
highway driving that will gradually extend to othgpes of roadways, such as country and city dgivikDAS
applications that warn, but do not perform a cdrtroction, are not, for this purpose, consideretbmated
driving, but they are necessary for effective peni@ance of the control functions. The key factorthie growth
of autonomous driving will be increased safety,stoner demand and economic and social benefits hwinic
expect will subsequently be reflected in automoteigulations and rating systems. Controlling thetsof the
systems is also critical as many studies have shbatrconsumers are interested in safety but amvary
sensitive to costs. We believe the total addreesablrket for camera-based ADAS systems for automemo
driving could reach $15 billion in the next severahrs.
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Available ADAS Senso

Developers have largely approached the challengg®AS and autonomous driving through the use of
multiple sensors and imaging devices, includingralidar and camera

Radar. In the early 2000s ADAS applications were basedadar. Radar-based sensors compare
microwaves of emitted and reflected signals andyareerally unaffected by weather. However, unli&meras,
radar is not as sensitive to non-metal objectscamdot detect lane markings and traffic signs. Rhda
improved in resolution, performance and cost oenfears. A short- or medium-range radar systefoimeing
adaptive cruise control (“ACC”) is price competéito a monocular camera. Radar resolution andtgatysi
have also improved to the level of possibly deterpedestrians under certain scenarios. We bdli@tghe
biggest challenge for radar processing is thetglidi detect stationary objects (where the Doppféect cannot
be exploited to filter out “clutter”). As a resudtll radar-based ACC to date does not responditimsary targets
(including pedestrians, who are essentially statipmelative to the speed of a car). Radar-onlpraatic
emergency braking (“AEB”) systems to date have edsoilted in false braking scenarios, which in scases
have led to vehicle recalls. We believe that astgaésting becomes more reflective of real-woddditions,
radar’s inherent limitations with respect to statiny targets will limit its ability to achieve thghest safety
rating as a standalone AEB sensor.

Lidar. Lidar is a sensor that measures distance hyiillating a target with laser and analyzing the
reflected light. In automotive applications, lidargh a small number of beams (typically three)daeen used
in low-speed AEB applications. Given the growingerof the monocular camera in AEB applications, we
believe that triple-beam lidars are not expectemaintain their dominance in the low-speed AEB gatg.
Future lidar development includes commercializatbbacanningseam lidars, which could cover a dense fiel
view (like a camera) by scanning a single beamutliinout a predefined field of view. We believe tstdor a
360 degree scanning-beam lidar currently is andrenhain too expensive for standard production clebi
However, we believe that a scanning-beam lidar @ithore modest field of view, covering 145 degrees
horizontal and few degrees vertical, is currending developed that could be more rationally prifmednass
production. We also believe that due to their ledivertical field of view, such new lidars are like¢ly to
replace the camera as the primary sensor, butithsteuld be used as a third front facing sensoadaitional
redundancy in autonomous vehicles or as side-fasgngors (instead of external cameras) in additicide
radars. Another possible development is the comaleration for automotive use of flash lidar tectogy,
which consists of an array of fixed laser beamsn@ercially available flash lidars are not approjerior
automotive use because of their high cost and iabikly. Further, the lidar beams have relativiglw resolutiot
that is approximately three orders of magnitude than the camera resolutions used in automotigkcagions.
We are not aware of any effort to commercializstilfidars for automotive use but their low resantivould
make it unlikely that they will serve as the primaensor in the package of sensors necessarytfum@uous
driving.

Growth of Camera Use. A camera, similar to the human eye, gathersteeriamount of data than either a
radar or a lidar sensor. However, processing atedgreting this data requires immense computinggr@amd
sophisticated software. To counteract that camexaigion weakens in poor weather, sophisticatdes&de
measures that deactivate the system when visikiititps below the functioning limit of the camera atso
necessary. Following improvements in camera-sensitignologies, especially our pioneering visuatpssing
improvements over the years, the camera has gigdizhed prominence in ADAS, particularly the moolar
camera. Over time, the camera has demonstratedility to perform ADAS applications formerly accpfishec
only by radar, including FCW, ACC and AEB. Signéit milestones in camera-based applications, all
accomplished by Mobileye, include:
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Combination, or Camera/radar Camera-only vehicle Ciiera-only Cartissazonly
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There is a clear trend towards the primacy of #raera sensor. This primacy is driven by the lovest c
and packaging benefits of the “bundling effecthafzing a single camera performing multiple ADAS &mel
relative ease of adding functionality through sienpbftware updates. We believe the bundling effeghique tc
the camera-based sensing modality since all ot#resos modalities specialize in limited ADAS subsets

Stereo Camera. The growth of the camera as the leading ADAS@eled to a view that having two
cameras acting in tandem would provide better ptite. We believe real world experience has dematesd
that “stereo camera” sensors are not as effectieeraonocular camera sensor. In the automotiveextnt
“stereo” is a system that uses a depth map thraughe processing chain of target detection, olgeparation
and range estimation and it cannot function if camera is deactivated. Stereo systems can begrarafield
of between 40 and 50 meters (compared to 150 mieteosir monocular camera) but small errors in
triangulation can lead to disproportionate errarthe analysis necessary to provide effective waasi Stereo-
based systems are also more expensive than monegatams, use more power and occupy more spaiteson
windshield, which is a critical factor given thenlted available space. Stereo systems also have pnoblems
separating objects from background.

Monocular Camera. Monocular camera systems, similar to human migieeasure the rate of the increase
in the size of the image, which we believe offéses best imaging of the circumstances surroundivighécle
with less of the “noise” that can lead to errorghia analysis. Monocular camera technology is el@mt on a
depth map and avoids the triangulation errors igfiein the stereo camera model. Unlike radar, malaoc
camera technology is unaffected by the metallicar-metallic composition of an object or whether tibject is
stationary or moving. Our technology is based @nntonocular camera sensor.

Fusion. We believe that the combination, or “fusion,’caimera and a single short/medium/long range
radar could have a sizable niche of the ADAS masgecially for premium models where price serigitis
relatively low. Our use of fusion technology impesvour product offering and allows higher levelsefsory
redundancy and performance coverage over a widgeraf conditions than a single sensor modality.

Multiple Sensors. We believe autonomous driving applications vetjuire multi-focal camera
configurations (two or more cameras placed sidaitig-but not working together in “stereo”) wherergased
field of view and robustness of the detection pssogill require redundancy beyond that of curreDIYS
applications. The different focal lengths enableide field of view while maintaining a sufficienumber of
image pixels per degree. The multiplicity of canseaiso allows for depth through triangulation, vishiaill
provide additional redundancy cues within the d&eagrocess. The additional redundancy is necgdeaself-
driving applications, where there is an urgent risath to reduce false braking to a minimum and cedalse
negatives (missing a true target) to zero. Fus@wéen a multifocal front-facing camera and muttiddars
will also be a necessary part of sétfving due to the needed redundancy. It is totygarpredict what role lids
sensors will have, but it is possible to have sa®ng lidars (instead of cameras) in future selidg sensory
systems.

Our first multifocal array (called a “trifocal seo®) is in series development with two OEMSs in 2815
2017. The trifocal sensor technology will also hegrated into Volva DriveMe project, which intends to ple
100 self-driving cars in the hands of customersealacted roads around Gothenburg,
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Germany by 2017. We also recently had our firstgesin for a standard fit production program f@13 from
a global premium European car manufacturer foriy@Q4® chip with the trifocal sensor configuratibatt
supports automated driving. We believe that this fuither validates that our trifocal sensor ted¢bgy support
all NCAP star-rating functionalities without theatkefor classical stereo cameras.

Our Solution

Our sophisticated software algorithms and propryeyeQ® system on a chip (“SoC”) combine high
performance, low energy consumption and low coih automotive-grade standards to provide driveith w
interpretations of a scene in real-time and an idiate evaluation based on the analysis. Our teclyydteeps
passengers safer on the roads, reduces the riskdfaf accidents, saves lives and has the patetati
revolutionize the driving experience by enablingpaomous driving. Our products use monocular camera
processing that works accurately alone or togetlirradar for redundancy. We expect to launch potsithat
work with multi-focal cameras for automated driviaygplications with the same high performance, loergy
consumption and low cost starting in 2016.

Led by Professor Amnon Shashua, our co-FoundeefQleichnology Officer, Chairman and a director, our
more than 340 engineers and other research antbpgevent personnel have a history of innovation. Mgan
developing vehicle detection from a single camerad00 and pedestrian detection in 2002.

We believe our position as the camera-based ADAK&ehéeader is based on the following competitive
strengths:

»  All applications in one camera, resulting in costavings and greater convenience—We have
always understood that it was essential to devi#lentire spectrum of camera functionalities ithet
to position the camera as the primary sensor dite tmst and packaging convenience. We provide all
applications in a single system and camera. Welhis makes our solution compelling to OEMs.
An OEM avoids implementing ADAS technologies froron@ than one supplier because of supplier
management concerns, easier integration of a saygkem and attractive and more compact packi
(one camera instead of a different camera/sensaafth function). Further, many of our planned
additional applications require a simple updattheosoftware rather than costly and time-consuming
changes to the hardware itself. We believe thaitasnet access becomes more available in cars,
software updates may even be made wirelessly.

» Large validation datasets train and optimize our canplex proprietary algorithms —Mobileye’s
more than 16 years of ADAS research and developrtegest number of serial production models in
the industry and experience with most global OElsteehyielded millions of miles of road experience
data covering more than 40 countries at all tinfetag and in multiple scenaries highway, country,
city—across hundreds of vehicle models. For exampldyagdemore than 30,000 hours of driving data
across many vehicle models when we developed thg #dplication. Our large datasets, unbiased as
to any OEM, give us the unequalled ability to traird optimize our proprietary algorithms. We can
also fully validate safety functions, which is daldn order to avoid false-positive actuations;isas
an inappropriate AEB actuation. For example, ouF&lgorithm has a demonstrated 99.99%
accuracy. We believe that no other company in thddahas road experience datasets as deep and as
wide as ours.

*  We seek to work with all OEMs and Tier 1 companies—We seek to work with all OEMs and with
Tier 1 companies. We believe our hybrid approaciwvarking directly with OEMs to customize and
validate our products and making our products albéélto multiple Tier 1 companies that may resy
to an RFQ for the same serial production contréfer® us the opportunity for the greatest market
share. OEMs often source from multiple Tier 1 conigs. Because we provide the technology itself,
an OEM can choose to work with its preferred Tieotnpany while having our technology powering
their ADAS application. We have a very strong traekord of winning business with OEMs. For the
past seven years, we have won more than 80% akttied productions for which we have been
requested to provide a quotation.

» Long-standing relationships with OEMs and Tier 1 conpanies provide for a leading and
defensible
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market position — Our market leadership results from many yearsiéve and validation from 23

of the global OEMs and our relationship with maosthe leading Tier 1 companies. We expect that as
regulations and ratings require more active sdtsyures, more cars and more car models will have a
camera. As the leading provider of camera-based 8,0we are well-positioned to benefit from this
trend. We believe there are significant barriersritry to the ADAS market, particularly the camera-
based market, primarily based on our innovatives@natechnology and our continued development of
more advanced and innovative technology. In additowr leading market position, combined with the
very high investment of time and resources requimeakes penetrating this market challenging. We
believe that it can take up to seven years frontithe a company has effective technology before it
could be implemented in a vehicle. Since the fimdrarisis began in 2007, the ADAS market has
consolidated and a number of Tier 1 companies bassed their internal development and becom
customers. We believe it would be even more diffifar a start-up company, even a large technology
company, to enter this market for all those reasons

Self-designed, cost effective Eye® microchig-We have designed our own microprocessor chip
that has the computing power to run LDW, FCW, Al {ehicles and pedestrians), TSR, AHC,
ACC, Free-Space Analysis, debris detection, andermort a frame rate of 36 fps for our recently
launched EyeQ8 . We believe this kind of computatidoad is unusually high on a portable device.
Our EyeQ® SoC is capable of achieving very highughput at very low power consumption and
very low cost. Each new generation of the EfQ Ba@any times faster than its predecessor,
allowing for more and better image analysis. Ey&@&s approximately six times faster than the
original EyeQ® ; EyeQ¥ |, launched in vehicles inftherth quarter of 2014, is approximately eight
times faster than Eye . We are on track with Ey/8@nd engineering samples are expected to be
available in the fourth quarter of 2015. We alszergly had our first design win for a standard fit
production program for 2018 from a global premiuotdpean car manufacturer for our Eye®4 chip
with the trifocal sensor configuration that suppatitomated driving. We believe our system is the
only one that offers the full suite of ADAS appliceas currently available, and many of our addisibn
applications will only require software updateshes than additional hardware.

Highly scalable business model—Our business model results in strong operating msyrgnd in

2013 we generated operating income and net incont&é first time. In 2014, we continued to

increase our operating income and generated signifinet income excluding the effects of share-
based compensation, which is a non-GAAP measurebéfieve that our business can grow
significantly without corresponding increases iefi and capital expenditures because we have strong
existing relationships with nearly all OEMs andrTlecompanies, and are not reliant on traditional
sales and marketing processes to develop the OEbsdss. Further, we believe that
STMicrolectronics N.V., a leading provider of intated circuits, is well prepared to increase
production of our Eye® chips as our sales increase.

Our Growth Strategies

We intend to expand our operations and contindead the ADAS market by:

Capitalizing on regulatory and safety rating changs promoting standard feature ADAS—

Starting in 2015, we believe that in order to at@ifour-star or five-star safety rating in mosticies

that issue ratings, a vehicle will need to be epgeébwith camera-based ADAS. As a result, OEMs
have been moving to adopt ADAS technology as stahelguipment on the majority of new launches
of existing models as well as of most new models.b#lieve we are strongly positioned to benefit
from the increased demand for ADAS and we havedirdeen sourced for standard feature programs
by 23 of the global OEMs. Further, we work with theropean NCAP, the NHTSA and other NCAPs
to demonstrate the capabilities and reliabilitypof technology and to help ensure that they develop
regulations and ratings that address the full rarigeenefits that we believe ADAS can offer.

Exploiting the advantages of camera-only ADAS—We believe the camera sensor is key for mass
adoption of active safety features because ongnaeca can perform the full suite of ADAS
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functions at a reliability level that can ensuré¢hbeal world performance in complex cluttered
environments and offer acceptable false-positivele Unlike other sensor modalities, such as radar
and lidar, which do not incorporate the full paryopt ADAS functions, camera-only ADAS reduces
cost and package constraints.

Leading the development of ADAS specifically for atomated driving —We believe that we will

be the first to supply the underlying technologyatianch commercially viable semi-autonomous
driving at highway speed. The move towards hanes-firiving necessitates additional capabilities,
such as traffic-light detection, detection of obtga outside the driving path and significant gtowt
scene understanding in order to support automeatticdl control of the vehicle. We believe the caner
is the sensor best suited to address the funciii@sahecessary for automated driving. Effective
automated driving will require the coordinationrofiltiple cameras around the vehicle to provide both
a wide field of vision and protective redundancye Wave been designing new multiple cameras
configurations to support the higher safety statislan addition, we have developed “Deep Layered
Learning” algorithms for handling free space estioracapabilities and path detection and planning.
These algorithms use our Eye®3 architecture toigeaeal time performance at very low power
consumption. As we continue to gain experiencaimdrea, we expect to be a leader in additional
ADAS for automated driving.

Creating additional and enhanced applications— Full-braking, camera-only AEB is being
launched in early 2015 by Audi, and other OEMs faillow. We expect to launch additional and
enhanced applications in 2015 and 2016, includatgation of additional traffic signs, animal
detection, general object detection, free spa@®wstruction zone assist, traffic light detectipathole
detection and debris detection. As we continuexfmaed the suite of ADAS we offer, we believe our
technological advantages over our competitorsaamifitinue to grow.

Developing surround-view capabilities—We are working on rear-view camera ADAS and
surround-view ADAS, both of which are also crititaleffective automated driving and the emerging
market for automated parking functionality. Therrei@w camera will also be critical to winning new
serial production because in March 2014, the NHT$38ed a final rule requiring rear visibility
technology in all new vehicles under 10,000 pounday 2018 to prevent backover accidents.
Currently, OEMs offer surround-view cameras thapliiy a bird's-eyedew of the area around the «
to assist the driver in manually parking. We areking with two OEMSs to launch the next generation
of surround-view functionality, not merely for diap but also for processing visual information i a
the function of automated parking.

Winning additional serial productions with existing and new OEMs—We intend to leverage our
strong relationships with existing OEM customersvin additional serial production contracts in ar
to make ourselves a fundamental component of oM®Hglobal platforms. We also believe our
superior product and demonstrated ability to woithWVEMs and Tier 1 companies will enable us to
win serial production contracts from additionallggband smaller OEMs for automobiles, as well as
buses, trucks and other vehicles, which may repeeialized customization.

Expanding our aftermarket product sales— Our aftermarket products can be fitted for both
automotive and truck uses. We believe there isfgignt opportunity for growth in our sales to ftee
owners, fleet telematics providers, insurance canigsa vehicle importers, public transportation
providers, taxi operators and OEMs that may seekfey our aftermarket product for vehicles that do
not contain ADAS technology as a standard feative believe that we can leverage the growing
public acceptance and awareness of driver safelytdogies and the rising influence ‘Give-star”
quality ratings in new car models to market our APaftermarket products as well. We also seek to
promote regulation that will mandate or encourdtgrmarket installation of ADAS technology for
certain usages, such as fleets, public transpontati certain drivers, such as young drivers.

Our Technology

Our technology rests on three pillars. The firfiapis software, particularly our visual procegsin

algorithms that extract meaningful information franvideo camera. In the context of ADAS, meaningful
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information consists of high-level information thatused by the car control systems to avoid ¢otis and
unintended road departure, to perform longitudaueedtrol (such as ACC) and lateral control (LKA, Haffree
driving), to control lighting (such as AHC) andpmvide the driver with relevant information abdnatffic signs
and traffic lights. The second pillar is our silicoore designs that run on our Ey8Q family of Sas.
designed vector accelerators (called VMP, PMA alOYithat per silicon area are an order of magnitadee
efficient than off-the-shelf vector acceleratorkgIDSPs, GPUs, FPGAS) for the purpose of compuséon
algorithms. Over our more than 13 years of silidesign, we have acquired crucial know-how and apmex
innovations that give our SoC high levels of conmmtntensity in a low-power and low-cost packagkee third
pillar is our electronic circuitry design, which wee for our aftermarket products and as referdes@gns for
our Tier 1 customers.

Software

Our software activity is divided into algorithmshieh are the engines for extracting meaningful
information from video; application software, whistpports development with tools for data analgsis
validation; and embedded software on our SoC.

Our visual interpretation algorithms consist of tbkkowing:

* Road signs interpretation —lane markings, curbs, road edge, barriers, and otf@mation that
allows high-level control systems to make sensstare the host car is located relative to the
roadway. The most basic example of this technoisglye LDW feature (launched in 2007), which
was followed by LKA (launched in 2012). Further gth of this technology is designed to support
hands-free driving in challenging roadway situagion

«  Object detection —pattern recognition of vehicles, pedestrians aadyé) animals for collision
avoidance. Object detection is one of our “sigretstrengths, with a development history of 16 ye
We were the first (and are still the only compatoylaunch pedestrian detection from a monocular
camera (fused with radar) in 2010 on the Volvo S86.subsequently launched camera-only
pedestrian detection in 2013 on BMW and Nissan fsodfée were also the first to launch camera-
only FCW on vehicles in 2011 and camera-only AEBwpartial braking in 2013 and full braking in
early 2015.

» Range and Time-to-Contact (“TTC") to targets — Actuation (alert or braking) to avoid a collision
requires knowledge of the range (or distance) and @ the target object. Measuring range and TTC
accurately from a monocular signal requires innioveand know-how that we have acquired over
many years of development.

*  Motion-based measurements—the flow of pixels along a sequence of images dumtnera motion
provides three-dimensional (3D) cues that are aedlyn many levels of the system. This analysis
includes validation filters for object detectiongémes (vehicles, pedestrians, animals); separating
moving objects from the background; detecting galn@ot model-based) objects; detecting debris (of
at least 10 centimeters in height) from 50 metersya reconstructing the road profile in order toedt
bumps and potholes; generating a 3D map of thelfald using the principle ofstructure from
motion,” which is the process of estimating 3D structuremf2D image sequences, and which ma
coupled with local motion signals; and fusing 3[@ &amage pattern recognition to aid in scene
interpretation, all of which will also support aotated-driving functionality.

« Pattern Recognition—We have developed state-of-the-art multiclass iflassto enable traffic sign
detection (first launched worldwide in 2008 on BMAN later by many other OEMSs), traffic light
detection (to be launched in 2015) and detectiostloér structures from the scene that are useful fo
supporting hands-free driving.

« Lighting functions —our Adaptive High Beam Control (AHC) is enabledasyinnovative set of
algorithms that read and interpret the spots ditlig the night scene to determine when to turioion
off the high beam. We launched this feature in 2008as the first worldwide in the sense of
implementation on a camera (rather than a speetbensor) and first worldwide in conjunction with
other functions (LDW and TSR).
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*  Semantic Free-Space—We have developed “Deep Layered Learning” algorithihat determine a
label for every pixel in the image. The purpos¢heflabel is to determine the free-space zoneeof th
drivable path and the types of objects that atkeaboundary of the free space. The object categori
include vehicles of all types and at all anglesyibes, guard rails and curbs.

e Holistic Path Planning —We have also developed “Deep Layered Learning’réttyos that
determine the path forward in situations where laaé markings are non-existent or too weak to
support determining the path. This technology esmhbttive hands-free driving on general roads as
well as country and city roads.

Silicon Core Desig—EyeQ® Chips

Our technology addresses an important challeagzrun all the above algorithms, and the functithey
support, simultaneously at a frame rate betweeto 36 frames per second (depending on the E¥eQ
generation). Running this kind of computationaid@s a lowpower microprocessor calls upon the second |
of our technological innovatioa-the Eyed® family of SoCs.

Each generation of the Eyét) SoC consists of a auatibh of central processing unit (CPU) cores
(licensed from third parties) and dedicated veatmelerators that we have designed and own. Ea@raén o
the Eyed® SoC has been 6 to 8 times more powertinfgintains approximately the same power profiiah
its predecessor and is designed to support theasirg functional demands of our customers, whitte dhe
need to run greater numbers of different algoritisimaultaneously. The EyeQ generations supportahewing
functional bundles:

«  EyeQ1® —launched in 2007, supported two bundle types: Y\, TSR and IHC, and (ii) LDW and
Vehicle AEB fusion with radar.

«  EyeQ2® —launched in 2010, supported a variety of functidnaidles, including LDW, TSR, IHC,
FCW and AEB for vehicles and pedestrians (partiaking).

«  EyeQ3® —launched in the fourth quarter of 2014 with one QEWth nine additional OEM launches
scheduled for 2015. We also currently have desiigis with three additional OEMs for launches
expected after 2015. In addition to significant igutes of all of the above functions, Eye®3 supports
full braking AEB, structure from motion functiontidis, road profile reconstruction, debris detection
general object detection, and traffic light detectiMultiple EyeQ3€ working with multiple focal
cameras will be part of our first launch of autoras driving, which we currently expect in 2016.

«  EyeQ4® —Engineering samples expected in the fourth quaftgf15. Our first design win for
EyeQ4® is by a global premium European car manufecfor serial production in 2018 at a price up
to triple our current Average Selling Price, or A%t active safety. EyeQ% is being designed to
support processing from multiple cameras consistireg multifocal sensor (facing forward) and
possibly side- and rear-view cameras, all to supgatonomous driving functions. Eye®4 is also
being designed to support the emerging field obmatted parking, which requires the simultaneous
processing of multiple surround cameras. The diestign win for 2018 includes a scalable portfofio o
functions from monocular camera supporting AEB stathdard fit functions for stating complianc
up to trifocal camera supporting high-end capaéditncluding semi-autonomous driving.

We also integrate certain technologies developédoamed by third parties into our products, inchgdthe
central processing unit core of our Ey8Q chipsyugh license and technology transfer agreements.
Electronic Circuitry

The third pillar of our technology consists of #ectronic circuitry design that surrounds our Sofisich
serve both as reference design to guide our Teeisiomers when responding to RFQs and as the dfasis
aftermarket products. This technological pillakéy to our position in the OEM market as it giveste
maturity and know-how of a Tier 1 company and thgrallows us to make a significant
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impact on the entire product chain, rather thandpémited to the position of a component provider.
secondary benefit is our ability to work with lesgerienced Tier 1 companies (in the field of ADABY bring
them up to the required level of knowledge in atieé short time.

Our Products

Functions

We offer the only camera-based ADAS technology tieaers all of these applications:
»  Safety Functions
« Lane functions—Lane Departure Warning (LDW) and Lane Keeping anpp®rt (LKS);

»  Vehicle detection functions-Forward Collision Warning (FCW), Headway Monitoriagd
Warning (HMW), Adaptive Cruise Control (ACC), TraffJam Assist and Automatic Emergency
Braking (AEB);

»  Pedestrian detection functiorsPedestrian Collision Warning (PDW) and PedestriatoAatic
Emergency Braking;

e Convenience and Driving Enhancement Functieamtelligent High Beam Control (IHC), Traffic
Sign Recognition (TSR) and Speed Limit IndicatdtljSand

e Autonomous Driving Technologi— Drivable path delimiter capabilities, including eetion of curbs
barriers, construction zone obstructions, gendrsiazles, road bumps, potholes and debris. Adait
capabilities include path planning for determing tirivable path in situations where the lane mdiks
not exist or are too weak to rely on.

Each OEM will require a different bundle of apptioas for a particular model. Similarly, purchasefs
larger amounts of our aftermarket products, sudteas owners, will also usually designate the fjpebundle
of applications they need. The price for our praduiepends on the particular bundle of applicatanstheir
relative complexity.

The following are illustrations of the capabilitiekthe functions of our products:

—

L P .

The image above shows some of the detected obyébis the 50-degree horizontal field of view of a
monocular camera. Integrated with our EyeQ SoCpaaoular camera can detect pedestrians, vehialess|
traffic signs and more.
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To support autonomous driving applications, wethsee cameras with different field of views. WHilasic
ADAS functionality is performed by a 50-degree moular camera ([2] in the above image), two otheneas
extend the system’s ability. The 18@gree field of view ([1] in the above image) emwal@arly detection of clo
objects such as close cut-in vehicles, crossinggtgdns and cyclists. The 30-degree camera ([Bldrabove
image) enables an extended detection range fol siijaktts such as traffic lights and obstacleshenroad.

OEM Products

Mobileye provides the software and the EY2Q SotbedTier 1 companies. Typically, after we work with
the OEM so that it can validate our product, theMOEsues a RFQ. We create a reference designdaraimera
sensor and electronics that are built around o@ t8ceach Tier 1 company that determines to respoiite
RFQ. The Tier 1 company, based on our referendgmidsuilds a module for the complete sensor syskan
includes the windshield-mounted camera, our prégmeEyeQ® SoC and our application software using ou
software algorithms. This complete sensor systeth thie required ADAS functionalities is then intagd into
new cars by the OEM. We also give the Tier 1 comgpiha pricing of our product per vehicle dependimgthe
bundle of applications, which is incorporated iitsoRFQ. Although our direct customers are the Tier
companies, we maintain strong direct relationshiipls the OEMs.

Aftermarket Product

We have sold our products in the aftermarket sg@#. In the aftermarket, we currently offer thetiieye
5-Series product, which incorporates the Mobileye SoC and related algorithms and software on a
windshieldmounted vision sensor unit with a compact High DyitaRange CMOS (HDRC) camera and relz
hardware (together, Mobileye’'s See®2 image prongdsiard) as well as a display unit (‘EyeWatch'heT
Mobileye 5-Series product complies with NHTSA start$ for collision avoidance systems and offers the
following complete ADAS function set:

e Lane Departure Warning (LDW)

e Forward Collision Warning (FCW)

e Headway Monitoring and Warning (HMW)
»  Pedestrian Collision Warning (PCW)

* Intelligent High Beam Control (IHC)
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»  Traffic Sign Recognition (TSR)

We also offer additional features such as Enha@rage Control, pre-lighting of brake lights and
Bluetooth connectivity as well as a related smamtgghapplication

In January 2015 we launched our Mobileye 6-Seffiesraarket product. The Mobileye 6-Series is an
enhanced version of the Mobileye 5-Series offetirad, in addition to the Mobileye 5-Series benefidtows for
easy installation through Android smartphones aidkts, visual traffic sign recognition (TSR), enbed cruise
control, pre-lighting of brake lights and haptitbpating) alerts.

In addition, in January 2015 we launched our Mgkalsophisticated blind spot detection, a “visiornZe
solution that includes a main camera that has albiMye 5 series alerts and two additional sideerasthat
recognize pedestrians and cyclists. This solutiama drivers of Large Goods Vehicles (LGVs) andesusy
flashing light and audio alert if a collision is@li to occur with a pedestrian or cyclist from side of the long
vehicle. By filtering out other objects, the systeliminates unnecessary distractions for the dsiver

Our Customers

Mobileye’s customers include OEMs, Tier 1 systetegnators, fleets and fleet management systems
providers (telematics), insurance companies, lgasimpanies and others.

OEMs

Mobileye’s products were first included in prodactivehicles in 2007 with three manufacturerBMW,
General Motors and Volvo. As of December 31, 2@l#,technology is available in 160 car models fin
OEMs worldwide, either as an option or a standesdifre. Further, our products have been selected fo
implementation in serial production of 247 car nmiedeom 22 OEMs by 2016. Not all Mobileye ADAS
applications are available in each car model, gpitally, the number of applications available imadel
increases over time. Mobileye currently has pradacagreements with respect to the following OER&Is (
asterisk means models are in serial productionratite market):

Automakers

Adam Opel AG*

Audi AG

Bayerische Motoren Werke
(BMW) AG* (BMW, Mini and
Rolls Royce

Chrysler Group LLCXChrysler,
Dodge and Jeeg

Fiat S.p.A.

Ford Motor CompanytFord and
Lincoln)

General Motors Company*
(Buick, Cadillac, Chevrolet and
GMC)

Honda Motor Company, Ltd*
HKMC* (Hyundai and Kia)

Truck Manufacturers
Jaguar Land Rover Automotive  MAN SE
PLC* (Jaguar and Landrover) Scania Aktiebolag (publ)*
Mitsubishi Group* IVECO

Mazda Motor Corporation
Nissan Motor Co., Ltd.(Nissan
and Infiniti)

PSA Peugeot Citroén*
(Peugeot and Citroén)
Renault S.A.

Ssangyong Motor Company
SAIC Motor

Tesla Motors, Inc.*

Volvo Car Corporation*
Yulon Motor Co., Ltd.*

The following chart illustrates the increase in gardels (by model year) in which Mobileye produtdse

been or will be integrated by OEMs.
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Growing Number of Contracted Models
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There is usually a five-to-seven year period frohewwe are first introduced to an OEM until ourdarct
is included in serial production. During the fisgtveral years, we educate the OEM about our teacyol
including our sophisticated algorithms and the Ee&C platform and its capabilities, and the OEM eat@s
and validates our technology in its testing faieiit During this period, we receive revenues froem®@EM for
selling testing equipment for its evaluation pugmdf the OEM requires specific customizationsit®r
evaluation, we may charge the OEM fees as partioipén our research and development expensest tite
OEM has evaluated our technology, it may issuegjaest for quotation to Tier 1 companies of its ahpice.
The RFQ will identify, among other items, the apable bundle of applications required and the etquesize o
the production run for the particular automobiled@alo The OEM will send the RFQ to Tier 1 compariiext are
working with us on the basis that these Tier 1 canigs will quote Mobileye technology and also toentTier 1
companies that may have their own technology.Tife&t 1 company includes our technology, we will\gde a
quotation (we provide a different quotation for leaifferent RFQ) for the fees we will charge therT1 for the
work we are doing for the specific program andEyeQ® price for the duration of the program. Thegsiare
differentiated by the applicable bundle within fregram. An OEM may also send an RFQ only to Tier 1
companies that are working with Mobileye, which methat we will be selected as the technology plevi
irrespective of the winning Tier 1 company. If wlerough a Tier 1 company, win the RFQ and a pradoct
program is initiated, there is typically approximlgttwo to three years of production developmefibteethe
product is included in a car model. This long desigd validation process results in our havingenst direct
relationship with an OEM, which we believe offessadvantages when ADAS are being proposed foriaddlt
car models. We generally provide our products Toea 1 company for serial production pursuant @ Tier 1
company’s standard purchase order and our custot@ang and condition.

All of our working relationships with the OEMs ket above are in the production development orlseria
production phases. We believe that we win new lspraaluction in respect of the RFQs in which wetiggrate
by a ratio exceeding eight to one to any other agtitgy in the market, and that this rate has bessistent for
the past approximately seven years.

Tier 1 Companie

Mobileye supplies OEMs with the Eye®) platform thyhwur arrangements with automotive system
integrators, known as Tier 1 companies, which &extisuppliers to vehicle manufacturers. Our Tier
customers include Autoliv, Inc., Delphi AutomotiPéc, Gentex Corporation, HiRain, Key Safety Systems
Leopold Kostal GmbH, Magna Electronics Inc., Ma@hrporation, Nidec Elesys, Sony Corporation, Taiwan
Calsonic, TRW, and Valeo as well as Bendix Corporeand Mobis Transportation Alternatives, Inc. king
jointly with TRW.
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The Tier 1 company, based on our reference deBiglis a module for the sensor system that incltides
windshield-mounted camera, our proprietary EYeQ So€our application software using our software
algorithms. This complete sensor system with tigaired ADAS functionality is then integrated intewn cars
by the OEM. In connection with its response toRf#, the Tier 1 company receives a quotation frermu
which we determine the price of our product for fiblilowing years as well as the fees we may chasgye
participation in our research and development es@effior adjusting our core technology to the OEM
specifications.

If the OEM awards the design to the Tier 1 comptiway incorporates our product, we will start praghre
development with the Tier 1 company and the Tieothpany is responsible for paying our invoicestiier
products we supply to it.

Aftermarket Customel

From 2007 through December 31, 2014, Mobileye mféeket products have been installed in
approximately 165,000 vehicles. We currently hawver &8 distributors covering over 39 countries. &l&» hav
wholly owned subsidiaries in China, Germany andih#éed States that serve as aftermarket distrilsui/e
offer our ADAS aftermarket product line to the fdling types of customers:

«  Commercial and fleet customers—We sell our aftermarket products to fleets sucB & England,
the largest refrigerated trucking company in thététhStates, Werner Trucking, Dart, Pepsi, Ericson,
Eli Lilly, Florida Power & Light & Johnson & JohneoWe also sell through distributors to fleet
management systems (FMS) providers. We currenthg U4 FMS provider customers in 21 countries,
including the United States, the United Kingdomadd, Germany, Poland, China and Australia. Our
distributors also sell to leasing companies sucBuamitumo Mitsui in Japan and GE Leasing in the
United States. The integration of our product VRS allows fleets to monitor their driveng2hicular
operations through online alerts and to provideieate information in the event of an accident.
Mobileye currently has more than 200 direct flagttomers in EU countries and the United States and
more than 20 FMS customers.

OEM customers —We sell our aftermarket products to smaller OEMshsas Volvo Bus, Renault
Trucks and Ford Germany, and to OEMs that wanttannaarket solution for their models that do not
have ADAS as a factory option. Our aftermarket pictd also give OEMSs the flexibility to offer these
solutions at different levels throughout their ki@is network. We also sell to importers or deatleas
add our aftermarket product to vehicles that didaoone with our product as a factory option.

« Insurance customers—We believe our aftermarket products offer insuracam@panies the potential
for significant savings because they can redude $pending on accidents. A 2013 study for Israel’s
Finance Ministry prepared by an independent thandypon the basis of data transferred from Mobi
through IsraeB Finance Ministry and from all insurance compaindsrael since 1985, showed a 4
reduction in compulsory insurance (bodily injurglaims frequency for the years 2009 through 2012
among private car owners who installed our aftekeigproducts. We believe that the potential sav
may even be greater since this survey includedlants our system cannot detect (such as side or rea
collisions). A pilot study by one of our insurare@mpany customers over the course of 10 months
with 400 vehicles also showed a reduction of 45%ams frequency, which was found to be
statistically significant. By recommending thatunsds have our aftermarket products in their veli
insurance companies can offer premium discount8ewlitreasing customer loyalty through custo
care and accident prevention measures. Our insei@rapany customers include Clal Insurance
Company Ltd. and Phoenix Insurance Company Lttsrael and Generali in Poland.

We also seek to promote regulation that will maedatencourage aftermarket installation of ADAS
technology for certain usages, such as fleetseraio drivers, such as young drivers. A small nendf
governments and governmental organizations cuyreffier incentives for installing ADAS products wehicles
including aftermarket products. Israel offers taxéfits to importers who install ADAS products. T3tate of
Florida allows insurance companies to provide puamdiscounts to insured customers who
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install an ADAS product, such as ours. In addititeets owned by U.S. governmental organizatiomduding
the U.S federal General Services Administration thiedStates of Florida and Nevada, have installedildye
aftermarket products as part of their researchsatong lives and containing operational costs.

Mobileye’s aftermarket products are also availdbteconsumers; however, we do not target direct to
consumer sales because consumer market awaremesyet widespread and we do not believe that ntattie
significant investment necessary for the retaihsewgt is appropriate for us.

Distribution and Marketing

After 16 years of operation that has resulted inmarket-leading position, we believe we are wathkn
to all global OEMs and large Tier 1 companies drad bur superior technology, innovation, qualitguaance,
reputation and personal relationships should helaahieve introductions to additional OEMs and Tier
companies as needed. We believe that our markefiogs are best served by our engineers meetiongady
with OEM engineers at one-on-one meetings, coneestand other venues to showcase our technology. We
work closely with our existing OEMs and Tier 1 arsers in order to ensure that we are aware of their
requirements and plans for future car models andespond promptly and effectively. We also redulpresen
our technology to regulators and safety organinatto demonstrate its capabilities and reliabdaity to help
ensure that they develop regulations and ratingisattidress the full range of benefits that we lel®DAS can
offer.

We market our aftermarket products mainly througgtributors and resellers under distribution agrests
according to which we typically provide the distribr with a non-exclusive license to distribute ptwducts
within a specific region. We have over 68 distrdrstcovering over 39 countries. Under our distiidrut
agreements we provide a 14 month limited warrantgas a longer period is mandatory or an industry
requirement. The distributor’s responsibilities gemerally to (1) install the product and providerting to its
customers by professional installers that arefatby us; (2) provide a warranty to its customés$ not
market competing products during the distributigneement term and for six months thereafter; (4ntam
proper insurance to cover its liabilities includifog installation; and (5) use the Mobileye braraine in
accordance with the agreement’s provisions. Intamdto local distributors, we also have our owrnolin
owned distribution companies in China, Germany thedJnited States that employ sales people whiaiait
direct sales, identify new distributors and manageent distributors.

Research and Developmer

We believe our strong research and developmentriprincipal competitive strength and has led to ou
dominant position in the market. Our research aglbpment activities are conducted at our machisien
center in Jerusalem, Israel. We have more tharflddme-equivalent employees engaged in reseanth
development, primarily in Israel. We also work withr OEM customers specifications to develop nevdpcts
and enhancements to existing products responsitheiiorequirements. Our gross research and deweldop
costs and expenses were approximately $46.8 mi{{88r6% of revenue) and $32.8 million (40.4% ofaewe)
in 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our research amdldpment efforts focus on algorithms, includingual
processing, camera control, vehicle control, cafmedar fusion and related engineering tasks, akasel
application software, silicon design and hardwéeeteonics design.

Our current research and development activitielsidtecthe following:

«  Extension of Monocular Visual Processing Capabilits —Over the past two years we have been
developing extensive new capabilities in our momarcuisual processing. In particular, we have
developed new “structure from motioalgorithms allowing the system to create a fullr@@dering o
the camera field of view that is then used as ratenml for 2D and 3D fusion algorithms. In additio
we have developed “semantic free space” capabkilitiat provide a category label on a pixel-based
level. These algorithms extract “driver path detanfeatures” that contribute to customer functions
like “construction zone assist” and towards hamde-firiving in general. We have also been
developing Road Profile reconstruction capabilitisgig innovative algorithms that can detect and
measure road bumps, potholes and debris that &asatlO centimeters in height from a distancg0
meters. These size and distance parameters should
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permit the appropriate reaction from the relevabids, whether it is engaging the AEB or ultimately
being able to drive around the object. We have sitpaificantly expanded our Traffic Sign
Recognition, Traffic Light Detection and Road Argifycapabilities. All of these developments are
currently scheduled to launch in series developrdaring 2015, and we expect them to strengther
leadership position in our market.

»  Development of Autonomous Driving Functionality—We are conducting multidisciplinary
research in multifocal front-sensing design, fusioth surround cameras, significant upgrades in
“scene understanding” to allow hanfilse driving in complex scenes, lateral controbaitnms and th
fusion between sensing and control. Many of thepabilities are expected to launch in 262816 in
monocular and trifocal configurations, some of vihigay run on multiple Eyed3  chips. These
developments are critical to the development cytleur EyeQ4® whose launch is targeted for 2018.

+ Development of Automated Parking Support Functions— Starting in 2015 we are developing
visual processing capabilities based on surrouedwi(side- and rear-facing cameras) to support the
growing need for automated parking functions. THagetions will initially include the detection of
pedestrians, children and other obstacles thatistahd in the way of automated parking and prevent
backover collisions in general.

«  EyeQ3® Production and Migration/and EyeQ4® Design andProduction —We launched EyeQ3
in the fourth quarter of 2014 with several addiitb®EM launches scheduled for 2015. We have also
begun designing an Eye®4  family of SoCs with oyaptier, STMicroelectronics. We expect to have
engineering samples in the fourth quarter of 2Qidbare targeting production in early 2018.

«  Aftermarket Product Migration to EyeQ3 ® —We plan to move the aftermarket line of products to
EyeQ3® during 20152016. We believe this will further strengthen aead in this market and keep
our customer functions updated to the latest sththe-art performance.

As a result of all the above activities, we exgedhcur significant research and development edjjeres
in future periods.

Manufacturing

Our products are designed and manufactured spabyffor automotive applications and have achieved
automotive grade quality after extensive validatests under stringent automotive environmentatlitmms.

All of our EyeQ® integrated circuits are manufactlby STMicroelectronics N.V., which is a leading
supplier and innovator of semiconductor devicesadged to automotive applications. Many of our oustrs
are also direct STMicroelectronics N.V.’s customariich allows us to benefit from their existingatéonship
with STMicroelectronics N.V. and gives our custosfamiliarity with STM’s manufacturing processes,
including Quality Assurance, Customer Care, Failmelysis and Manufacturing Standards. We beliéat oul
relationship with STMicroelectronics N.V. also dessignificant cross-selling potential for our guots.
Further, as a leading provider of integrated ctssuTMicrolectronics N.V. has the capacity to aase
production of our Eye® chips as our sales increase.

Our STMicroelectronics N.V. agreements, which cotfseprovide for a termination date of December 31,
2022, provide us manufacturing services on standaramotive terms, including a three year warrdoty
failures of our Eye® SoCs due to manufacturingdirtgr assembly and a covenant by STMicroelect®ni
N.V. to provide us with similar terms to the terthat STMicroelectronics N.V. provides directly tor
customers on other STMicroelectronics N.V. produsiEMicroelectronics N.V. is also responsible faiture
analysis and ongoing improvements of the testiogms. STMicroelectronics N.V. is committed to
manufacture our Eye® SoC for an undefined term weiittt-of-life terms that can extend at least sixyémm
the qualification date and offers us a total oéfixears’ supply of units consisting of three yeargply, one
additional year to place orders and one additigeat to take delivery. STMicroelectronics N.V.,aasontract
manufacturer, has no title to the Ey8Q and cargibitso anyone other than Mobileye. STMicroelectics
N.V. has also agreed not to compete with MobileyelB months following the termination of our agresmt,
and it cannot develop a competing SoC/ASIC for tuirgl party.
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We have begun the process of identifying anothercgofor manufacturing our EyeQ chips. Becausdef t
complex proprietary nature of our Ey&Q chips, agdimew supplier and/or a new manufacturing lina trie
same supplier will require significant time to idién evaluate and validate as well as to negotgeropriate
pricing and other terms. There can be no assuthateve will enter into a new supply agreement timéng anc
terms of such agreement or when chips would beigedwinder such an agreement.

We are 1ISO 9001-certified, which means that we magethe requirements for a quality management
system that demonstrates our ability to providelpod that consistently meets customer and appbcstatutory
and regulatory requirements, and are an organiz#tat seeks to enhance customer satisfactionghrthe
effective application of the system, including msses for continual improvement of the system hed t
assurance of conformity to customer and applicataiutory and regulatory requirements. In additiea,
manufacture based on HIS Automotive SPICE methtadgdted goal: Level 2). HIS (Herstellerinitiative
Software, German for “OEM software initiative”)as interest group consisting of Audi AG, Bayerische
Motoren Werke (BMW) AG, Daimler AG, Porsche Autonildtiolding SE and Volkswagen AG. Automotive
SPICE® is an initiative of the Automotive Speciaieirest Group supported by the Quality Managementete
in the German Association of Automotive Industrhieh is intended to harmonize products and prosesse
reduce supplier effort to adapt to differing OEMu@ements and to establish standardized assessofghiese
products and processes. We also require our sulactmt manufacturers, including STMicroelectronics,
comply with ISO 16949, Automotive Electronics CollfdEC), various European Community Regulations on
chemicals and their safe use (REACH) and Automdbiafety Integrity Level (ASIL) standards.

Our aftermarket products are manufactured by ar@oninanufacturer in China pursuant to an agreement
with an initial term ending in January 2016 witmaal renewals unless either party provides a noewel
notice no later than 180 days prior to the expmratf the then current term. The manufacturer plesisurface-
mount technology services as well as assemblyntggiackaging and logistics services.

Validation and Quality Assurance

Our validation and quality assurance, or QA, isdéd among QA on software and algorithms develogmen
(Offline QA), product quality for our productionggrams after a design win (Online QA), supplierliqya
within our manufacturing process (QC) and our oigistional processes.

Offline QA —The primary scope of the Offline tests is stat@tmerformance of image processing runr
in laboratory conditions. These tests are donéHast' Environment Tests” using simulation of largdumnes of
data running on servers and computers.

Online/Product QA —The primary scope of the Online tests is real-imberaction between the Mobileye
EyeQ Processor and the customer’s microcontrdliests are done as “Target Environment Tests” usitigal
customer systems while running on the test bendh an actual driving situation. The Online QA teite
overall stability of the integrated system.

Functional Safety Verification —Code and Hardware blocks that are active in sdfgtgtions will adher:
to the functional safety verification plan thatieated based on 1S026262.

Manufacturing and Supplier Quality Control —We work with our main suppliers to ensure thatrthei
processes and systems are capable of deliveringatte we need at the required quality level, orefiand on
budget.

Intellectual Property

Our ability to compete effectively depends in gartour ability to develop and maintain the prognigt
aspects of our technology. Our policy is to obtgipropriate proprietary rights protection for ammyemtially
significant new technology acquired or developedibyAt December 31, 2014, we held 21 U.S. paténts,
European patents, 38 U.S. patent applications,u28dean and other non-US patent applications, 8nd 1
provisional patent filings. We are a party to @ramination proceeding involving one of our U.Sepés and
two post-grant opposition proceedings involving oheur European patents.
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In addition to patent laws, we rely on copyrightidrade secret laws to protect our proprietarytagiVe
attempt to protect our trade secrets and otherigtapy information through agreements with OEMs,
distributors, other customers and suppliers, pedg@ry information agreements with our employees and
consultants, and other similar measures. Our pyiftrademarks are for our name and product namesanieo!
be certain that we will be successful in protecting proprietary rights. While we believe our pasepatent
applications, software and other proprietary knawthave value, changing technology makes our future
success dependent principally upon our abilityuwesssfully achieve continuing innovation.

Litigation may be necessary in the future to erdayar proprietary rights, to determine the validityd
scope of the proprietary rights of others, or tfedd us against claims of infringement or invalidity others. A
adverse outcome in such litigation or similar pemtiags could subject us to significant liabilittesthird parties
require disputed rights to be licensed from otleenequire us to cease marketing or using certadyzts, any
of which could have a material adverse effect anbmusiness, financial condition and results of apiens. In
addition, the cost of addressing any intellectwapprty litigation claim, both in legal fees angerses, as well
as from the diversion of management’s resourcgardéess of whether the claim is valid, could lgmiicant
and could have a material adverse effect on ounbss, financial condition and results of operation

In May 2014, we filed two petitions to the Firstdrmediate People’s Court of Beijing appealing the
Chinese Trademark Appeal Board’s decision refusimgopposition to trademark applications for MOBYIE
and MOBILEYE filed by Dongguan Mobiieye Auto Intigient Technology Co., Ltd. (“Dongguan”). Our
petitions alleged that Dongguan’s trademark aptitinoa were filed in bad faith as the trademarkssarglar or
identical to our MOBILEYE trademark. In the everg wo not prevail in the actions, two of our pending
MOBILEYE trademark applications in China may beussfd by the Chinese Trademark Office based upon
Dongguan’s prior applications, and our ability totect and use our trademarks in China may be adlyer
affected. While we intend to vigorously pursue thastions, we are considering alternative waysé¢sgrve the
benefits of our branding in the Chinese market.

We are not a party to any pending litigation fdrimgement of intellectual property rights. Certainour
Tier 1 customers are parties in cases involvingrigement of intellectual property rights. We hageeived
discovery requests for production of informatiolated to these pending cases. These customersbéfied us
that they have received notices of potential ifement of intellectual property rights. These cunrs have
also requested that we provide potentially relevafiormation or indemnify them against infringemetdims
should litigation occur. We have agreed to proyideentially relevant information but have not agrée
indemnify any customer.

Competition

The ADAS industry is highly competitive. Competitits based primarily on technology, innovation,
quality, delivery and price. Our future succesd déipend on our ability to develop superior advance
technology and to maintain our leading competifiegition with respect to our technological advarmesr our
existing and any new competitors. Although we heithat we are the only provider of ADAS that offetl
major safety and convenience-related functionsim eost-effective and well-packaged system andhfsithe
amount and type of validation data necessary topedeneffectively in the ADAS industry and there are
significant other barriers to developing a compggsensory modality, we face potential competitiamarily
from Tier 1 companies and potentially other techgglcompanies. However, we believe that some offamrl
competitors have considerably reduced their intefiarts to offer an alternative camera technolagpart
because of our stated policy that we do not wotk Wier 1 companies that sell products that comptte our
products. More importantly, developing effective A® technology is technologically complex, requities
development of large validation datasets in orderdin the software algorithms effectively, regsia long terr
commitment to validation and qualification with @&EM before serial production can even begin andireg
significant financial resources. We further beli¢hvat, due to the high barriers to entry describeave, the
market will not easily open to new start-up papieits. While large technology companies could jphssinter
the market, we believe that they would experieheesame five-to-seven year development timelink it
OEM as any other competitor, thus creating a sicanit barrier to entry for even the most resouick-r
companies.
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Insurance and Product Liability

We attempt to mitigate the risks of product liglitlaims through product testing and by includsegurity
features in the product design as well as by olstgiproduct liability insurance for a total 850 million.

Environmental Matters

We believe that our operations in Israel complglinmaterial respects with applicable laws and f&tipns
concerning the environment. While it is impossitoigredict accurately the future costs associatéu w
environmental compliance and potential remediatictivities, compliance with environmental laws @& n
expected to require significant capital expendigwed has not had, and is not expected to havaeterial
adverse effect on our results of operations oosiness.

C. Organizational Structure

Our business was originally incorporated in Isiagll999. In 2001, we incorporated Mobileye B.Vtlas
holding company in The Netherlands for all of owrldwide activities. In July 2003, Mobileye B.V. wa
converted into Mobileye N.V., a Dutch limited lifit company. Our management is located in Israied
Mobileye N.V. is a resident of Israel (and not Thetherlands) for tax purposes. On July 10, 2014l
outstanding shares of any class were split fivesioe into shares of the same class and then or81uB014 all
shares of all classes other than ordinary shares @aaverted into ordinary shares, € 0.01 nomiaaley per
share, on a one-to-one basis (collectively, theat8lRecapitalization™). We closed our IPO on Augys2014.
During 2014, we also reorganized the relationsbffertain of our subsidiaries. See “Item 5. Opegaénd
Financial Review and Prospeets-actors Affecting Our Operating Results — Taxesrmome —
Reorganization” and “Item 10. Additional Informatie— Share Capital.”

D. Property, Plants, and Equipment

The Company leases its principal offices at 13 ¢tarBtreet, Jerusalem, totaling approximately 80,000
square feet, pursuant to a lease that expirestirukey 2019 and that may be extended, at the opfitime
Company, for two additional five-year terms. Seelded Party TransactiorsRelationship with OrCam
Technologies Ltd.” for a description of a subleaba portion of the leased space. The Companylets®es
office space in New York State, New Jersey and $eldaited States of America, Shanghai, People’siBlap
of China, Dusseldorf, Germany and Tokyo, Japan.

ITEM 4A. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS
Not applicable

ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEW AND PROSPE CTS

The following information should be read togeth@hwur selected financial data and the audited
consolidated financial statements and notes induglsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 20-F. The
following discussion contains forwelooking statements that reflect our plans, estésatnd beliefs. Our actual
results could differ materially from those discubssethese forwardeoking statements. Factors that could ca
or contribute to these differences include, butm@oelimited to, those discussed below and elsesvimethis
Annual Report on Form -F, particularly in “ltem 3. Key Informatior— Risk Factors” and “Introduction—
Forward-Looking Statements.” We prepare our financial staénts in accordance with U.S. GAAP.

Overview

Mobileye is the global leader in the design andettlgyment of software and related technologies for
camerabased Advanced Driver Assistance Systems. Our tdotpn keeps passengers safer on the roads, re
the risks of traffic accidents, saves lives andthagotential to revolutionize the driving expede by enabling
autonomous driving. Our proprietary software altyoris and Eye® chips perform detailed interpretatioin
the visual field in order to anticipate possibldismns with other vehicles, pedestrians, cyclistsimals, debris
and other obstacles. Our products are also aldetert roadway markings such as
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lanes, road boundaries, barriers and similar itemsyell as to identify and read traffic signs &adfic lights.
Our products combine high performance, low enemsamption and low cost, with automotive-grade
standards. Our technology was first included imas@nodels in 2007. We estimate that our produetsew
installed in approximately 5.2 million vehicles wdwide through December 31, 2014. As of December 31
2014, our technology is available in 160 car moftelsn 18 original equipment manufacturers. Furinar
products have been selected for implementatioerilgproduction of 247 car models from 22 OEMS20\L.6.
Mobileye’s more than 16 years of research and dgweént and data collected from millions of milesigfing
experience give us a significant technological |éaa the past seven years, we have won more b#nd the
serial productions for which we have been requestgdovide a quotation.

Key Performance Indicators

Our two key performance indicators are revenue tr@amd profitability, and in recent years, the levaf
our free cash flow.

Revenue Growtt

Our business model requires us to invest signifitere and other resources early in our relatigns¥ith
an OEM before we can begin to recognize significaménues. During the first few years, we eduda¢eQEM
about our technology, including our sophisticatemathms and the Eye® SoC platform and its cajtisi|
and the OEM evaluates and validates our techndlogy facilities. After the OEM has evaluated our
technology, if it intends to include our productine or more of its new or redesigned automobildets it will
issue an RFQ for one or more applications. RFQsisueally issued for models that will be in prodantiwo to
three years after the design win is awarded. An GENbdel can remain in production for three or mypears
before the OEM decides either to discontinue thdehor to engage in partial or substantial redesige
revenues that we may receive in any given yeaatridutable to design wins in previous years. €fae,
management can typically determine the number afetsathat will include our products for at leasotte three
years in advance, subject to possible cancellgtiostponement or termination of a program, which ha
happened only once since 2007.

We experienced overall revenue growth of approxétyat7% and 102% in 2014 and 2013, respectively.
We derive our revenues from two segments: salest@EM segment, substantially all of which aretigh
Tier 1 companies, and sales of aftermarket prodtines‘AM Segment”).

Our OEM segment revenues grew by approximately 8886128% in 2014 and 2013, respectively. This
growth was attributable to design wins in priorngaaith a number of OEMs including Chrysler, FoB&neral
Motors, HKMC, Honda, and Nissan.

Winning additional production programs is importembur future revenue growth. We invest significan
effort in understanding the OEM market and ideiigyareas of growth, including with new OEMs ancbtigh
the continuation of existing production programskey factor that affects our ability to win addited
production programs is maintaining our technololgieadership through investment in research and
development. The other key factor is the continumpact of regulation and the ratings systems deguldoy the
various NCAPs, particularly the European NCAP draW.S. NCAP, administered by the NHTSA. As these
NCAPs demand more ADAS applications, particulariBA in order to achieve or maintain the highesetse
ratings, more automakers will include ADAS as staddit in their models. In the past year, we hbgen
sourced for standard fit programs for certain medekhe regions where these ratings provisiong teeen
instituted, such as Europe in 2014.

Additional factors that may affect our ability tocrease our revenue are if the market were tottuan
competing camera-based offering or a reliance different sensory modality for ADAS, such as radiéhout
including camera capability, any decrease in thaityuof the manufacturing of our product and timeing of the
launch of a particular model production. We seekiiigate these risks by maintaining strong relalips with
our OEMs and Tier 1 companies, gaining knowledgeslgfvant safety ratings and regulatory trends and
maintaining adequate internal resources to sumporéxisting production programs. We have alsadaitat! an
inventory purchase plan to mitigate unexpectedatiffies in our primary subcontractor’s supply chéike
natural disasters) and manufacturing.
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Management believes that our long term revenue tyropportunity will come from the increasing
emphasis on autonomous driving, which will reqi2AS technological innovations of increasing conxjtie
We have design wins from four OEMs to launch fesgunvolving hands-freeapable driving at highway spet
and in congested traffic situations in 2015-201& &¥e also in development programs with four aoicléi
OEMs for potential launches in 2018. We believertagt autonomous driving innovation will be thelirggon of
country road capabilities and city traffic capahak. These capabilities require significant altjonic advances,
which we are currently developing. If we cannot ptete such development in a timely manner or aehiev
design wins for these additional capabilities pfdflowing any such design win, our product is idly
validated and does not go into serial productiam,long-term revenue growth will suffer. Furthelthaugh
there is continuing regulatory concern about automas driving, we believe that the driver should aém
responsible for driving the car and that such atjposwould significantly reduce regulators’ cadse concern.
This view is evidenced in the recent acceptan@tdnomous driving by the states of California Riedvada in
the United States and recent statements by theopEanoNCAP.

Our AM Segment revenue grew by approximately 22% 44?6 in 2014 and 2013, respectively. The
growth of our AM Segment revenue will be influendsdseveral trends:

» Increasing market awareness attributable togfalatory and safety ratings trend as well as OEMs
creating awareness for their new car models thraaghmercials;

* Regulation and other actions that seek to ineetthe purchase of safety systems, including tax
benefits and insurance premium discounts for itisteADAS; and

»  Sales to small OEMs that prefer an aftermaréktton rather than a built-in solution.

Unlike in the OEM segment where the universe oéptal end customers is defined, AM Segment revenue
growth requires significant sales and marketingré$fand a distribution network to reach the ldrge
fragmented pool of potential customers worldwide/uding fleets, insurance companies, governmesneigs
and private end customers. There are also riskeiassed with manufacturing our aftermarket prodwzetd their
delivery and installation, as well as our more diiavolvement in the education of drivers regagdine
products.

We generally work directly with large customers and distributors distribute our products localby t
smaller customers. This helps to keep our effarteentrated into support to distributors and cneptharket
awareness rather than building a large directidigion chain, which would be more expensive anallehging
to manage.

Profitability

We achieved marginal profitability in 2012, whicttreased in 2013 and in 2014 on a @KWAP basis. Th
key indicator for our profitability is our adjusteét income, which is a non-GAAP measure reflecting.
GAAP net income after eliminating the impact ohitethat we do not consider indicative of our oderal
operating performance. To arrive at our non-GAAPimeome (loss), we exclude share-based compensatio
expense from our U.S. GAAP net income (loss). Wiebe that this nolGAAP measure is useful to investor:
evaluating our operating performance (see “— Reitiation of Non-GAAP Measures”).

Our adjusted net income is influenced by our GRredit and our Operating Expenses as well as Fialhnc
Income (Loss), Interest Income (Loss) and Tax Egper{Benefit).

Our Gross Profit is primarily affected by our AvgeaSelling Price (ASP) in the OEM segment. ASPun o
OEM segment varies based on the ADAS applicatiodstlaeir complexity. Our ASP grew from $35 to $87 t
$44 in the years ended December 31, 2011, 20128 respectively. In 2011, most of our EyeQ rexeen
came from road-based feature set applications (i, TSR and IHC). In 2012, most of our EyeQ nave
was attributable to feature set applications rdl&devehicle detection (i.e., FCW) in addition e troad
applications. The sharp increase in ASP in 2018ltex$ from the launch of more programs with vehicle
detection applications so that the majority of wklies were related to vehicle detection feature2014, the
EyeQ ASP was largely unchanged at approximatelyb®tause the majority of deliveries were still tedato
vehicle detection features. Accordingly, our groesgin in the OEM segment
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(excluding shardrased compensation) was flat at approximately 7&%he years ended December 31, 201¢
2013 compared to 70.8% for the year ended DeceB1he2012. We expect our ASP to increase signiflgant
over time as we produce more of our EyéQ3 and Bya®4® chips, we continue to add feature set
applications and we win new production programs ithadude such additional feature set applications.

We are considered a Tier 2 supplier because weweproduct to Tier 1 companies that integrate our
product into the overall system supplied to the GE®ur business model of being a Tier 2 suppliar th
subcontracts its manufacturing, together with oarkat penetration, results in an advantageousstastture
that requires minimal sales and marketing expefusesur OEM segment. Our OEM segment representét 85
and 78% of our revenues in the years ended Dece3db@014 and 2013, respectively, and over timeexpec
that percentage to increase moderately as a @fshié faster growth in the OEM segment than inAle
segment. Therefore, an increase in revenues Wikkaase a material increase to our operating exgens
(excluding share-based compensation), which ineseasr profitability. Our revenues increased by ii%he
year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the pdadedecember 31, 2013 but our operating expenses
(excluding share-based compensation) increasealpyl6% . Similarly, our revenue increase of 10202013
led to an increase of only 14% in our operatingemses (excluding share-based compensation) faatihe
year. We expect a similar trend for the foreseealilee. While our operating expenses will increaseur
revenues grow, the percentage they will represier@venues is expected to decrease compared tq 2014
resulting in both an increase in the absolute amofioperating profit as well as the percentageaiiey profit
bears to revenues.

We also expect to benefit from a favorable tax cdt@pproximately 9% in Israel, where we derive hafs
our income. The favorable tax rate is subject &fthfillment of terms and conditions under applitalaw and
ruling we received from the Israel Tax AuthorityTA”) in July 2014. See also “— Factors Affectingi©
Operating Results — Taxes on Income — Reorganizdtio

Free Cash Flow

We monitor carefully our free cash flow, particlyaas our operations have become profitable. Fask ¢
flow is a nonGAAP measure, which we define as cash flow fronraiieg activities minus capital expenditur
Free cash flow is important to reflect the cash taa allow us to pursue business opportunitiesfalfil our
goals.

We generated $50.8 million and $25.6 million offieash flow for the years ended December 31, 26d4 a
December 31, 2013, respectively, while we had megétee cash flow ofs3.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2012. This free cash flow compareeta@ash provided by (used in) operating activinie$56.1
million, $28.1 million and $(1.7) million for thesyars ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, teshec

Non-GAAP Financial Measures

We have provided in this Annual Report on Form 2z&ncial information that has not been prepared i
accordance with U.S. GAAP. We use these non-GAA®ritial measures internally in analyzing our finahc
results and believe they are useful to investoms sigoplement to U.S. GAAP measures. We believdtirae
non-GAAP financial measures also provide additidgoals for investors to use in evaluating our ongoi
operating results and trends and in comparinginan€ial results with other companies in our indgshany of
which present similar non-GAAP financial measuetestors.

Non-GAAP financial measures should not be considerésoilation from, or considered as an alternatiy
operating income (loss), net income (loss), easper share or any other measure of financial pedace
calculated and presented in accordance with U.SAR5Dur non-GAAP measure may not be comparable to
similarly titled measures of other organizationséaiese other organizations may not calculate non-BAA
measures in the same manner. You are encouragedliate these adjustments and the reason we eotisah
appropriate.

Non-GAAP net income (loss).To arrive at our non-GAAP net income (loss),exelude share-based
compensation expense from our U.S. GAAP net incioss). We believe that this ndBAAP measure is usef
to investors in evaluating our operating perforneafuor the following reasons:

48




TABLE OF CONTENTS

*  We believe that elimination of share-based camp#on expense is appropriate because treatment of
this item may vary for reasons unrelated to ouraVeperating performance;

*  We use this non-GAAP measure in conjunction with U.S. GAAP financial measure for planning
purposes, including the preparation of our annpatating budget, as a measure of operating
performance and the effectiveness of our businestegies and in communications with our board of
directors concerning our financial performance;

*  We believe that this non-GAAP measure providetselb comparability with our past financial
performance, facilitates better period-to-periothparisons of operational results and may facilitate
comparisons with similar companies, many of whicyralso use similar non-GAAP financial
measures to supplement their U.S. GAAP reporting; a

»  Ourinvestor presentations and those of seearénalysts include non-GAAP financial measures to
evaluate our overall operating performance.

Non-GAAP EPS. To arrive at our non-GAAP EPS, we divided the4@AAP net income by the sum of
the number of our outstanding ordinary shares dutie relevant period and the number of ordinagresh
resulting from the conversion of all of our outstang class shares into ordinary shares with nadigion
preferences on a one-to-one basis as set forthriarticles of association. On July 31, 2014, dhdrfore our
IPO, all outstanding class shares were so converteardinary shares.

Free cash flow. We define free cash flow as net cash providedg®rating activities minus capital
expenditures. Free cash flow is important to réflbe cash that can allow us to pursue busineategtes and
opportunities and fulfill our goals. A limitatiorf asing free cash flow versus the U.S. GAAP measfirest
cash provided by operating activities as a meansvaluating us is that free cash flow does notasgnt the
total increase or decrease in the cash balancedparations for the period because it excludes asst for
capital expenditures during the period. Managernentpensates for this limitation by providing infation
about our capital expenditures on the face of ##h dlow statement.

Adjusted Net Incom

Set forth below is the reconciliation of Net Incofhess) Before SharBased Compensation to Net Inco

(Loss):
Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
Net Income (Loss $(30,08¢) $19,92( $ (53)
Share-Based Compensation 76,85: 13,13 1,85¢
Net Income Before She-Based Compensation $ 46,76¢ $33,05: $1,80:

Free Cash Flov
Set forth below is the reconciliation of Free Casbw to Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012

(in thousands)
Net cash provided by operating activit $56,12¢ $28,18¢ $(1,66¢5)
Capital Expenditures (5,37¢) (2,592) (1,52¢)
Free Cash Flow $50,75( $25,59¢ $(3,191)

Factors Affecting Our Operating Results

We believe there are several important factorshheaé affected and that we expect to continuefaxgbur
results of operations:
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Revenues
We evaluate segment performance based on our yvwesds’ operating income.

Sales to OEMs. We supply our technology to OEMs through ouaagements with automotive system
integrators, known as Tier 1 companies, which @extisuppliers to OEMs. Our products are ultimatel
integrated into a new vehicle by the OEM to perféB®AS functions. We have strong direct relationshiyth
OEMs. Mobileye’s OEM products have been availablproduction vehicles since 2007. Sales to OEMs
represented approximately 84.8%, 77.9% and 69.1&ticfotal revenues for each of the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

Aftermarket Product Sales We also offer our ADAS technology as an aftekmatproduct directly and
through distributors to end customers, includingowrcial and governmental fleet owners, fleet manaant
system providers, insurance companies, new vetiedéers and importers. Mobilegeaftermarket products he
been sold since 2007. Through December 31, 20¥4ftarmarket products have been installed in
approximately 165,000 vehicles. Our aftermarketsatpresented approximately 15.2%, 22.1%, and@6f9
our total revenues for each of the years endedbeee31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, respectively.

We believe there are two important factors thagafboth our OEM revenues and, to a lesser extant,
aftermarket product revenues:

* Regulation and NCAP ratin— The continual emphasis on safety is driven bothelgylation and the
availability to consumers of independent assessyathe safety performance of different car may
which have encouraged OEMs to produce cars thatadee than those required by law. In many
countries, new car assessment programs (“NCAP¥§ beeated a “market for safety.” OEMs seek to
demonstrate that their new and revamped car maedélsy the NCAP’s highest rating, typically five
stars, or can “tick the boxdn the new car sticker. National NCAPs will contirto add specific ADA
applications to their evaluation items over thetrseveral years. We believe that this global rdllou
will also lead to harmonized requirements acrogsgemgraphic areas. We further believe that these
increasing requirements will help us increase euenues.

«  Consumer awareness and acceptance of ABASur sales are also driven by public awareness and
demand for driver safety technology. In recent geas regulatory requirements and NCAP ratings
have increased, OEMs have also begun to highligtit safety features as a competitive advantage.
For example, an OEM emphasized its safety featumssd on Mobileye technology in an
advertisement during the 2014 Super Bowl.

We believe these factors will have a greater impacbtur OEM segment, which, based in part on the
expected additional serial production already sedifcom us through 2017, is expected to grow mapédty
than our aftermarket segment.

The ASP for our OEM products is primarily basedio®bundle of applications that are included in the
specific product. Each OEM determines the applicatiundle set that it wants for the particular mode

Our ASP for the aftermarket is primarily based lom $ales channel, the end customer sub-segment and
volume. Generally, when we sell directly to the endtomer, our ASP is higher than when we sellugino
distributors. Recently, as a result of certain faguy benefits in Israel, our revenue in the AN®sent has also
been affected by movements of the U.S. dollar agdie New Israeli Shekel. To date most of ourafeeket
sales have been to commercial and fleet customérdelieve there is significant potential for grbvirt other
sub-segments such as insurance companies and gwreal incentive programs, which are focused oimgav
lives and reducing the number of road accidents.

Although parts of the automotive industry are sabje seasonality, depending on the location ofQE#M
and other factors, it is not yet clear whether geality will affect our results of operations besawur
continuing growth in revenues has masked any salisoimpact.
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Cost of Revenues and Gross Prc

Cost of revenues of our OEM segment includes theufiaaturing cost of our Eye® chips as well as
royalty fees for the intellectual property thairisluded in the EyeQ SoC, logistics costs, deptriaproduct
liability insurance reserves for estimated warra®genses and, to the extent relevant, chargest®down the
carrying value of our inventory when it exceedsitimated net realizable value and to providebsolete and
on-hand inventory in excess of forecasted demand.

Cost of revenues of our aftermarket product inciydte addition to the cost of the Ey&Q  chips (idahg
royalties), direct material, labor costs, deprésigtmanufacturing and supply chain overhead, guebntrol,
shipping and logistic costs and reserves for estichevarranty expenses. Cost of revenues also iesladarges
to write down the carrying value of our inventorjien it exceeds its estimated net realizable vailde@
provide for obsolete and on-hand inventory in egsadSorecasted demand. We purchase the majorityeof
components directly and our products are manufedtprimarily by one contract manufacturer in China.

Our gross profit equals total revenues less oat tatst of revenues, and our gross margin is cassgprofit
expressed as a percentage of total revenues.

Our cost of revenue is expected to increase asales continue to grow.

Research and Development Expen:

Research and development activities are conduttedranachine vision center in Jerusalem, Israat. O
activities are divided among:

e Core technology, which are (i) algorithms, incluglivisual processing, camera control, vehicle cdr
camera/radar fusion and related engineering tasigig application software;

*  New products and enhancements to existing producesponse to OEM requirements; ¢

«  Hardware, which includes (i) silicon design foe Eye® chip including the Eye®4 ; (i) hardware
electronics design for testing and other equipraedit (iii) new aftermarket hardware; for example, we
are currently developing the next generation ofaftermarket products incorporating the Eye€t)3
chip.

Research and development expenses primarily cafssipenses related to personnel, including share-
based compensation, material, parts and othertgpgtalevelopment, consulting and other professisealices,
amortized equipment expense and quality assuraitb@the development programs.

Our research and development expenses are padftdbt by non-refundable Non-Recurring Engineering
reimbursement that we receive from OEMs attribadblspecific development programs with the OEMzy A
such reimbursement is not contingent upon sucdebe @rogram. We retain all the rights to our workthese
programs.

We intend to continue our significant investmentaeearch and development activities as we betleate
being the technology leader and the most innovaDAS company is our key strength. Accordingly, @ec
the absolute amount of our research and developexgeinses to increase but to decrease as a pgeearfta
revenue as our business grows.

Sales and Marketing

Selling and marketing expenses consist of persampersonnel-related expenses, including shasedba
compensation, of our sales force as well as adiagtiand marketing expenses. We expect to incraassales
and marketing activities, mainly in order to incgeaur aftermarket sales. We expect to increaseabeis and
marketing expenses as we continue our effortsaiease market awareness of the benefits of ADAS@nd
increase our aftermarket segment revenues, big aatbmarketing expenses should decrease as apgeef
revenue as our business grows over time.
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General and Administrative Expenst

General and administrative expenses consist obpeesd and personnel-related expenses, includingsha
based compensation, of our executive, finance| Egdinformation systems departments as wellgal lend
accounting fees, litigation expenses, and feeprofiessional and contract services. We expectriwuat of our
general and administrative expenses to increast ligicrease as a percentage of revenue as onebsigjirows
over time. The primary reasons for the growth inegal and administrative expenses will be the cedtded to
being a public company, including the need to hime personnel to support compliance with the apple
provisions of SOX and other SEC rules and NYSE lagns as well as increased premiums for diregtat
officers insurance and the increased use of steseebcompensation for general and administratixsopeel.

Interest Income

Interest income consists of interest earned on lbakinces and short-term investments, such as tlgben
and money market funds. We have historically ire@stur available cash balances primarily in shenrat
deposits and debentures. The primary objectivaipfrivestments in debt instruments is to preserireipal
while maximizing yields.

Financial Income (Expenses), ne

Our functional currency is the U.S. Dollar. Finaléhcome (expense), net consists primarily oftthations
in value due to foreign exchange differences betvees monetary assets and liabilities denominatedaw
Israeli Shekels and to a much lesser extent, the, Eue Japanese Yen and other currencies. Iniaaldit
Financial income (expense), net, includes realgaids and losses on sales of financial investneardsany
decline in the value that is considered not temmyofehe primary reason for the increase in finaneigpenses
was foreign exchange differences, mainly on cafdmbas and short-term investments denominatedm Ne
Israeli Shekels, which were not material as of Deloer 31, 2014.

Taxes on Income

Until July 2014, Mobileye N.V. and our Cypriot sittiary were taxed under the laws of their respectiv
countries of incorporation. Following our reorgaatian (see “—Reorganization” below), we have our
headquarters in Israel, and Mobileye N.V. and oypridt subsidiary are residents of Israel for taxgmses. The
enacted statutory tax rates applicable to us andiguoificant subsidiaries are as follows:

e MVT, our Israeli subsidiary, is taxed under Erdaw. Income not eligible for benefits under the
Investment Law (described below) is taxed at thpa@te tax rate. The corporate tax rate in ISsel
26.5% in 2015. Corporate tax rates were 26.5% i 2hd 25% in both 2013 and 2012. However, the
effective tax rate payable by a company that derimeome from a Benefited Enterprise or a Preferred
Enterprise under the Investment Law may be coraiigtess. Capital gains derived by an Israel
company are subject to tax at the prevailing cafgorate.

*  Upon the election made by MVT in May 2014, MVé&dame eligible for certain tax benefits under the
2011 Amendment (as defined below) of the Israelestiment Law—“Preferred Enterprise Benefits”
as of the beginning of 2014. According to the 28bdendment and subject to the Preferred Enterprise
Ruling (as described below), our “Preferred Incomé!’' be subject to a reduced tax rate. SeeTax
Regime Under the 2011 Amendment (“Preferred Enissf)i below.

e Until our internal reorganization was completedhe third quarter of 2014, most of our benefi]
on income was incurred from Cyprus, which was toation of our intellectual property. See “—
Reorganization” below. Our Cypriot subsidiary wasdd at the Cypriot corporate tax rate, which was
10% prior to 2013 and became 12.5% from 2013 aewk#iter. Our Cypriot subsidiary could offset
profits arising in future years with taxable losgesrryforward losses) for the five years priothe
fiscal year in which the losses were incurred.riggeincome is taxed at the Defence tax rate, which
was 30% in 2013 and thereafter (effective from Mag013) and 15% in 2012. As of the transfer of
the management and control of our Cypriot subsidiaisrael,
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our Cypriot subsidiary is treated as an Israeldext for tax purposes and is taxed under thelisrae
regular corporate tax rate of 26.5%; however, wiebe that the Cypriot subsidiary will not have
meaningful taxable income. See also “— Reorgarinatbelow.

Israeli Tax Benefits Under the Law for the Encowmaignt of Capital Investments, 1¢

MVT has elected the “Benefited Enterprise” statnder the Israeli Law for the Encouragement of Gapit
Investments, 1959 (the “Investment Law”). The Inwent Law was significantly amended effective Afil
2005 (the “2005 Amendment”), and further amendedfasnuary 1, 2011 (the “2011 AmendmenPyrsuant t
the 2005 Amendment, tax benefits granted in acema@avith the provisions of the Investment Law ptiits
revision by the 2005 Amendment remain in forcednyt benefits granted subsequently are subjeckto th
provisions of the 2005 Amendment. Similarly, thed 2®mendment introduced new benefits to replaceeho
granted in accordance with the provisions of theestment Law in effect prior to the 2011 Amendment.
However, companies entitled to benefits under tivedtment Law as in effect prior to January 1, 20&fle
entitled to choose to continue to enjoy such béngdrovided that certain conditions are met, celéxt
irrevocably to forego such benefits and have thebis of the 2011 Amendment apply.

Tax Regime Under the 2005 Amendmt Benefited Enterpri<”)

The extent of the tax benefits available under2®@5 Amendment to qualifying income of a Benefited
Enterprise depends on, among other things, thergpbig location in Israel of the Benefited EntespriThe
location will also determine the period for whietx tbenefits are available. Such tax benefits irelal
exemption from corporate tax on undistributed inedor a period of between two to ten years, depandn the
geographic location of the Benefited Enterpristsiael, and a reduced corporate tax rate of betd6&nto
25% for the remainder of the “Benefits Period,” eleging on the level ofForeign Investment,” as defined
under the Investment Law, in the company in eaetn. y& company qualifying for tax benefits under 2895
Amendment that pays a dividend or engages in cegiztions that are treated as deemed dividendseolyA
out of income derived by its Benefited Enterpriseimny the tax exemption period will be subject toporate ta:
in respect of the amount of the dividend (grossedeureflect the pre-tax income that it would hiveel to earn
in order to distribute the dividend) at the othessvapplicable rate of 25%, or lower rates in treea a
qualified Foreign Investors Company (“FIC”), accogito the rate(s) of Foreign Investment in the pany for
the applicable tax year(s). Dividends paid outhabime attributed to a Benefited Enterprise are igdigesubject
to withholding tax at source at the rate of 15%sweh lower rate as may be stipulated in an aggbdax treaty
provided that a certificate from the ITA allowingrfthe reduced withholding tax rate is obtaineddmance. Th
benefits available to a Benefited Enterprise abges to the fulfillment of conditions stipulatenl the
Investment Law, its regulations and any ruling reeé from the ITA. In the event of failure to comiplith
these conditions in a given tax year during theri®#s Period”, the entitlement to the benefitsgach tax year
would be cancelled; however, the Company'’s eligibfbr benefits in prior and future years shoutat he
affected.

Tax Regime Under the 2011 Amendmt Preferred Enterpris”)

The 2011 Amendment canceled the availability oflibeefits granted to companies under the Investment
Law prior to 2011 and, instead, introduced new Eenfor income generated by a “Preferred Compahydugh
its “Preferred Enterprise’aé such terms are defined in the Investment Law}f danuary 1, 2011. The definiti
of a Preferred Company includéster alia, a company incorporated in Israel that is (i) whblly owned by a
governmental entity; (ii) owns a Preferred Entesgrias defined under law, (iii) is controlled anahaged from
Israel, and fulfills certain conditions describedhie Investment Law. From 2014 and thereafterefefed
Company is entitled to a reduced corporate taxabl€&% with respect to its income derived by itsfBrred
Enterprise, unless the Preferred Enterprise igéocia development zone A, in which case the raliebe 9%.
MVT’s activities are located in development Zone A.

Dividends paid out of income attributed to a PrefdrEnterprise are generally subject to withholdagat
the source at the rate of 20% with respect to divit$ to be distributed after January 1, 2014, stibjecertain
conditions, or such lower rate as may be provideahi applicable tax treaty provided that a
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certificate from the ITA allowing for the reducedtimholding tax rate is obtained in advance. Howgeifesuch
dividends are paid to an Israeli company, no tardgiired to be withheld (although, if the funde ar
subsequently distributed to individuals or to a-henaeli company, the withholding tax would appdysuch
subsequent distribution).

We have had Benefited Enterprise programs unddntlestment Law since 2005, which, we believe, have
entitled us to certain tax benefits. Additionally connection with the original grant éBenefited Enterprise”
status, in 2006, MVT was recognized by the Isr@élief Scientist Office as a “Research and Develogme
Company.”

According to the election that we made in May 201donnection with the July 2014 ruling from theAlIT
(the “Preferred Enterprise Ruling”) following thearganization described below, MVT is a “Preferred
Company”under the Investment Law and is able to benefinfeoreduced tax rate of approximately 9% as ¢
beginning of 2014, subject to the fulfilment oktterms and conditions of the law and the PrefeEmeérprise
Ruling. The following are the main terms and coodi of the Preferred Enterprise Ruling:

«  MVTis required to add 50 new manufacturing aeskarch and development employees in each of the
tax years of 2014, 2015 and 2016 and it is furtbguired to continue employing such additional
employees for the tax years until 2018. Failuren&et this term will affect the effective tax ratea
ratio related to the number of non-recruited and-redgained employees.

*  MVT is required to acquire 90% of its expengesif Israeli subcontractors within preferred regions
compared to its total cost of goods sold and rebeand development to maintain the highest benefits
If the ratio is less than 90%, the tax rate willdffected in a ratio related to the portion of exges
paid to such subcontractors, all as describedanmuting.

*  An MVT dividend shall be deemed first to be paid of the undistributed income that was exempt
from Israeli corporate tax generated by the BeaéfiEnterprise, which shall be subject to additional
tax at the MVT level and to the dividend distrilmutiprovisions of income derived by a Benefited
Enterprise.

» ITA approval is required for MVT to transfer itgtellectual property to a third party.

»  The Preferred Enterprise Ruling will become vioidhe event that MVT changes its field of actist
or business model, or significantly reduces theind of its development activity, all unless otheewi
determined by the ITA.

From time to time, the Israeli Government has dised reducing the benefits available to companidsru
the Investment Law. The termination or substamédlction of any of the benefits available under th
Investment Law could materially increase our takilities.

Reorganization

Prior to our IPO in August 2014, we reorganizediaternal corporate structure and all of our irgefual
property, formerly owned by our Cypriot subsidiamgs transferred to MVT. In connection with such
reorganization, we received a tax ruling from tha in July 2014 (“Reorganization Ruling”) providiriat,
among other matters, the reorganization will nigiger any tax in Israel and will not violate anytbé Israeli tax
covenants to which MVT and its shareholder are bqumrsuant to a previous tax ruling. Furthermocepeding
to the Reorganization Ruling, the transfer of titellectual property to MVT does not trigger takeets in Israe
in accordance with section 104B(f) of the IsraglkOrdinance (New version), 1961 (the “Ordinancibject
to compliance with the terms of such section aedréiyulations promulgated thereunder (includingager
limitations on the transferability of the shareWf T and the Cypriot subsidiary). Under the Reoiigation
Ruling, transfer of the intellectual property toyahird party will be subject to ITA approval. Wksa received
opinions from Cyprus counsel and Dutch counseltthateorganization should not result in tax lidiei under
the laws of Cyprus or The Netherlands althoughetlvain be no assurance that the relevant tax atigisamight
determine that such taxes are not owed. In addigidar to our IPO, we took the necessary stepduding
shareholder approval, to transfer all tangible @ssed all liabilities of our Cypriot subsidiary XVT, as well as
to transfer the effective management of Mobiley®.Nind the management and control of our Cypriot
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subsidiary to Israel in order for them to becontads tax residents. The Reorganization Ruling aimrst
additional conditions, including relating to cadatbn of losses and cost basis, limitations onafdesses,
credits, deductions and exemptions. See “— Taxda@me — Tax Regime Under the 2011 Amendment
(“Preferred Enterprise”).”

Segment Information

We manage the Company and its subsidiaries onasie bf two reportable segments. The OEM segment
supplies the proprietary software algorithms and@&$ chip that are the core technology of the compldbAS
to the Tier 1 companies that are the system integrfor the automotive industry. Except for lindtdirect sales
of testing equipment to OEMSs, our direct custorseghe Tier 1 company with which we have a contractu
relationship and which is responsible for payindarsour products. Because of the complex natur@uof
product and the need to customize and validateribduct and to integrate it into the OEM’s oveRIDAS
system, we also have strong direct relationshipis thie OEMs. In the AM segment, the Company sells a
complete system, which includes our proprietaryvearfe algorithms and Eye® chip as well as the caraed
other necessary components. The complete systams affvariety of ADAS functions to end customers
including commercial fleet owners, fleet managensgstem providers, new vehicle dealers and impariie
generate sales in the AM segment either directthimugh distributors. For a discussion of our majgstomers
see Note 12 to our audited consolidated finant#éments included elsewhere in this Annual RepoEorm
20-F.

Our revenues in the OEM segment increased by 9th4be year ended December 31, 2014 from the year
ended December 31, 2013, and increased by 127.5é year ended December 31, 2013 from the yeadend
December 31, 2012. Our revenues in the AM segnmendased by 21.6% in the year ended December 34, 20
from the year ended December 31, 2013 and incrdasdd.0% in the year ended December 31, 2013 them
year ended December 31, 2012.

The most material operating expenses in the OENheagare research and development expenses, while
the most material operating expenses in the AM segare sales and marketing expenses.

Set forth below is selected information for eaclowf business segments:

Revenues by Segmer

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
OEM $121,79¢ $63,29( $27,81¢
AM $ 21,83¢ 17,95¢ 12,467
Total $143,63 $81,24¢ $40,28¢

Segment Performance’

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)
OEM $56,91¢ $23,91° $(60%)
AM $ 5,25¢ 4,41; _80¢
Total $62,17: $28,32¢ $ 20z

*  Excludes sha-based compensatic
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Segment Revenue as Percentage of Total Reven

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
OEM 84.¢ % 77.€% 68.€ %
AM 15.2% 22.1% 31.1%
Total 100.C% 100.C% 100.(%
Segment Performance as a Percentage of Segment Rewes
Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
OEM 46.7% 37.£% (2.2)%
AM 24.1% 24.6% 6.5 %

For more information regarding our segments, inclgé reconciliation of segment performance to
consolidated operating profit, see Note 11 to aulitad consolidated financial statements includeevehere in
this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Our financial results for the periods presentedoebre not necessarily indicative of the financegults
that we may achieve in future periods.

Comparison of Results of Operations for 2014, 201&hd 2012

Revenue

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our totalnex increased by $62.4 million to $143.7 million,
76.8%, from $81.2 million for the year ended Decenttil, 2013. The principal factors affecting owerue
growth were:

OEM —Revenues from OEM sales grew by approximately $68l%n, or 92.4%, from 2013 to
2014 The increase in 2014 reflected the increasales attributable to (i) the beginning of serial
production, or “launch,” for nine new program labas, mainly with Ford, General Motors, HKMC,
Nissan and Tesla through Tier 1 companies; (ii)tileyear effect of six launches in 2013; and)(
increases in current programs assumed to resuotftifioreased market awareness and additional
models launched with our technology.

AM —Revenues from aftermarket sales increased by $8i&rmmor 21.6%, from 2013 to 2014. The
increase in 2014 was mainly related to regulatocgitives in Israel. Our AM revenues were also
affected by our sales channel mix. Typically, oB8FAfor sales through distributors is less than the
ASP for direct sales. Our overall ASP decreaseg%yfrom 2013 to 2014, mainly due to channel mix
and foreign exchange differences on revenues in Neeli Shekels.

For the year ended December 31, 2013, our totelwe increased by $41.0 million, or 101.7%, to $81.
million, from $40.3 million for the year ended Deaeer 31, 2012. The principal factors affecting mwenue
growth were

OEM — Revenues from OEM sales increased by approxim&&dys million, or 127.5%, from 2012
to 2013. The increase in 2013 reflected the inerégasales from (i) six new launches of production
programs with Ford, General Motors, HKMC Jaguard_&over, Nissan and Scania through Tier 1
companies; and (i) the full year effect of founfehes in 2012 with Chrysler, General Motors, Honda
and Mitsubishi.

AM —Revenues from aftermarket sales increasg8Hh5 million, or 44.0%, from 2012 to 2013. The
increase in 2013 reflected increases in saledatatdle to increasing market awareness and our
continuing investment in sales activities, incluglthe formation of our subsidiaries in Germany and
the People’s Republic of China and the increaskss $@aams in these regions and throughout the
world.
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Major Customer:

In the year ended December 31, 2014, three of murlTcustomers represented 33%, 23% and 11% of our
total revenues. In the year ended December 31,, 2062 of our Tier 1 customers represented 34% 48d
11% of our total revenues. In the year ended Deeefdb, 2012, two of our Tier 1 customers represeB896
and 11% of our total revenues. Our sales to amgylesihier 1 company typically cover more than oneVD&hd
more than one production program from any OEM &edefore we view major customers on the OEM level.
2014, sales through our Tier 1 suppliers to eadbwf OEMs accounted for more than 10% of our total
revenues. Revenues related to the four main OEKbes's were comprised of sales attributable toa85 ¢
models of which four production programs each anteaifor more than 10% of our total revenues. Bakan
analysis of OEM and AM major customers:

e OEM —Set forth below are OEMs that represented at [E2&t of our OEM revenues during the
three years ended December 31, 2014:

»  General Motors represented 30%, 29% and 30%Edfl @evenues during 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively;

» Nissan represented 16% of OEM revenues during 288410% of OEM revenues during 20

«  BMW represented 14%, 15% and 18% of OEM reveiueing 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively; and

* Honda represented 13%, 25% and 17% of OEM resgeduring 2014, 2013 and 2012,
respectively.

We believe that in future years, because of theease in the number of car models that will contain
products as well as in the number of OEMs with Whi@ will be working, our reliance on any spec@fiEM
should decline significantly.

« AM —Set forth below are distributors or customers tbptesented more than 10% of our AM
revenues during the three years ended Decemb@034;

» Distributor 1 represented 17% of our AM revendaegng 2014,
»  Distributor 2 represented 14% of our AM revendasng 2014; and

*  No other direct customer or distributor represembede than 10% of our AM revenues for ¢
specified period.

We believe that in future years, because of theease in our revenues, our reliance on any specific
distributor should decline significantly.

Cost of Sale

Cost of sales increased during the year ended Deredd, 2014 by $15.9 million, or 75.3%, compared t
the year ended December 31, 2013. The increaselated to the increased sales of our products. As a
percentage of revenues, cost of sales decreag8d by 0.2% from 2013. Our Gross Profit for tharyended
December 31, 2014 was $106.6 million, an incre&s& 3%, compared to $60.1 million for the yearehd
December 31, 2013.

+ OEM —Our 2014 OEM Gross Profit was $91.5 million (graosargin of 75.1%), an increase of
93.1%, compared to $47.4 million (gross margin4B%) for 2013. The increase in Gross Profit
resulted from an increase in the volume of prodsotd as well as changes in product mix.

e AM —Our AM Gross Profit for the year ended December2B1L4 increased by 18.6% to $15.1
million (gross margin of 69.2%) compared to $12illiom (gross margin of 71.0%) for 2013. The
increase in Gross Profit resulted from increasdbenvolume of products sold. The 2014 decrease in
gross margin resulted mainly from a different ctelnmix and exchange rate differences.
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Cost of sales increased during the year ended Desredd, 2013 by $8.9 million, or 72.9%, compared to
the year ended December 31, 2012. The increaselatad to the increased sales of our products. As a
percentage of revenues, cost of sales decreasé@%yin 2013 from 2012. Our Gross Profit for tharyended
December 31, increased by 114.2%, compared to ®Gmadi of $28.1 million for the year ended December 31,

2012.

OEM —Our 2013 OEM Gross Profit increased 140.7%, contparé19.7 million (gross margin of
70.8%) for 2012. The increase in Gross Profit tesllrom an increase in the volume of products sold
as well as changes in product mix.

AM —Our 2013 AM Gross Profit increased by 51.5% comgpane$8.4 million (gross margin of
67.5%) for 2012. The increase in Gross Profit tesfrom increases in the volume of products sold
and increased ASP described above.

Research and Development Expenses

Research and development expenses in all periedsrianarily related to our OEM segment.

Research and development expenses, net as a pgeeftrevenues decreased to 25.7% for the yeadend
December 31, 2014 compared to 27.5% for the yedwdeBDecember 31, 2013, primarily due to the in@éas
our revenues.

Gross research and development expenses indrba$14.0 million, or 42.6%, to $46.8 million for
2014. The increase in 2014 was mainly due to irm@&eadcount, share-based compensation,
depreciation of IT hardware needed to accommodatealidation dataset and an increase in quality
assurance activity by our subcontractor in Sri leaakd expenses incurred for the EyeQ4
development.

Non-Recurring Engineering reimbursement, which offeetsgross research and development
expenses, decreased by $0.6 million in the yeageBtcember 31, 2014. In general, Non-Recurring
Engineering reimbursement derives from specificettgsment programs with the OEMs, and varie
the length and cost of the specific developmeng .

As a result, research and development expensesjcreased by $14.6 million, or 65.5%, to $36.9
million for 2014 compared to $22.3 million for 2013

Research and development expenses, net as a pgeeahtrevenues decreased to 27.5% for the yeadend
December 31, 2013 compared to 39.4% for the yedwdbDecember 31, 2012, primarily due to the in@éas
our revenues.

Gross research and development expens&828 million in 2013 increased by 26.9% from $25.
million for 2012. The increase was mainly due tor@ased headcount and depreciation related mainly
to our additional IT hardware needed to accommodatevalidation dataset.

Nonr-Recurring Engineering reimbursement, which offeetisgross research and development
expenses, increased by $0.5 million for the yededrDecember 31, 2013.

As a result, research and development expensesjcreased by $6.4 million, or 40.6%, to $22.3
million for 2013 compared to $15.9 million for 2013

Sales and Marketing Expens

Sales and marketing expenses as a percentagecofiesydecreased to 9.0% for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to 15.2% for the yedwdeBDecember 31, 2013, primarily due to the in@éas
our revenues. Sales and marketing expenses indrbgsg.6 million, or 4.7%, to $12.9 million fordtyear
ended December 31, 2014 compared to $12.3 milbothe year ended December 31, 2013. The increase w
mainly due to increased marketing efforts attrible¢ao the AM segment in order to reach potentistemers
worldwide, including fleets, insurance companies;egrnment agencies and private end customers. Withe
effect of share-based compensation, sales and timylexpenses increased by $1.2 million for the wealed
December 31, 2014.
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Sales and marketing expenses as a percentagecoiiesydecreased to 15.2% for the year ended
December 31, 2013 compared to 16.0% for the yedwdBDecember 31, 2012, primarily due to the in@éas
our revenues. Sales and marketing expenses indrbgsgs.9 million, or 91.7%, to $12.3 million fdret year
ended December 31, 2013 compared to $6.4 milliothfoyear ended December 31, 2012. During 2012 our
German subsidiary began operations and during 20L&hinese subsidiary began operations. The 2013
increase was almost entirely the result of shaseda@ompensation in the amount®#.2 million attributable to
options granted and to a much lesser extent, egktridm increased personnel at our German and €hine
subsidiaries. Without the effect of share-basedpsmation, sales and marketing expenses incre@sed $
million for the year ended December 31, 2013.

General and Administrative Expens

General and administrative expenses as a perceotageenues increased to 49.7% for the year ended
December 31, 2014 compared to 12.6% for the yedwdeBDecember 31, 2013. The increase was mainlyodue
share-based compensation, primarily to our Foundé$% of revenues). General and administratiyepges
increased by $61.2 million, or 595%, to $71.4 roillifor 2014 compared to $10.3 million for 2013. Tiherease
was primarily attributable to an increase in shaased compensation $60.6 compared to 2013, mainly related
to options granted to our Founders. General andrastmative expenses excluding share-based compensa
increased by $0.6 million during 2014, mainly rethto audit and other expenses related to beindpkcp
company and increased headcount, offset by a dex#&2.2 million in litigation expenses.

General and administrative expenses as a perceotageenues decreased to 12.6% for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to 18.4% for the yededDecember 31, 2012. The decrease was mainiyodue
the increase in our revenue. General and admitiigraxpenses increased by $2.9 million, or 38.&2410.3
million for 2013 compared to $7.4 million for 20Ithe increase was primarily attributable to anéase in
share-based compensation$f.8 million, mainly related to option grants tar ¢-ounders, and an increase in
headcount ($0.5 million), offset by a decreas&® million in legal expenses. Our legal feesreased in 2013
compared to 2012 because an intellectual propiiggtion that we initiated against a small U.Sdzastart-up
company ended.

Interest Incom

Interest income increased by $0.2 million, or 288451.3 million for the year ended December 31,4201
compared to $1.1 million for the year ended DecarBie2013. The increase was primarily due to th@7$4
million of net proceeds from our IPO on August @12.

Interest income decreased by $0.4 million, or 30.8%1.1 million for the year ended December 3,2
compared to $1.5 million for the year ended Decar8tie 2012. The decrease in 2013 resulted pringifr@m
lower interest rates.

Financial Income (Expense

Financial income (expenses) were ($4.4) milliontfar year ended December 31, 2014 compared to $1.4
million for the year ended December 31, 2013. TO®42inancial expenses resulted from foreign cuoydasse
of $3.1 million that derives mainly from the devaloatof the New Israeli Shekel against the U.S.afoll
Although we seek to limit our exposure to curreegghange rate risk by maintaining similar levelasdets an
liabilities in New Israeli Shekels and U.S. dollaisthe extent commercially feasible, we canndy feliminate
the effects of currency fluctuations.

Financial income increased by $1 million, or 245,%66$1.4 million for the year ended December 3,2
compared to $0.4 million for the year ended Decartie2012. The 2013 increase resulted mainly faom
increase in foreign currency gains $f.3 million.

Taxes on Incom

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our tax eggemere $12.3 million compared to tax benefith8:
million and tax expenses &0.3 million for the years ended December 31, 28182012, respectively. The
increase is attributable to uncertain tax positiamsrease in taxable income and the fact thadit32
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we still had carry forward tax losses, which resdilin no tax expenses in the Cypriot entity. Mosgpin
December 2013, given the clear visibility on achigwtaxable profits, we released the valuationvedloce on
deferred taxes of our Cypriot subsidiary since rganzent believes that it is more likely than not tha
deferred tax asset will be realized within the $e®able future. Those carry forward tax losses widieed
during 2014. The release resulted in a benefitd million in the year ended December 31, 20d8¢ch was
offset by current taxes @§0.7 million. For the year ended December 31, 20&2had current taxes &0.3
million, mainly from income at MVT.

Earnings (Loss) Per Sha

Immediately prior to our IPO, we completed the 8hRecapitalization pursuant to which all of our
outstanding classes of shares converted into asdstares, none of which has any liquidation pefee, on a
one-to-one basis as set forth in our articles sbagtion.

Our calculation of earnings (loss) per share ha® ladfected by two factors that cannot recur. Tist f
factor that is applicable to both 2014 and 2018 ag until July 31, 2014, shortly prior to our IP@ur issued
share capital was composed of Class A ordinaryesh@vith no liquidation preference), ordinary slsaf®ith
liquidation preference), and Class B, C, D, E, Rd B2 Shares (with liquidation preferences). Paoour IPO,
the only class of outstanding shares without adiagion preference was the Class A ordinary sharestefore,
under U.S. GAAP, earnings per share had to be ctedased on the outstanding Class A ordinary share
While the weighted average number of all of ourslwapital was 207.2 million (basic and diluted) 26014 and
195.7 million (basic) and 204.9 million (diluted)rf2013, the weighted average number of outstan@lags A
ordinary shares was 107.9 million and 37.5 miliior2014 and 2013, respectively, for purposes ofi tio¢ basic
and diluted calculation of loss per share. Therdetor that is applicable only to 2013 is thatidg 2013, as a
result of the investment transaction describedoteM8(g) to our audited consolidated financialestegnts
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on ForriF2Wve redeemed 43,456,175 aggregate shares e€sl8s
C, D, E and Ordinary shares (with liquidation prefee), which were subsequently converted to Glasand
Class F2 shares and sold to new investors. In atiemewith this redemption, we transferred valu¢h®
preferred shareholders, which was calculated adiffezence between (1) the fair value of the cdesition
transferred and (2) the carrying value of the 48,485 shares of classes B, C, D, E and Ordinameshwith
liguidation preferences) surrendered. The diffeeeit the amount 0$230 million, was recorded as a reduction
to net income applicable to Class A Ordinary shaeesl to calculate basic and diluted loss per share

Because of the foregoing factors, the calculatiomaonings (loss) per share resulted in a losopinary
share in 2014 0$0.28 and a loss per Class A ordinary share i3 2056.03, calculated as follows:

Year Ended
December 31, 201

(in thousands,
except per share

data)

Basic and diluted EPS for Ordinary Sha
Numeratot

Net loss $ (30,08:)
Denominatol

Weighted average ordinary shares outstanding 107,942,09
Net loss per shai

Basic and Diluted $ (0.2¢)
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Year Ended
December 31, 201

(in thousands,
except per share

data)

Basic and diluted EPS for Class A Ordinary Sh
Numeratot

Net income $  19,92(

Amount allocated to participating shareholders (16,10%)
Adjustment as a result of benefit to participatitgreholder (229,83:)
Net loss applicable to Class A ordinary shs $ (226,017)
Denominatol

Weighted average Class A ordinary shares outstgndin 37,476,59
Net loss per shai

Basic and Diluted $ (6.02)

Immediately prior to our IPO, we completed the 8hRecapitalization pursuant to which all of our
outstanding classes of shares converted into ardsteares, none of which has any liquidation pefee, on a
one-toone basis as set forth in our articles of assaiafiherefore, following our IPO, neither of theotfactor:
described above is relevant to the calculatioraofi@gs per share. The pro forma earnings (loss3heere for
the year ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, whithrees the conversion of all outstanding sharetu@img
Class A ordinary shares) to ordinary shares witliquodation preferences, results in earnings jlpes share of
($0.15) and $0.10 (basic and diluted) respectivége Note 8 to our audited consolidated finant&ements
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Forr20

Quarterly Results of Operation

The following table sets forth our unaudited coitiiked statement of operations data for each ofitiet
quarters from January 1, 2013 through Decembe2@®14. The unaudited quarterly statement of operatitata
set forth below have been prepared on a basisstenswith our audited consolidated annual findncia
statements and we believe include all normal réogiiadjustments necessary for a fair statemertteofibhancial
information contained in those statements. Ouphiistl results are not necessarily indicative ef thsults that
may be expected in the future. The following quéytinancial data should be read in conjunctiothaaur
audited consolidated financial statements and rintsded elsewhere in this Annual Report on Fof¥2

Three months endec

Dec. 31, Sep.30, Jun.30, Mar.31, Dec.31, Sep.30, Jun.30, Mar. 31,
2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013 2013

(in thousands)

Revenue: $39,65¢ $ 34,677 $33,65: $ 35,64¢ $31,41f $20,43¢ $17,657 $11,73¢
Cost of Revenues 10,64¢ 9,017 8,56°¢ 8,81C 8,23t 5,17¢ 4,50t 3,21
Gross Profil 29,01 25,66( 25,08¢ 26,83¢ 23,18( 15,25¢ 13,15  8,52¢

Operating Costs and Expenses
Research and Development,

net 10,00} 10,14 8,16¢ 8,621 7,581 5,11¢ 500¢ 4,60¢
Sales and Marketin 1,00  6,44¢ 2,620 2,84z 2,62¢ 2487 232 4,89
General and Administrative 11,75. 18,16( 10,67« 30,85! 2,887 2,991 2,107 2,291
Operating Profit (Loss) 6,251 (9,08¢) 3,63( (1547%) 10,08: 4,665 3,71¢ (3,26:)
Net Income (Loss $ 2,39¢ $(13,11:)$  18¢ $(19,55¢)$13,00: $ 5,467 $ 4,02¢ $(2,561)
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The following table sets forth a reconciliationNét Income (Loss) Before Share-Based Compensation t
Net Income (Loss) by operating expenses for eatheofbove quarter

Three months endec

Dec. 31, Sep.30, Jun.30, Mar.31, Dec.31, Sep.30, Jun.30, Mar.31,
2014 2014 2014 2014 2013 2013 2013 2013

(in thousands)

Net Income (Loss $ 2,39¢ $(13,11:)$ 18C $(19,55¢)$13,00: $5,46: $4,02¢ $(2,567)
Share-Based Compensation
Expense 10,93 22,77¢ 10,97: 32,17! 3,74¢ 2,46: 2,42 4,49¢

Income (Loss) Before
Share-Based Compensatidh $13,33. $ 9,661 $11,16: $ 12,61« $16,74¢ $7,92¢ $6,44¢ $ 1,92¢

(1) See als¢‘— Key Performance Indicato— Non-GAAP Financial Measure’

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our primary sources of funds have been issuansbarks to new investors and starting in 2013, ftagh
from operating activities. We also receive castcpeals upon the exercise of outstanding optionA@ust 6,
2014, we closed our IPO in which we issued 8.32b6aminew ordinary shares for net proceeds of ayipnately
$195.9 million. In connection with our IPO, we aiseued approximately 1.5 million ordinary sharasspant tc
the exercise of options at an additional aggregaeecise price of1.5 million, which shares were then sold by
the selling shareholders in the IPO. We generatethhof $197.4 million net proceeds from the IPO.

Our primary uses of funds have been for increasingheadcount across Research and Developmens, Sale
and Marketing and General and Administrative ad agfor capital expenditures related to the ingir@asize o
our validation datasets. Our capital expendituedeted mainly to data storage and other compulatec:
equipment, and were $5.6 million, $2.6 million &d5 million, during 2014, 2013 and 2012, respestyiv

In August 2013, we closed the sale of 4,297,995yn&sued Class F1 shares to an investor at ahages
price of $6.98 and aggregate consideratior80 million. In connection with such sale, shatdbcs of the
Company also sold various classes of the Compatgees to an affiliated entity, which were convéren a
one-to-one basis, into 10,028,655 additional Cidsshares to the same investor that purchasecethly issued
Class F1 shares and 41,547,280 Class F2 shared) whaie sold to other investors.

We believe that our existing cash, including theaming proceeds of our IPO, and cash flows from ou
operating activities will be sufficient to meet anticipated cash needs for at least the next IhmmoOur
future capital requirements will depend on manydes; including our growth rate and the timing &xtent of
operating expenses.

Cash Flows
The following table sets forth certain statementash flows data:

Year Ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
(in thousands)

Cash flows from (used in) operating activit $ 56,12¢ $28,18¢ $(1,66¢5)
Cash flows from (used in) investing activit 7,76t (8,93¢) 61<
Cash flows from financing activitie 206,51! 38,04¢ 272
Exchange rate differences on cash and cash

equivalents (3,087) 28C 10z
Total increase (decrease) in cash and cash

equivalents $267,32: $57,58: $ (677)
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Cash flows from (used in) operating activities eased by $27.9 million to $56.1 million for 201¢rh
$28.2 million for 2013. Cash flows from (used ipeoating activities increased by $29.9 million 8% million
for 2013, from $(1.7) million for 2012. The incresgis cash flows from operating activities was prityahe
effect of cash received as a result of the sigaifigncrease in Net Income Before Share-Based Casagien of
$46.8 million and $33.1 million for the years end@etember 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively, anciedse
(increase) in working capital and long-term asaets liabilities 0f$9.3 million and $(4.8) million for 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Cash flows from (used in) investing activities imased by $16.7 million to $7.8 million for 2014
$(8.9) million for 2013. Cash flows from (used inyesting activities increased by $9.5 million (@) million
in 2013. The increase in 2014 was due primarilgttanges in deposits and marketable securitiegtdffsan
increase in capital expenditures. The decreas®ifs 2ash flows from (used in) investing activitieags due
primarily to changes in deposits and marketablerses.

Cash flows from financing activities increased l$8$.5 million to $206.5 million for 2014, from $88.
million for 2013. The increase in 2014 was dueuol®O in which we issued 8.325 million new ordynahares
for net proceeds 0$195.9 million and the exercise of outstandingas® at an aggregate exercise pric&bfs
million. Cash flows from financing activities fo023 increased by $37.7 million from $0.3 milliom £012. Th
increase in 2013 was due to the issuance and safmmximately 4,300,000 F1 shares, net of issei@osts an
exercise of options.

Liability in Respect of Employee Rights Upon Retiment

Israeli labor laws and agreements require sevenaagments upon dismissal of an employee or upon
termination of employment in other circumstancdse $everance pay liability of our Israeli subsigiavhich
reflects the undiscounted amount of the liabilgyifdat were payable at each balance sheet date|dsllated
based upon length of service and the latest mostibry (one month’s salary for each year workedy.
liability for severance pay required by Israeli lmixcovered by deposits with financial instituticared by accrue
In our balance sheet, we present the accrued seeepay liability as a long-term liability and tAmounts
funded are presented separately as employee tigbtsretirement funded.

Our Israeli subsidiary’s liability for severanceyp#or its Israeli employees, is calculated purduarthe
Israeli Severance Pay Law based on the most reatary of the employees multiplied by the numbeyesrs o
employment as of the balance sheet date.

Liability in respect of employee rights upon retirent increased by $1.1 million, or 12.5%, to $9ilion
as of December 31, 2014, from $8.3 million as of&weber 31, 2013. Liability in respect of employiggts
upon retirement increased $2.2 million, or 35.584&.3 million as of December 31, 2013, from $6illion as
of December 31, 2012. These increases were dhe fodreased number of employees together witheease
in the period of service offset by exchange ratfedinces.

Bank Guarantees

MVT has several bank guarantees aggregating appately $1.6 million (denominated in New Israeli
Shekels) at December 31, 2014, mainly in connectitim a lease agreement and the employment
encouragement plan of the Israeli Ministry of Indydrade & Labor plan it had undertaken.

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

For information regarding the impact of inflationdathe impact of foreign currency fluctuations ba t
company, see “Item 11. Quantitative and QualitaiNeclosures about Market Risk.”
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Contractual Obligations
A summary of our contractual obligations as of Deber 31, 2014 is as follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

Less More
than 1 than
Total Year 1-3Years 3-5Years 5 Years
(in thousands)

Operating lease $ 9,662 $ 2,566 $4,660 $2,42¢

Purchase commitme 9,76( 9,76(

Severance pay 9,35(

Total @ $28,77: $12,32t $4,661  $2,42¢

(1) Severance pay obligations to our Israeli employagsequired under Israeli labor law, are payahlg o
upon termination, retirement or death of the reBpe@employee and there is no obligation for besefi
accrued prior to 2007, if the employee voluntardgigns. These obligations are partially fundedubgh
accounts maintained with financial institutions aadognized as an asset on our balance sheetisOf th
amount, $8.0 million is unfunded. We are unablméke a reasonably reliable estimate of the timing o
payments in individual years beyond 12 months. Aesalt, this amount is not allocated in the abade.

(2) In addition, our other liabilities include $4.8 fiwh related to uncertain tax positions. Due toantainties
in the timing of the completion of tax audits, tiraing of the resolution of these positions is utai@, and
we are unable to make a reasonably reliable estinfahe timing of payments in individual years beg
12 months. As a result, this amount is not incluidetthe above table.

We have license agreements with third partiesahaiv us to utilize and leverage the third parties’
technology in order to integrate it into our protug¢integrated Product”). For these rights, we @bbgated to
pay royalties for each unit of the applicable Im&tgd Product sold to other parties. As part ofrenrganization
described under “—actors Affecting Our Operating ResuftsReorganization,” we are transferring all these
agreements from our Cypriot subsidiary to MVT.

In addition, in connection with its contractor aagknt agreements, we pay commissions ranging betwee
1% and 3% of the direct sales earned as a restliesé agreements.

Critical Accounting Policies

Our significant accounting policies are describethie notes to our audited consolidated financial
statements appearing elsewhere in this Annual Repdform 20-F. We believe that of our significant
accounting policies, the accounting policies ligtetbw involve a greater degree of judgment andperity.
Accordingly, we believe these are the most crittoalinderstand and evaluate fully our financialditan and
results of operations.

Use of Estimate:

The preparation of audited consolidated finandetesnents in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires
management to make estimates and assumptiondfiwtthe reported amounts of assets and liakslitend
disclose contingent liabilities at the date of finencial statements, and the reported amountsw&frues and
expenses during the years reported. Actual resaltkl differ from those estimates. On an on-goiagif
management evaluates its estimates, judgmentssandhations. The most significant estimates andnagsons
relate to write-down of inventory, allowance forutidful accounts and employee compensation in cdiomec
with equity awards, realizability of deferred tassats, provision for uncertain tax positions anatiogencies.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miavklue. Cost is computed using standard costiwhi
approximates average cost. We analyze and adjosssxand obsolete inventories primarily by future
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demand forecasts. Although we make every effoentsure the accuracy of our forecasts of futureymbd
demand, any significant unanticipated changes inastel or technological developments would signifityan
impact the value of the inventory and reported afpeg results. If actual market conditions are fassrable
than our assumptions, additional write-downs mayeleired.

Research and Developme

Research and development expenses are expenseaiasd, and consist primarily of personnel, féiei,
equipment and supplies for research and developauttintties.

Participations in research and development expdosessearch and development projects are recedniz
on the basis of the costs incurred and is deddobed research and development expenses in therstatef
operations. We do not receive any additional coragtion or royalties upon completion of the projdtte
participation reimbursement received is not depehde having future benefit from the project. Aitéllectual
property generated from these arrangements is @xely owned by us.

Revenue Recognitio

We recognize revenue related to sales of our ptedoet of volume discounts, provided that (i) pasive
evidence of an arrangement exists, (ii) delivery decurred, (iii) the price is fixed or determinabid (iv)
collectability is reasonably assured. We genegaibwide our products to a Tier 1 company for sggralduction
in an OEM’s vehicles pursuant to the Tier 1 compastandard purchase order and our customary tents
conditions. Revenue is recorded upon shipmentadyst to customers and transfer of title and risloss unde
our standard commercial terms (typically Ex-Worlkgtribution point). We evaluate the creditworthisies our
customers to determine that appropriate creditdimie established prior to the acceptance of dgrorhe
Company does not provide rights of return to itstomers.

Revenue of sales of products to resellers andhlistrs occurs upon delivery of products to thelless
and distributors. We do not give distributors adjuatments to cover price adjustments. Our priciegends on
the annual volume and we record estimates atnie af sale.

Share-based Compensatic

We have two equity compensation plans whereby gaquards equal to 38,619,123 ordinary shares m.
granted to employees and non-employee servicegemi Through December 31, 2014, only options tpize
ordinary shares have been issued pursuant to ans.prhere are approximately 11.8 million shareslave for
award remaining under our equity compensation pdansf December 31, 2014.

Equity awards granted to employees, officers, clbasts and directors are accounted for using thatgr
date fair value. The fair value of share-based @mgtion is determined based on the Black-Scheiésmn
pricing model. We recognize compensation expense thxe vesting period using the straight-line metheet of
estimated forfeitures. We estimate forfeitures dasehistorical experience and anticipated futuneditions.
We elect to recognize compensation expense fordsathat have a graded vesting schedule using tiedemate:
multiple-option approach. . Share-based compensatipense is recorded in our consolidated financial
statements in cost of sales, research and devetdprpenses, sale and marketing, and general and
administrative expenses based on the departmeavtiith the related employee reports. Equity awardstgd tc
non-employees are re-measured at each reportimgdrfair value until they have vested.

Under U.S. GAAP, we account for our share-basedoemsation for employees in accordance with the
provisions of the Financial Accounting Standardai8its Accounting Standards Codification Topic 718
“Compensatior— Stock Compensation” (“ASC Topic 718"), which reasrus to measure the cost of options
based on the fair value of the award on the grated. dhe Company also applies ASC 505-50 “EquitgeBia
Payments to Non-Employees” (“ASC 505-50") with resipto options issued to n@mployee service providel
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The determination of the grant date fair value mifans using an option pricing model is affected by

estimates and assumptions regarding a number gblearand subjective variables. These variablesidethe
expected volatility of our share price over theantpd term of the options, share option exercisecancellatio
behaviors, riskree interest rates, and expected dividends. Thrduge 30, 2014, our estimates and assumg
were as follows:

»  Fair Value of Ordinary Share. Because our shares were not publicly tradeitl Angust 2014, the
fair value of ordinary shares for all periods ttghuune 30, 2014 was estimated in good faith by
management and approved by the supervisory baambrinection with preparing our financial

statements for our IPO, management considerechthedlue of ordinary shares based on a number of

objective and subjective factors consistent withrtrethodologies outlined in the American Institoft
Certified Public Accountants Practice Aid, Valuatiof Privately-Held-Company Equity Securities
Issued as Compensation, referred to as the AICRAte Aid, including: (i) the likelihood of
achieving a liquidity event, such as an initial jcibffering, given prevailing market conditionscan
the potential effect of such event on our stockear{ii) third-party valuations of our ordinary ses;
(iii) the prices, rights, preferences and privileg@é our non-ordinary shares relative to our orgina
shares; (iv) the prices of our Class shares sotditside investors in arms’-length transaction} fife
ordinary shares underlying the award involved ullisecurities in a private company; (vi) our résul
of operations and financial position; (vii) the @l risks related to our business; (viii) our iness
strategy; (ix) the market performance of publichded companies in the automotive and
semiconductor industries; and (x) external marketdions affecting the automotive and
semiconductor industries. Following our IPO, thie ¥alue of ordinary shares is the closing price on
the NYSE on the date of grant.

» Expected Terr. The expected term of options granted represbatperiod of time that options
granted are expected to be outstanding, and isndieted based on the contractual life for non-
employee service providers and the simplified mettoo plain vanilla options granted to employee
accordance with ASC 718-10-S99-1 (SAB No. 110pdequate historical experience is not available
to provide a reasonable estimate.

* Volatility . The expected share price volatility was bagethe historical volatility of the ordinary
shares of comparable companies that are publiatiet.

* Riskfree Rate The risk-free interest rate is based on thiefiem U.S. Treasury zerosupon bond
with a term equivalent to the contractual life loé toptions.

» Dividend Yielc. We have not paid any dividends and do not expeagay dividends for the
foreseeable future. Consequently, we used an exgbéldtidend yield of zero.

If any of the assumptions used in the Black-Schaledel change significantly, the estimated faiueabf

share-based compensation for future awards caer difbterially compared with the awards grantediptesly.
As we accumulate additional employee option datx time and incorporate trading data related tooodinary
shares, we may have significantly different estenaif volatilities, expected lives and forfeituages, which
could materially impact the valuation of our shhesed compensation and the related share-basecusation
expense that we will recognize in future periods.

The following table presents the assumptions usestimate the fair value of options granted dutirey

periods presented. The number of options grantedrieemployees was immaterial.

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Expected term (in year 3.82-7.27 1-12.35 6.2€-7.06
Expected volatility 36%-55% 42-53% 52-53%
Risk-free rate 0.7%-2.17% 0.19%-2.74% 0.88%-1.33%
Dividend yield 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

During the years ended December 31, 2014, 2012@h#, we recorded shabased compensation expe

of $76.8 million, $13.1 million and $1.9 million, mectively. As of December 31, 2014, we had appraxéthy
$36.9 million of unrecognized share-based compansakpense, net of estimated
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forfeitures, that is expected to be recognized avweeighted-average period of 2.02 years. Of ti&1$million
of share-based compensation expense recognizetyd2013, approximately $800 thousand related to a
modification of certain outstanding stock optiomarged to employees for the extension of all syatfoas with
a termination date earlier than December 31, 2016.

Taxes on Income

We account for income taxes in accordance with Anting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 740, “Income
taxes.” Deferred taxes are determined utilizingatbgets and liabilities method, which is basecherestimated
future tax effects of the differences between tharfcial accounting and tax bases of assets apititles under
the applicable tax laws. Deferred tax balancecangputed using the tax rates expected to be icteffeen
those differences reverse. A valuation allowanaeapect of deferred tax assets is provided ifetbagpon the
weight of available evidence, it is more likely thaot that some or all of the deferred tax assétsiat be
realized.

We did not provide for deferred taxes attributableividend distribution out of retained tax-exempt
earnings from “Benefitted Enterprise” and “Prefdr@ompany” plans since such earnings are intermbd t
permanently reinvested or can be recovered in-fré@xmanner. Management considers such retaimathga
to be essentially permanent in duration. We mayrimclditional tax liabilities in the event of intempany
dividend distributions by our subsidiaries. SucHidnal tax liabilities in respect of foreign sudlisries has not
been provided for in our financial statementst&sour intention to permanently reinvest the fgne
subsidiaries’ earnings. With respect to domestsidsaries, we record a deferred tax liability uslése reported
amount of the investment can be recovered taxviitt®ut significant cost, and expect to ultimatage that
means of recovery.

Results for tax purposes for MVT, our Israeli sdizgiy are measured and reflected in NIS. We hate no
provided deferred income taxes on the differenesslting from changes in exchange rate and indaxati

We follow a two-step approach to recognizing anésoieng uncertain tax positions. The first stefois
evaluate the tax position for recognition by deteing if the weight of available evidence indicatkat it is
more likely than not that the position will be saieed on audit. The second step is to measuratheenefit as
the largest amount that is more than 50% likelpa&ihg realized upon ultimate resolution. Our pol&yo
include interest and penalties related to unreaaghiax benefits within income tax expense. Suatbilities are
classified as long-term, unless the liability ipegted to be resolved within twelve months fromlibkance
sheet date.

Provision for Warranty

We provide warranties for our products, which vaith respect to each arrangement and in accordance
with the nature of each specific product. We edtintlae costs that may be incurred under our wayraamd
record a liability in the amount of such costshat time the product is shipped. We periodicallyeasghe
adequacy of our recorded warranty liabilities adjist the amounts as necessary.

Provision for warranty as of December 31, 2014 203 was $470 thousand and $307 thousand,
respectively.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

See Item 15. Controls and Procedures elsewhehisid\inual Report on Form 20-F.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangement

We do not have any off-balance sheet arrangemiesit®ither have, or are reasonably likely to have,
current or future effect on our financial conditi@manges in financial condition, revenues or egpsnresults ¢
operations, liquidity, capital expenditures or taliesources that is material to investors.

Recent Accounting Pronouncement

On May 28, 2014, the FASB and IASB issued theivenged standard on revenue recognition. The
objective of the revenue standard (ASC 606) igtwide a single, comprehensive revenue recognition
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model for all contracts with customers to improeenparability within industries, across industrigsd across
capital markets. The revenue standard containsiptas that an entity will apply to determine theaasurement
of revenue and timing of when it is recognized. Thderlying principle is that an entity will recdge revenue
to depict the transfer of goods or services toausts at an amount that the entity expects to tibeehto in
exchange for those goods or services. For publigpamies, the revenue standard is effective fofitkeinterim
period within annual reporting periods beginningabDecember 15, 2016 (as of January 1, 2017 &or th
Company) and early adoption is not permitted. Thenany is currently evaluating the impact the staddvill
have on its financial statements.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Stand@dard (“FASB”) issued amended guidance related to
disclosure of uncertainties about an entity’s abtth continue as a going concern. The new guidaegeires
management to evaluate whether there is substaietiddt about the entity’s ability to continue agoing
concern and, as necessary, to provide relateddtmtlisclosures. The guidance has an effectiveafate
December 31, 2016. The Company believes that thpteh of this new standard will not have a matengact
on its consolidated financial statements.

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 201 B-Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit Mé&let
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossadrax Credit Carryforward Exists (ASU No. 2013-11)
ASU No. 2013-11 amends the guidance within Accayn8tandards Codification (ASC) Topic 740, “Income
Taxes”, to require entities to present an unrecsghtax benefit, or a portion of an unrecognizedbnefit, in
the financial statements as a reduction to a dedeax asset for a net operating loss carryforweasdmilar tax
loss, or a tax credit carryforward. The Companypaeid ASU No. 2013-11 on January 1, 2014. There were
material presentation changes resulting from tlopton of ASU No. 2013-11.

ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEE S

A. Directors and Senior Managemen

Set forth below is information concerning the dioes and executive officers of the Company. Thermss
address for each of our directors and executivieesH is c/o Mobileye N.V., Har Hotzvim, 13 Hart@treet,
P.O. Box 45157, Jerusalem 9777513, Israel. SeB6ard Practice-Board of Directors— Election, Removal
and Suspension of Directors.”

Name AE Position

Professor Amnon Shash{¥® 54 Co-founder, Chief Technology Officer, Chairman and
Executive Director

Ziv Aviram (D®) 56 Co-founder, President, Chief Executive Officer and
Executive Director

Ofer Maharshak 44  Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice President

Gaby Hayon 45  Senior Vice President, Research and Development

Elchanan Rushinek 6C Senior Vice President, Engineering

Yonah Lloyd 49  Chief Communications Officer and Senior Vice Presil
Business Development

Itay Gat 49  Vice President of Production Programs

Eli Barkat®®®)(®) 51 Non-executive Director

Eyal Deshe?)®A() 62 Non-executive Director

Peter Seth Neustadtg®®(?) 66 Non-executive Director and Presiding Director

Tomaso A. Poggi&®)®) 67 Non-executive Director

Judith Richtef2@®)E) 67 Non-executive Director

(1) Executive directo
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(2) Independent director under NYSE rules

(3) Member of our Audit Committee

(4) Member of our Compensation Committee

(5) Member of our Nominating and Corporate Governanamittee
(6) Term of office expires in 2015

(7) Term of office expires in 2016

(8) Term of office expires in 2017

Effective as of July 10, 2014, our two-tier boatdisture changed to a single tier, our supervismgrd
was disbanded and certain members of our supeyvimmrd became members of our board of directdkgav
Rinat, our former sole managing director undertithe tier structure, resigned effective June 18,204
addition, in preparation for our becoming a publbienpany, three members of our former supervisoardo
elected not to become a member of our tieboard of directors. At our shareholders megimJuly 2014, Mr
Barkat, Professor Poggio and Dr. Richter were etett our board of directors effective immediatgdipr to oul
IPO.

Backgrounds of Executive Officers and Director:

Professor Amnon Shashigour co-Founder, Chief Technology Officer, Chamand a director, and
former Chairman of our supervisory board. Profe&tmshua holds the Sachs Chair in computer scartbe
Hebrew University of Jerusalem. His field of exjmatis computer vision and machine learning. Heived the
MARR Prize Honorable Mention in 2001, the Kaye Imation Award in 2004, and the Landau Award in Exact
Sciences in 2005. He is the co-founder in 2010efChechnology Officer and Chairman of OrCam, aaetir
company that recently launched an assistive prdduthe visually impaired based on advanced coenmed
visual interpretation capabilities.

Ziv Aviramis our co-Founder, President, Chief Executive @ffiand a director. Mr. Aviram is also co-
founder in 2010, President and Chief Executived@ffiof OrCam. Prior to founding Mobileye, he was thief
executive officer of three private Israeli companiall leaders in their fields (Keter Retail Chain, Gali—Retalil
Chain, Attrakzia). In all three cases, Mr. Aviragd ithe companies from loss to profit by restruoyithe
organization appropriately. He earned a B.A. iruktdal Engineering and Management from Ben-Gurion
University in 1984.

Ofer Maharshalis our Chief Financial Officer and Senior Vice Rdest. Prior to joining Mobileye in
2007, Mr. Maharshak served as Corporate Financealy&an(FP&A) at Lipman Electronics Engineering,
Director of Finance at Atrica Inc., Corporate Coliér for Printlife and was a manager at Ernst &u¥ig Israel.
Mr. Maharshak holds a Bachelor’'s degree in Busifress the College of Management in Israel with acglty
in accounting, and is a licensed CPA in Israel.

Gaby Hayoris our Senior Vice President of Research and Dewedmt. Dr. Hayon joined Mobileye in
August 1999 after working at Applied Materials retwafer inspection division, where he developgdrthms
for vision and image processing applications. Dayéh received his Ph.D. from the Center of Neural
Computation of the Hebrew University, where hissrsh concerned theoretical exploration of temporal
correlation based approaches for neural networgshatds a M.Sc. in Physics from the Weitzman lastiof
Science, where he performed theoretical work ild fieeory, and a B.Sc. in Physics from the Technidsrael
Institute of Technology.

Elchanan Rushineis our Senior Vice President of Engineering. MrsRinek joined Mobileye in
November 2000. Mr. Rushinek has 20 years of expegién the very large scale integrated (VSLI) dicarea
Mr. Rushinek started as VLSI designer at Inteldkramvolved in the design of the first 10Mbit Ethet
controller product. In 1983, Mr. Rushinek joined tdimla Semiconductor Israel, and led the VLSI desif
Motorola’s first Digital Signal Processor produict.1987 he managed Motorola’s Semiconductor Isvas|
DSP design group, which designed products bas&b@d0 DSP cores as well as the new DSP56300 D®P cor
and products. Mr. Rushinek also managed MotoroleM&s Handset Baseband’s System On Chip VLSI desig

group.
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Yonah Lloychas served as our Chief Communications Officer&emior Vice President, Business
Development since June 2014. From 2010 to 2014|.Myd served as Chief Corporate Development and
Communications Officer for SodaStream Intl. Ltd gdaq:SODA). From 2008 to 2010, Mr. Lloyd was a
consultant for Cupron, Inc., and later servedsag&xtecutive Vice President of Sales and Businesglbpment.
From 1996 to 2007, Mr. Lloyd served as Senior \igesident of Sales and Marketing at Net2Phone Aramn
1990 to 1996, Mr. Lloyd was an Assistant Distri¢ctokney in Bronx County, New York. Mr. Lloyd hol@sJ.D.
from Fordham University School of Law and a B.Aarfr Queens College (New York City).

Itay Gatis our Vice President of Production Programs. Cat @gaduated from the Israeli military Talpiyot
program and later served in the Israeli Defensed-@DF) research and development corps. Priavitorjg
Mobileye in October 2003, Dr. Gat worked at Comeetac. (NASDAQ:CMVT), as a researcher in the fiefd
speech processing and at Compugen, Inc. (NASDAQN)GEhere he led several basic research groups,
primarily in the computational medicine area. Dat@ceived his Ph.D. from the Institute of Comp&eience
of the Hebrew University, focusing on the analydisortical activity, and utilized tools from thewmhain of
machine learning.

Eli Barkatwas elected to our board of directors as a nontgxecdirector effective in July 2014,
immediately prior to our IPO. In 1998, Mr. Barkat-founded BRM Group (formerly BRM Technologies),
which is currently a private investment fund thatdsts in high-tech and financial markets. Mr. Baurrently
serves as Chairman of BRM Group, Chairman of MEITBS Investments, Ltd. and as a director of GigaSsg
Technologies and Playscape. Mr. Barkat holds a.BnS€omputer Science and Mathematics from the el@br
University of Jerusalem, Israel.

Eyal Deshelis a non-executive director and was a member ofopervisory board from November 2012
until the supervisory board was disbanded on J0J\2014, when he became a member of our currenti®ne
board of directors. Mr. Desheh served as Deputgiinancial Officer of Teva Pharmaceutical Indigstr
(NYSE:TEVA) (“Teva”), an international pharmaceaicompany that produces generic and specialty
medicines, from 1989 to 1996, as Teva’s Chief RirerOfficer from 2008 to 2012, as Teva’'s Group Exéve
Vice President from 2012 to 2013, and as Tew&ting President and CEO from October 2013 touzep 2014
In February 2014, Mr. Desheh resumed his role aa'$eChief Financial Officer. Mr. Desheh also sehas
Chief Financial Officer of Scitex Ltd., a printirrgiuipment manufacturer, from 1996 to 2000 and &z live
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Ché&akint Software Technologies Ltd., an internatiqmalvider
of information technology security products, betw@800 and 2008. Mr. Desheh received a B.A. in Bodos
in 1978 and an M.B.A. in Finance in 1981, both fribra Hebrew University.

Peter Seth Neustadter a non-executive director and our Presiding Dileand was a member of our
supervisory board from 2009 until the supervisasgrd was disbanded on July 10, 2014, when he beaame
member of our current one-tier board of directdbts. Neustadter is President and Managing DirectdAd
Automotive Inc. and IAT Holdings LLC, respectivelyhich invest in innovative technologies in thecambtive
industry (including Mobileye). From 1982 to 19961.Mleustadter was President of Durawool Inc., dritée
world’s largest manufacturers and suppliers otifsit materials to the automotive industry. Sinc84,9Vir.
Neustadter has been President and Chairman of ZBalzheng Metal Fiber Co. Ltd Zhuhai China, a mi
producer of metallic friction materials. Mr. Neudtar received his B.A. in Economics from Brooklyol@ge.

Tomaso A. Poggiwas elected to our board of directors as a nontgixecdirector effective in July 2014,
immediately prior to our IPO. Since 2013, Profed3oggio has been Director of the Center for Brdifiads,
and Machines at the Massachusetts Institute of i@oby (MIT). Since 2002, Professor Poggio has tseen
professor at MIT in the Department of Brain & Cdgré Sciences, Computer Science & Artificial Inigdince
Laboratory and the McGovern Institute for Brain agh. A former Corporate Fellow of Thinking Maadksn
Corporation, Professor Poggio was a director of R¥pital Partners, Inc. and was involved in stgrtor
investing in, several other high-tech companiedutting Arris Pharmaceutical Corp., DigitalPersoina, and
DeepMind. Professor Poggio holds a Ph.D in ThexakBhysics from the University of Genoa.

Judith Richtemwvas elected to our board of directors as a nonwgixecdirector effective in July 2014,
immediately prior to our IPO. In 1993, Dr. Richfeunded Medinol Ltd., a global medical device compa
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based in Israel, and since then has served as Mddiuh’s Chief Executive Officer. In 1992, Dr. Riter
founded Medcon Ltd., a global provider of web-basadliac imaging and information management, ancese
as its Chief Executive Officer through 1993, anehtlas a member of its board of directors. From 162000,
Dr. Richter served on the board of directors of&pkztd., Israel's leading telecommunications conyp&uring
this period, Dr. Richter also served on the boddirectors of Emital, an international subsidiafyBezeq Ltd.
in Hungary. Dr. Richter has been a member of thecktive Committee of the Hebrew University in Jatem
since 2006. Dr. Richter was also a faculty memb@&e&Aviv University’s Graduate School of Business
Administration from 1984 to 1993. Dr. Richter holl®h.D in Organizational Psychology from Boston
University and an M.A. from the Hebrew UniversityJerusalem.

B. Compensation

Compensation of Nor-Executive Directors

Our general meeting of shareholders, acting putgdoasproposal by our board of directors, deteasithe
compensation of our non-executive directors. Iy 20014, our general meeting of shareholders adapted
resolution approving annual compensation to oureactutive directors 0$50,000 in cash and a grant of
options for 50,000 shares at the IPO price. Thesiers were granted on September 7, 2014, witheayfear
vesting schedule. For the year ended December034, 2ve recognized total compensation (includirgreh
based compensation) $f21,190 to Mr. Desheh and $237,928 to each obtfier non-executive directors. In
2014, we recorded share-based compensation expef8e0 and $2.9 million related to Norio Ichihashda
Hagai Greenspoon, respectively, two former membkosir supervisory board, for their services to limje.

Compensation of Executive Directors and Officer:

The compensation of our executive directors isrd@teed by our board of directors as a whole, withie
general framework of those principles containeduncompensation policy for directors, as adoptethftime
to time by our general meeting of shareholdersrRo our IPO, our general meeting of shareholdpmoved a
compensation policy for our executive directorsjtaming the following general principles:

*  The objective in establishing the compensatiolicp for our executive directors is to provide a
compensation package that is aligned with ouresgiatgoals and that enables us to attract, motivate
and retain highly qualified professionals.

»  Executive directors’ performance targets willdetermined and assessed annually by our
Compensation Committee.

*  The compensation package for our executive dirsavill be benchmarked on a regular basis against
other Israeli high-growth companies in the softwa@hnology industry.

* In addition to base salary and bonuses, ourwixecdirectors may be entitled to other benefis a
described generally under “— Additional Benefitsidd'— Beneficial Ownership of Executive
Officers and Directors — Equity Incentive Plans”.

The compensation policy for our executive directoes be amended in the future by our general mgetin
of shareholders, acting pursuant to a proposalipyoard of directors. The compensation policydor
executive directors will also apply in general tertm the compensation of our other executive affice

Our executive directors will not participate in dmyard discussion relating to the determination of
executive director compensation or to proposed aments to our compensation policy for executivedatirs.

For the year ended December 31, 2014, our execofivers, including our Founders, received aggtega
cash compensation &1.5 million. In addition, in 2014, we granted ghaptions exercisable for an aggregat
11,700,000 and 150,000 ordinary shares to our ¢ixeocofficers, including our Founders, at an exaqirice of
$6.98 and $25.00 per share, respectively, whicloaptvest one third immediately and
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the remainder over two years, and have seven ggast See also “— Employment Agreements” and “—
Beneficial Ownership of Executive Officers and Rieas — Option Plan.As of December 31, 2014, no amc
was reserved for pension, retirement, recreatigmeats and vacation or similar benefits for ouediors and
executive officers.

The following table presents all compensation wid paour executive directors for the year ended
December 31, 2014. The table does not include emguats we paid to reimburse any of such personsdsts
incurred in providing us with services during theriod.

Pension,
retirement,
Salaries, fees options and
commissions other
and similar benefits
bonuses @

Professor Amnon Shashua $136,17 $30,725,79
Ziv Aviram $196,62¢ $29,474,30

(1) Substantially all of these amounts reflect expensesrded with respect to 16 million options grartie oul
Founders at a weighted average fair valu§4B2 per share on the grant date computed ir@aasce with
ASC 718. These amounts do not reflect the actual@uic value realized by the executive direc

Employment Agreements

Professor Shashua and Mr. Aviram have employmeeeagents with MVT with a term of five years
beginning August 1, 2014. Nevertheless, these eggpts are terminable by either party by two mongiisr
notice, including during the five year term, excaeptler the circumstances described below. Pursadmis
agreement, Professor Shashua is permitted to sgetal50 hours per month on teaching and gradtadest
supervision at the Hebrew University and on busreegivities unrelated to us, such as OrCam, sp ésmsuch
activities do not involve companies in businessdstantially similar to our business. Pursuantiscalgreement,
Mr. Aviram will be permitted to spend up to 20 hewer month on business activities unrelated tsush as
OrCam, so long as such activities do not involveganies in businesses substantially similar tobmsiness.
The agreements provide for termination for “causehich is defined as: (i) material failure to caoyt or
comply with any lawful and reasonable directiveoof board of directors consistent with the termthef
agreement, or willful failure to substantially panh the employee’s duties and responsibilities uitlige
agreement that, in either case, is not promptlyediad within 30 days after we give written notipesfying
such failure or breach; and (ii) conviction foredony, which conviction is not subject to any fenthight of
appeal. If either Professor Shashua’s or Mr. Avissemployment is terminated (either by the Companly
him in circumstances of a Deemed Dismissal (addfin the agreement)) as a result of Change ofr@ohe
will be entitled to receive his monthly compensatior the greater ofi) a period of 12 months following such
date of termination; or (ii) the remaining periodrh the date of termination until the expiratiortiod initial
term of the agreement. For purposes of the agrespi€@hange of Controlfneans the sale of all or substanti
all the assets of MVT or Mobileye N.V.; any mergasnsolidation or acquisition of MVT or MobileyeW.
with, by or into another corporation, entity or @&m; or any change in the ownership of more th&a 60the
voting capital stock of MVT or Mobileye N.V. in orar more related transactions, in each case exugjuatiy
such transaction entered into primarily for thegmse of an internal reorganization and which daggesult in
any material change in the ultimate beneficial owhip of MVT or Mobileye N.V. In addition, if the
employment of either Professor Shashua or Mr. Awirgterminated for any reason other than caukhisal
unvested options shall vest and be immediatelycésadsle. Each of Professor Shashua and Mr. Avirasnatiso
agreed to customary non-competition and non-satioit provisions during the term of the agreemants for
18 months after termination of their employmentday reason. The agreements are governed by I&aeli

Mr. Ofer Maharshak has an employment agreementMAti with a term of three years beginning
August 1, 2014. Nevertheless, this agreementiisitable by either party by two monthior notice, including
during the three year term, except under the cistantes described below. Pursuant to his agreeient,
Maharshak is required to devote his full businegse &and attention to us; provided that Mr. Mahakska
permitted to spend up to 10 hours per month omlessiactivities unrelated to us so
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long as such activities do not involve companietisinesses substantially similar to our businEiss.
agreement provides for termination for “cause,”ahhis defined as: (i) material failure to carry outcomply
with any lawful and reasonable directive of ourtoaf directors consistent with the terms of theeagnent, or
willful failure to substantially perform Mr. Mahdrak’s duties and responsibilities under the agreg¢tiat, in
either case, is not promptly remedied within 30dafter we give written notice specifying suchufesl or
breach; and (ii) conviction for a felony, which etiction is not subject to any further right of appdf Mr.
Maharshak’s employment is terminated (either byGbenpany or by him in circumstances of a Deemed
Dismissal (as defined)) as a result of Change oft@b(as defined above), he will be entitled togige his
monthly compensation for the greater(gfa period of six months following such datetefmination; or (ii) the
remaining period from the date of termination utité expiration of the initial term of the agreemén addition
if Mr. Maharshak’s employment is terminated for aagison other than cause, all his unvested opsioalé vest
and be immediately exercisable. Mr. Maharshak kasagreed to customary non-competition and non-
solicitation provisions during the term of the agrent and for 12 months after termination. The agent is
governed by Israeli law.

Additional Benefits

As is customary in Israel, we lease automobileoforexecutive officers. In addition, our executdfécers
participate in customary benefit plans availablalt@f our Israeli-based employees.

C. Board Practices

See “—Directors and Senior Management” for the datescpiration of the current term of office for each
of our directors, as well as the period during whéach of our directors has served in that offgee “—
Compensatior—Employment Agreements” for a summary of our emplegiragreements of our executive
directors.

Dutch Corporate Governance Code

Dutch listed companies are encouraged to comply thig provisions of the Dutch Code. However,
companies may elect not to comply with some oofalhe provisions of the Dutch Code provided thattsnon-
compliance, and the reasons for the non-compliareedisclosed in the company’s annual report dexdlas
part of its Dutch statutory accounts. Most of thevisions of the Dutch Code are identical to, dystantially the
same as, provisions applicable to publicly trade8. dompanies and we intend to comply with thoseipions
of the Dutch Code. Other provisions of the Dutcld&€dowever, are contrary to customary market peat
the United States or are otherwise in our judgnvegpropriate. The most material provisions of Bhech Codi
with which we do not comply are the following:

»  The Dutch Code provides that a company’s gemeeadting of shareholders can remove and suspend
directors by a simple majority vote. Our articlésssociation, however, provide that directors can
only be removed or suspended when two-thirds osttzgeholder votes are cast in favor of the
resolution for removal or suspension, provided thatvotes cast in favor of the resolution represen
more than 50% of our issued and outstanding sh@feselieve that this deviation from the provisi
of the Dutch Code is justified by the need to easumtinuity of management and to prevent coercive
takeover bids for less than a substantial majafityur outstanding shares.

»  The Dutch Code provides that non-executive tiimscmay not be elected for more than three j@mar
terms. We do not believe in term limits for dirastbecause they would deprive our board of dirsctor
of the service of directors who have developedyuph valuable experience over time, increasing
insight into us and our operations. We thereforaatontend to comply with this provision of the
Dutch Code.

e The Dutch Code provides that neither a compaaytit committee nor its compensation committee
may be chaired by the presiding director or chairnoa by a former executive director, of the
company. We believe that it may be appropriate undeain circumstances for our Presiding Director
(as defined below), if he has special financiabihrer expertise, to serve as chairperson of these
committees. We have therefore chosen not to comiphythis provision of the Dutch Code.
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The Dutch Code provides that non-executive tiirscmay not be awarded share options or other
forms of equity-based compensation. However, wa fildssue share options and/or other forms of
equity-based compensation to one or more non-eixecatirectors, as we believe that granting equity
to non-executive directors may enable us to attadtretain, in a competitive international
environment, skillful and experienced non-executlirectors. We also believe that the interests of
non-executive directors who receive equity-basedpamsation will be more closely aligned with the
interests of shareholders than would be the casanifexecutive directors had no right to receive
equity-based compensation.

The Dutch Code provides that options grantedinectors may not be exercised during the firstehr
years following the date of grant, and that restdcshares held by directors may not vest withén th
first five years following the date of grant. Hoveeywe believe that exercisability of options dgrin
the first three years following the date of gramtg vesting of restricted shares within the fing f
years following the date of grant, are appropriatéew of the objectives of our equity incentiviam,
in particular our goal of aligning the interestsdafectors and shareholders, and our need to aittrac
skillful and experienced directors in a competitimernational environment.

The Dutch Code provides that restricted shanedsoptions may only be granted to executive dimscto

if such executive directors have met challenginglgthat we have established for them in advance of
the grant. We believe that grants to our execudixectors of restricted shares or options that vest
time sufficiently align the interests of our exdeatdirectors with our shareholders and will bepifigll

if we seek to attract additional skillful and expeiced executive directors in a competitive
international environment. We have therefore chas#rio comply with this provision of the Dutch
Code.

The Dutch Code provides that severance payntemts executive director in the event of his or her
dismissal may not generally exceed one year’'s\safde may, in order to attract skillful and
experienced executive directors in a competitiverimational recruiting environment, enter into
agreements with executive directors providing faregance pay in excess of that prescribed by the
Dutch Code. Severance payments under the employagee¢ments of Professor Amnon Shashua and
Mr. Ziv Aviram may under some circumstances exaagglyear's salary. See “Employment
Agreements.”

The Dutch Code provides that an executive direttay not serve as a non-executive director ofemor
than two listed companies. We expect generallytomly with this provision. However, we reserve
the right to allow our executive directors to seoveadditional boards as non-executive members
where appropriate under the circumstances and vammeved in advance by our Nominating and
Corporate Governance Committee. An exception ®phdvision of the Dutch Code could, for
example, be appropriate where we might realize fiterfeom business opportunities that could arise
from our executive directors’ service as a non-atee director of another listed company.

Our board of directors has not appointed a \Gbairman. Vice-Chairmen are a feature of a large
board where members have a varied background anthaaication may be difficult. Our board of
directors is not large and consists of members sitBnsive knowledge of our business. We have
therefore elected not to comply with this provisadrthe Dutch Code.

We have chosen not to include all aspects otouorpliance with the Dutch Code as a non-voting
discussion item at our annual shareholder meetagsuggested by the Dutch Code. We believe that
our annual Dutch statutory accounts will contaiequdate and sufficient disclosure to shareholders
concerning compliance with the Dutch Code. Thetbésefore in our view no need for further non-
binding discussion of this item at shareholder iegst

Board of Directors

Our board of directors consists of seven directess than a majority of whom are citizens or restd of

the United States.
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Responsibilities of Executive and N-Executive Directors
We have a one-tier board structure, consistingce€etive directors and non-executive directors.

Our executive directors are responsible for ourtlagay management, in accordance with the policies
adopted from time to time by our board of direc@ssa whole. The executive directors must compth any
specific instructions given to them by the boaréd aghole. Our board of directors as a whole deteesour
policies with respect to the following matters:

» ourlong- and short-term operational and finahgbals and the strategy to be followed in reaghin
those goals;

e matters of corporate responsibility;

» selecting, regularly evaluating the performaafend approving the compensation of, our senior
executives;

» general oversight with respect to the condudwfbusiness, with a view to evaluating whether th
business is properly managed;

» general oversight with respect to the processifaintaining the integrity of our financial statents
and other public disclosures, and with respecbtomiance with law and ethics;

* monitoring the effectiveness of the governanmaefices under which the board and executive affice
operate and making or proposing changes in thogergance practices;

» compliance with relevant laws and regulations;
» shareholder and investor relations; and

» such other matters as the board may from timirte determine.

In making decisions our board of directors is reggiiby Dutch law to take into account not only the
interests of shareholders, but also of all othesqes having an interest in us, including employeeditors and
persons with whom we have business dealings.

Our non-executive directors supervise the condfioctipbusiness by our executive directors and pl@vi
general advice to our executive directors. Non-gtiee directors are not involved in our day-to-day
management except in relation to those mattersfadly assigned to the non-executive directorshar board
as a whole pursuant to Dutch law, our articlesssbaiation or the rules and regulations of our tha@didirectors

Only our executive directors are authorized to@spnt us by signing contracts or entering intorothe
dealings with third parties. However, all matedahtracts and other material actions to be takethégxecutiv
directors (e.g. material litigation) will be subjé¢o prior approval of the board as a whole.

Our board of directors appoints a Presiding Dine€tmorzitter) from among its members. The Presiding
Director, who must be a non-executive director| mot have a casting (or tie-breaking) vote. Thesiling
Director of our board of directors is Peter Setlustadter.

Resolutions of the board must be adopted by anuatlesmajority of the votes cast. Each directomisitked
to one vote. Executive directors will not partidigpan the decision-making and votes concerning the
determination of the compensation of executiveatines.

Election, Removal and Suspension of Directc

Our board of directors consists of five non-exaaitlirectors and two executive directors, Professor
Shashua and Mr. Aviram. Any change in the numberuofexecutive or non-executive directors, or im tibial
number of members of our board of directors, mesipfproved by a resolution of our board of dirextor
including the affirmative vote of a majority of tlegecutive directors and a majority of the non-etiee
directors.
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Approximately one-third of our board of directordlwe elected annually. Directors will generallg b
elected for a three-year term expiring at the eritti@annual general meeting of shareholders Imetidd third
year following their election. However, the initiekrms of office of Messrs. Shashua and Aviram &silbire at
the end of our annual general meeting of sharem®lugld in 2015 and the initial terms of officeNdéssrs.
Desheh and Neustadter will expire at the end ofaomual general meeting of shareholders held i6 20he
terms of office of Messrs. Tomaso Poggio and ElikBaand Dr. Judith Richter will expire at the esfcour
annual general meeting of shareholders held in 20p@n any increase or decrease in the numberettdrs,
or in the case of an election of a new directdilta vacancy created by a director not completingor her terr
of office, the newly elected board member may leeted for a shorter or longer term of office thlameé years,
S0 as to ensure that the terms of office of appnasely one-third of the entire number of directexpire each
year.

Our directors are elected by our general meetirghafeholders by a simple majority of the votes.cas
Directors are designated as either executive direcr non-executive directors at the time of tedgction.
Dutch law does not permit cumulative voting foreditors. A director is not required to hold any of shares by
way of qualification.

Our general meeting of shareholders may only suspenemove directors when two-thirds of the vates
cast in favor of the resolution for suspensionesnoval, provided that the votes cast in favor efrésolution
represent more than 50% of all issued and outstgrehiares.

Executive directors also may be suspended foriagef up to three months by a majority vote of the
directors present or represented at a board me@kafuding the executive director whose suspenisidreing
proposed).

A suspension cannot last longer than three mobBthsng this threemnonth period, if the general meeting
shareholders does not adopt a resolution remohimguspended director by a supermajority vote ssritheed
above, the suspended director will be reinstated.

Our articles of association do not provide any témits for our directors, and our directors wibtrbe
required to retire upon reaching any specified age.

Director Independenct

As a foreign private issuer, we are not requiredaimply with NYSE rules that would otherwise reguirs
to have independent directors on our board of tirecexcept to the extent that our Audit Commitseeequired
to consist of independent directors. However, wiemaintain compliance with the NYSE requiremerdttha
majority of our board of directors be independeithin the meaning of the NYSE listing standardsr Goard o
directors has determined that, under current NYS&H¢ standards regarding independence, and takiog
account any applicable committee standards, ordfeBsor Shashua and Mr. Aviram are not independent
directors. The Dutch Code also requires that a rityjof our board of directors consists of indepenid
directors. Only Professor Shashua and Mr. Aviraenrent independent directors within the meanindefDutct
Code.

Board Committees

Audit Committee

Our Audit Committee consists of three directorsjpendent under the NYSE requirements and the Dutch
Code. Our Audit Committee consists of Mr. Desheh, Neustadter and Mr. Barkat. Mr. Desheh servabas
chairman of our Audit Committee. Our board of dioes has determined that at least one member diukdé
Committee, Mr. Desheh, is an “audit committee fitiahexpert” as defined by the SEC and a “finaneigiert”
as that term is defined in the Dutch Code and misets the additional criteria for independence wdif\
Committee members set forth in Rule 10A-3(b)(1)amttie Exchange Act.

The principal duties and responsibilities of oudEuWCommittee are to oversee and monitor the fathguw

« our financial reporting process and internaltoarsystem;
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» the integrity of our consolidated financial staents;

» the independence, qualifications and performaneipfndependent registered public accounting
» the performance of our internal audit function;

»  our related party transactions; and

» our compliance with legal, ethical and regulptoratters.

Under the Dutch Code, our Audit Committee also eises general supervision and control over our
policies in regard to tax planning, corporate ficeand information technolog

Approval of Transactions with Related Part

The approval of the Audit Committee is requireddpecified actions and transactions with officedecs
and controlling shareholders and their relativesnavhich they have a personal interest. See “[fefdlajor
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions —dRielRdrty Transactiors Related Party Transaction Policy
and “Item 10. Additional Information — MemorandumdbBArticles of Association — Conflict-of-Interest
Transactions.” In addition, under Dutch law any rbenof the Audit Committee who himself has a canftif
interest with respect to the matter as to whichreypgd is being sought must refrain from participgtin the
decision-making process concerning, or castingvaig with respect to, any resolution relating tattmatter.

Compensation Committe

Our Compensation Committee consists of Mr. Neustadiir. Desheh and Dr. Richter. Mr. Neustadter
serves as the chairman of the Compensation Conanitte

The principal duties and responsibilities of ther@ensation Committee are as follows:

e toreview, evaluate and make recommendatiotisetdull board of directors regarding our
compensation policies and establish performanceebmeentives that support our long-term goals,
objectives and interests;

* toreview and approve the compensation of ouefExecutive Officer, all employees who report
directly to our Chief Executive Officer and otheembers of our senior management;

* toreview and make recommendations to our bofdirectors with respect to our incentive
compensation plans and equity-based compensatos;pl

e toreview, and recommend for approval by ourad directors and general meeting of shareholders
the compensation of, and reimbursement policiesnfon-executive directors;

» to provide oversight concerning selection ofaafs, management succession planning, expense
accounts, indemnification and insurance matters saparation packages; and

»  to provide regular reports to our board of dioes and take such other actions as are necessary a
consistent with our articles of association.

Each designated member of our Compensation Conamgtan “independent director” in accordance with
the NYSE rules and the provisions of the Dutch Cadeaffirmatively determined by our board of dioes.
Nominating and Corporate Governance Commiti

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committesists of Mr. Barkat, Dr. Richter and Professor
Poggio. Mr. Barkat serves as the chairman of theiNating and Corporate Governance Committee. The
principal duties and responsibilities of the Nontiimg and Corporate Governance Committee are asasll
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»  to establish criteria for board and committeamhership and recommend to our board of directors
proposed nominees for election to our board ofctlims and for membership on committees of our
board of directors; and

» to make recommendations to our board of direategarding board governance matters and practices.

Indemnification, Exculpation and Insurance

Our articles of association provide for indemnifica by us of all present and former directorsiogifs,
employees and agents, as well as any person attmg request as a director, officer, employegustee of
another entity, against liabilities, costs and eges incurred by them in connection with the pentoice of the
duties as directors, officers, employees or trisstdehe Company or such other entities, providey acted in
good faith and in a manner that they reasonablgved to be in or not opposed to our best interasds in
respect of indemnification for liabilities arisifiggm a criminal procedure, had no grounds for lvatig that theil
conduct was unlawful. There is no entitlement teimnification to the extent that a court of compete
jurisdiction determines, in a final, n-appealable judgment, that any person seeking indieation has been
guilty of willful misconduct or gross negligencenespect of the matter for which such person ikinge
indemnification, unless the court determines thdemnification is nevertheless proper in the cirstances.
Indemnification is not available under Dutch lavilwiespect to liability arising under certain matota
provisions of Dutch law.

Persons entitled to indemnification may receivenpant in advance of legal and other expenses intinye
them in defending actions in respect of which timay be entitled to indemnification, subject to th@bviding
us with an undertaking to refund any amount in eespf which a court of competent jurisdiction bfireal, non-
appealable judgment determines that the relevaattdir or officer is not entitled to indemnificatio

In addition to these indemnification provisionsour articles of association, we have entered into
agreements to indemnify members of our board @fctlirs and our executive officers against expeasds
liabilities to the fullest extent permitted by lahhese agreements also provide, subject to cestaieptions, for
indemnification for related expenses including, amothers, attorneys’ fees, judgments, penaltiessfand
settlement amounts incurred by any of these indalglin any action or proceeding. In addition tofsu
indemnification, we maintain directors’ and offiseliability insurance.

Our articles of association provide that directmes not personally liable to us for breaches aof theties as
directors, other than for (i) violation of the dutf/loyalty owed to us or our shareholders, (@nsactions from
which the director derives an improper personakligr{iii) willful misconduct or deliberate violan of law or
(iv) liability arising under mandatory provisiong@utch law.

Insofar as indemnification of liabilities arisingder the Securities Act of 1933, as amended (@eetirities
Act”), may be permitted to members of our boardlioéctors, officers or persons controlling us pardito the
foregoing provisions, we have been informed thrathe opinion of the SEC such indemnification iaiagt
public policy as expressed in the Securities Actiartherefore unenforceable.

D. Employees

As of December 31, 2014, we employed an aggredatédfull-time-equivalent employees, including 343
full time-equivalent employees engaged in researchdevelopment, primarily in Israel; 38 full tirequivalent
employees in general management, administratiorfiaadce; 68 full time-equivalent employees in saed
marketing; and 24 full time-equivalent employeesjrerations, manufacturing and quality assurancealdb
have 300 full time-equivalent personnel in quatissurance employed by an exclusive subcontractiiin
Lanka.

Israeli labor laws govern the length of the workdaynimum wages for employees, procedures for girin
and dismissing employees, determination of severpayg, annual leave, sick days, advance notice of
termination of employment, equal opportunity antd-discrimination laws and other conditions of emphent
for most of our employees. Subject to certain etioap, Israeli law generally requires
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severance pay upon the retirement, death or diahuo§an employee, and requires us and our empéolyee
make payments to the National Insurance Institukgch is similar to the U.S. Social Security Adnsitnation.
Our employees have defined benefit pension plaatscmply with the applicable Israeli legal reqoients.

None of our employees currently work under anyemive bargaining agreements. We believe our oels
with our employees are good.

E. Beneficial Ownership of Executive Officers andDirectors

The following table sets forth information regamlithe beneficial ownership of our outstanding
215,197,932 ordinary shares as of March 2, 20Xa0h of our directors and executive officers irdlinally and
as a group.

Number of

Shares
Beneficially Held  Percent of Clas

Executive officers and directors

Prof. Amnon Shashu® 20,186,59 9.1%
Ziv Aviram @ 20,279,70 9.2%
Ofer Maharshal® 197,47 *
Gaby Hayorl® 307,19 1%
Elchanan Rushine®) 439,22( 2%
ltay Gat(®) 240,00 1%
Eli Barkat — —
Eyal Desheh”) 70,00( *
Peter Seth Neustadtet) 68,23¢

Prof. Tomaso A. Poggio — _
Judith Richter — —
All executive officers and directors as a group ple?sons} 9) 41,788,422 18.4%

*  Represents beneficial ownership or holdings oftleaa 0.1% of the outstanding ordinary sha

(1) Includes 6,150,000 ordinary shares subject to nptéxercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2015.
(2) Includes 6,000,000 ordinary shares subject to nptéxercisable within 60 days of March 1, 2015.
(3) Ordinary shares subject to options exercisableinvh days of March 1, 2015.

(4) Ordinary shares subject to options exercisableinvh days of March 1, 2015.

(5) Ordinary shares subject to options exercisableinvdd days of March 1, 2015.

(6) Ordinary shares subject to options exercisableinvdd days of March 1, 2015.

(7) Ordinary shares subject to options exercisableinvdd days of March 1, 2015.

(8) Mr. Neustadter shares voting and dispositive pomitr respect to 3,144 of these shares.

(9) See notes (1) through (8) above.
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Equity Incentive Plans

All grants of equity-based compensation for exeeuéind non-executive directors must be approvealby
general meeting of shareholders. In July 2014 general meeting of shareholders adopted a resplghiang
our board of directors the power to grant equitgdshcompensation from time to time to our directopsto the
maximum number of shares available for grant uodempresent and future equity incentive plans affict
from time to time. Our 2003 Share Option Plan (@03 Plan”) provides only for the grant of stogitions. In
May 2014, our supervisory board increased the pboptions to be available under the 2003 Plarpttoul 8%
of the issued and outstanding shares of the Compengf December 31, 2014, options to purchase
approximately 26.8 million ordinary shares werestaniding of which options to purchase 15.2 milliwdinary
shares were vested as of that date, and all sustaading options had a weighted average exercise pf
$5.44 per share. In December 2014, our board etttirs approved the 2014 Equity Incentive Plan ‘(@044
Plan”), which provides for grants of stock optiorestricted shares and restricted share units (‘$sahd
became effective in January 2015. The maximum numbghares issuable pursuant to the 2014 Plah.& 1
million, which, together with then outstanding @pis under the 2003 Plan, equaled 18% of the oulisigin
ordinary shares as of December 31, 2014. The Coymbaes not expect to grant additional options utlder
2003 Plan. Under Dutch law, our equity award pmsot require shareholder approval.

2003 Shares Option Plan Our 2003 Plan was approved and adopted byupersisory board in
January 2004. In December 2013, the supervisorydb®eended the original ten year term of the 2B&& by
another ten years so that it will expire in Janu0g4. There is also an Israeli Appendix for optimfders who
are residents of Israel. The 2003 Plan providegh®igrant of options to our and our subsidiarii#€ctors,
employees, officers, advisors and consultantsofmection with the extension of the 2003 Plan in
December 2013, all then outstanding 6,136,175 ogtibat were scheduled to expire before Decemhe2®BHY
had their terms extended until December 31, 2016.

The 2003 Plan is administered by our board of tmscor our Compensation Committee, which deters;
subject to Israeli and Dutch law, the granteesaards and various terms of the grant. The 2003 Plavides
for granting options in compliance with Section ¥2he Ordinance. Options granted under the 2086 @
Israeli employees have been granted under theatgpiins track of Section 102 of the Ordinanceorbfer to
comply with the terms of the capital gains tradkpptions that have been granted under the 2088 plrsuant
and subject to the provisions of Section 102 of@neinance, as well as the shares issued uponisearficthese
options and other shares received subsequentiwioilf any realization of rights with respect to lsptions,
such as a result of a share dividend or share apditgranted to a trustee for the benefit of #evant employee,
director or officer and are held by the trusteedbleast two years after the date of grant.

Options granted under the 2003 Plan are exercisalslech times and under such conditions as are
determined by our board of directors or Compeneadfiommittee. Unless a shorter term is set by oardof
directors or Compensation Committee with respeet $pecific award, options expire 10 years fromgitzent
date. If we terminate a grantee’s employment oriserfor cause, all of the grantee’s vested andsted
options terminate on the date of such terminatioiiess otherwise determined by the Compensationn@tiee.
If a grantee’s employment or service terminatestdudeath or disability, the grantee’s vested oygtimay be
exercised by the grantee, the grantee’s legal garaad the grantee’s estate (as the case maydre)2fmonths
following the death or disability. If a grantee&rgice or other relationship to our company terr@ador any
other reason, the grantee may exercise his ordsted options within one month after the date ohsu
termination (or such different period as our Congagion Committee shall prescribe), unless eadigninated
in accordance with an agreement between the Comgrathyhe grantee. In addition to the shares redermder
the 2003 Plan, any options granted under the 2098tRat are terminated or forfeited for any reasthout
having been exercised, return to the pool unde2@®3 Plan and enlarge the reserved shares urel20@8
Plan.

In the event of our merger or consolidation, oe s#Hlall or substantially all of our shares or éssthen,
without the consent of the option holder, eachtantding option shall be assumed or an equivaletiop
substituted by the successor company or an affibéthe successor company. In the event thatubeessor
company refuses to assume or substitute outstaogitigns, all unvested options will automaticalipie,
unless our board of directors or Compensation Cdteendetermines otherwise with
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respect to certain options. In that case, our bofdirectors or Compensation Committee will notife option
holder that the option will be fully exercisable foperiod of 15 days from the date of such natioe will
terminate upon the expiration of such period.

2014 Equity Incentive Plan Our 2014 Plan was approved by our board oftbre in December, 2014 a
became effective in January 2015. The 2014 Planiatdudes an Israeli Appendix for grantees whorasident
of Israel. The 2014 Plan will remain in effect listispended or terminated by our board of directors

The 2014 Plan will be administered by our boardicdctors or our Compensation Committee, which
determines, subject to Israeli and Dutch law, ttentpes of awards and various terms of the grdm&.2D14 Pla
authorizes grants of options, restricted sharegestdcted share units.

Options granted under the 2014 Plan will be exabtesat such times and under such conditions as are
determined by our board of directors or Compensdfiommittee. Unless a shorter term is set by oardof
directors or Compensation Committee with respeet $pecific award, options will expire seven ydeosm the
grant date. If we terminate a grantee’s employmesservice for cause, all of the grantee’s vestetumvested
options issued under the 2014 Plan terminate oddtesof such termination. If a grantee’s employnoen
service terminates due to death or disability gtemtee’s vested options may be exercised by hihegror by
his or her estate (as the case may be), for 12lmdaliowing the death or disability (but not latean the end ¢
the expiration term as set in the award agreemirt)grantee’s service or other relationship to @mpany
terminates for any other reason, the grantee mescise his or her vested options within 30 daysrafte date «
such termination (or such different period as oomBensation Committee shall prescribe), unlesseearl
terminated in accordance with an agreement bettfee@ompany and the grantee. In addition to theesha
reserved under the 2014 Plan, any options gramtddrithe 2014 Plan that are terminated or forfdibedny
reason without having been exercised, return t@tot under the 2014 Plan and enlarge the resesvaas
under the 2003 Plan.

Under the 2014 Plan the award agreements for t#t gf restricted shares will specify the number of
shares, vesting conditions, if any, and other iciins, if any on the restricted shares. Othetri@®ns could
include those based upon continued employmentraiceeand the achievement of specific performance
objectives. We may elect to have the restrictedeshiaeld through an escrow agent until all restma, if any,
have lapsed. Upon the issuance of restricted shiieaward recipient must pay us in cash an amegumsl to
not less than the aggregate nominal value of thmary shares being issued. Generally, restridtedes may
not be sold, transferred, pledged, assigned onetbe alienated until the end of the applicabletimgsperiod, if
any. Unless otherwise provided by the board ofaflines or the Compensation Committee, the awargiet is
entitled to full voting rights and to receive alvidends and other distributions paid with resgedhe restricted
shares (with such dividends and distributions stilijethe same restrictions on transferability foreiture as
the relevant restricted shares, unless otherwméged in the award agreement).

A restricted share unit is a bookkeeping entryeepnting an amount equal to the Fair Market Vadise (
defined in the 2014 Plan) of one ordinary shar¢herdate of grant. Under the 2014 Plan, the awgirelenents
for the grant of restricted share units will spg¢ife number of shares, vesting conditions, if @mg other
restrictions, if any, on the restricted shares.e®thstrictions could include those based uponicoat
employment or service and the achievement of spguéiformance objectives. Upon meeting the apblea
vesting criteria, the award recipient must paymusm@mount equal to not less than the aggregate mbwatue of
the ordinary shares being issued and the awarplieetiis entitled to receive a payout determinedhgyboard c
directors or the Compensation Committee, whethergh, ordinary shares or a combination of bothiken
restricted shares, holders of restricted share tnaive no voting rights or entitlements to divideadd other
distributions; provided, however, that an Award égment may provide that the holder will receivadénd
equivalents, which would be credited as additioastricted share units subject to the same vestidgother
restrictions.

The Israeli Appendix to the 2014 Plan will provide granting options, restricted shares and reettishar
units in compliance with Section 102 of the Ordicarf awards under the 2014 Plan to Israeli engégyare
granted under the capital gains track of Sectidhdf@he Ordinance, in order to comply with themisrof the
capital gains track, those awards, as well ashihees issued upon exercise of those
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awards and other shares received subsequentiyfoticany realization of rights with respect to saetards,
such as a result of a share dividend or share apditexpected to be granted to a trustee forehefi of the
relevant employee, director or officer and heldhwy trustee for at least two years after the dbaggant.

In the event of a merger of the Company with oo smother company or other entity, or a demergénef
Company, or a Change in Control, each outstandiregéunder the 2014 Plan will be treated as thecbof
directors or the Compensation Committee determsigdgect to certain minimum requirements as s¢ fiorthe
2014 Plan, and the Company will not be requiretidat all awards similarly in the transaction. parposes of
the 2014 Plan, a “Change in Control” means the weage of any of the following events:

(i) A change in our ownership, which occurs ondaée that any one person, or more than one person
acting as a group (“Person”), acquires ownershipunfshares that, together with the shares prelyious
held by such Person, constitutes more than 50%eofatal voting power of our issued and outstan
shares; provided, however, that for purposes sfdlsiuse (i), (1) the acquisition of beneficial
ownership of additional shares by any one Persanigrbonsidered to already beneficially own more
than 50% of the total voting power of our issued antstanding shares will not be considered a
Change in Control; and (2) if our shareholders imdiately before such change in ownership continue
to retain immediately after the change in ownersimgubstantially the same proportions as their
ownership of our shares immediately prior to tharge in ownership, direct or indirect beneficial
ownership of 50% or more of the total voting poweour issued and outstanding shares, such event
shall not be considered a Change in Control uriderctause (i). For this purpose, indirect benafici
ownership shall include, without limitation, ananést resulting from ownership of the voting
securities of one or more companies or other basieatities which own shares in the Company, ¢
directly or through one or more subsidiary compswieother business entities;

(i) A change in our effective control, which occurstbe date that a majority of the members of our &
of directors is replaced during any 12 month pehigdlirectors whose election is not endorsed by a
majority of the members of our board of directatisipto the date of the election; or

(i) A change in the ownership of a substantial portibaur assets, which occurs on the date that any
Person acquires (or has acquired during the 12hvueriod ending on the date of the most recent
acquisition by such person or persons) assets fiothat have a total gross fair market value etqual
50% or more of the total gross fair market valualbbf our assets immediately prior to such
acquisition or acquisitions; provided, however tloa purposes of this subsection (iii), a trangtean
entity that is controlled, directly or indirectlyy our shareholders immediately after the transitr
not constitute a change in the ownership of a sultisl portion of our assets; for purposes of this
subsection (iii), gross fair market value meansvéee of our assets, or the value of the assétg be
disposed of, determined without regard to any liiéds associated with such assets.

ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRAN SACTIONS

A. Major Shareholders

The following table sets forth certain informati@garding the beneficial ownership of our 215,192,9
outstanding ordinary shares as of March 2, 201%®dmh person who we know beneficially owns 5.0%more
of the outstanding ordinary shares. Each of ouredtedders has identical voting rights with resgedts shares.
All of the information with respect to beneficialvpnership of the ordinary shares is based on pyldichilable
information.
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Number of
Shares
Beneficially Held  Percent of Clas

5% shareholders

The Goldman Sachs Group, 1. 29,615,93 13.6%
Dr. Shmuel Harlaf? 19,333,44 9.C%
Fidelity ©) 16,052,55 7E%
Enterprise Holdings, Iné? 14,326,65 6.7%

Other shareholders

@

)

®)

4

B.

The securities being reported on by The Goldmam&e&roup, Inc. (“GS Group”), as a parent holding
company, are owned by Goldman Sachs Asset ManademBn GS Investment Strategies, LLC, Goldi
Sachs MBEYE Investors, L.P., Goldman Sachs Investiartners Holdings (Lux) Offshore S.A.R.L, E
Holdings (DEL) LLC, ELQ Holdings (UK) Ltd, ELQ Holdgs IX Ltd, ELQ Holdings II Ltd., ELQ
Holdings VII Ltd. (collectively, the “GS Investingntities”) or are owned, or may be deemed to be
beneficially owned, by Goldman, Sachs and Co. (8Gwn Sachs”), a broker or dealer registered under
Section 15 of the Act and an investment adviseisteged under Section 203 of the Investment Adsiser
Act of 1940. The general partner, managing gerggher or other manager of each of the GS Invgstin
Entities is an affiliate of GS Group. Goldman Saishsvestment manager of certain of the GS Inngsti
Entities. The mailing address of the GS Group i3 A@st Street, New York, New York 102¢

9,333,400 of these shares are owned by Colmobi] bfdvhich Dr. Harlap is a controlling shareholder.
Harlap has sole voting and dispositive power wétspect to the shares owned by Colmobil Ltd. Dr.
Harlap’s address is c/o Colmobil Ltd., 20 Haamal Bbsh Hayin, Israel.

As of December 31, 2014, as reported on Schedu@e ERlelity Management & Research Company
(“Fidelity™), 82 Devonshire Street, Boston, Massasétts 02109, a wholly owned subsidiary of FMR LLC
and an investment adviser registered under Se2@8rof the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, is the
beneficial owner of the referenced securities essalt of acting as investment adviser to variowgstmer
companies registered under Section 8 of the Invasti@ompany Act of 1940 (the “Fidelity Funds”).
Edward C. Johnson 3d and FMR LLC, through its adrdf Fidelity and the Fidelity Funds, each hagsol
power to dispose of the referenced securities ovayeatie Fidelity Funds. Members of the family of
Edward C. Johnson 3d, chairman of FMR LLC, arepfieglominant owners, directly or through trusts, of
Series B voting common shares of FMR LLC, reprasgmt9% of the voting power of FMR LLC. The
Johnson family group and all other Series B shddehs have entered into a shareholders’ voting
agreement under which all Series B voting commameshwill be voted in accordance with the majority
vote of Series B voting common shares. Accordingfisough their ownership of voting common shares
the execution of the shareholders’ voting agreemmatnbers of the Johnson family may be deemed,runde
the Investment Company Act of 1940, to form a adlhitrg group with respect to FMR LLC. Neither FMR
LLC nor Edward C. Johnson 3d, Chairman of FMR Lbh@&s the sole power to vote or direct the voting of
the shares owned directly by the Fidelity Fundsictvipower resides with the Fidelity Funds’ boaréls o
trustees. Fidelity carries out the voting of tharsls under written guidelines established by tdelFy
Funds’ boards of trustees.

Enterprise Holdings, Inc. is a wholly owned subeigiof The Crawford Group, Inc. The following
individuals may be deemed to share the right te @oid direct the disposition of the shares held by
Enterprise Holdings, Inc.: Andrew C. Taylor, Jo AhrKindle, Christine B. Taylor and Carolyn Kindle.
The address of these persons is 600 Corporatel®amk St. Louis, Missouri 63105.

Related Party Transactions

The following is a description of some of the tei®ns with related parties to which we, or our

subsidiaries, are party. The descriptions provitbetbw are summaries and do not purport to be cotaple
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Registration Rights Agreement

The shareholders affiliated with Goldman Sachs {se#lajor Shareholders” above) are entitled to
incidental (“piggyback”) registration rights, whielne subject to a good faith determination by amart of
directors that such registration would not intexfesith a material financing, acquisition, corporate
reorganization, merger or other material transaabioevent involving us. These shareholders aeeistled to
request that we register their ordinary shares utideSecurities Act, subject to a good faith dateation by
our board of directors that such registration wadtlinterfere with a material financing, acqusitj corporate
reorganization, merger or other material transadtiwolving us. Registration of such shares underSecuritie:
Act would result in such shares becoming freelgiatde without restriction under the Securities Asicept for
shares purchased by affiliates, following the dffemess of such registration. Any sales of seiesriby these
shareholders could have a material adverse effetttetrading price of our ordinary shares.

Company Founders Agreement:

Certain shareholders have agreements in connestibriheir original investments in us prior to diO
(collectively, the “Founders Agreements”) with Rse§or Amnon Shashua and Ziv Aviram, pursuant tehvhi
each of the Founders agreed not to terminate higogrment until the earlier of the third anniversafythe
closing of our IPO, or August 6, 2017, or an Acgigs, and agrees not to compete with us or tacgainy of
our employees, subject to customary exceptionspbgoses of the Founders Agreement, “Acquisitim@ans
(i) the acquisition of Mobileye by one or more Ra&rs (as defined therein) by means of a transaoti@eries of
related transactions (including, without limitati@ny merger or consolidation or recapitalizatiom, excluding
any merger effected exclusively for the purposehainging the domicile of Mobileye) unless Mobileye’
shareholders of record as constituted immediatédy o such transaction or series of transactieifis
immediately after such transaction or series afgaations, hold a number of securities represemtimgjority o
the voting power of the resulting or surviving éntiii) the sale, transfer or lease (but not iohg a transfer or
lease by pledge or mortgage to a bona fide lerafeal] or substantially all of the assets of Mogédewhether in
a single transaction or in a series of relatedsaations, to Persons that are not wholly ownedidisoies of
Mobileye or (iii) the closing of the transfer (whet by merger, consolidation or otherwise, but ediclg any
merger effected exclusively for the purpose of ¢fvag the domicile of Mobileye and any transactiorseries o
related transactions the sole purpose of which se¢ate a holding company that is owned in sulisthnthe
same proportions by the persons who held Mobilegedirities immediately prior to such transactiosaries
of related transactions), in a transaction or sesfaelated transactions, to a person or grougffoifated person:
of Mobileye’s securities if, after such closing, such persogroup of affiliated persons would hold a majoify
the voting power of Mobileye. Until the completiohour IPO, these shareholders also had the right t
participate pro rata in any sale of our ordinargrsl, subject to certain customary exceptions.

Indemnification Agreement

See “Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Eyggle — Board Practices — Indemnification,
Exculpation and Insurance.”

Relationship with OrCam Technologies Ltd.

In 2010, Professor Shashua and Mr. Aviram co-fodrdeCam Technologies Ltd., an Israeli company that
is developing artificial vision technology for thiesually impaired. Professor Shashua is the Chairafahe
Board and Chief Technology Officer, and Mr. Avir@grthe President and Chief Executive Officer, o€@m.
Under their employment agreements with us, ea¢hesh has the right to spend a limited amount oéton
other ventures, including OrCam. Other than PrafieStiashua and Mr. Aviram, Mobileye and OrCam do no
share any employees.

Following an amendment to its sublease effectivedtber 2014, which amendment was approved by our
Audit Committee in accordance with our Related y@ransaction Policy (described below), OrCam satys
850 square meters (approximately 9,000 squareffeet)us at our Jerusalem facility for monthly reft$29 pe
square meter inclusive of management and mainterfaes and payment by OrCam of
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certain other obligations, including insurance andhicipal taxes. The lease expires on August 152@th
automatic one year renewals provided that OrCaisfigst the renewal requirements. We believe théesisie
terms are comparable to those that would have te@med in an arm’s-length negotiation.

August 2013 Sale of Primary and Secondary Shart

On June 28, 2013, we entered into a share puregasement with an investor pursuant to which weed
to sell and issue to the investor 4,297,995 CldsShares at a purchase pricedéf98 per share for total
consideration 0f$30,000,000. On the same day, investors, includiagnvestor in the preceding sentence,
entered into an agreement with us and a newly fdri&ch private company (“Newco”), which owned 580
our ordinary shares, pursuant to which Newco agresell to the investors an aggregate of 10,0Z2B¢@®ur
Class F1 shares and 41,547,280 of our Class F2sfaraggregate consideration of $360 millionodder to
acquire the necessary shares to sell to the nesgtiors, Newco made an offer to all of our sharedrsitb
purchase the same number of shares of any clas®titstanding. Each existing shareholder was edttt
participate in the offer to purchase on the samegta basis but if the offer to purchase was ulbf Eubscribec
Newco agreed to purchase additional shares frodeterg shareholders starting with the holders efdsimalles
amount of shares. Newco purchased 51,575,935 isswkdutstanding Class A shares, ordinary sharigls (w
liquidation preference), Class B, Class C, Clasnb Class E shares from existing shareholderspatchase
price of $6.61 per share (which was the $6.98 purchase ped by the investors to Newco net of transaction
expenses). Newco then converted the 51,575,938sktdrad acquired from the existing shareholders i
10,028,655 Class F1 and 41,547,280 Class F2 sfidreslosing of the purchase of the 4,297,995 (fdss
shares from the Company and the 10,028,655 Clasadé#1,547,280 Class F2 shares from Newco occomed
August 22, 2013. The Goldman Sachs Group Inc. tovesdentified in notes 1 and 2 to the table tefi 7.
Major Shareholders and Related Party TransactioMsajer Shareholders,” each of the Founders and tharo
executive officers all sold shares to Newco. After sale by Newco to the investors, Newco mergexus. For
information about the accounting treatment of ttassaction, see note 8 to our consolidated firdustatement
included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Forr20

Equity Award Plans

See “Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Eyggle — Board Practices — Equity Award Plan.”

Shareholders Agreemen

All our shareholders prior to our IPO were partea shareholders agreement that, among othernsiatte
addressed pre-emptive rights, restrictions on feas®f shares, appointment of directors and ligtidch. The
shareholders agreement also incorporated by refertie rights investors received in their investimen
agreements in connection with their original inmessits in us. The shareholders agreement and tiybge r
terminated upon the closing of our IPO.

Related Party Transaction Policy

Our board of directors has adopted certain wripiglicies and procedures with respect to relatetypar
transactions. These policies and procedures rethdteertain transactions (other than transacfiovaving
compensation) between us and any of our direatses;utive officers or beneficial holders of morartt5% of
our share capital, or any immediate family membgooperson sharing the household with, any o$¢he
individuals, may be consummated only when we deterrihat the transaction is in, or is not incoresistwith,
the best interests of our company and its stakens|dhcluding situations where we may obtain potslor
services of a nature, quantity or quality, or dmeotterms, that are not readily available fromraliéive sources
or when the transaction is on terms comparabliedset that could be obtained in arm’s length dealimigh an
unrelated third party. Whether a proposed transadés on comparable terms to those available fromraelate:
third party may be determined by, among other megattiering publicly available information abou¢ tierms
offered by third parties in similar transactiongljating offers from third parties or engaging eukendent expel
to evaluate the terms offered by the related party.
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Our policies and procedures with respect to relptatly transactions also apply to certain charitabl
contributions by us or our executive directors arecutive officers and to the hiring of any memtmdrdhe
immediate family of any of our directors or exeatofficers as our permanent ftitne employees. Approval
ratification of any transaction that requires appiar ratification under our policies concernirgated party
transactions must be obtained from our board &fctlirs by a majority vote of the disinterested mersb
thereof. A related party transaction can also E@med by a majority vote of the disinterested meralof our
Audit Committee.

Transactions involving compensation of our exe@utlirectors must be approved by a disinterestesl oot
our non-executive directors. Transactions involdegipensation of our non-executive directors mast b
approved at a general meeting of our sharehol8ees:‘Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Eyags
— Compensation — Compensation of Executive Direcois Officers.”

Dutch law prohibits directors with a conflict ott@mest in respect of any matter from participatmthe
decisionmaking process relating to that matter. Howeveemtall of our directors are conflicted with resiex
any matter, our board of directors as a whole daltide the relevant matter by a majority vote bélkctors
present at the meeting at which the matter is beamgidered, including those directors who haverdlict of
interest.

Copies of our policies and procedures concernitede@ party transactions are posted on our website
www.mobileye.com under the Investor Relations sectihe inclusion of our website address in thisdad
Report on Form 20-F does not include or incorpobgteeference the information on our website ihtie t
Annual Report on Form 20-F.

Transactions entered into prior to our IPO weresutiject to any of the policies and procedures abov

C. Interests of Experts and Counse

Not applicable
ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. Consolidated Statements and other Financial flormation
See Item 18.

Legal Proceeding:

We are from time to time involved in actions, clajreuits and other proceedings incidental to osimmss,
including those arising out of breach of contractsnpetition, intellectual property matters, peedanjury
claims and employment-related matters. It is oumiop that the outcome of such matters will notdav
material adverse effect on our consolidated firgrmisition, results of operations or cash flowsthWespect to
warranty matters, although we cannot ensure tleafufure costs of warranty claims by customers moll be
material, we believe our established reservesa@eqguate to cover potential warranty settlementsvéder, the
final amounts required to resolve these mattertdadiffer materially from our recorded estimates.

Dividend Distributions

We have never paid or declared any dividends ommaiinary shares. Moreover, even if future operetio
were to lead to significant levels of profits thaduld allow us to pay dividends, we currently irddo retain all
available funds for reinvestment in our businegsy Aecision to declare and pay dividends in thertutvill be
made at the discretion of our general meeting afedtolders, acting pursuant to a proposal by oardof
directors, and will depend on, among other thilogs,results of operations, financial condition ufet prospects,
contractual restrictions, restrictions imposed ppl&able law and other factors our board of doextand
general meeting of shareholders may deem relekaatldition, future dividend distribution may bebgct to
additional tax at MVT.
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B. Significant Changes

None.
ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING

A. Offer and Listing Details

Our ordinary shares began trading on the NYSE uti@esymbol “MBLY” on August 1, 2014 following
our IPO. Before then, there was no public markebfg ordinary shares. The following table setstfofor the
periods indicated, the high and low closing prieEsur ordinary shares as reported by the NYSEeskegust 1

2014.
US$
Price Per
Ordinary Share
ﬂ Low
Annual:
2014 (from August 1, 2014) 57.7C 32.1¢
Quarterly:
First Quarter 2015 (through March 3) 42.4: 33.6¢
Fourth Quarter 2014 57.7C 39.7(
Third Quarter 2014 (from August 1, 2014) 56.6( 32.1t
Monthly:
March 2015 (through March 3) 33.8] 33.6¢
February 2015 38.4: 35.3(
January 2015 42.4:  37.7¢
December 2014 46.0C 39.7(C
November 2014 50.0¢  44.0¢
October 2014 57.7C 44.6:
September 2014 56.6( 43.0:
August 2014 45.2F 32.1t

As of December 31, 2014, we had 246 holders ofrceobour ordinary shares.

B. Plan of Distribution
Not applicable

C. Markets
Our ordinary shares were listed on the NYSE on Atdu2014 under the symbol “MBLY.”

D. Selling Shareholders
Not applicable

E. Dilution
Not applicable

F. Expenses of the Issu

Not applicable
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ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A. Share Capital
Not applicable

Authorized Share Capital

Under Dutch law, our authorized share capital ésrttaximum capital that we may issue without amemdin
our articles of association. Our authorized shapgtal equals €10,125,657.25, consisting of 1,082,585
ordinary shares, with nominal value £9.01 per share.

All of our authorized shares will, when issued amitstanding, validly exist under Dutch law.

An amendment of our articles of association togase or alter our authorized share capital willireqg
shareholder approval.

Issuance of Share:

Our board of directors has the authority to restdvissue shares, and to grant options, warransher
rights to acquire shares, and to determine the ! further terms and conditions of such issumatshares,
warrants, options or other rights, if and insofsioar board of directors has been designated bgengral
meeting of shareholders as the authorized corpbrate for this purpose. Such designation will ooéyvalid foi
a specific period of no more than five years ang fnam time to time be extended for an additionaipd of
not more than five years. In July 2014, our generedting of shareholders authorized our boardrettbrs, for
a period of five years ending July 10, 2019, taésshares and to grant options, warrants and adgtes to
acquire shares. We also expect to request ourlsbhldezs, at each annual shareholders meeting hdihebi
future, to adopt a resolution further delegating plower to issue shares, and to grant optionsawrand other
rights to acquire shares, to our board of direckmrs period of five years following the date afch such annual
meeting. A separate resolution for the issuanahafes is not required for the issuance of shatksving an
exercise of a grant of the right to acquire shérashas previously been approved by our boardre€tbrs.

At least the nominal value of all shares, €0.01ef@ch ordinary share, or the equivalent thereoftier
currencies, plus any additional agreed consideratiust generally be paid in full at the time a&fuance of any
shares.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Associatior

We are registered with the Trade Register of thandier of Commerce for Amsterdam, The Netherlands
under file number 34158597. We are also registetittdthe Israeli trade registrar under file numbé0030876.
Our official registered office, principal executivéfices and management headquarters are locatédrat
Hotzvim, 13 Hartom Street, P.O. Box 45157, Jerus@&77513, Israel and our telephone number atitdtes
is +972 2 541 7333. Our management is locatedr@aelsand Mobileye N.V. is a resident of Israeld @t The
Netherlands) for tax purpose

Except as otherwise provided in this paragraphdteeription of our articles of association is iparated
by reference to the Registration Statement on FethA (SEC File No. 333-196898) filed on July 3012,
Dutch law requires the general meeting of sharedsltb approve all acquisitions by us of, and itmesits by
us in, other companies that are structured aschpse of shares, with a value exceeding one-tliiodio
consolidated assets as shown in our most recethtigted Dutch statutory accounts. Prior to the ammemd of
our articles of association referred to below, aticles of association provided that all such #&itjans of, and
investments in, other companies had to be apprbyedo-thirds of the votes cast in a shareholdezsting
representing more than 50% of our issued and odistg shares (a “Supermajority Votefggardless of the si:
of the acquisition or investment. In order to allowr management the level of flexibility necesdarpromote,
develop and enhance our business through the @amuisf, or investment in, other companies, in
December 2014 our general meeting of shareholggnoaed an amendment to our articles of associdtian
reduced the Supermajority Vote requirement for apglrof acquisitions by us of, and investments yny othe
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companies, for a value less than 20% of our totaket capitalization, so that such acquisitions iamdstments
can be approved by a majority of the votes cateashareholders meeting. The Supermajority Vajairement
continues to apply to acquisitions of, and investtaén, other companies for a value equal to oeeding 20%
of our total market capitalization. “Total marketpitalization” as referred to above means, as pfdate (i) the
total number of the Company’s issued and outstandidinary shares as of such date multiplied Byt
Closing Price of an ordinary share of the Compangfasuch date, i.e. the average closing pricenafrdinary
share on the principal securities exchange ordeter quotation system where our ordinary shaegaded as
of such date, during a period of up to 30 tradiagsdprior to such date, which period shall be deireed by our
board of directors.

C. Material Contracts

See “Item 3. Key Informatior-Property, Plants and Equipment” for a descriptibthe Company’s lease
agreement for its principal offices. See “ltem 7ajdt Shareholders and Related Party Transactiofelated
Party Transactions- Relationship with OrCam Technologies Ltd.” for asdeption of a sublease of a portion of
the leased space. See “ltem 4. Information on thraany — Business Overview — Manufacturing” for a
description of the company’s agreement with STMéteotronics N.V. The Company has entered into a
manufacturing agreement with Golden Vast Macao Cenaial Offshore Limited and purchase contracts with
Magna Electronics and Autoliv Electronics AB. Eadlthese agreements is an exhibit to this AnnualdReon
Form 20-F.

D. Exchange Controls

There are no Israeli or Dutch government laws, el=ior regulations that restrict or that affecteqort o
import of capital or the remittance of dividendggrest or other payments to non-resident holdeosio
securities, including the availability of cash aash equivalents for use by us and our wholly owned
subsidiaries, except or otherwise as set forth ufitlen 10. Additional Information — Taxation.”

E. Taxation

MATERIAL U.S. FEDERAL INCOME TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following is a description of the material Ui&leral income tax considerations to a U.S. Hol@er
defined below) relating to the acquisition, ownépséind disposition of our ordinary shares. Thisatgstion
addresses only the U.S. federal income tax consegsdo holders that will hold our ordinary shagescapital
assets for U.S. federal income tax purposes. Téssription does not address many of the tax coretidas
applicable to holders that may be subject to sgeadarules, including, without limitation:

*  banks, certain financial institutions or inswwartompanies;

* real estate investment trusts, regulated investroompanies or grantor trusts;

» dealers or traders in securities, commoditiesuorencies;

* tax-exempt entities;

»  certain former citizens or long-term residerftthe United States;

»  persons that received our ordinary shares apensation for the performance of services;

[INTH

»  persons that will hold our shares as part diedging,” “integrated” or “conversiortfansaction or as
position in a “straddle” for U.S. federal income faurposes;

»  partnerships (including entities classified astiperships for U.S. federal income tax purposesyleer
pass-through entities, or holders that will hold ordinary shares through such an entity;

e S-corporations;

»  persons whose “functional currency” is not th&Hollar;
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» persons that own directly, indirectly or througtribtition 10% or more of the voting power or vabfi
our shares; or

»  persons holding our ordinary shares in conngeatiith a trade or business conducted outside the
United States.

Moreover, this description does not address the fdderal estate, gift or alternative minimum tax
consequences, or any state, local or foreign tasemguences, of the acquisition, ownership and dispo of
our ordinary shares.

This description is based on the U.S. Internal RaeeCode of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), existing
proposed and temporary U.S. Treasury Regulatiodguaticial and administrative interpretations thafrén
each case as available on the date hereof. Affieofdregoing is subject to change, which changédcapply
retroactively and could affect the tax consequedessribed below. There can be no assurance that.t
Internal Revenue Service (“IRS”) will not take dfelient position concerning the tax consequencébeof
acquisition, ownership and disposition of our oedinshares or that the IRS’s position would nosbgtained.

For purposes of this description, a “U.S. Holdsraibeneficial owner of our ordinary shares that|f.S.
federal income tax purposes, is:

. a citizen or resident of the United States;

» acorporation (or other entity treated as a e@ton for U.S. federal income tax purposes) ewat
organized in or under the laws of the United Stateany jurisdiction thereof;

» atrust, if (i) such trust has validly elected to be treated &.S. person for U.S. federal income tax
purposes or (ii) a U.S. court is able to exercismgry supervision over the administration of strcist
and one or more U.S. persons have the authoritgritrol all substantial decisions of such trust; or

*  an estate, the income of which is subject tadthStates federal income taxation regardlessof it
source.

If a partnership (or any other entity treated asudnership for U.S. federal income tax purposes&jsour
ordinary shares, the tax treatment of a partnsuah partnership will generally depend on the stafithe
partner and the activities of the partnership. Suplartner or partnership should consult its tadsaa as to its
tax consequences.

Holders should consult their tax advisors with respct to the U.S. federal, state, local and foreigmx
consequences of acquiring, owning and disposing ofir ordinary shares.

Distributions

Subject to the discussion below under “— Passiveifn Investment Company Considerations,” the gross
amount of any distribution made to a U.S. Holdeghwespect to our ordinary shares before redudtioany
Israeli taxes withheld therefrom, other than certab rata distributions of our ordinary sharealt@ur
shareholders, generally will be includible in the&sSUHolder’s income as dividend income to the etxties
distribution is paid out of our current or accuntethearnings and profits as determined under @dgrél
income tax principles. Subject to the discussidoweinder “— Passive Foreign Investment Company
Considerations,” non-corporate U.S. Holders maylifyufor preferential rates of taxation with respéa
dividends on ordinary shares provided that certaimditions are met, including certain holding pdrio
requirements and the absence of certain risk regutransactions. However, dividends on our ordirsdrares
will not be eligible for the dividends received detion generally allowed to corporate U.S. Hold&usbject to
the discussion below under “— Passive Foreign limeest Company Considerations,” to the extent that t
amount of any distribution by us exceeds our ctraed accumulated earnings and profits as detetminder
U.S. federal income tax principles, it will be tieg first as a tax-free return of tax basis in awinary shares
and thereafter as capital gain. We do not expettdimtain calculations of our earnings and prafitser U.S.
federal income tax principles and, therefore, Bi8lders should expect that the entire amount ofdistyibutior
generally will be reported as dividend income.
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Dividends paid to U.S. Holders with respect to oudinary shares will be treated as foreign souncerne,
which may be relevant in calculating a U.S. Holddgdreign tax credit limitation. Subject to certaimnditions
and limitations, Israeli tax withheld on dividenusly be deducted from taxable income or creditethagbl.S.
federal income tax liability. An election to deddateign taxes instead of claiming foreign tax é®dpplies to
all foreign taxes paid or accrued in the taxablry&he limitation on foreign taxes eligible foedit is
calculated separately with respect to specificsda®f income. For this purpose, dividends thatlis&ibute
generally should constitute “passive category inedrar, in the case of certain U.S. Holders, “gaheategory
income.” A foreign tax credit for foreign taxes ioged on distributions may be denied if certain mumn
holding period requirements are not satisfied. hes relating to the determination of the foreigx credit are
complex, and U.S. Holders should consult theiradxisors to determine whether and to what exteyt till be
entitled to this credit.

The amount of a distribution will equal the U.Slldovalue of any foreign currency received, cadtet by
reference to the exchange rate in effect on the tthat distribution is received, whether or not.8.UHolder in
fact converts any such foreign currency receivédl thS. dollars at that time. If the foreign curcgnis
converted into U.S. dollars on the date of receipt,.S. Holder generally will not be required toagnize
foreign currency gain or loss in respect of théritistion. A U.S. Holder may have foreign currerggin or loss
if the foreign currency is converted into U.S. dddl after the date of receipt, depending on thbange rate at
the time of conversion. Any gains or losses resglfrom the conversion of foreign currency into Ld8llars
generally will be treated as ordinary income osJa@s the case may be, and generally will be tlesdd).S.
source.

Sale, Exchange or Other Disposition of Ordinary Shiees

Subject to the discussion below under “— Passiveigo Investment Company Considerations,” U.S.
Holders generally will recognize gain or loss oe #ale, exchange or other disposition of our orglishares
equal to the difference between the amount reabiretthe sale, exchange or other disposition antiahder’s
tax basis in our ordinary shares, and any gainss Will be capital gain or loss. The tax basianrordinary
share generally will be equal to the cost of ttdirary share. For non-corporate U.S. Holders, abgéin from
the sale, exchange or other disposition of ordiséigres is generally eligible for a preferentiée raf taxation if
such non-corporate U.S. Holder’s holding periodsiach ordinary shares exceeds one year on theflsteeh
sale, exchange or other disposition (i.e., such gdiong-term capital gain). The deductibilityaapital losses
for U.S. federal income tax purposes is subjetitiitations under the Code. Any gain or loss th&L.8. Holder
recognizes generally will be treated as U.S. soinoeme or loss for foreign tax credit limitatioorposes.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Consideratior

If we were to be classified as a PFIC, in any téxgbkar, a U.S. Holder would be subject to specilals
generally intended to reduce or eliminate any bengbm the deferral of U.S. federal income taatth U.S.
Holder could derive from investing in a non-U.Smyany that does not distribute all of its earniags current
basis.

A nonU.S. corporation will be classified as a PFIC foSUfederal income tax purposes in any taxable
in which, after applying certain look-through rylegther

* atleast 75% of its gross income is “passiveine”, or

+ atleast 50% of the average quarterly valugsoflioss assets is attributable to assets thatipeod
passive income or are held for the production gkpee income.

Passive income for this purpose generally inclutieisiends, interest, royalties, rents, gains from
commodities and securities transactions, the exafagains over losses from the disposition of asadtich
produce passive income and amounts derived bymazEgbe temporary investment of funds raised ferirfigs
of our ordinary shares. If a non-U.S. corporatioms at least 25% by value of the stock of anotbeparation,
the non-U.S. corporation is treated for purposat®fPFIC tests as owning its proportionate shatkecassets
of the other corporation and as directly receiitagoroportionate share of the other corporatiomt®me. If we
are classified as a PFIC in any year with respeettich a U.S.
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Holder owns our ordinary shares, we generally @ahtinue to be treated as a PFIC with respectaboUhsS.
Holder in all succeeding years during which the.UH8lder owns our ordinary shares, regardless @thdr we
continue to meet the tests described above.

Based on our most current estimates of our grassnie and the value of our assets (which is basedion
share price), we do not expect that we will besifeex] as a PFIC for the taxable year ending Deazrih,
2015. However, our PFIC status for each taxable yesy be determined only after the end of such gadrwill
depend on the composition of our income and assetsctivities and the value of our assets (whiety be
determined in large part by reference to the marékte of our ordinary shares, which may be vaafitom
time to time. Therefore, there can be no assurtdhateve will not be considered a PFIC for 2015y ather
taxable year. If we are a PFIC then unless a Udkléd makes one of the elections described bel®peaial ta:
regime will apply to both (i) any “excess distritmut’ by us to that U.S. Holder (generally, the U-lder’s
ratable portion of distributions in any year whate greater than 125% of the average annual digitsib
received by the holder in the shorter of the thmeeeding years or its holding period for our oatlynshares) at
(ii) any gain realized on the sale or other dispamsiof the ordinary shares.

Under this regime, any excess distribution andzedlgain described above will be treated as orgdina
income and will be subject to tax aqif the excess distribution or gain had been zedliratably over the U.S.
Holder's holding period, (ii) the amount deemedirea in each year had been subject to tax in gaeh of that
holding period at the highest marginal rate fot ffemr (other than income allocated to the curnpeniod or any
taxable period before we became a PFIC, whichheilsubject to tax at the U.S. Holder’s regular roady
income rate for the current year and will not bigjsct to the interest charge discussed below) (iéihthe
interest charge generally applicable to underpaysnefitax had been imposed on the taxes deemealvtobieen
payable in those years. In addition, dividend distions made to a U.S. Holder will not qualify fareferential
rates of taxation, as discussed above under “Digtdns.” If we are determined to be a PFIC, theegal tax
treatment for U.S. Holders described in this paphrwould apply to indirect distributions and gaileemed to
be realized by U.S. Holders in respect of any ofsaubsidiaries that also may be determined to BERF

Certain elections may be available that would tasudn alternative treatment (such as mark-to-iark
treatment) of our ordinary shares. We do not intengrovide the information necessary for U.S. loddto
make qualified electing fund elections if we aressified as a PFIC. U.S. Holders should consuit tag
advisors to determine whether any of these elestioould be available and, if so, what the consecgenf the
alternative treatments would be in their particgiacumstances.

U.S. Holders may avoid certain adverse tax consemserelating to PFIC status discussed above byng
a mark-to-market election with respect to our cadynshares annually, provided that the sharesraegKetable.”
Shares will be marketable if they are regularlgé@ on certain United States stock exchanges (imgduhe
NYSE) or on certain nc-United States stock exchanges. For these purposesrdinary shares will generally
be considered regularly traded during any calegdar during which they are traded, other than gligible
guantities, on at least 15 days during each catandater. We anticipate that our ordinary shahesikl qualify
as being actively traded.

If a U.S. Holder chooses to make a mark-to-markegttion, such U.S. Holder would recognize as ongina
income or loss each year in which we are a PFl@naount equal to the difference as of the closbetdxable
year between the fair market value of such U.Sdeid ordinary shares and such U.S. Holder’s adjutsix
basis in such ordinary shares. Such recognitiaraof or loss will cause an increase or decreaspentively, in
the adjusted tax basis in such ordinary shares Bgses would be allowed only to the extent ofmatk-to-
market gain previously included under the electarprior taxable years. If the mark-to-market ¢ilaT were
made, then the PFIC rules described above reltdiegcess distributions and realized gains woutdapply for
periods covered by the election. If a U.S. Holdeeginot make a mark-to-market election for the fasable
year in which we are a PFIC during such U.S. Hoddeolding period of our ordinary shares, such UHSlder
would be subject to interest charges with respethe inclusion of ordinary income attributablestich taxable
year in which we were a PFIC during such U.S. Hoddieolding period before the effective date offsuc
election.

In addition, all U.S. Holders (including certainesieed U.S. Holders) may be required to file annaal t
returns (including on IRS Form 8621) containingtsirformation as the U.S. Treasury may require.
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For example, if a U.S. Holder owns ordinary shaha@sng any year in which we are classified as a&0P&id the
U.S. Holder recognizes gain on a disposition ofadinary shares or receives distributions witlpees to our
ordinary shares, the U.S. Holder generally wilkbguired to file an IRS Form 8621 with respectie t
Company, generally with the U.S. Holder’'s fedenalame tax return for that year. The failure to files form
when required could result in substantial penalties

U.S. Holders should consult their tax advisors reigg whether we are a PFIC and the potential apfitin
of the PFIC rules.

Backup Withholding and Information Reporting Requir ements

U.S. backup withholding and information reportirgjuirements may apply to payments to holders of our
ordinary shares. Information reporting generalli apply to payments of dividends on, and to praissieom
the sale of, our ordinary shares made within thitddrStates, or by a U.S. payor or U.S. middleniaa, holder
of our ordinary shares, other than an exempt restdincluding a corporation). A payor may be regdito
backup withhold from payments of dividends on,h@ proceeds from the sale or redemption of, orgishares
within the United States, or by a U.S. payor or.Un®idleman, to a holder, other than an exempprewt, if the
holder fails to furnish its correct taxpayer idéntition number or otherwise fails to comply witht,establish an
exemption from, the backup withholding tax requiesrts. Any amounts withheld under the backup wittimgj
rules generally should be allowed as a credit agaiire beneficial owner’'s U.S. federal income takility, if
any, and any excess amounts withheld under theupagkhholding rules may be refunded, provided that
required information is timely furnished to the IRS

Additional Medicare Tax

Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals, estatesusts may be required to pay an additional 3.8%
Medicare tax on, among other things, dividendsaapital gains from the sale or other dispositioowf
ordinary shares. For individuals, the additionaldidare tax applies to the lesser(gf“net investment income”
or (ii) the excess ofmodified adjusted gross income” over $200,0006(hR200 if married and filing jointly or
$125,000 if married and filing separately). “Netéstment income” generally equals the taxpayesgr
investment income reduced by the deductions tleaaltmcable to such income. U.S. Holders will likabt be
able to credit foreign taxes against the 3.8% Marditax.

Foreign Asset Reporting

Certain U.S. Holders who are individuals (and ungteposed regulations, certain entities) may baired
to report information relating to an interest irr oudinary shares, subject to certain exceptiomdtding an
exception for shares held in accounts maintained.By financial institutions). U.S. Holders are eglgo consul
their tax advisors regarding their information repmy obligations, if any, with respect to their w&rship and
disposition of our ordinary shares.

The above description is not intended to constitute complete analysis of all tax consequences relai
to acquisition, ownership and disposition of our odinary shares. Holders should consult their tax adigors
concerning the tax consequences of their particulasituations.

MATERIAL ISRAELI TAX CONSIDERATIONS AND GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS

The following description is not intended to cotsé a complete analysis of all Israeli tax consaes
relating to the acquisition, ownership and dispiogitof our ordinary shares. You should consult yown tax
advisor concerning the tax consequences of yourquéar situation, as well as any tax consequertbas may
arise under the laws of any other state, localefgn or other taxing jurisdiction.

Israeli Tax Considerations and Government Program:

We have our headquarters in Israel and our sigaiicsubsidiary, Mobileye Vision Technologies L$d, i
incorporated in Israel. The following is a summafycertain aspects of the current tax structure leggble to
companies in Israel, with special reference teifect on us (and our operations, in particuladjdwing our
becoming a resident of the State of Israel forgasposes in July 2014. The following also contans
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discussion of the major Israeli government progrdmasefiting us. To the extent that the discussidrased on
new tax legislation that has not been subject tlicjal or administrative interpretation, we canredsure you
that the tax authorities or the courts will accélpe views expressed in this discussion. This dismusloes not
address all of the Israeli tax provisions that niegyrelevant to us.

General Corporate Tax Structure in Isras

The regular rate of corporate tax to which Israefhpanies were subject in 2012 and 2013 was 25% and
such rate has increased to 26.5% for 2014 andaftereHowever, the effective tax rate payable lopmpany
that derives income from a “Benefited EnterpriseadPreferred Enterprise” may be considerably lovgee
“Law for the Encouragement of Capital Investmeh®§9.” In addition, commencing in 2010, Israeli ggamies
have been subject to regular corporate tax ratb@ncapital gains.

Besides being subject to the general corporateutas in Israel, we have also, from time to timepleed fol
and received certain grants and tax benefits feord,participate in, programs sponsored by the Gwowent of
Israel, the material ones of which are describdovhe

Law for Encouragement of Capital Investments, 19

MVT, our Israeli subsidiary, has been entitled Befiefited Enterprise” status under the Israeli famw
Encouragement of Capital Investments, 1959 (thee$tment Law”). The Investment Law was significantl
amended effective April 1, 2005 (the “2005 Amendtf)erand further amended as of January 1, 2011“@041
Amendment”). Pursuant to the 2005 Amendment, tavefis granted in accordance with the provisionthef
Investment Law prior to its revision by the 2005 émment remain in force but any benefits granted
subsequently are subject to the provisions of G@52Amendment. Similarly, the 2011 Amendment intreed
new benefits to replace those granted in accordaitbethe provisions of the Investment Law in effpdor to
the 2011 Amendment. However, companies entitldzbtwfits under the Investment Law as in effectrgno
January 1, 2011 were entitled to choose to contiowmjoy such benefits, provided that certain d@ons are
met, or to elect irrevocably to forego such beseditd have the benefits of the 2011 Amendment apply

The 2005 Amendmer” Benefited Enterpri<”)

The extent of the tax benefits available under2d@5 Amendment to qualifying income of a Benefited
Enterprise depends on, among other things, thergpbig location in Israel of the Benefited EntespriThe
location will also determine the period for whiex tbenefits are available. Such tax benefits irelal
exemption from corporate tax on undistributed inedor a period of between two to ten years, dependn the
geographic location of the Benefited Enterpristsiael, and a reduced corporate tax rate of betd6&nto
25% for the remainder of the “Benefits Period,” eleging on the level ofForeign Investment,” as defined
under law, in the company in each year. A comparglifying for tax benefits under the 2005 Amendmitatt
pays a dividend out of income derived by its BerefEnterprise during the tax exemption periodngages in
certain actions that are treated as deemed divideiidbe subject to corporate tax in respect ef ghoss amoui
of the dividend at the otherwise applicable rat@%o, or lower rates in the case of a qualifiedreign
Investors Company” (“FIC”), according to the rafd~oreign Investment in the company at the apple#dx
year. Dividends paid out of income attributed Bemefited Enterprise are generally subject to vattiimg tax a
source at the rate of 15%, or such lower rate gsbragrovided in an applicable tax treaty. The fiene
available to a Benefited Enterprise are subjethédulfilment of conditions stipulated in the lestment Law,
its regulations, and any ruling received from thA.lIn the event of failure to comply with thesenddtions, the
entitlement to the benefits might be cancelled lMI might be required to refund the amount of tleaéfits, ir
whole or in part, together with linkage to the &r&onsumer Price Index, interest and penalties.

The 2011 Amendmer” Preferred Enterpris”)

The 2011 Amendment canceled the availability oflibeefits granted to companies under the Investment
Law prior to 2011 and, instead, introduced new Eenfor income generated by a “Preferred Compahydugh
its “Preferred Enterprise” (as such terms are @effiim the Investment Law) as of
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January 1, 2011. The definition of a Preferred Camypincludesinter alia, a company incorporated in Israel
that is (i) not wholly owned by a governmental 8ntfii) owns a Preferred Enterprise, (iii) is cosited and
managed from Israel, and subject to further comditiset forth in the Investment Law. From 2014 thedeafter
a Preferred Company is entitled to a reduced catpdax rate of 16% with respect to its income\etiby its
Preferred Enterprise, unless the Preferred Ensarfsilocated in a specified development zone hiclwcase th
rate will be 9%. MVT’s location is subject to theduced tax rate of 9%.

Dividends paid out of income attributed to a PneférEnterprise are generally subject to withholdargat
the source at the rate of 20% with respect to divit$ to be distributed after January 1, 2014, stibjecertain
conditions, or such lower rate as may be provideahi applicable tax treaty. However, if such divide are pai
to an Israeli company, no tax is required to bénkétd (although, if the funds are subsequentlyibisted to
individuals or to a non-Israeli company, the withttiog tax would apply).

The 2011 Amendment also provided transitional miovis to address companies already enjoying egistin
tax benefits under the Investment Law. These ttiansil provisions provide, among other things, tiaess an
irrevocable request is made to apply the provis@ihe Investment Law as amended in 2011 withaesm
income to be derived as of January 1, 2011, a BedeEnterprise can elect to continue to applyltbeefits in
effect prior to the 2011 Amendment, provided thetain conditions are met.

Until we became a Preferred Enterprise, we had 8edeEnterprise programs under the Investment Law
commencing 2005, which, we believe, entitled useidain tax benefits. Additionally, in connectioitiwthe
original grant of“‘Benefited Enterprisestatus, in 2006 MVT was recognized by the Israblie€Scientist Office
as a “Research and Development Company.”

MVT made an election to become a “Preferred Compamiay 2014. In July 2014, we received the
Preferred Enterprise Ruling from the ITA, to thé&ef that following our reorganization (see “ltemCperating
and Financial Review and Prospects — Factors Affg@ur Operating Results — Reorganization”), MVl w
be able to benefit from a reduced tax rate of agprately 9%, subject to fulfilment of the termsdaconditions
of the law and of such ruling.

The following are the main terms and conditionshef Preferred Enterprise Ruling:

«  MVTis required to add 50 new manufacturing aeskarch and development employees in each of the
tax years of 2014, 2015 and 2016 and it is furtbguired to continue employing such additional
employees for the tax years until 2018. Failuren&et this term will affect the effective tax ratea
ratio related to the number of non-recruited and-redgained employees.

«  MVTis required to acquire 90% of its expengesf Israeli subcontractors within preferred regions
compared to its total cost of goods sold and rebeand development to maintain the highest benefits
If the ratio is less than 90%, the tax rate willdfected in a ratio related to the portion of exges
paid to such subcontractors, all as describeddamnuting.

*  Any MVT dividends shall be deemed first to bédpaut of the undistributed income that was exempt
from Israeli corporate tax generated by the BeaéfiEnterprise, which shall be subject to additional
tax at the MVT level and to the dividend distrilmutiprovisions of income derived by a Benefited
Enterprise.

* ITA approval is required for MVT to transfer itgtellectual property to a third party.

»  The Preferred Enterprise Ruling will become vioithe event that we change our field of actiitie
business model or significantly reduce the volumeus development activity, all unless otherwise
determined by the ITA.

From time to time, the Israeli Government has dised reducing the benefits available to compamidsru
the Investment Law. The termination or substaméelction of any of the benefits available under th
Investment Law could materially increase our takilities.
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Taxation of Our Shareholders

Mobileye N.V. is an Israeli resident company for purposes. Therefore, our distributions of divideor
investments in our own shares could be subjeettant Israel. In addition, our distributions to Batholders of
our ordinary shares may also be subject to Duteidelnd withholding tax. Sedtém 10. Additional Informatiol
— Taxation —Material Dutch Tax ConsideratiorsDividend Withholding Tax” in this Annual Report ¢iorm
20-F for a discussion of the Dutch dividend withholgliax in respect of dividends paid on our sharestioldel
of ordinary shares who is, or who is deemed tabesident of The Netherlands for purposes of Dtaghtion.

Capital Gains Taxes Applicable to N-Israeli Resident Shareholdel

A non-Israeli resident who derives capital gaimsrfrthe sale of shares in an Israeli resident comnplaat
were purchased after the company was listed fdirtgaon a stock exchange outside of Israel wilkkempt
from Israeli tax so long as the shares were nat thebugh a permanent establishment that the neidemst
maintains in Israel. However, non-Israeli corparasi will not be entitled to the foregoing exemptibisraeli
residents: (i) have directly or indirectly, alonetogether with another, a controlling interes26f6 or more of
any of the means of control in such non-Israelpooation or (ii) are the beneficiaries of, or angitted to, 25%
or more of the revenues or profits of such nondii@rporation, whether directly or indirectly. Suexemption
might not be applicable to a person whose gaima §elling or otherwise disposing of the sharesdaemed to
be business income.

Additionally, a sale of securities by a ntsmaeli resident may be exempt from Israeli caggjhs tax unde
the provisions of an applicable tax treaty. Fomegke, under the United States-Israel Tax Treaty disposition
of shares by a shareholder who (i) is a U.S. resiffer purposes of the treaty); (ii) holds thergsaas a capital
asset; and (iii) is entitled to claim the beneditforded to such person by the treaty, is genesdmpt from
Israeli capital gains tax. Such exemption will apply if: (i) the capital gain arising from the plasition can be
attributed to a permanent establishment in Is(@pthe shareholder holds, directly or indirectihares
representing 10% or more of the voting capital miyiany part of the 12-month period preceding tpakition,
subject to certain conditions; or (iii) such U.8sident is an individual and was present in Isi@el83 days or
more during the relevant taxable year. In such,dhsesale, exchange or disposition of our ordirsdugres
would be subject to Israeli tax, to the extent eyaylle; however, under the United States-Israel Traaty, the
taxpayer would be permitted to claim a credit factstaxes against the U.S. federal income tax ieghosth
respect to such sale, exchange or dispositionesttg) the limitations under U.S. law applicablédeign tax
credits. The United States-Israel Tax Treaty datselate to U.S. state or local taxes.

In some instances where our shareholders may ttile fiar Israeli tax on the sale of their ordinahases,
the payment of the consideration may be subjetttdavithholding of Israeli tax at source. Sharekasdmay be
required to demonstrate that they are exempt feonoh their capital gains in order to avoid withding at
source at the time of sale. Specifically in tratisss involving sale of all of the shares of aratdi resident
company in the form of a merger or otherwise, & may require shareholders who are not liabldSoaeli tay
to sign declarations in forms specified by the I3&o obtain a specific exemption from the ITA tinéirm their
status as non-lIsraeli residents, and in the abs#rsiech declaration or exemptions, may requirelpasers of
the shares to withhold tax at source.

Taxation of Nor-Israeli Shareholders on Receipt of Dividen

Non-Israeli residents are generally subject toelskaithholding tax on the receipt of dividends ghain our
ordinary shares at the rate of 25%, unless rdipfdvided in a treaty between Israel and the slodder’s
country of residence (subject to the receipt odlidwvcertificate from the Israeli Tax Authority aling for a
reduced tax rate). With respect to a person whgd'sibstantial shareholdeat the time of receiving the divide
or at any time during the preceding twelve monithe,applicable tax rate and withholding rate is 30#ess
such “substantial shareholddrdlds such shares through a nominee company (amedafnder the law) in whic
case the withholding rate is 25%. A “substanti@reholder” is generally a person who alone or togretvith
such person’s relative or another person who cotteties contractually with such person on a permavessis,
holds, directly or indirectly, at least 10% of asfythe “means of control” of the corporation. “Mesaof control”
generally include the right to vote, receive
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profits, nominate a director or an executive officeceive assets upon liquidation, or order soreew@mo holds
any of the aforesaid rights how to act, regardééshe source of such right. Under the United Stdseael Tax
Treaty, the maximum rate of tax withheld at sourncksrael on dividends paid to a holder of our peaty shares
who is a U.S. resident (for purposes of the Un@tatestsrael Tax Treaty) is 25%. A distribution of divits to
non-Israeli residents is subject to withholding &source at a rate of 15% if the dividend isritisted from
income attributed to a Benefited Enterprise and Za#¥e dividend is distributed from income attrtbd to a
Preferred Enterprise, unless a reduced tax rgoisded under an applicable tax treaty. We caasstire you
that in the event we declare a dividend we willigieate the income out of which the dividend is paid
manner that will reduce shareholders’ tax liability

Any MVT dividend shall be deemed first to be paid of the undistributed income that was exempt from
Israeli corporate tax generated by the Benefiteprise, which shall be subject to additionalabthe MVT
level and to the dividend distribution provisiorfarmome derived by a Benefited Enterprise. U.Sidents who
are subject to Israeli withholding tax on a dividenay be entitled to a credit or deduction for UeBleral
income tax purposes in the amount of the taxeshelth subject to detailed rules contained in Ua$. t
legislation.

Excess Tax

Individuals who are subject to tax in Israel asoaubject to an additional tax at a rate of 2%mmual
income exceeding New Israeli Shekels 810,720 fa52Which amount is linked to the annual changién
Israeli consumer price index, including, but natited to, dividends, interest and capital gain jecttto the
provisions of an applicable tax treaty.

Estate and gift tax

Israeli law presently does not impose estate otaies.

MATERIAL DUTCH TAX CONSIDERATIONS

The following description is not intended to cosé a complete analysis of all the Dutch tax cqosece:
relating to the acquisition, ownership and dispiasitof our ordinary shares. You should consult yown tax
advisor concerning the tax consequences of yourquéar situation, as well as any tax consequertbas may
arise under the laws of any state, local, foreigmtier taxing jurisdiction other than The Nethertis.

General

The information set out below is a summary of denmaterial Dutch tax consequences of the acqoisiti
ownership and disposition of our ordinary shardss Bummary does not purport to be a comprehensive
description of all the Dutch tax considerationd thay be relevant to a particular holder of ourirady shares.
Such holders may be subject to special tax treatmater any applicable law and this summary isimended
to be applicable in respect of all categories dfiéus of our ordinary shares.

This summary is based on the tax laws of The Nkthds as in effect on December 31, 2014, as well as
regulations, rulings and decisions of The Nethel$aor of its taxing and other authorities availahlerinted
form on or before such date and now in effect, andpplied and interpreted by Netherlands couithput
prejudice to any amendments introduced at a later @nd implemented with or without retroactiveseff All of
the foregoing is subject to change, which changddcapply retroactively and could affect the conéd validity
of this summary.

Because it is a general summary, prospective haddefrour ordinary shares should consult their owaxt
advisors as to the Dutch or other tax consequenckthe acquisition, holding and disposition of owrdinary
shares including, in particular, the application ttheir particular situations of the Dutch tax condéerations
discussed below, as well as the application ofestédgcal, foreign or other tax laws.

This summary does not describe any tax consequemis@sy under the laws of any taxing jurisdictimthel
than The Netherlands. The Netherlands means thiapfpne Kingdom of The Netherlands located indpe.
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Any reference hereafter made to a treaty for theédance of double taxation concluded by The
Netherlands, includes the Tax Arrangement for thgom of The NetherlandsBelastingregeling voor het
Koninkrijk ) and the Tax Arrangement for the country of The¢hddands Belastingregeling voor het land
Nederlanc).

For Dutch tax purposes, a holder of our ordinagret may include an individual who, or an entityickih
does not have the legal title to our ordinary shaoat to whom our ordinary shares are neverthelgsbuted
based either on such individual or entity holdirigeaeficial interest in our ordinary shares or dame specific
statutory provisions.

General Matters Relating to Dutch Tax Consideratiors

Under the Netherlands-Israel Convention (as defbeldw) we are a resident for tax purposes of lsmaé
not of The Netherlands.

The relevant considerations regarding the tax eesig of the Company are as follows:

Pursuant to article 2, 4th paragraph, of the D@ohporate Income Tax Act 196%\(et op de
vennootschapsbelasting 1958s well as article 1, 3rd paragraph, of the Didohdend Tax Act 1965 et op
de dividendbelasting 19§5a company which is incorporated under Dutchigenerally deemed to be
resident in The Netherlands for corporate incomeatad dividend withholding tax purposes, respettive

However, the Convention between the Kingdom of Nie¢éherlands and the State of Israel for the avaie
of double taxation and the prevention of fiscalsiea with respect to taxes on income and on capitetuted in
Jerusalem on July 2, 1973 (as amended from tirtiemtg the “Netherlands-Israel Convention”), in ifle
supersedes Dutch domestic law.

In this respect, article 4, 1st paragraph, of te¢hNrlands-Israel Convention provides that the teesiden
of one of the States” means any person who, uhédatv of that State, is liable to taxation thefgjrreason of
his domicile, residence, place of management orodimgr criterion of a similar nature. Moreoverjcet 4, 4th
paragraph, of the Netherlands-Israel Conventiorides that where by reason of the provisions d€lartl, 1st
paragraph, of the Netherlands-Israel Conventioaragn other than an individual is a resident ohl&tates, it
shall be deemed to be a resident of the State ichvits place of effective management is situated.

Since our place of management is situated in |saael not in The Netherlands, and assuming the @agnp
is liable to taxation in Israel by virtue of haviitg place of effective management in that Stdte Gompany wil
be considered to be exclusively tax resident iadkpursuant to article 4, 4th paragraph, of thin&iéands-
Israel Convention.

Although the Company is deemed to be tax residefhe Netherlands pursuant to article 2, 4th paatgr
of the Dutch Corporate Income Tax Act 1969, the @any will, as a consequence of the above, effdgtivat
pay corporate income tax in The Netherlands byeidf the Netherlands-Israel Convention.

Dividend Withholding Tax

Given that the Company is considered exclusivetyrésident in Israel for the purposes of the Nd#mets-
Israel Convention, by virtue of article 11, 7thggnaph, of that Convention, generally The Netheldamay not
impose Dutch dividend withholding tax on dividernmsd by the Company to persons who are not resident
The Netherlands, even though the Company is de¢ontee tax resident in The Netherlands pursuantticlea 1,
3rd paragraph, of the Dutch Dividend Tax Act 19B&sed on the ruling from the Dutch Supreme Couithén
case known as BNB 1992/379, it is generally considi¢hat such prohibition on extraterritorial tagatalso
applies to shareholders who are tax resident lirird $tate and we will act accordingly.

Thus, with respect to a holder of our ordinary seawho is not and is not deemed to be a residérieo
Netherlands for purposes of Dutch taxation, Thensigands is precluded from imposing any Dutch dinid
withholding tax on dividends paid by the Compangemarticle 11, 7th paragraph, of the Netherlarsdael
Convention.
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If and to the extent dividends are paid on ourrmadi shares to a holder of ordinary shares wharigho is
deemed to be, a resident of The Netherlands fgygaas of Dutch taxation, such dividends are gelyesabject
to withholding tax of 15% imposed by The Netherlan@enerally, the dividend withholding tax will rms
borne by us, but we will withhold the dividend witilding tax from the gross dividends paid on oulirgary
shares. In addition, our distributions to Dutchd®ob of our ordinary shares may also be subjeistraeli
withholding tax. See “—Material Israeli Tax Considerations and Governniegrams— Taxation of Our
Shareholders” in this Annual Report on Form 204Fafaiscussion of the Israeli tax considerationespect of
distributions of dividends or investments in oumoshares.

The term “dividends” for this purpose includes, lsutot limited to:

« distributions in cash or in kind, deemed andstarctive distributions and repayments of paidapita
not recognized for Dutch dividend withholding taxrposes;

» liquidation proceeds, proceeds of redemptioshafres or, generally, consideration for the repageh
of shares in excess of the average paid-in capitalgnized for Dutch dividend withholding tax
purposes;

» the nominal value of shares issued to a sharehotden increase of the nominal value of sharethe
case may be, to the extent that it does not aphata contribution to the capital recognized fatdh
dividend withholding tax purposes was made or khéllmade; and

» partial repayment of paid-in capital, recognif@dDutch dividend withholding tax purposes, idao
the extent that there are net profitai{vere wins}, within the meaning of the Dutch Dividend
Withholding Tax Act 1965, unless the general megtihshareholders has resolved in advance to
such a repayment and provided that the nominakvadihe shares concerned has been reduced by a
corresponding amount by way of an amendment ohdigles of association.

A holder of our ordinary shares who is, or whoéghed to be, a resident of The Netherlands carragne
credit the withholding tax against his Dutch incotae or Dutch corporate income tax liability andyenerally
entitled to a refund of dividend withholding tax@seeding his aggregate Dutch income tax or Dutcparate
income tax liability, provided certain conditionganet, unless such holder of our ordinary sharest
considered to be the beneficial owner of the dinitte

A holder of our ordinary shares who is the recipidividends (the “Recipient'yill not be considered ti
beneficial owner of the dividends for this purpdse

e as aconsequence of a combination of transagtaperson other than the Recipient wholly orlypart
benefits from the dividends, whereby such othes@eretains, directly or indirectly, an intereshisar
to that in the ordinary shares on which the divittewere paid; and

» that other person is entitled to a credit, reidumcor refund of dividend withholding tax thatless than
that of the Recipient.

Tax on Income and Capital Gains

General

The description of taxation set out in this sectbithis Annual Report on Form Z0is not intended for ar
holder of our ordinary shares, who:

* is anindividual and for whom the income or talpgains derived from the ordinary shares are
attributable to employment activities the incormanirwhich is taxable in The Netherlands;

» is an entity that is a resident or deemed ta besident of The Netherlands and that is, in wbolie
part, not subject to or exempt from Netherlandpomate income tax;

e is an entity that has an interest in us to whithparticipation exemptiondeelnemingsvrijstelling or
the participation creditdeelnemingsverrekenings applicable as set out in the Dutch Corporate
Income Tax Act 1969;
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* isafiscal investment institutiorfiécale beleggingsinstellingor an exempt investment institution
(vrijgestelde beleggingsinstellijgas meant in the Netherlands Corporate IncomeAtad969; or

» has directly or indirectly a substantial intereganmerkelijk belang or a deemed substantial interest
as defined in the Netherlands Income Tax Act 200t inkomstenbelasting 20Din us.

Generally a holder of our ordinary shares will haw&uibstantial interest in us within the meanintheffifth
bullet point above if he holds, alone or togethéhvis partner (a statutorily defined term), wreattirectly or
indirectly, the ownership of, or certain other tigbver, shares representing 5% or more of ourissaed and
outstanding capital (or the issued and outstancipital of any class of our shares), or rightsdguire shares,
whether or not already issued, which represenmbyatiene 5% or more of our total issued and outstamdapital
(or the issued and outstanding capital of any aéssir shares) or the ownership of certain piditticipating
certificates that relate to 5% or more of our ahmpuafit and/or to 5% or more of our liquidationgoeeds. A
holder of our ordinary shares will also have a il interest in us if one of certain relativiéghat holder or
of his partner (a statutorily defined term) hasilssantial interest in us.

If a holder of our ordinary shares does not haselsstantial interest, a deemed substantial interiéidte
present if(part of) a substantial interest has been dispogeat is deemed to have been disposed of, without
recognizing taxable gain.

Residents of The Netherlanc

Individuals

An individual who is resident or deemed to be restdn The Netherlands (a “Dutch Resident Indiviua
and who holds our ordinary shares will be subjedt¢therlands income tax on income and/or capéalsy
derived from our ordinary shares at progressivesr@ip to 52%; rate for 2015) if:

» the holder derives profits from an enterprisel@emed enterprise, whether as an entrepreneur
(londerneme) or pursuant to a co-entitlement to the net woftiuch enterprise (other than as an
entrepreneur or a shareholder), to which enterpiiserdinary shares are attributable; or

« the holder derives income or capital gains faum ordinary shares that are taxable as benefits fr
“miscellaneous activities” fesultaat uit overige werkzaamhedeas defined in the Netherlands
Income Tax Act 2001), which include the performaatactivities with respect to our ordinary shares
that exceed regular, active portfolio managemewtrnhaal, actief vermogensbehger

If the conditions above do not apply, any holdeowf ordinary shares who is a Dutch Resident ladiai
will be subject to Netherlands income tax on a degnreturn regardless of the actual income andfutaiagains
derived from our ordinary shares. This deemed netais been fixed at a rate of 4% of the individugield
basis (rendementsgrondsldgnsofar as this exceeds a certain threshbleffingsvrijvermoge. The
individual's yield basis is determined as the faarket value of certain qualifying assets (inclgglias the case
may be, our ordinary shares) held by the DutchdRexsilndividual less the fair market value of cierta
qualifying liabilities, both determined on Janudrgf the relevant year. The deemed return of 4%heiltaxed ¢
a rate of 30% (rate for 2015).

Entities

An entity that is resident or deemed to be resideiihe Netherlands (a “Dutch Resident Entity”)lwil
generally be subject to Netherlands corporate irctam with respect to income and capital gainsveerfrom
our ordinary shares. The Netherlands corporatenieciax rate is 20% for the first €200,000 of theatde
amount, and 25% for the excess of the taxable atawam €200,000 (rates applicable for 2015).

Non-Residents of The Netherlanc

A person who is neither a Dutch Resident Individu@ Dutch Resident Entity (a “Non-Dutch Resident”)
and who holds our ordinary shares is generallysnbject to Netherlands income tax or corporatenretax on
income and capital gains derived from our ordirgrgres, provided that:
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» such Non-Dutch Resident does not derive préfi an enterprise or deemed enterprise, whether as
an entrepreneurgqnderneme) or pursuant to a co-entitlement to the net woftiuch enterprise
(other than as an entrepreneur or a shareholdéchwenterprise is, in whole or in part, carried on
through a permanent establishment or a permangrgsentative in The Netherlands and to which
enterprise or part of an enterprise, as the cayeomeaour ordinary shares are attributable or deeme
attributable;

* inthe case of a Non-Dutch Resident who is dividual, such individual does not derive income or
capital gains from our ordinary shares that aralibexas benefits from “miscellaneous activities”
performed or deemed to be performed in The Nethéslgresultaat uit overige werkzaamheden in
Nederland, as defined in the Netherlands Income Tax Act 208hich include the performance of
activities with respect to our ordinary shares thateed regular, active portfolio management
( normaal, actief vermogensbhehger

* inthe case of a Non-Dutch Resident who is nandividual, such Non-Dutch Resident is neither
entitled to a share in the profits of an enterpeectively managed in The Netherlands noeatitled
to the net worth of such enterprise, other thaway of the holding of securities, to which entespri
our ordinary shares or payments in respect of adinary shares are attributable; and

* inthe case of a Non-Dutch Resident who is dividual, such individual is not entitled to a sham
the profits of an enterprise effectively managede Netherlands, other than by way of the holdif
securities or through an employment contract, t@wknterprise our ordinary shares or payments in
respect of our ordinary shares are attributable.

A Non-Dutch Resident that nevertheless falls uraigrof the exclusions above, may be subject to
Netherlands income tax or Netherlands corporatenmctax on income and capital gains derived from
ordinary shares. In case such holder of our orglishares is considered to be a resident of a gpotiter than
The Netherlands under the provisions of a doublattan convention The Netherlands has concludel svith
country, the following may apply. Such holder oflioary shares may, depending on the terms of abj@cito
compliance with the procedures for claiming besafitder such double taxation convention, be ekgibt a full
or partial exemption from, reduction or refund adtNerlands taxes (if any) on (deemed) income oitalagains
in respect of our ordinary shares, provided sudtidras entitled to the benefits of such doubleton
convention.

Gift or Inheritance Tax

No Netherlands gift or inheritance taxes will beidel on the transfer of our ordinary shares by wohgift
by or on the death of a holder of our ordinary ekawho is neither a resident nor deemed to beider of The
Netherlands for the purpose of the relevant prowisi unless

» the transfer is construed as an inheritanceequést or as a gift made by or on behalf of a pengw,
at the time of the gift or death, is or is deenwetd a resident of The Netherlands for the purpbse
the relevant provisions;

» such holder dies while being a resident or dekrasident of The Netherlands within 180 days after
the date of a gift of our ordinary shares; or

» the gift is made under a condition precedentsarah holder is or is deemed to be a resident ef Th
Netherlands at the time the condition is fulfill

For purposes of Netherlands gift and inheritanggaa individual who is of Dutch nationality wileb
deemed to be a resident of The Netherlands if kébhan a resident in The Netherlands at any timegithe
ten years preceding the date of the gift or hisldea

For purposes of Netherlands gift tax, an individudl, irrespective of his nationality, be deemedde
resident of The Netherlands if he has been a nesiderhe Netherlands at any time during the 12 tmen
preceding the date of the gift.

Applicable tax treaties may override deemed resigen
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Value Added Tax

No Netherlands value added tax will be payable hylder of our ordinary shares in considerationtlfier
issue or offer of our ordinary shares (other thalue added taxes on fees payable in respect atesmot
exempt from Netherlands value added tax).

Other Taxes and Duties

No Netherlands registration tax, custom duty, staloiy or any other similar tax or duty, other thtaurt
fees, will be payable in The Netherlands by a hotdeur ordinary shares in respect of or in corieecwith the
acquisition, ownership and disposition of our oedinshares.

F. Dividends and Paying Agent:
Not applicable

G. Statement by Experts
Not applicable

H. Documents on Display

We have been subject to the periodic reportingathdr informational requirements of the Exchange Ac
since our IPO. Under the Exchange Act, we are redub file annual reports and file or furnish athe
information to the SEC. As a foreign private issweg are exempt under the Exchange Act from, anodimer
things, the rules prescribing the furnishing andtent of proxy statements, and our executive afficdirectors
and principal shareholders are exempt from thertiygpand short-swing profit recovery provisionsi@ined in
Section 16 of the Exchange Act. In addition, weratrequired under the Exchange Act to file padadports
and financial statements with the SEC as frequemniths promptly as U.S. companies whose secuaties
registered under the Exchange Act.

You may obtain copies of information filed with fornished to the SEC by us by mail from the Public
Reference Section of the SEC, 100 F Street, N.@onR1580, Washington, D.C. 20549, at prescribezbratou
may obtain information on the operation of the putéference rooms by calling the SEC at 1-800-%B30.
The SEC also maintains an internet website thaaamnreports, proxy statements and other infolwnatbout
issuers, like us, that file electronically with t8&C. The address of that website is www.sec.gov.

We also make available on our website, www.mobileym, the reports and other information that we fil
with or furnish to the SEC. The reference to oubsite is an inactive textual reference only andnifiermation
that can be accessed through our website is nboptris Annual Report on Form 20-F.

We send our transfer agent and registrar, Ameigtank Transfer & Trust Company LLC (“AST"), a copy
of all notices of shareholders meetings and otlygonts, communications and information that areemad
generally available to shareholders. AST has agi@ethil to all shareholders a notice containing th
information (or a summary of the information) cané&l in any notice of a meeting of our shareholdecgived
by it and will make available to all shareholdeustsnotices and all such other reports and commatioits
received by it.

I. Subsidiary Information
See Exhibit 8.1 to this Annual Report on Form 20-F.

ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURE ON MARKET RISK

Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk

A significant portion of our business is locatedside the United States and, as a result, we genera
revenue and incur expenses denominated in curseattier than the U.S. dollar, a majority of whish i
denominated in the New Israeli Shekel and, to ambesser extent, the Euro and other currencie2014 and
2013, approximately 9% and 4%, respectively, ofsales were denominated in foreign currencies. As a
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result, our revenue can be affected by fluctuatiorfereign currency exchange rates. Because we faaeign
currency expenses, we believe foreign currencyisiglartially offset. For example, an increase %f it the
value of the New Israeli Shekel against the U.#adwould have increased our expenses by $0.3amiih the
year ended December 31, 2014.

Inflation

Inflationary factors, such as increases in our obgibods sold, may adversely affect our operatasyilts.
Although we do not believe that inflation has hadaterial impact on our financial position or reésuf
operations to date, a high rate of inflation in filieire may have an adverse effect on our abilitsnaintain and
increase our gross profit if the selling pricemof products do not increase as much or more tiesetincrease
costs.

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQU ITY SECURITIES

A. Debt Securities
Not applicable

B. Warrants and Rights
Not applicable

C. Other Securities
Not applicable

D. American Depositary Share:

Not applicable
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PART I

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDENDS AND DELIQUENCIES
Not applicable

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HO LDERS AND USE
OF PROCEEDS
DS

To date, the Company has used $2 million of theprateeds of its August 2014 IPO (of the $30 millio
allocated for that purpose) to acquire Ey2Q chipsrfventory. Pending permanent use, the remaitiiaget
proceeds, approximately $193.9 million (before wffg expenses), have been held in cash-equivatertther
highly liquid short-term investment-grade secusitie deposits, as set forth in the prospectushotRO.

See “Item 10B. Memorandum and Avrticles of Assooiatiin this Annual Report on Form 20-F for a
discussion of an amendment to our articles of aason with respect to the voting rights of the dhais of our
ordinary shares.

ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

A. Disclosure Controls and Procedure

We have performed an evaluation of the effectivermdé®ur disclosure controls and procedures that ar
designed to ensure that the material financialreordfinancial information required to be disclosedhe SEC i
recorded, processed, summarized and reported tilBaked on our evaluation, our management, inatudur
Chief Executive Office and Chief Financial Offickgs concluded that our disclosure controls andguhares (e
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of theuSes Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as oétilgeof
the period covered by this report are effectivetvitistanding the foregoing, there can be no asmar¢hat our
disclosure controls and procedures will detectrarower all failures of persons within the Compamylisclose
material information otherwise required to be setifin our reports.

B. Managemen’s Annual Report on Internal Controls over FinancialReporting

This Annual Report does not include a report of agement’s assessment regarding internal contral ove
financial reporting or an attestation report of toenpany’s registered public accounting firm dua teansition
period established by rules of the Securities axch&nge Commission for newly public companies. 8se
Section D below.

C. Attestation Report of the Registered Public Acounting Firm

See statement in Section B above. As an “emergiogth company,” as defined in the JOBS Act, we may
take advantage of certain temporary exemptions frarous reporting requirements, including, but limtted
to, not being required to comply with the audittiestation requirements of Section 404 of SOX (duwedrules
and regulations of the SEC thereunder). When teesmptions cease to apply, we expect to incur iachdit
expenses and devote increased management effatd@msuring compliance with them.

D. Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reprting

Prior to our IPO, we identified a material weakniessur internal control over financial reporting af
December 31, 2013. As defined in the standardblestiad by the U.S. Public Company Accounting Oigits
Board, a “material weakness” is a deficiency, anbmation of deficiencies, in internal control oferancial
reporting, such that there is a reasonable poggithikt a material misstatement of our company'sual or
interim financial statements will not be preventeddetected on a timely basis. The material weskigentifiec
relates to the calculation of basic and dilutechizggs per Class A share for the year ended Dece81her013.
See “— Earnings Per Share” above and Note 8(glit@odited consolidated financial statements inetlid
elsewhere in this Annual Report on Form 20-F. Whitebelieve
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that there is little to no potential for this pattar error to recur because, since our IPO, wionger have
multiple classes of shares, we have taken inigatie improve our internal control over financeggorting and
disclosure and management believes that it hasimghted the required controls in order to mitighaee
material weakness. We retained a globally recognimesiness and accounting advisory firm to assist u
improving our internal processes, including enhame® of accounting policies and procedures, revigwhe
design and implementation of our internal contr@rdfinancial reporting, and providing assistandtw
technical accounting questions and interpretatidve also have an independent audit committee, wiehnsee
the design and implementation of our internal cardwer financial reporting processes. We also jgev
enhanced training to existing financial and accimgnémployees related to U.S. GAAP accounting amerting
issues, and we have hired additional qualifiedgssibnals with U.S. GAAP accounting experience.
Management believes that it has remediated therimateakness we identified.

ITEM 16. [RESERVED]

ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERTS

Our board of directors has determined that EyahBless the audit committee financial expert. MrsBeh
is one of our independent directors for purposdb@NYSE rules.

ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS

In July 2014, our board of directors adopted a Gafd@usiness Conduct that applies to our chief etiee
officer, chief financial officer and controller. @opy of our Company’s Code of Business Conductkthits is
available on our Investor Relations website at:Hitpnobileye.com/investor-relatiord#fault.aspx, and may
also be obtained, without charge, upon a writtejuest addressed to our investor relations depatfridan
Hotzvim, 13 Hartom Street, P.O. Box 45157, Jerusd@&77513 (e-mail: investors@mobileye.com).

ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth, for each of the ngeiadicated, the fees billed by our independegistered
public accounting firm:
December 31
2014 201t

(in thousands)
Services Rendered

Audit @ $1,11¢  $50
Audit-related service® 25 10
Tax® 13 17

1,15 77

(1) Audit fees consist of services that would normalyprovided in connection with statutory and retpria
filings or engagements, including services thatgelty only the independent accountant can reasgnab
provide, and includes audit services in conneatiih our IPO.

(2) Audit-related services are aggregate fees billeédi$surance and related services that are reagaeddtied
to the performance of the audit and are not redarteler audit fees. These fees primarily include
accounting consultation regarding the accountiegttnent of matters that occur in the regular coafse
business.

(3) Tax fees relate to tax compliance, planning andcadv

ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS F OR AUDIT COMMITTEES
Not applicable
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ITEM 16E. PURCHASE OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFF ILIATED
PURCHASERS

Not applicable

ITEM 16F. CHANGE IN REGISTRANT 'S CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANT
Not applicable

ITEM 16G. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act, as well as related rulbsesyuently implemented by the SEC, requires foreign
private issuers, such as us, to comply with varmrporate governance practices. As a foreign twiissuer
whose shares are listed on the NYSE, we have thenaje follow certain Dutch corporate governancagtices
rather than those of the NYSE, except to the extexttsuch laws would be contrary to U.S. securitevs and
provided that we disclose the practices we ardatlatwing and describe the home country practicesane
following. We rely on this “foreign private issuexemption” with respect to the following NYSE regpments:

»  Dutch law requires that our external auditor@ppointed by our general meeting of shareholdeds a
not by our Audit Committee, as required by NYSEpmoate governance standards. Our Audit
Committee will, however, through our board of dicgs make a recommendation each year to our
shareholders for the appointment of our independagistered public accounting firm. In additiony ou
Audit Committee oversees and evaluates the woduofndependent auditors and will recommend
their compensation to our board of directors fqrapal.

 NYSE corporate governance standards require that@areholders be given the opportunity to voi
any equity compensation plans and material revistbareto, except in certain limited cases. Under
Dutch law, shareholder approval is only requiredtifie grant of equity-based compensation to
members of our board of directors, and not forgiant of equity-based compensation to other
employees. In July 2014, prior to our IPO, our gehmeeting of shareholders adopted a resolution
giving our board of directors the power to grantiggbased compensation from time to time to our
directors, up to the maximum number of shares abkilfor grant under our equity incentive plans as
in effect from time to time.

We are exempt from NYS&'quorum requirements applicable to shareholdetingsesince Dutch la
does not contain any minimum quorum requirementstareholder meetings.

 As mandated by Dutch law, the record date foofabur shareholder meetings will be the date ihat
28 days before the date of the meeting. We wilsthot comply with the NYSE requirement that the
record date for a shareholders meeting not beeedhian 30 days before the date of the meeting.

Except as stated above, we comply with the ruleeigdly applicable to U.S. domestic companiesdiste
the NYSE subject to certain exemptions the JOBSphatides to emerging growth companies. However, we
will maintain compliance with the NYSE requireméimat a majority of our board of directors be indegent
within the meaning of the NYSE regulations. We ritathe future decide to use other foreign privatier
exemptions with respect to some or all of the oMhBE listing requirements. Following our home csyn
governance practices, as opposed to the requirertteitwould otherwise apply to a company listedhen
NYSE, may provide less protection than is accotdadvestors under NYSE listing requirements agtile to
domestic issuers. For more information, see “Iteide8/ Information — Risk Factors-We are an “emerging
growth company,” and we cannot be certain if trduoed reporting requirements applicable to “emergin
growth companies” will make our ordinary shares letiractive to investors” and “Item 3. Key Infotina —
Risk Factors—As we are a “foreign private issuer” and intendiaitow certain home country corporate
governance practices, our shareholders do notthaveame protections afforded to shareholdersopenies
that are subject to all NYSE corporate governaegeirements.”

106




TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART IlI

ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Not applicable

ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See the financial statements beginning on pageThd following financial statements and financial
statement schedules are filed as part of this AnRaport on Form 20-F together with the reporthaf t
independent registered public accounting firm:

Financial Statements
Mobileye N.V. and its Consolidated Subsidiaries

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

Audited Consolidated Financial Statements as of Dember 31, 2014 and 2013 and for each of the thr
years in the period ended December 31, 2014

Consolidated Balance Sheets

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Shareholqrsty
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statem:

ITEM 19. EXHIBITS

Number

Exhibit Title

11

1.2

2.1

2.2

2.3

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

Amended and Restated Articles of Association asrated to date; incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 99.2 to the Registrant’'s Report on Form @dkhished to the SEC on December 13, 2014

Rules and Regulations (reglement) of the boardrettbrs; incorporated by reference to Exhibit
3.2 to the Registrant’s Registration StatementamH--1 (SEC File No. 333-201614)

Global Registration Rights Agreement dated as ajust 19, 2013, among the Registrant and all
holders of Series D, E and F Shares; incorporayegfierence to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File N@-336898)

Founders Agreement dated as of August 15, 2013ngrth® Registrant and the investors signatory
thereto; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.2hie Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form
F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Founders Agreement dated as of August 19, 2013pgrtiee Registrant and the investors signatory
thereto; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.8he Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form
F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

The 2003 Share Option Plan, with Israeli Appendixamended; incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’'s Registration Statat on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Form of Indemnification Agreement; incorporatedrbference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File N@-336898)

Employment Agreement, dated July 24, 2014, betvielileye Vision Technologies Ltd. and
Amnon Shashua; incorporated by reference to Exihibhi to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Employment Agreement, dated July 24, 2014, betWéelileye Vision Technologies Ltd. and Ziv
Aviram; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10b4he Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)
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Number

Exhibit Title

4.5

4.6

4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

4.11

4.12%

4.13%

4.14t

4.15t

4.16t

4.17

4.18

8.1

111
121

Employment Agreement, dated July 27, 2014, betvielileye Vision Technologies Ltd. and
Ofer Maharshak; incorporated by reference to ExHibi5 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Employment Agreement dated January 8, 1999, betMedileye Vision Technologies Ltd. and
Gaby Hayon; incorporated by reference to Exhibi6160 the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Employment Agreement dated October 1, 2000, betwarileye Vision Technologies Ltd. and
Elchanan Rushinek; incorporated by reference talixh0.7 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Employment Agreement dated October 14, 2003, betWwsbileye Vision Technologies Ltd. and
Itay Gat; incorporated by reference to Exhibit 110.8he Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

English translation of Unprotected Leasing Agreemnmeade as of January 31, 2008 by and bet
“Atirey Yeda” and Mobileye Technologies Limited ¢HUnprotected Leasing Agreement”);
English summary of addendums thereto and Englatstation of addendum dated June 30, 2014;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to thgiReant's Registration Statement on Form F-1
(SEC File No. 333-196898)

English translation of addendum dated July 24, 201he Unprotected Leasing Agreement;
incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to tlegiRtrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1
(SEC File No. 333-201614)

Summary of a Sub-Lease Agreement dated April 2422Between Mobileye Vision Technologies
Ltd. and OrCam Technologies Ltd., and addendunretiieincorporated by reference to Exhibit
10.11 to the Registrant’s Registration Statemerfanm F-1 (SEC File No. 333-201614)

Agreement dated October 17, 2006, between Mobil@ghnologies Limited and
STMicroelectronics N.V., as amended; incorporatgdeference to Exhibit 10.11 to the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1Q$ite No. 333-196898)

Manufacturing Agreement, dated January 29, 201i8yden Mobileye Technologies Limited and
Golden Vast Macao Commercial Offshore Limited; immoated by reference to Exhibit 10.12 to
the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form(SEC File No. 333-196898)

Purchase Contract, effective February 8, 2011, &etvMobileye Technologies Limited and Ma
Electronics; incorporated by reference to Exhibitl# to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Purchase Contract, effective June 12, 2012, betiidgileye Technologies Limited and Magna
Electronics; incorporated by reference to Exhibitl#h to the Registrant’s Registration Statement
on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Purchase Contract, effective June 12, 2012, betWisdrileye Technologies Limited and Autoliv
Electronics AB; incorporated by reference to Exhilfl.14 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Form of terms and conditions; incorporated by ifiee to Exhibit 10.16 to the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File N@-336898)

2014 Equity Incentive Plan; incorporated by refeeeto Exhibit 4.1 to the RegistrastRegistratio
Statement on Form S-8 (SEC File No. 333-201840)

List of Subsidiaries; incorporated by referenc&xibit 21.1 to the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (SEC File No. 333-196898)

Code of Business Conduct, as adopted by the bdatideators on July 27, 2014
Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarban@siey Act of 200:
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Exhibit Title

12.2
131

13.2

151
101.INS
101.SCH
101.CAL
101.DEF
101.LAB
101.PRE

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant$ection 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification by Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuz
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Consent of Kesselman & Kesselman, independenttezgiépublic accounting firm
XBRL Instance Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Docutne

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Docurhen

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenim

t  Portions of this exhibit have been omitted purstamnfidential treatment requests filed with 8teC.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the shareholders of

MOBILEYE N.V.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated talgineets of Mobileye N.V. (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and 2013tencktated consolidated statements of operatidns, o
comprehensive income (loss), of shareholders’ gaguitl of cash flows, for each of the three yeatbénperiod
ended December 31, 2014. These financial stateraemthe responsibility of the Company’s managenteat
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesaritial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting Oversigharfgo
(United States). Those standards require that ae grhd perform the audit to obtain reasonable assarabout
whether the financial statements are free of neltarisstatement. An audit includes examining, ¢estbasis,
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosurtiifinancial statements. An audit also includegssing the
accounting principles used and significant estismatade by management, as well as evaluating thalbve
financial statement presentation. We believe thatadits provide a reasonable basis for our opinio

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all male®apects, the
consolidated financial position of Mobileye N.V.dits subsidiaries as of December 31, 2014 and a@#i3he

results of their operations and their cash flowssfach of the three years in the period ended DeeeB1, 2014
in conformity with accounting principles generadlgcepted in the United States of America.

Tel Aviv, Israel /sl Kesselman & Kesselman
March 4, 2015 Certified Public Accountants (lsr.)
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers Internafiduimited

Kesselman & Kesselman, Trade Tower, 25 Hamered Street, Tel-Aviv 6812508, Israel,
P.O Box 50005 Tel-Aviv 6150001 Telephone: +972 -3- 7954555, Fax:+972 -3- 7954556, www.pwc.com/il
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MOBILEYE N.V.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31
2014 2013
U.S. dollars in thousand

Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivale 339,88: 72,56(
Restricted and she«-term bank deposit 2,31t 5,08¢
Marketable securitie 32,89t 46,71¢
Trade accounts receivables, 15,80¢ 12,49(
Inventories 17,62¢ 11,35«
Other current asse 9,82( 7,028
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 418,34: 155,23:
LONG-TERM ASSETS
Property and equipment, r 8,78 5,697
Funds in respect of employee rights upon retirer 7,96¢ 6,96:
Other asset 1,307 33¢
TOTAL LONG-TERM ASSETS 18,06 12,99°
TOTAL ASSETS 436,40t 168,22¢

Liabilities and shareholders’ equity
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expel 17,87( 11,09¢
Employee related accrued expen 3,961 3,33¢
Other current liabilitie: 5,73¢ 1,441
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 27,57( 15,87¢
LONG TERM LIABILITIES
Liability in respect of employee rights upon retirent 9,35( 8,31
Long term liabilities 4,81 1,402
TOTAL LONG TERM LIABILITIES 14,16: 9,71%
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (Note 7)
TOTAL LIABILITIES 41,73: 25,59(

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Class B Ordinary shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 250@0@0shares authorized; 6,703,520 issut

and outstanding at December 31, 2013 — 75
Class C Ordinary shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 250000shares at authorized; 3,390,490 is:

and outstanding at December 31, 2! — 35
Class D Ordinary shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 5000@0shares authorized; 32,164,955 iss

and outstanding at December 31, 2 — 41F
Class E Ordinary shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 200000shares authorized; 11,749,700 issued

and outstanding at December 31, 2! — 15E
Class F1 Ordinary shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 05000 shares authorized; 14,326,650 is¢

and outstanding at December 31, 2! — 16E&
Class F2 Ordinary shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 85000 shares authorized; 41,547,280 is¢

and outstanding at December 31, 2! — 48C
Ordinary shares (with liquidation preferences), EM®&L par value: 200,000,000 shares

authorized; 60,559,715 issued and outstanding e¢ber 31, 201 — 68C
Class A Ordinary shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 1@@® shares authorized; 32,070,835 is

and outstanding at December 31, 2! — 34t
Ordinary Shares, EUR 0.01 par value: 1,012,565sh2bes authorized; 214,554,061 issued

outstanding at December 31, 2( 2,511 —
Additional paic-in capital 523,31! 240,56:
Accumulated other comprehensive income (It (181) 612
Accumulated defici (130,97:)  (100,88)

TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY 394,67: 142,63t
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 436,40t 168,22¢

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements
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MOBILEYE N.V.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

REVENUES

COST OF REVENUES

GROSS PROFIT

OPERATING COSTS AND EXPENSES:

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT, net

SALES AND MARKETING

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS)

INTEREST INCOME

FINANCIAL INCOME (EXPENSES), net

PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAXES ON INCOME

BENEFIT (TAXES) ON INCOME

NET INCOME (LOSS)

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE:

Amount allocated to participating shareholders

Adjustment as a result of benefit to participataimgreholders

Net loss applicable to Ordinary shares for 2014 apulicable to Clas
A Ordinary Share for 2013 and 2012

Basic and diluted

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES USED IN
COMPUTATION OF LOSS PER ORDINARY SHARE FOR
2014 AND PER CLASS A ORDINARY SHARE FOR 2013
AND
2012 (IN THOUSANDS)

Basic and diluted

PRO FORMA BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS
PER ORDINARY SHARE (UNAUDITED)

Net loss
Basic and Diluted (unaudited pro forma)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES USED IN
COMPUTATION OF PRO FORMA LOSS PER SHARE
(IN THOUSANDS)

Basic and Diluted (unaudited pro forma)

Year ended December 31

2014

2013 2012

U.S. dollars in thousands except per share de

143,63 81,24¢ 40,28t
37,04( 21,13( 12,21¢
106,59° 60,11¢ 28,06¢
36,93( 22,30¢ 15,86t
12,91 12,33 6,43¢
71,43 10,27: 7,41¢
(14,68:) 15,19¢ (1,652)
1,30¢ 1,05¢ 1,531
(4,44%) 1,38¢ 402
(17,81¢) 17,64¢ 281
(12,26%) 2,27¢ (334)
(30,08¢) 19,92( (53)
— (16,10¢) —
— (229,83!) —
(30,08:)  (226,01) (53)
(0.2¢) (6.02) (—)
107,94 37,477 40,19:
(30,08¢)
(0.15)
207,21«

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements
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MOBILEYE N.V.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (135)

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 201:

U.S. dollars in thousands
NET INCOME (LOSS) (30,082) 19,92( (53)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
Change in net unrealized gains (losses) on marketaiourities (63) 10C 13C
Less: reclassification adjustment for net lossein@ included in net income (73C) 291 41¢
TOTAL OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (792) 391 5A4¢
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (30,877) 20,31: ﬁ

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements
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MOBILEYE N.V.
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Accumulated
Additional other Total
comprehensivi  Accumulated shareholders’
Number paid
of shares ~ Amount in capital income (loss) deficit equity

U.S. dollars in thousands (except for share numbetata)

BALANCE AT JANUARY 1,

2012 191,874,34 2,20t 187,82 (32¢) (120,75¢) 68,94t
Exercise of options 111,54 5 267 272
Comprehensive income 54¢ (53) 49¢€
Share-based compensation 1,85¢ 1,85¢
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
2012 191,985,88 2,21( 189,94 221 (120,807)  71,56¢
Issuance of shares, net of issuance
costs 4,297,99! 55 27,821 27,88:
Exercise of options 6,229,27! 85 9,661 9,74¢
Comprehensive income 391 19,92( 20,31:
Share-based compensation 13,13: 13,13:
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
2013 202,513,14 2,35( 240,56: 61z (100,887) 142,63t

Issuance of Ordinary shares in
connection with initial public
offering, net of issuance costs

$12.2 million 8,325,000 11z 195,79 195,90¢
Exercise of options 3,715,911 49  10,10: 10,15
Comprehensive loss (792) (30,082) (30,877)
Share-based compensation 76,85: 76,85:
BALANCE AT DECEMBER 31,
2014 214,554,06 2,511 523,31! (181) (130,97:) 394,67-

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements
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MOBILEYE N.V.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Year ended December 31

2014

2013

2012

U.S. dollars in thousands

Net income (loss) for the ye (30,08:) 19,92( (53)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to meshcprovided by (used in)
operating activities:
Depreciatior 2,551 1,694 1,24¢
Exchange rate differences on cash and cash equis 3,081 (28C) (10%)
Liability in respect of employee rights upon retirent 1,033 2,17 1,39(
Loss (gain) from funds in respect of employee sgion retiremer 51C (337) (17¢€)
Loss (gain) from marketable securit 1,13¢ (767) 22¢
Loss on disposal of property and equipn — 22 12
Shar«-based compensatic 76,85¢ 13,13 1,85¢
Changes in asset and liabiliti¢
Trade accounts receivables, (3,31€) (5,38¢) (1,75¢)
Other current asse (2,795) (4,102) 18t
Inventories (6,272) (2,07¢) (4,95%)
Other lon¢-term asset (96¢) (67)  (12¢9)
Account payables and accrued expel 6,05¢ 3,59: 86¢
Employecrelated accrued expens 625 7% 514
Other currer-liabilities 4,29¢ (53z)  (79¢€)
Long-term liabilities 3,41( 42C 9
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 56,12¢ 28,18¢  (1,66¢F)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES
Investment in sho-term deposits and restricted c: (33,14¢) (21,75¢) (25,957)
Proceeds from shterm deposits and restricted c: 35,91¢ 26,97« 30,89
Proceeds from maturities / sales of marketablerges. 31,25: 14,34. 35,40:
Purchase of marketable securil (19,36:) (24,16¢) (37,187)
Funds in respect of employee right upon retirer (1,517) (1,73¢) (1,012)
Purchase of property and equipment (5,37¢) (2,592) (1,52¢)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 7,765 (8,93¢) 613
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issuance of shares, net of issuance ¢ 196,36: 28,301 —
Exercise of options 10,15: 9,74¢ 272
Net cash provided by financing activities 206,51!  38,04¢ 272
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 270,40t 57,30: (78C)
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING O F
YEAR 72,56( 14,97¢ 15,65¢
EXCHANGE RATE DIFFERENCES ON CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (3,087) 28C 10z
BALANCE OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 339,88: 72,56( 14,97¢
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ON ACTIVITIES NOT
INVOLVING CASH FLOWS
Non cash purchase of property and equipment 57:¢ 31C 121
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Income taxes paid 2,60¢ 40t 613

The accompanying notes are an integral part of theonsolidated financial statements
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MOBILEYE N.V.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 GENERAL

Organization

Mobileye N.V. was incorporated in the Netherland2001 and is the parent company of the following
wholly owned subsidiaries: Mobileye, Inc., a comparcorporated in the United States (the “US sulbsyd),
Mobileye Technologies Ltd., a company incorporate@yprus (the “Cypriot subsidiary”), Mobileye Vsi
Technologies Ltd., a company incorporated in Is¢ded “Israeli subsidiary”), Mobileye Japan Ltdc@mpany
incorporated in Japan (the “Japanese subsidiavdhileye Germany GmbH, a company incorporated in
Germany (the “German subsidiary”), and Mobileye ?8ervice (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (the “Chinese subsyd).

The Company and its subsidiaries together (the “@om”) is a global leader in the design and
development of camera-based Advanced Driver Asgist&ystems (“ADAS”) covering the entire range of
vision applications for onboard driving assistance.

The Company’s Chief Operating Decision Maker masadbge Company on the basis of two reportable
segments: (i) Original Equipment Manufacturing (1@ and (ii) After Market (“AM”). The OEM segment
supplies core intelligence of complete systemsi¢o T manufacturers in the automotive industrythia OEM
segment the Company supplies System on Chip (Stehvincludes core intelligence to be ultimately
implemented within new vehicles through Tier 1 mfacturers who are system integrators to the autemot
industry. In the AM segment the Company sells apete system which offers a variety of advancededtri
assistance functions to customers being primaeistfcommercial vehicles, fleet management systewigers,
new vehicle dealers and importers either diretilsqugh distributors and insurance companies. Beenate 2j
and 12b for the Company’s major customers.

Initial public offering

On August 6, 2014, the Company completed its inttiolic offering (IPO), which included an issuarafe
8,325,000 Ordinary shares (with no liquidation prefice), at $25 per share, before underwritingodists and
commissions.

The IPO generated proceeds to the Compar§§18f7.7 million net of underwriting discounts and
commissions, before $1.8 million of expenses rdl&dethe IPO. In connection with the IPO, the Comypalso
generated proceeds 1.5 million from the exercise of 1,463,051 stogitions.

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles (“U.S. GAAP").

a. Use of estimate

The preparation of consolidated financial statesé@ntonformity with U.S. GAAP requires managente
make estimates and assumptions that affect thetegpamounts of assets and liabilities, and disctastingent
liabilities at the date of the financial statementsd the reported amounts of revenues and expdoseg the
years reported. Actual results could differ frorngl estimates. On an on-going basis, managemdna&@&its
estimates, judgments and assumptions. The mosfisign estimates and assumptions relate to witgrdof
inventory, employee compensation in connection wghity awards, realizability of deferred tax asset
provision for uncertain tax positions and contingjes.

b. Functional currency

The currency of the primary economic environmentirich the operations of the Company and its
subsidiaries are conducted is the United Statdardtthe “Dollar”).
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MOBILEYE N.V.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Virtually most product revenues of the Company imdubsidiaries are derived in Dollars. Most pasgs
of materials and components are made in Dollargs;Tthe functional currency of each of the Compamy its
subsidiaries is the Dollar.

Monetary accounts maintained in currencies otham the Dollar are re-measured using the official
exchange rate at the balance sheet date. Opelammints and non-monetary balance sheet accatmts
measured and recorded at the rate in effect atdteeof the transaction or average rates. Theteféédoreign
currency re-measurements are recorded in the ddatad statements of operations as “financial ineom
(expenses)”.

c. Principles of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transagtiocluding profits from intercompany sales natngalized
outside the Company, have been eliminated uporotidation.

d. Cash and cash equivalent

All highly liquid investments, which include shddgrm bank deposits, that are not restricted as to
withdrawal or use and the period to maturity of ebhdloes not exceed three months at the time oftment, ar
considered to be cash equivalents.

e. Shor-term and restricted bank deposits

Short-term and restricted bank deposits are depedih maturities of more than three months b than
one year. The short-term and restricted bank depimsilude approximately $2.2 million and $2.5 roifl as of
December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2013, resplgctagecollateral for bank guarantees. In additaimtal of
$77 thousand and $78 thousand are restricted kateral for the Company’s credit cards as of Decem®i,
2014 and December 31, 2013, respectively.

f. Marketable securities

The Company classifies its investments in marketabturities as available-for-sale. Accordinglgsth
securities are measured at fair value with unredlgains and losses reported in accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss) (“OCI”). Realized gaind losses on sales of investments, and a decliredue
that is considered as other than temporary, atedad in the consolidated statements of operatisri$inancial
income (expenses), nethterest and amortization and accretion of premiand discounts on debt securities
recorded as interest income.

The Company classifies marketable securities aitadlefor-sale as either current or non-currergdabon
maturities and management’s reasonable expectattbrregard to those securities.

An other-than-temporary impairment has occurrédégfCompany does not expect to recover the amdrtize
cost basis of the debt security. If the Companysdu# intend to sell the impaired debt securityl &is not
more likely than not it will be required to selktldebt security before the recovery of its amodtizest basis, th
amount of the other-than-temporary impairment reczeyl is limited to the portion attributed to thredit loss.
The remaining portion of the other-than-temporampairment related to other factors is recognizeatier
comprehensive income (loss).

h. Risk factors

Concentration of credit risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject@wmmpany to concentration of credit risk consishg@ipally
of cash equivalents, short-term deposits and makesecurities.
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MOBILEYE N.V.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

The Company’s cash equivalents, short-term depasisnarketable securities are mainly invested with
major Israeli, Swiss and U.S. banks. Managemei\es that the financial institutions holding thengpany’s
investments are financially sound, and accordingliynimal credit risk exists with respect to theseastments.
See also notes 2j and 12b for the Company’s maijgtomers.

Dependence on a single supplie

The Company purchases all its chips from a singpgker. Any problems that occur and persist in
connection with the manufacture, delivery, quatitycost of the assembly and testing of inventoyid¢dave a
material adverse effect on the Company’s busineddiaancial condition. The agreement expires on
December 31, 2022.

i. Fair value measurement

The Company measures fair value and disclosesdhie measurements for financial and non-financial
assets and liabilities. Fair value is based orptiee that would be received to sell an asset i feetransfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between margatticipants at the measurement date. The accaustémdard
establishes a fair value hierarchy that prioritiabservable and unobservable inputs used to metsuralue
into three broad levels, which are described below:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active marketsdhataccessible at the measurement date for
identical assets or liabilities. The fair valuerhiehy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs

Level 2: Observable prices that are based on inputs noedumt active markets, but corroborated by
market data or active market data for similar lattidentical assets or liabilities.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs are used when little or no etadata is available. The fair value
hierarchy gives the lowest priority to Level 3 it@u

In determining fair value, the Company utilizesuadlon techniques that maximize the use of obségvab
inputs and minimize the use of unobservable infuthe extent possible and considers credit rigtsin
assessment of fair value.

j- Trade accounts receivable, ne

The Company’s accounts receivable balances aréralmecompanies primarily in the car manufacture
industry. Credit is given based on an evaluatioa ofistomes financial condition and generally, collaterahe
required. Trade accounts receivable from salesafyrts are typically due from customers within-30 days.
Trade accounts receivable balances are statedoatresndue from customers net of an allowance fabtfal
accounts. Accounts outstanding longer than thégiral contractual payment terms, are consideretl ghae.
The Company determines its allowance by considexingmber of factors, including the length of tiaweount:
receivable are past due, the Company’s previosshisgory from such customers, customer’s currbiityato
pay its obligation to the Company. Payments suleatyureceived on such receivables are creditedeto
allowance for doubtful accounts. The allowancedoubtful accounts is determined with respect t@ijpedebts
that are doubtful of collection. The Company writdsaccounts receivable when they become unciitliect

k. Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or miavklue. Cost is computed using standard costiwhi
approximates average cost. The Company analyzeadjusts excess and obsolete inventories primiaaied
on future demand forecasts. Although the Comparkesiavery effort to ensure the
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MOBILEYE N.V.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

accuracy of its forecasts of future product demang, significant unanticipated changes in demand or
technological developments would significantly iroptne value of the inventory and the reported atieg
results. If actual market conditions are less fabter than the Company’s assumptions, additiondaévdowns
may be required.

Inventories are written-down for estimated excesb@bsolescence, based on assumptions about future
demand and market conditions. Once written-dowreva lower cost basis for that inventory is estdigds
I. Property and equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost angéciaped over their estimated useful lives usirgy th
straight-line method.

Annual rates of depreciation are as follows:

%

Computers and electronic equipment (mainly 33%) 15-33
Vehicles 15
Office furniture and equipment 7
Equipment 33

Leasehold improvements are amortized by the stirdilgh method over the shorter of the term of #esk
and estimated useful life of the improvements.

m. Impairment of long-lived assets

Long-lived assets held and used by the Companyeaiewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amaofitite assets may not be recoverable. In the gélahthe sum
of the expected future cash flows (undiscountedveititbut interest charges) of the long-lived asgetsss than
the carrying amount of such assets, an impairntearige would be recognized, and the assets woulditien
down to their estimated fair values.

n. Research and development, n¢

Research and development expenses are expenseaiasd, and consist primarily of personnel, ftieii,
equipment and supplies for research and developauttintties.

Participations in research and development expdosessearch and development projects are recedniz
on the basis of the costs incurred and are deddictedresearch and development expenses in thenstat of
operations. The Company does not receive any additcompensation or royalties upon completiorhef t
project. The participation reimbursement receivedhie Company is not dependent on having futuretiten
from the project. All intellectual property genexdtfrom these arrangements are exclusively ownetdoy
Company.

Reimbursement payments for research and develogngjetts are recognized on the basis of the costs
incurred and are deducted from (netted againstarel and development expenses in the statement of
operations. Research and development reimbursemmifits884 thousand, $10,511 thousand and $9,994
thousand were offset against research and develtusts in the years ended in December 31, 2@148 and
2012, respectively.

0. Comprehensive income (los:

Comprehensive income (loss) consists of net incoss) and other gains and losses affecting edfoitty
under US GAAP are excluded from the net incomesfldsor the Company, such items consist of
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MOBILEYE N.V.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 2 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

unrealized gains and losses on available-for-saiargties. Realized gains and losses on availairisdle
securities are included in the consolidated statésnaf operations as “financial income (expenses). n

p. Revenue recognitior

The Company’s revenue results from sales of itdlyets sold through its two operating segments, ifalg
Equipment Manufacturing (“OEM”) and After MarketAM").

The Company recognizes revenue related to saliés mfoducts, net of volume discounts, provided {Ha
persuasive evidence of an arrangement existsldiyery has occurred, (iii) the price is fixedd®terminable
and (iv) collectibility is reasonably assured. Dety is considered to have occurred when the ptadwshipped
to the customer and title and risk of loss havesferred to the customer. The Company evaluates the
creditworthiness of its customers to determine dipgtropriate credit limits are established priothi® acceptant
of an order.

Revenue of sales of products to resellers andhistrs occurs upon delivery of products to thelless
and distributors. The Company does not give digtats any adjustments to cover price adjustmerits. T
Company does not provide rights of return to itstomers.

g. Shipping and handling

Shipping and handling costs on sales are classiiezlcomponent of cost of revenues. The Company
generally does not charge its customers for supbreses.

r. Share-based compensatiol

Equity awards granted to employees and direct@secounted for using the grant date fair value. fair
value of share-based payment transactions is digtednbased on the Black-Scholes option pricing rhadé
recognized as an expense over the requisite seueioed, net of estimated forfeitures. The Compestymates
forfeitures based on historical experience anctguatied future conditions.

The Company elected to recognize compensationf@oatvards that have a graded vesting schedulg usin
the accelerated multiple-option approach.

Equity awards granted to non-employees are re-medsit each reporting period at fair value untiyth
have vested. The fair value of equity awards isgdnto the statement of operations over the sepéciod.

s. Taxes on incom

Deferred taxes are determined utilizing the assedisliabilities method, which is based on the estad
future tax effects of the differences between tharfcial accounting and tax bases of assets apiditles under
the applicable tax laws. Deferred tax balancecangputed using the tax rates expected to be icteffeen
those differences reverse. A valuation allowanceapect of deferred tax assets is provided ifedhagpon the
weight of available evidence, it is more likely thaot that some or all of the deferred tax assétsat be
realized.

The Company did not provide for deferred taxestattable to dividend distribution out of retaineckt
exempt earnings from “Benefitted Enterprise” anceferred Company” plans since such earnings aesded
to be permanently reinvested or can be recoveradam-free manner. Management considers suchmeetai
earnings to be essentially permanent in duratitve. Company may incur additional tax liabilitieslie event of
intercompany dividend distributions by its subsidis. Such additional tax liabilities in respecfafeign
subsidiaries has not been provided for in the FizduStatements, as it is the
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Company’s intention to permanently reinvest theifgm subsidiaries’ earnings. With respect to doinest
susidiaries, the Company records a deferred thiitiaunless the reported amount of the investnoamt be
recovered tax-free without significant cost, anel @ompany expects to ultimately use that meansaafvery.

Results for tax purposes for the Israeli subsidéeymeasured and reflected in NIS (see also Nofene
Company has not provided deferred income taxeb@differences resulting from changes in exchaageand
indexation.

The Company follows a two-step approach to recaggiand measuring uncertain tax positions. The firs
step is to evaluate the tax position for recognitiy determining if the weight of available evidenndicates
that it is more likely than not that the positioilWwe sustained on audit. The second step is tasue the tax
benefit as the largest amount that is more than a8y of being realized upon ultimate resolutidme
Company’s policy is to include interest and peealtielated to unrecognized tax benefits within inedax
expense. Such liabilities are classified as lomgt@inless the liability is expected to be setttedash within
twelve months from the balance sheet date.

t. Provision for warranty

The Company provides warranties for its productsctvvary with respect to each contract and in
accordance with the nature of each specific prodacterms of one to three years.

The Company estimates the costs that may be irtunder its warranty and records a liability in the
amount of such costs at the time the product igpgld. The Company periodically assesses the adgqfiéts
recorded warranty liabilities and adjusts the ant®as necessary.

Provision for warranty as of December 31, 2014 203, was $470 thousand and $307 thousand,
respectively.

u. Contingencies

Certain conditions may exist as of the date tharfaial statements are issued, which may resultossato
the Company but which will only be resolved whe @n more future events occur or fail to occur. @any’s
management assesses such contingent liabilitigshwiherently involves an exercise of judgmentasisessing
loss contingencies related to legal proceedingsatteapending against the Company that may rasgiich
proceedings, Company’s management evaluates theiped merits of any legal proceedings as welhas t
perceived merits of the amount of relief sough¢xgected to be sought.

Management applies the guidance in ASC 450-20-2nvetssessing losses resulting from contingendies. |
the assessment of a contingency indicates thapitobable that a material loss has been incumddre amount
of the liability can be estimated, then the esteddiability is recorded in the Company’s finanag#tements. If
the assessment indicates that a potential matesgkcontingency is not probable but is reasonpbssible, or i
probable but cannot be estimated, then the nafuteaontingent liability, together with an estimaf the
range of possible loss if determinable and materalld be disclosed. Legal fees are expensed asrét:

v. Basic and diluted net profit (loss) per shar:

Basic earnings (losses) per share are presentamhformity with the two-class method required for
participating securities for the periods priortieit conversion upon the Company’s IPO in Augusi4@vhen
all classes of shares were converted to Ordinaayesh

Under the tweelass method, the earnings per share for eachaiabmres are calculated assuming 100
the Company’s earnings are distributed as dividéndsch class of shares based on their contratgis. In
addition, since all classes other than Class Aranyi shares, did not participate in losses, forytes ended
December 31, 2014 and 2012 these shares are hadéddn the computation of basic loss per share.
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Basic earnings (losses) per share are computeviolyng) net income or loss applicable to ordinary
shareholders by the weighted average number os@asdinary shares outstanding for each perioor pa the
Company’s IPO and by the weighted-average numberdihary shares for the periods commencing the
Company'’s IPO.

Diluted earnings (losses) per share are calculatatividing net income or loss applicable to ordjna
shareholders by the fully-diluted weighted-averagmber of Class A ordinary shares outstanding dugach
period prior to the Company’s IPO and by the wesgkhaverage number of ordinary shares for the pgriod
commencing the Company’s IPO.

For the years ended December 31, 2014 and 201@,tatanding options and all Ordinary shares (with
liquidation preference) and Class B, C, D, E, Fd BB shares were excluded from the calculatiohefiluted
earnings per share, since their effect was aniiidéd. For the year ended December 31, 2012, &dtanding
options and all Ordinary shares (with liquidatioeference) and Class B, C, D and E shares weradeatlfrom
the calculation of the diluted earnings per shsirge their effect was anti-dilutive.

During the year ended December 31, 2013, as a i@shle investment transaction described in ngtettde
Company redeemed 43,456,175 aggregate sharessésIB, C, D, E and Ordinary shares (with liquatati
preference), which were subsequently converteddassF1 and Class F2 shares and sold to new imsebto
connection with this redemption, the Company tranmsfl value to the preferred shareholders, which wa
calculated as the difference between (1) the fainey of consideration transferred and (2) the éaagryalue of
the 43,456,175 shares of classes B, C, D, E anth&@ydshares (with liquidation preferences) surezad. The
difference, in the amount 230 million, was recorded as a reduction to nedine applicable to Class A
Ordinary shares used to calculate basic and dilotiper share.

Pro forma basic net loss per share for the yeagagBacember 31, 2014, as presented on the fabe of t
statement of operations, was computed to give &fifeitie conversion of all convertible preferredr&s using
the as-if converted method into ordinary shareétag conversion had occurred as of the beginointpe
period presented.

w. Impact of recently issued accounting pronouncenms

On May 28, 2014, the FASB and IASB issued theivenged standard on revenue recognition. The
objective of the revenue standard (ASC 606) istwige a single, comprehensive revenue recognitiodel for
all contracts with customers to improve compargbiliithin industries, across industries, and acuzgstal
markets. The revenue standard contains principkgsain entity will apply to determine the measunenoé
revenue and timing of when it is recognized. Thdaulying principle is that an entity will recognizevenue to
depict the transfer of goods or services to custeraean amount that the entity expects to beledtit in
exchange for those goods or services. For publitpemies, the revenue standard is effective fofitkeinterim
period within annual reporting periods beginninggaDecember 15, 2016 (as of January 1, 2017 éor th
Company) and early adoption is not permitted. Tben@any is currently evaluating the impact the stadalvill
have on its financial statements.

In August 2014, the Financial Accounting Stand@dard (“FASB”) issued amended guidance related to
disclosure of uncertainties about an entity’s aptlh continue as a going concern. The new guidaageires
management to evaluate whether there is substaetidit about the entity’s ability to continue agoéng
concern and, as necessary, to provide relateddttlisclosures. The guidance has an effectivealate
December 31, 2016. The Company believes that thptiad of this new standard will not have a matengact
on its consolidated financial statements.

x. Adoption of new Accounting Standard

In July 2013, the FASB issued ASU No. 2013-11 Rrd®on of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net
Operating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax Lossadrax Credit Carryforward Exists (ASU No.
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2013-11). ASU No. 2013-11 amends the guidance wiffticounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 740
“Income Taxes”, to require entities to present areaognized tax benefit, or a portion of an unreded tax
benefit, in the financial statements as a redudticm deferred tax asset for a net operating lasyforward, a
similar tax loss, or a tax credit carryforward. T®empany adopted ASU No. 2013-on January 1, 2014. The
were no material presentation changes resulting fie adoption of ASU No. 2013-11.

NOTE 3 SUPPLEMENTARY CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS INFORMATION

December 31
2014 2013

U.S. dollars in thousand

a. Other current assets

Government institutions 1,02¢ 85¢€
Prepaid expenses 1,94¢ 1,26(
Deferred taxes 60% 3,02¢
Other account receivables 5,271 1,26:
Other 964 621

9,82( 7,02t

b. Property and equipment, net

Computers and electronic equipment 13,84¢ 9,32:
Vehicles 617 65€
Office furniture and equipment 66E 541
Leasehold improvements 3,83¢ 2,92¢
Equipment 47€ 35€
19,44¢ 13,80«

Less-accumulated depreciation and amortization 10,65¢ 8,107
8,78 5,691
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Depreciation expense totaled $2,551 thousand, 1f&8usand and $1,245 thousand in the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013, and 2012, respectively.

December 31
2014 2013

U.S. dollars in thousand

c. Account payable and accrued expenses
Account payable 12,01¢ 7,55(
Accrued expenses 5,854 3,54¢

17,87( 11,09¢

d. Other current Liabilities

Institutions 2,21t 9C
Deferred income 1,30z 1,052
Advances from customers 1,18( 29¢
Other 1,041 —

5,73¢ 1,441

NOTE 4 FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

The Company measures fair value and disclosesdhie measurements for financial assets and lisili
Fair value is based on the price that would beivedeto sell an asset or paid to transfer a ligbiti an orderly
transaction between market participants at the urea®ent date.

The fair value of marketable securities is baseduoted market prices in active markets (leveBince
valuations are based on quoted prices that ardyeantl regularly available in an active marketiuadion of
these products does not entail a significant degf@edgment.

As of December 31, 2014, the Company held goverhiargsh corporate debt securities with an aggregated
cost of $33,228 thousand and an aggregated fair val&32f895 thousand. The gross unrealized gains and
losses as of December 31, 2014 were $68 thousah$i249 thousand, respectively. The aggregate édirevof
investments with unrealized losses as of Decembe?®14 was $19,529 thousand.

During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coympaoegnized other-than-temporary impairment of
$152 thousand related to debt securities.

As of December 31, 2013, the Company held debtriesuand equity securities. The cost, aggregaite f
value and unrealized holding gains and losses hgrmsacurity types were as follows:

As of December 31, 201
Aggregate  Unrealized

Cost fair value gains, net

U.S. dollars in thousands

Government and corporate debentures 4551¢ 46,11« 59¢€
Other (equity securities) 58¢ 604 16

46,10¢  46,71¢ 612

During the years ended December 31, 2013 and 20 b2her-thartemporary impairments were recogni;
by the Company.
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Contractual maturities of investments in availalolesale debt securities were as follows:

Fair Value as
of
December 31,

2014
Due in 1 year 7,732
Due in 2 years 8,011
Due in 3 years 5,72¢
Due in 4 years 6,112
Due in 5 years 3,77:
Due after 5 years 1,541

32,89t

Shortterm deposits included in cash and cash equivalests $192,456 thousand and $31,935 thousa
of December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

The carrying amount of financial instruments, whilctiude cash and cash equivalents, accounts rdeiv
and accounts payable, approximate fair value becaitheir generally short maturities.
NOTE 5 INVENTORIES

Inventories are composed of the following:

December 31

2014 2013
U.S. dollars in thousand
Raw materials 2,07(C 2,381
Work in process 9 282
Finished goods and spare parts 15,547 8,68¢
Total 17,62¢ 11,35«

Inventory of $156 thousand, $23 thousand and $231 thousandmiteen down, as a component of cost of
revenues, in the years ended December 31, 2013,&a12012, respectively.

NOTE 6 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Israeli labor laws and agreements require sevenaaygments upon dismissal of an employee or upon
termination of employment in certain other circuamstes. The Company’s liability in respect of empleyights
upon retirement required by Israeli law is covdmgdieposits with financial institutions and by aadr

The Israeli subsidiary’s liability in respect ofdeli employeesfights upon retirement is calculated pursi
to Israeli Severance Pay Law based on the mosttreatary of the employees multiplied by the nundferears
of employment as of the balance sheet date. Théitjeis presented on the undiscounted basislasgterm
liability. The Israeli subsidiary records an expefar the net increase in its severance liabilitye Israeli
subsidiary’s liability for all of its Israeli empjees is covered for by monthly deposits with seveggpay funds.

The deposited funds include profits accumulatetbupe balance sheet date. The deposited fundsmay
withdrawn only upon the fulfillment of the obligatis pursuant to Israeli Severance Pay Law or labor
agreements. The value of the deposited funds mdhbas the cash surrender value of these policiesratudes
profits (or loss) accumulated through the balamezsdate. The amounts funded are presented selpast
funds in respect of employee rights upon retirement
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Severance pay expenses for the Israeli subsidiarg $1,990 thousand, $1,433 thousand and $1,321
thousand for the years ended December 31, 2013, 204 2012, respectively.

The US subsidiary has a defined contribution retest plan (the “Contribution Plan”) under the psions
of Section 401(k) of the Internal Revenue Code (€9 that covers eligible U.S. employees as definatie
Contribution Plan. Participants may elect to cdmité up to a maximum amount prescribed by the Cbde.US
subsidiary, at its discretion, makes matching ¢buations equal to the mandatory minimum 3% nontelec
(employer level) safe harbor contribution of thetipgpant's annual compensation. For the years énde
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 the US subsidiade 401(k) Plan contributions of approximately $56
thousand, $87 thousand, and $57 thousand, respkgctiv

NOTE 7 COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Commitments

a. Lease agreement

In September 2013, the Israeli subsidiary exerdisegption to extend the existing operating lease
agreement for a period of additional 5 years uhélend of February 2019. In July 2014, the Ismadbsidiary
came to an agreement with the lessor with regartisetlease terms, which included an amendmehittease
payments rate, as well as the lease of additigaades The Israeli subsidiary was also granted &orofo extens
the lease term for an additional five year peratdhen-current market rates.

As part of this agreement the Israeli subsidiany $ecured a bank guarantee in the amount of appadedy
$1,283 thousand (denominated in NIS).

Rent expenses for the Company for the years endedrbber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012 were $2,211
thousand, $1,447 thousand and $1,060 thousancatasgly.

The Israeli subsidiary subleases to a related pattich is an entity co-founded by the Chairmarhef
Board and CTO and the President and CEO of the @oyn(fthe Company’s founders”) 850 square meters
(approximately 9,000 square feet) from the Israglisidiary for monthly rent 6829 per square meter. The lease
expires on August 1, 2015 with automatic one yeaewals. The Company believes the sublease teams ar
comparable to those that would have been reachaa &mm’s-length negotiation.

Future minimum annual lease commitments underfal®Company’s operating lease agreements are as

follows:
U.S. dollars
in
thousands
Years ending December 31.:
2015 2,141
2016 2,097
2017 2,08
2018 2,08
2019 347
8,74¢

Other lease agreement

The Israeli subsidiary leases vehicles under velupkrating lease agreements. Vehicles lease eegéars
the Company for the years ended December 31, 20148 and 2012 were $661 thousand, $600 thousadd, an
$554 thousand, respectively.
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Future minimum annual lease commitments under tipgriease agreements are as follows:

U.S. dollars
in
thousands
Years ending December 31.:
2015 42t
2016 317
2017 171

91&

b. Royalty and commissions bearing agreemen

The Company signed a number of license agreemadteahnology transfer agreements with third partie
The agreements allow the Company to utilize andrkeye the third parties’ technology in order tegnate it
into the Company’s products (“Integrated Produdti)consideration thereof, the Company is obligatepay
royalties to each of the third parties, for each ahthe applicable Integrated Product sold taeotbarties. As a
result, the Company recorded during the years ebdegmber 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012, expenses of
approximately $1,768 thousand, $920 thousand abd $®usand in the financial statements, respdgtive
These expenses are classified as a componenttaffaeyenues.

In connection with multiple contractor and agentagnents, the Company is committed to pay
commissions ranging between 1% and 3% of the dea@es earned directly as a result of these agmsme
These expenses are classified as a componenesfaad marketing.

c. Bank guarantees

As of December 31, 2014, the Israeli subsidiary $exlired several bank guarantees in a total anodunt
approximately $1,599 thousand (denominated in Mi&nly in connection with a lease agreement and the
employment encouragement plan of the Israeli Mipist Industry, Trade and Labor plan it had undesta

d. Contingent liabilities:

In October 2012, the Cypriot and Israeli subsigiareceived a lawsuit filed by a former consult#rthe
Cypriot subsidiary, claiming Euro 260 thousand tagpnately $340 thousand) for early terminatiorthod
consultancy agreement, reputational damages asg#tt On January 22, 2014, the Court rejectetbtinger
consultant’s claim and the case was dismissed.

NOTE 8 EQUITY

Share capital

a. As of December 31, 2014, the issued shareatabithe Company is composed of Ordinary shares at
EUR 0.01 par value. As of December 31, 2013, thieeid share capital of the Company was composed
of Class A Ordinary shares (with no liquidationfgrence), Ordinary shares (with liquidation
preference), Class B, C, D, E, F1 and F2 sharkat BIUR 0.01 par value.

b. On August 6, 2014, the Company completed i@&. FPor additional information see note 1.

c. InJuly 2014, the Company’s shareholders ammt@/five-for-one stock split of all classes of the
Company’s shares, which was effective July 10, 204 stock split had the following effects: (i)
each outstanding share of any class was increadatshares of the same class; (ii) each outstgnd
warrant or option to purchase Ordinary shares waggstionately
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increased on a five-for-one basis; and (iii) thereise price of each outstanding warrant or option
purchase Ordinary shares was proportionately deedean a one-for-five basis. All of the share and
per share amounts have been adjusted, on a ré¢mbesis, to reflect this stock split.

As part of the stock split, the shareholders apgadaan increase to the number of authorized shéres o
all classes of shares to 500,000,000 shares aztidlooi which 200,000,000 are authorized ordinary
shares, 100,000,000 are authorized class A st25@%)0,000 are authorized class B shares,
25,000,000 are authorized class C shares, 50,0D@@0authorized class D shares, 20,000,000 are
authorized class E shares, 15,000,000 are autdariass F1 shares and 65,000,000 are authorized
class F2 shares. The accompanying financial statsnaed notes to the financial statements give
retroactive effect to these increases for all gkvipresented.

In addition, in July 2014, the Company’s Articleer amended to convert all classes of shares into
one class of Ordinary shares on a 1:1 basis an@dh®pany’s shareholders approved the increase to
the number of authorized shares into 1,012,5650t2knary shares, each at EUR 0.01 par value.

d. On August 15, 2013 the Company amended itl&gtiof Association. Accordingly, the authorized
shares were divided differently among the diffedasses of shares (while the total authorizedeshar
capital remained the same). Following this amendpearhorized shares are as follows: 100,000,000
class A shares, 200,000,000 Ordinary shares, 2800@lass B shares, 25,000,000 class C shares,
50,000,000 class D shares, 20,000,000 class Essanade80,000,000 class F shares divided into (i)
15,000,000 F1 shares and (ii) 65,000,000 F2 shares.

e. Prior to the IPO, in August 2014, the Compaag tifferent classes of shares, all of which coteger
to Ordinary shares on a onedoe basis in connection with the IPO. Significamtrts were as follow:

Voting

The holders of Ordinary Shares (with liquidatioeference), and Class A, B, C, D, E, F1 and F2 @rgin
shares had identical voting rights. The holderslags D shares had a veto right with respect taicerelated
party transactions and the right to designateectlir of the Company. The holders of F1 sharegtmadght
effectively to designate a director of the Compartye holders of Class D shares and Class F shadethé righ
to veto further issuances of Class D shares arssEa&hares, respectively. All of the special sglescribed
above were terminated upon the closing of the IR@ugust 6, 2014.

Conversior

Each holder of Class B, C, D, E, F1 and F2 shamdsle right, at any time and from time to time, to
convert each share held by the holder into ong fidid and non-assessable Ordinary share (witldidion
preference). The Class A shareholders had the tagtanvert to Ordinary shares (with liquidatioefarence),
however, their shares did not have any additioigats nor liquidation preference as a result ohstenversion.
Immediately prior to the IPO, all shares of the @amy were automatically converted into Ordinaryrebawith
no effective liquidation rights.

Anti-Dilution Rights

Certain Ordinary shares (with liquidation prefe@na@nd certain Class B, C, D, E, F1 and F2 sHaads
certain contractual anti-dilution rights.

At any time prior to an initial public offering #fie Company’s securities, in the event the Comjissued
any shares to a third party in return for an investt (the “Subsequent Investment”) and the Subsgque
Investment is made based on a price per shara®fitan the “Adjusted Price Per Share” (as
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defined in the relevant Investment Agreement tocWia shareholder is a party), then the Investasi¢éined in
the relevant agreement) shall be issued additgimales of the Company of the relevant class ofshzeld by
such shareholder, for no further considerationhshat the number of shares of the relevant clakslyy such
Investor shall be increased to such number of steseuch Investor would have held had it origynalirchases
such shares for the lower price at which sharepramgosed to be issued.

The Company determined that the anti-dilution feata a contingent beneficial conversion featurihat
date of issuance. Since this was contingent ufatuse event that never occurred, it has not beearded in th
consolidated financial statements as of Decembge2@1l4.

Liquidation Preferenc:

In the event of any liquidation, dissolution or @ing up of the Company, the Company undertook (ihat
each holder of Class B and Ordinary shares (withidiation preference) that is a party to an investm
agreement providing for a liquidation preferencd &i) each holder of Class C, D, E, F1 and F2 abahall be
entitled to receive, out of the assets of the Campavested by such holder in the Company (the ‘Sberation
Amount of such holder). Such distribution will bede pro rata to all holders entitled to a liquidatpreference
until each holder has received the full ConsideraAmount to which it is entitled, after which sumblder will
not participate in the preferential distributiorftek the full preferential amount referred to abtnes been
distributed to all shareholders entitled therete, Company’s remaining assets and funds available f
distribution will be distributed pro rata to allasleholders. There was no deemed liquidation tlatires
redemption of the shares.

Following is a summary of the equity activity ftvetyears ended December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

Ordinary
Class A Class B Class C Class D Class E Class F1 Class F2  shares (with
Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary Ordinary liquidation
shares shares shares shares shares shares shares shares preference)
Number of shares — issued and outstanding
Balance, as of December 1, 2( 40,190,59 11,913,13 4,818,79! 43,469,53 14,047,43 — — 77,434,84
Exercise of options — — — — — — — 111,54(
Balance, as of December 31, 2( 40,190,59 11,913,13 4,818,79! 43,469,53 14,047,43 — — 77,546,38
Exercise of option — — — — — — — 6,229,271
Issuance of F1 shar — — — — —  4,297,99 — —
Investment transaction (see note 8(g)) (8,119,761) (5,209,61!) (1,428,30!) (11,304,58) (2,297,73!) 10,028,65 41,547,28 (23,215,94)
Balance, as of December 31, 2013 32,070,83 6,703,521 3,390,491 32,164,95 11,749,70 14,326,65 41,547,28 60,559,71
Exercise of optionsprior to IPO — — — — — — — — 1,463,05
Conversion upon IPO closir 203,976,19 (32,070,83) (6,703,52!) (3,390,491) (32,164,95 ) (11,749,70) (14,326,65 (41,547,28 (62,022,76)
IPO 8,325,00 — — — — — — — —
Exercise of optionscommencing
IPO 2,252,86! — — — — — — — —
Balance, as of December 31, 2014 214,554,06 — — — — — — — —

g. Investment transactions

On June 28, 2013, the Company entered into a ghachase agreement with an investor pursuant totwhi

the Company agreed to sell and issue to the invds297,995 Class F1 Shares par value EUR 0.01, aaeh

purchase price 0$6.98 per share and total consideratio$®®0,000,000. On the same day, investors, including

the investor in the preceding sentence, enteredaimtagreement with the Company and a newly forgdh
private company, Driving Momentum BV (“Newco”), vdhi owned 500 Ordinary shares (with liquidation
preference) of the Company pursuant to which Nesgreed to sell to
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the investors an aggregate of 10,028,655 Classi&#5,547,280 Class F2 shares. NewCo then purchased
51,575,935 issued and outstanding Class A, Ordi8hgres (with liquidation preference), Class Bs€lg,
Class D and Class E shares of the Company frontirgxishareholders, at a purchase price of US $@iétlof
expenses) per share. Newco converted the 51,575888s it had acquired from the existing sharedslohto
10,028,655 Class F1 and 41,547,280 Class F2 sfidreslosing of the purchase of the 4,297,995 Rtesh
from the Company and the 10,028,655 Class F1 ajit4,280 Class F2 shares from Newco occurred on
August 22, 2013. The repurchase conversion ancé#he shares took place simultaneously. Subs¢daehe
completion of these transactions, Newco, whichnditihave any substantive net assets, was mergedheit
Company. This transaction was accounted for asfivémgarticipating shareholders of the Class AGBD, E
and Ordinary shares (with liquidation preference).

h. Employee and No-employee stock option:

Options to employees and service providel

The Company has adopted a stock option plan (t6@32Plan”), whereby up to 11% (out of the Company
issued and outstanding aggregate number of shhedisctasses) options may be granted to emplogees
service providers for purchase of the Company’sr@ang shares. In May 2014, the Company increasegdol
of options to be available under the 2003 Plampttoul 8% of the issued and outstanding sharesso€timpany

Under the terms of the 2003 Plan, the board ottbrs or the designated committee will grant optiand
will determine the period over which options becaerercisable and the exercise terms. The Comparailys
grants options that vests over a period of 4.55yaad expires 7 years after grant. Each optiorbeagxercised
into one Ordinary share EUR 0.01 par value of tbenBany.

In December 2014, the board of directors approvelitae Company adopted its 2014 Equity Incentiaa
(the “2014 Plan”). Under the 2014 Plan, the bodrdirectors or the designated committee will grstock
options, restricted shares and restricted shats (fRRSUs”). The total number of shares available under botl
2003 Plan and the 2014 Plan shall not exceed 38,839Generally, the 2014 Plan provides for optithras
vests over a period of 4.5 years and expires yefter grant and for RSUs that vests over a pai@lyears.
Each option can be exercised into one OrdinaryesB&R 0.01 par value of the Company.

No additional awards will be granted under the 2BG8.

Both of the Plans with respect to Israeli employaesintended to be governed by the terms stipilaye
Section 102 of the Israeli Income Tax Ordinanceadoordance with the capital gain track choserhby t
Company and pursuant to the terms thereof, the @agnis not allowed to claim, as an expense foptaposes
the amounts credited to employees as a benefitidimgy amounts recorded as salary benefits in tha&ny’s
accounts, in respect of options granted to empkyaeer the Plans — with the exception of the wodome
benefit component, if any, determined on the gdaté¢. Options granted to employees from other cmsare
subject to similar terms with certain changes nemlifor local regulations.
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The following table summarizes information regagdoutstanding and exercisable options under the
Company’s plans as of December 31, 2014:

Exercise price Outstanding Exercisable

Weighted Weighted

average average

remaining remaining

contractual life contractual life

(US $) Number (in years) Number (in years)
0.096-0.376 2,064,61! 2.2(C 1,959,61! 2.0t
0.554-0.776 558,62( 2.0C 558,62( 2.0C
1.13-2.991 2,270,46! 1.9¢ 2,270,46! 1.9¢
3.7 7,480,322 4.6( 6,305,75! 4.6¢
6.98-7.1 13,783,60 6.07 4,087,52! 6.0¢
25-36.83 625,10( 6.5¢ — —
26,782,71 4.94 15,181,97 4.2C

The following table summarizes the option actiiy the year ended December 31, 2014 for options
granted to employees, directors and service proside

Weighted
average Aggregated
exercise intrinsic value
Number price @
U.S. dollars
$ in thousands
Options outstanding at beginning of year 17,494,47 2.97
Changes during the year:
Granted? 13,455,70 7.82
Exercised (3,715,911) 2.7¢
Forfeited (451,53!) 3.42
Options outstanding at end of year 26,782,71 5.44 940,69:
Options exercisable at year-end 15,181,97 3.7¢ 558,18:

(1) The aggregate intrinsic value is calculated aglifierence between the exercise price of the ugiheyl
awards and the closing stock price$sf0.56 of the Company’s ordinary share on Decer@be2014. This

represents the potential pre-tax amount receiviaptée option holders had all option holders exsdi
their options as of such da

(2) On January 13, 2014 the Company granted the Cortgppfounders, who are also shareholders, 11,500,000
options, exercisable into the same amount of the@amy’s Ordinary shares, at an exercise pric§698
per share; 3,850,000 options were vested immeyliatel the remainder vest over two years.

On September 7, 2014 the Company granted fous afiiectors 200,000 options, exercisable into #mees
amount of the Company’s ordinary shares, at anceseprice of$25.0 per share, which are subject to
graded vesting. Those options were granted in threem

Subsequent to December 31, 2014, the Company gremtes employee additional 75,650 options
exercisable into the same amount of the Compangdin@ry shares, at an average exercise price afi$36
per share, and 233,505 RSUs.
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At December 31, 2014, there were 190,000 optiotstanding with a weighted average exercise price of
$4.17 and weighted average remaining contractigabfi2.95 years, which were granted to serviceigers. At
December 31, 2014, 100,000 of these options wesecisable.

The fair value of options granted was estimatedgiiie Black-Scholes option pricing model, and Hase
the following assumptions:

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
Risk-free interest rate 0.7%-2.17%  0.19%-2.74% 0.88%-1.33%
Expected option term 3.82-7.27 years 1-12.35years 6.26-7.06 years
Expected price volatility 36%—55% 42%—-53% 52%—-53%
Dividend yield 0% 0% 0%
Weighted average fair value at the date
grant $7.2¢ $2.22 $2.05

The interest rate for periods within the contratlifa of the award is based on the U.S. Treasusidy
curve in effect at the time of grant.

The Company’s computation of expected volatilitysvised on comparable companies.

The expected option term for options awards thaewaéthe money when granted (plain vanilla opfions
was calculated in accordance with the simplifiedhnd in accordance with ASC 718, as adequate fdator
experience is not available to provide a reasonedtienate. The simplified method will continue fuply until
enough historical experience is available to prevddeasonable estimate of the expected term. Xpected
term of options granted to non-employee serviceigess is based on the contractual life.

The Company has historically not paid dividends basi no foreseeable plans to pay dividends.

As of December 31, 2014, approximately $36.9 millid total unrecognized compensation expense tklate
to unvested share-based compensation grants urelPidn. That cost is expected to be recognizedave
weighted-average period of 2.02 years.

Share-based compensation expenses included inothe@aly’s Statements of Operations were:

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

U.S. dollars in thousands

Cost of revenues 27 16 32
Research and development, net 6,13C 2,32( 1,12¢
Sales and marketing 5,201 5,861 56E
General and administrative 65,49t 4,934 134
Total stock-based compensation 76,85: 13,13 1,85¢

During December 2013, the CompamBoard of Directors approved the modification eftain outstandin
stock options previously granted to employees andce providers. The modification was for the esien of
all outstanding options with a termination datdieathan December 31, 2014. The options will noyiee on
December 31, 2016. The modification resulted in pensation expense @23 thousand that was recorded
during the year ended December 31, 2013 and indlirdthe above table.
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In connection with the closing of the IPO and is@dance with their original terms, the vestingiqefor
certain options was accelerated such that optmpsitchase 4,950,000 Ordinary shares vested amaigec
exercisable upon the closing of the IPO. Of th&@,800 options, options to purchase 3,375,000 @rgishare:
were granted to the Company’s founders who aresilaccholders. The acceleration resulted in congpiems
expense of$6.6 million that was recorded during the yeareghBecember 31, 2014 and included in the above
table.

NOTE 9 TAXES ON INCOME

a. Tax rates

Each of the Company’s subsidiaries is taxed urtteapplicable law, in accordance with the countrigso
residence. The enacted statutory tax rates apf#italthe significant subsidiaries of the Comparsgbsidiaries
are as follows:

Cypriot subsidiary—prior to the Company’s reorganization of its intdroorporate structure, which took
place in July 2014, income is taxed at the corgotat rate. The Corporate tax rate in Cyprus was%2n
2014. Interest income is taxed at the Defenceatex The Defence tax rate in Cyprus was 30% (éffeétom
May 1, 2013). After the Company’s reorganizatidrg Cypriot subsidiary is taxed under the Israeli. la

The Israeli subsidiary is taxed under the Israali.IIncome not eligible for benefits under the btweent
Law mentioned below is taxed at the corporate &e. ICorporate tax rates in Israel were as foll@082—
25%, 2013—25%, 2014—26.5%.

The amount of taxexempt profits earned by the Company from Benefietérprises through December
2014 is approximately $7 million. Deferred taxesédaot been provided for such tax-exempt incoméhaese
earnings can be recovered tax-free and the Congrgrgcts to ultimately use that means of recovery.

Deferred taxes in respect of foreign subsidiaregemot been provided for as it is the Companytanition
to permanently reinvest the foreign subsidiarezgnings. An assessment of the tax that would heee payab
had the Compang'foreign subsidiaries distributed their incoméht® Company is not practicable because o
multiple tax rates and different tax regimes thiotlye years.

Israel Tax benefits under the Law for Encouragemenbf Capital Investments, 1959 (th¢‘Law”)

Benefited Enterprise

Commencing 2005, the Israeli subsidiary has beantgd with a “Benefited Enterprise” status, which
provides certain benefits for a period of ten yemduding tax exemptions for undistributed incoamal reduce
tax rates.

The proportion of the Israeli subsidiary’s taxainleome entitled to tax exemption is calculatedtmtiasis
of the ratio between the turnover attributed to“Benefited Enterprise” and the whole turnoverto tsraeli
subsidiary. The turnover attributed to the “BeregfiEnterprise” is calculated, by taking the inces@sulting
from the comparison of the Israeli subsidiary’syawer with its “base” turnover, which is the avesdgrnover
attributed to the last three years before the atitim of the “Benefited Enterprise”, or by applyisgch other
basis as is stipulated in the instrument of apdravze Israeli subsidiary elected 2005 as its “lempéntation
Year” as stipulated in the Law, and notified thea&di Tax Authorities that it elects 2007, 2009 &0d.2 as its
“Expansion Years”, as stipulated in the Law. In évent of distribution of a cash dividend from ine@which
was tax exempt as set forth above, the Israeliidiaipg would have to pay the 25% tax in respedhefamount
distributed.
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The entitlement to the above benefits is conditiopan the Israeli subsidiaryfulfilling certain conditions
In the event of failure to comply with these coratis, the entitlement for benefits might be carezbind the
Israeli subsidiary might be required to refund d@ngount of the benefits, in whole or in part, witle addition of
linkage differences to the Israeli CPI and inter@stpart of the requirements necessary to be gganith this
status, the Israeli subsidiary was recognized du2D06, by the Chief Scientist Office as a “Reseanttd
Development company”. The Company’s managemeng\aithat all conditions are fulfilled and therefor
these financial statements were prepared understhemption that the Israeli subsidiary is entitethose
benefits.

Preferred Company

In May 2014, as part of the Company’s reorganizatibits internal corporate structure, the Israeli
subsidiary made an election under the Investmewttbachange its tax status from a “Benefited Eniegj to a
“Preferred Companyto be effective as of January 1, 2014. This electvas not subject to an approval by Isi
Tax Authority. The change in the tax status didheote a material effect on the Company’s deferagds.

The Investment Law provides certain benefits feaome generated by a “Preferred Company” through its
“Preferred Enterprise” (as such terms are definetié Investment Law). The definition of a Prefdr@mpany
includes a company incorporated in Israel thaf) isdt wholly owned by a governmental entity; @Givns a
Preferred Enterprise and (iii) that is controlledi ananaged from Israel, and subject to certainratbeditions
set in the law. From 2014 and thereafter a PredeD@mpany is entitled to a reduced corporate teexah16%
with respect to its income derived by its Prefefsederprise, unless the Preferred Enterprise etéatin a
specified development zone, in which case thewdtde 9%. The Company’s Israeli subsidiary looatis
entitled to the reduced tax rate of 9%.

During July 2014, the Company finalized the reoigation of its internal corporate structure. The
Company took the necessary steps, including shialehapproval, so that since July 2014, the Compsuay
resident of Israel (and not The Netherlands) famtarposes.

In addition, as part of the reorganization, the @any’s Cypriot subsidiary, which owned all of the
Company intellectual property, has transferreatits intellectual property to the Israeli subsigiin July 2014

On July 20, 2014, the Company obtained a tax rdliogn the Israel Tax Authorities providing that, amg
other matters, the reorganization did not trigger t@ax in Israel and did not violate any of theakdr tax
covenants to which the Israeli subsidiary andhtsrsholder are bound pursuant to a 2001 tax ruling.

b. Tax assessment

The Israeli subsidiary has final tax assessmentsitfihn 2010. Mobileye N.V. has final tax assessments
through 2012, and the Cypriot subsidiary has fiaalassessments through 2008. All other Company’s
subsidiaries have not been assessed since inctigmora

c. Carryforward tax losses

During the year ended December 31, 2013, the Coynmdeased its valuation allowance on deferred tax
assets of the Cypriot subsidiary, as it was nodomga three-year cumulative loss position andagament
believed that it is more likely than not that thefetred tax asset will be realized within the feesble future.
During the year ended December 31, 2014, the Coynfodiy utilized all of the carryforward tax losse$
$23,779 related to the Cypriot subsidiary.
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d. Profit (loss) before taxes on income included ithe statements of operation:
Profit (loss) before taxes on income is comprisetbdows:

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 201Z
U.S. dollars in thousands
Domestic’ (Netherlands) (222) (10¢) 50
Domestic” (Israel) (5,492) S —
Foreign* (12,10%) 17,75¢ 231

(17,81¢) 17,64¢ 281

*  As mentioned above, since July 2014, the Compaayésident of Israel and not The Netherlandsawr t
purposes. Therefore, prior to July 2014 “domegtigresented taxing under Dutch tax authoritiesaanaf
July 2014 “domestic” represents taxing under thadls tax authorities. Thus, in the periods prioduly
2014 taxing under the Israeli tax authorities @uded in the table above as foreign profit (Idssfore
taxes on income

e. Benefit (taxes) on income included in the stateant of operations

Benefit (taxes) on income for the years ended DéeeiB1, 2014, 2013 and 2012 was composed of the
following:

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

U.S. dollars in thousands

Current taxes:
Domestic* (Netherlands) — — —
Domestic* (Israel) (4,452) — —
Foreign* (5,58¢) (712) (327)
(10,04:) (712) (327)

Deferred taxes:
Domestic* (Netherlands) — — —
Domestic* (Israel) 611 — —
Foreign* (2,83%) 2,987 7)
(2,22¢) 2,987 (7)
(12,26%) 2,274 (334)

*  See comment at section 9(d) abc
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f. Taxes on income reconciliatior

A reconciliation of the theoretical tax expenseuasisg all income is taxed at the statutory ratei@s on
income as reported in the statements of operations:

Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

U.S. dollars in thousands

Income (loss) before taxes on income as reportétkistatements of

operations (17,81¢) 17,64¢ 281
Statutory tax rate in the Netherlands for yearsedridecember 31, 2013

and 2012 and weighted average income tax ratéaéoyeéar ended

December 31, 2014 26.£%  25% 20%
Theoretical tax benefit (taxes on income) 4,70¢  (4,412) (56)
Increase (decrease) in taxes on income resultong: fr
Tax adjustment for foreign subsidiaries subjed thfferent tax rate (3,605) 1,29z (212)
Usage of carry forward tax losses in the Cypridissdiary —  3,27¢ —
Reversal of valuation allowance in the Cypriot sdiasy — 2,57« —
Non-deductible expenses and other permanent diffesence (7,97%) (34) (25)
Increase in uncertain tax position, net (5,151) (50C) (7)
Other (240) 78 (34)

Tax benefit (taxes) on income as reported in tatestents of operations  (12,26%) 2,274 (334)

*  The theoretical tax benefit (taxes on income) ieryear ended December 31, 2014 computed on pre-tax
income or loss at the weighted average tax ratdées calculated as the sum of the pre-tax incontieei
Netherlands and Israel multiplied by that jurisidin’s applicable statutory tax rate. The statutoryrttes
by jurisdiction were 26.5% for Israel and 25% floe Netherlands
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g. Uncertain tax positions

The following is a roll-forward of the Company’snecognized tax positions for the years ended
December 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

U.S. dollars
in
thousands
Balance at January 1, 2012 89t
Increase in unrecognized tax positions as a re§tdix positions taken during the
current year 18¢€
Decrease in unrecognized tax positions as a resatatute of limitation expirations ave)
Balance at December 31, 2012 90z
Increase in unrecognized tax positions as a re§tdix positions taken during the
current year 79¢€
Decrease in unrecognized tax positions as a rekatatute of limitation expirations (29¢)
Balance at December 31, 2013 1,40z
Increase in unrecognized tax positions as a re$tdix positions taken during the
current year 5,35¢
Decrease in unrecognized tax positions as a resatatute of limitation expirations (201)

Balance at December 31, 2014 6,55¢

Uncertain tax positions included accrued potemigadalties and interest §&73 thousand, $19 thousand and
$20 thousand at December 31, 2014, 2013 and 26842ectively.

All of the above unrecognized tax benefits wouligetfthe effective tax rate if recognized. There o
material anticipated changes in the uncertain tesitions in the next twelve months.

h. Deferred income taxe:

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effeEtemporary differences between the carrying amoont
assets and liabilities for financial reporting pesps and the amounts used for income tax purp8ggsficant
components of the Company’s deferred tax assettiahilities are as follows:

December 31
2014 2013
U.S. dollars in thousand

Deferred tax asse

Net operating losses carryforwe 10C 2,97
Stoclk-based compensatic 39C —
Provisions for employee benef 118 53
Deferred tax asse—shor-term—other current asse 60% 3,02t
Liability in respect of employee rights upon retirent, ne 11€ 70
Stock-based compensatic 13¢ =
Deferred tax assets, before valuation allowe Long-term 252 70
Less—valuation allowanc: — _
Deferred tax assetd.ong-term 252 _7C
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Realization of this deferred tax balance is conddi upon earning, in the coming years, taxablerme
The amount of the deferred tax asset, howeverddoaireduced in the near term if estimates of éutaxable

income are reduced.

NOTE 10 SUPPLEMENTARY STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS INFORMATION
Year ended December 31
2014 2013 2012

U.S. dollars in thousands

a. Financial income (expensesiet

Foreign currency gains (losses), net (3,10¢) 1,97 68¢
Bank charges (19¢) (127) (112)
Loss from sales of marketable securities (1,13¢) (46€) (172)

(4,442) 1,38¢ 40z

b. The Israeli subsidiary receives grants from thadk Ministry of Industry, Trade and Labor, astpar
an employment encouragement plan it takes paftia.grants are granted in respect of the Israeli
subsidiary hiring new employees and subject tactalitions stipulated in the plan above mentioned.
The Israeli subsidiary records these grants adwuction of salary expenses. Total grants recorded
during the years ended December 31, 2013 and 2ei& approximately $149 thousand and $94
thousand, respectively. No grants were recordeihgltine year ended December 31, 2014.

NOTE 11 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company operates under two operating segm@n@riginal Equipment Manufacturing (‘*OEM”) and
(i) After Market (“AM™).

The Company’s chief operating decision-maker (CE@e Company) evaluates performance, makes
operating decisions and allocates resources basttedinancial data of these operating segmegment
performance reported excludes stock-based compensat

The measure of assets has not been discloseddoisegment as it is not regularly reviewed by DM,
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The following is segment results for the years endecember 31, 2014, 2013 and 2012:

Revenues
Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Research and development, net
Sales and Marketing
General and administrative

Segment performance
Interest income

Financial expenses, net
Loss before taxes on income

Revenues
Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Research and development, net
Sales and Marketing
General and administrative

Segment performance
Interest income

Financial income, net

Profit before taxes on income
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Year ended December 31, 201

Amounts
not
allocated to
OEM AM segments  Consolidatec
U.S. dollars in thousands
121,79¢ 21,83¢ 143,63
30,29: 6,72( 27 37,04(
91,50¢ 15,11¢ 106,59°
28,99t 1,80¢ 6,13( 36,93(
56C 7,151 5,201 12,91:
5,03¢ 904 65,49¢ 71,43
56,91 5,25¢ (14,68:)
1,30¢
(4,442)
(17,81¢)
Year ended December 31, 201
Amounts
not
allocated to
OEM AM segments  Consolidatec
U.S. dollars in thousands
63,29( 17,95¢ 81,24t
15,901 5,207 16 21,13(
47,38 12,74¢ 60,11¢
18,36: 1,623 2,32( 22,30¢
337 6,13¢ 5,861 12,33:
4,767 57¢ 4,93¢ 10,271
23,917 4,417 15,19¢
1,05¢
1,38¢

17,64¢
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Revenues
Cost of revenues

Gross profit

Research and development, net
Sales and marketing
General and administrative

Segment performance
Interest income

Financial income, net

Profit before taxes on income

NOTE 12 ENTITY-WIDE DISCLOSURE

Year ended December 31, 201

Amounts
not

allocated to

OEM AM segments  Consolidatec
U.S. dollars in thousands

27,81¢ 12,467 40,28t
8,13t 4,052 32 12,21¢
19,68: 8,41¢ 28,06¢
13100 1,64z 112¢  15,86¢
43¢ 5,431 56¢ 6,43¢
6,75(C 534 134 7,41¢
(60E)  80E (1,65:)
- 1,531
40z
281

a. Total revenues based on the country that the ptasistipped to were as follows:

USA

Japan

Sweden

United Kingdom
EUROPE-other
Israel
APAC-other
South America
Africa
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As of and for the year ended December 2

2014 2013 2012
U.S. dollars in thousands
77,68( 52,67¢ 24,35
2,47¢ 9,64: 4,10z
16,35¢ 8,74: 3,63¢
20,40« 724 187

6,617 3,74 2,897
12,51 1,99¢ 2,50¢
5,99¢ 2,10t 1,14z
1,267 1,49¢ 1,37(
32€ 117 90
143,63 81,24t 40,28t
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b. Major Customers

Revenues from major customers each of whom amout@% or more of total revenues reported in the
financial statements (all related to OEM segment):

Year ended December 31

2014 2013 2012
U.S. dollars in thousands
Revenues from major customers 103,71: 56,94. 24,49t

Percent of total revenues

Customer A 33% 18%
Customer B 23% 34% 29%
Customer C 11% 11%
Customer D ’ ’ 11%

*  Less than 10%

The balance due from Customer A, the Company’s n@jstomer, accounted for 36% and 40% of the
accounts receivables at December 31, 2014 and Dewedth, 2013, respectively.

c. Substantially all of the Company’s property andipment and long lived assets are located in |saadlf
December 31, 2014 and Decemer 31, 2013.

NOTE 13 VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Valuation

Warranty Allowance for allowance
doubtful for deferred
provision accounts tax assets

U.S. dollars in thousands

Balance, as of December 31, 2011 243 25 9,93¢
Additions 49 — 94
Deductions (32) — (4,18()

Balance, as of December 31, 2012 25¢ 25 5,85(
Additions 13€ —
Deductions (88) — (5,85()

Balance, as of December 31, 2013 307 50 —
Additions 261 — —
Deductions (98) — —

Balance, as of December 31, 2014 ﬂ @ _
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Exhibit 11.1

MOBILEYE N.V.
CODE OF BUSINESS CONDUCT

( As adopted by the Board of Directors on July 27,40




1. Introduction

This Code of Business Conduct (th€6de”) covers a wide range of business practices and gwoes. It does n
cover every issue that may arise, but it sets asichprinciples to guide all directors, officersymoyees and consultants
Mobileye N.V. and its subsidiaries (collectiveliiet* Company”). All directors, officers, employees and consultaftthe
Company must conduct themselves accordingly ankl seavoid even the appearance of improper behavVioe Cod
should also be provided to and followed by the Canyfs other agents and representatives.

If you violate the standards in the Code, you maysbbject to disciplinary action, up to and inchgdimmediat
termination of employment.

If a law conflicts with a policy in the Code, yowst comply with the law. If you have any questiam®ut thes
conflicts, ask your manager or the Compan§eneral Counsel how to handle the situation. Jbee supersedes all ot
codes of conduct, policies, procedures, instrustigmactices, rules or written or verbal repredesria to the extent th
they are inconsistent with the Code. We are corenhittb continuously reviewing and updating our peScand procedure
The Code, therefore, is subject to modification.

2. Purpose
The Code seeks to deter wrongdoing and to promote:

. Honest and ethical conduct, including the ethi@idiing of actual or apparent conflicts of interestwee
personal and professional relationsh

. Full, fair, accurate, timely and understandableldsure in reports and documents that the Compies
with, or submits to, the United States Securitied Bxchange Commission (theSEC”) and in other publ
communications made by the Compa

. Compliance with applicable governmental laws, raled regulations
. The prompt internal reporting to an appropriatesperor persons identified in the Code of violationghe
Code; anc
. Accountability for adherence to the Co
3. Compliance With Applicable Laws, Ruégsl Reqgulations

Obeying the law is the foundation on which the Camyps ethical standards are built. You must comply
applicable laws, rules and regulations. Although yoe not expected to know the details of theses,laéws important t
know enough to determine when to seek advice franagers or other appropriate personnel.




Conflicts of Interest

A “conflict of interest” exists when a persanprivate interests interfere or conflict in anyywaith the interests
the Company. Examples of when a conflict of inteneay arise include, but are not limited to:

When a director, officer or employee takes actimnisas interests that may make it difficult to penfi his o
her work objectively and effectivel

When a director, officer or employee, or a membdri® or her family, receives improper personal dfis
as a result of his or her position with the Comp:

Almost always, when an employee works simultangodisi a competitor or, except on our behal
customer or supplier. You are not allowed to wankd competitor in any capacit

When a director, officer or employee serves asectbr of any company that competes with the Compan

When a director, officer or employee has a businedmancial interest in a customer, supplier,aeper o
competitor of the Company. In deciding whether takensuch an investment, you should consider the
and nature of the investment, your ability to iefige decisions of the Company or of the other com
your access to confidential information of the Camp or of the other company, and the nature o
relationship between the Company and the other eosn

When a director, officer or employee conducts Camydausiness with a relative or significant otherwith
a business with which a relative or significantestis associated in any significant role. Relativesude
spouse, sister, brother, daughter, son, mothdrefagrandparents, aunts, uncles, nieces, nepl®wsins
step relationships and laws. Significant others include persons livinganspousal or familial fashis
(including same sex) with an employ

Conflicts of interest are prohibited as a mattertted Companys policy, except in the case of any directo
executive officer, with the informed written conser the Board of Directors of the Company (thBdard ”) or pursuar
to guidelines approved by the Board, or in the aaisany other employees, with the informed writimnsent of th
Company’s General Counsel or pursuant to guidelapgsoved by the ComparsyGeneral Counsel. Conflicts of intel
may not always be cleaut, so if you have a question, you should conautlh higher levels of management or
Companys General Counsel. If you become aware of a cardtipotential conflict, you should bring it to th&ention of
manager or other appropriate personnel or contselptocedures described in Section 18 of the Code.




5. Public Disclosure of Information

United States federal securities laws or Dutch taay require the Company to disclose certain infdionain
various reports that the Company must file withsobmit to the SEC or Dutch authorities. In addititom time to time
the Company makes other public communications, asdBsuing press releases.

The Company expects all directors, officers and leyges who are involved in the preparation of SE@orts o
other public documents to ensure that the inforomatlisclosed in those documents is full, fair, aate; timely an
understandable.

To the extent that you reasonably believe thattipregble accounting or auditing conduct or practicave occurre
or are occurring, report those concerns to the a¢@»unsel or in accordance with the Compand’histleblowing Policy

6. Insider Trading

You are not permitted to use or share confidemi@rmation for stock trading purposes or for arlger purpost
except the conduct of our business. All milic information about the Company should be w®red confidenti
information. To use “material non-public informatioabout the Company or the market for the Compssgcurities fc
personal financial benefit or “tip” others who might make an investment decision orb#ses of this information is r
only unethical, but also illegal, and could resaltriminal prosecution in addition to the termioatof your employmer
“Material non-public information’includes information that is not available to thgblic at large that could affect f
market price of the Company’s or another compsusgcurities and that a reasonable investor waardider important |
deciding whether to buy, sell or hold the secusiti@ order to assist with compliance with lawsiagiainsider trading, tt
Company has adopted a Securities Trading Policgopy of that policy, which has been distributecet@ry employee,
available on the Company’s internal website. If yoave any questions, please consult the Compa@yief Financi:
Officer or General Counsel.

7. Corporate Opportunities

You are prohibited from taking for yourself opparities that are discovered through the use of catpgroperty
information or position without the informed priconsent of the Board. You may not use corporatpestg or informatio
obtained through your position with the Companyifoproper personal gain, and you may not compete the Compar
directly or indirectly. Furthermore, you owe a duty the Company to advance its legitimate interegten such &
opportunity arises.

8. Competition and Fair Dealing

The Company seeks to outperform its competitiorlyfaind honestly. Using or disclosing, or encounggbthers t
use or disclose, other companies’ proprietary, idential or trade secret information, without the&ner’s prior consen
and any theft or misappropriation of such inforratis strictly prohibited. You should endeavoraspect the rights of a
deal fairly with the Company’s customers, suppliemsnpetitors and employees.




9. Gifts

The purpose of business entertainment and gifes gammercial setting is to create good will andnsbworking
relationships, not to gain unfair advantage witetomers. No gift or entertainment should ever lierefl, given, provide
or accepted by you unless it:

. is not a cash gift,

. is consistent with customary business practices,
. iS not excessive in valu

. cannot be construed as a bribe or payoff

. does not violate any laws or regulatio

Please discuss with your manager any gifts or mepgifts that you are not certain are appropriate.

10. Discrimination, Harassment and Retalmati

The diversity of the Company’employees is a tremendous asset. The Companynly tommitted to providin
equal opportunity in all aspects of employment aitinot tolerate any illegal discrimination, hasasent or retaliation
any kind. Examples of such behavior include demyatomments based on racial or ethnic charadtsiand unwelcon
sexual advances.

11. Health and Safety

The Company strives to provide its employees widage and healthy work environment. You are resptaor
helping to maintain a safe and healthy workplageatfbemployees by following safety and health sussnd immediate
reporting accidents, injuries and unsafe equipnattices or conditions.

Violence and threatening behavior are not permitigdployees must report to work in condition tofpen thei
duties, free from the influence of illegal drugsatzohol. The abuse of alcohol or illegal drugshe workplace will not t
tolerated.

12. Recordeeping

The Company requires honest and accurate recoatidgreporting of information in order to make rasgble
business decisions and to comply with the law. &ample, employees who must report their hours aenkust onl
report the true and actual number of hours workédte(her for purposes of individual pay or for pwses of reporting su
information to customers). The Company also reguieach director and employee to disclose any tctinsa ol
arrangement among such individual or any family moernor affiliated entity of such individual, on tbee hand, and a
other director, employee or any family member or




affiliated entity of such other individual, on tle¢her hand, that in any way relates to or arisdasobwsuch individuak
professional relationship with the Compa

Many employees regularly use business expense m@is;ouhich must be documented and recorded actyia
accordance with the Compasypolicies. If you are not sure whether you mak seenbursement for a certain expense
your manager or the Chief Financial Officer.

All of the Companys books, records, accounts and financial statemmantt be maintained in reasonable de
must appropriately reflect the Compasytransactions and must conform both to applickgal requirements and to
Company’s system of internal controls. Unrecordedadf the books” funds or assets should not be maintained u
permitted by applicable law or regulatic

Business records and communications often becorlecpand you should avoid exaggeration, derogatemyarks
guesswork or inappropriate characterizations ofpfge@nd companies that can be misunderstood. Tdlisypapplie:
equally to email, internal memos and formal reports. Recordsukhalways be retained or destroyed accordinghé
Companys record retention policies. In accordance withséhgolicies, in the event of litigation or govermis
investigation, please consult the Company’s Ger@oainsel.

13. Confidentiality

You must maintain the confidentiality of confideitinformation entrusted to you by the Companyteicustomer
except when disclosure is authorized by the Comgaegtablished written policies or its General Celias required b
laws or regulations. Confidential information ingés all norpublic information that might be of use to compest o
harmful to the Company or its customers, if disethsand information that suppliers and customev® leatrusted to L
The obligation to preserve confidential informaticontinues even after employment ends. In connectth this
obligation, every employee is required to sign aficentiality and proprietary information agreemenviten he or st
begins his or her employment with the Company.

14. Protection and Proper Use of the Comimafissets

You should endeavor to protect the Comparassets and ensure their efficient use. Any steppé@acident of frau
or theft must immediately be reported for invegima The Company’s equipment may not be used mr-@ompan
business, though limited incidental personal ugeeisnitted if such use does not interfere with expleyees job duties ¢
performance and it does not put the Company qrdperty at risk

Your obligation to protect the Compasyassets includes protecting its proprietary infdrom. Proprietar
information includes intellectual property suchtesde secrets, patents, trademarks and copyrightsyell as busine:
marketing and service plans, engineering and matwiag ideas, designs, databases, records, safarynation and ar
unpublished financial data and reports. Unauthdrizee or distribution of such information would lei® the Companyg’
policy and could also be illegal and result in lcori even criminal penaltie




15. Payments to Government Personnel

The United States Foreign Corrupt Practices Act@hdr laws applicable to the Company prohibit mgvanythin
of value, directly or indirectly, to officials obfeign governments or foreign political candidatesrder to obtain or rets
business. It is strictly prohibited to make illegalyments to government officials of any country.

In addition, the United States, Dutch and IsraeWegnments have a number of laws and regulatiogardéenc
business gratuities that may be accepted by goverhpersonnel. The promise, offer or delivery taéitial or employe
of any of these governments of a gift, favor oreotlgratuity in violation of these rules would natly violate the
Companys policy, but could also be a criminal offenset&&nd local governments in the United States, Négherland
and Israel, as well as other foreign governmengs; have similar rules. The Compasyhief Financial Officer or Gene
Counsel can provide guidance to you in this area.

16. Waivers of the Code

Waivers of the Code may only be granted by the Gomis General Counsel; provided, however, that any evant
the Code for executive officers or directors maygtented only by the Board or a Board committeey sunch waiver of tr
Code for executive officers or directors, and thasons for such waiver, will be disclosed in thenBany’s public filings
as required by law or securities market regulations

17. Reporting lllegal or Unethical Behavior

You are encouraged to talk to managers or otheropppte personnel about observed illegal or ucattehavic
or when in doubt about the best course of actioa jarticular situation. It is the policy of the iBpany not to allo
retaliation for reports of misconduct by others maa good faith by employees. You are expectedtiperate in intern
investigations of misconduct.

You may, on an anonymous basis, submit a good &aititern regarding observed illegal or unethicilaveor o
guestionable accounting or auditing matters withieatr of dismissal or retaliation of any kind incacdance with tr
Company’s Whistleblowing Policy.

18. Compliance Procedures

We must all work to ensure prompt and consistetiba@gainst violations of the Code. However, imgosituation
it is difficult to know if a violation has occurre®ince we cannot anticipate every situation thiltasise, it is importar
that we have a way to approach a new questionatnigmn. These are the steps to keep in mind:

. Make sure you have all the facts. In order to rethehright solutions, we must be as fully informas
possible
. Ask yourself: What specifically am | being askeditt? Does it seem unethical or improper? Thesetique

will enable you to focus on the specific question
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are faced with and the alternatives you have. Use yudgment and common sense; if something s
unethical or improper, it probably is.

. Clarify your responsibility and role. In most sitioas, there is shared responsibility. Are yourezadue
informed? It may help to get others involved arstdss the probler

. Discuss the problem with your manager. This ishlsic guidance for all situations. In many casesi
manager will be more knowledgeable about the guesthd will appreciate being brought into the deais
making process. Remember that it is your mar's responsibility to help solve problen

. Seek help from the Compé’'s resources. In the rare case where it may nopjpegriate to discuss an is:
with your manager or where you do not feel comtudaapproaching your manager with your ques
discuss it with the Compa’s General Counsel or head of Human Resou

. You may report ethical violations in confidence awithout fear of retaliation. If your situation ngiges tha
your identity be kept secret, your anonymity widl protected to the greatest extent possible. Thep@oy
does not permit retaliation of any kind against Eypes for goo-faith reports of ethical violation

. Always ask first, act later. If you are unsure dfawto do in any situation, seek guidar

19. Placement on Website

This Code of Conduct will be placed on the Companyébsite.
20. No Legally Binding Rights

This Code is intended as a statement of fundamentadies which applies within the Company, in tigla to the
persons covered by the Code as stated herein,addector, officer, employee, consultant, agentepresentative of tl
Company, or any third party, may derive any leggits from this Code.




Exhibit 12.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UNDER SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

[, Ziv Aviram, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2ff-Mobileye N.V.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatemny untrue statement of a material fact ort dmi
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmede, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading witreot$p the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andnctsws
of the company as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report;

The company’s other certifying officer(s) anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckatn&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) for the
company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisia@mgare that material information relating to
the company, including its consolidated subsidgrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhis report is being prepared;

b. Notusec

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the compangsldsure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiverggbe disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the camyfs internal control over financial reporting tha
occurred during the period covered by the annymintehat has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the comparipternal control over financial reporting; and

The company’s other certifying officer(s) andllve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatio
internal control over financial reporting, to thengpany’s auditors and the audit committee of the
company’s board of directors (or persons perfornireggequivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbntro
over financial reporting which are reasonably lkil adversely affect the company’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiakméation; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the company’s internal contooker financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2015

/sl Ziv Aviram

Ziv Aviram
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 12.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER UNDER  SECTION 302 OF THE

SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

I, Ofer Maharshak, certify that:

1.
2.

I have reviewed this annual report on Form 2ff-Mobileye N.V.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does notatemny untrue statement of a material fact ort dmi
state a material fact necessary to make the statsmede, in light of the circumstances under which
such statements were made, not misleading witreot$p the period covered by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statememd other financial information included in this
report, fairly present in all material respectsfihancial condition, results of operations andnctsws
of the company as of, and for, the periods preskint¢his report;

The company’s other certifying officer(s) anar¢ responsible for establishing and maintaining
disclosure controls and procedures (as defineckath&nge Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the
company and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and
procedures to be designed under our supervisia@mgare that material information relating to
the company, including its consolidated subsidgrie made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in whidhis report is being prepared;

b. Notusec

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the compangsldsure controls and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiverggbe disclosure controls and procedures, as of
the end of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the camyfs internal control over financial reporting tha
occurred during the period covered by the annymintehat has materially affected, or is
reasonably likely to materially affect, the comparipternal control over financial reporting; and

The company’s other certifying officer(s) andllve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatio
internal control over financial reporting, to thengpany’s auditors and the audit committee of the
company’s board of directors (or persons perfornireggequivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakges in the design or operation of internal cbntro
over financial reporting which are reasonably lkil adversely affect the company’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financiakméation; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that innedvmanagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the company’s internal contooker financial reporting.

Date: March 4, 2015

/s/ Ofer Maharshak

Ofer Maharshak
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 13.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER UNDER SECT ION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as createcebtjo® 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the
undersigned officer of Mobileye N.V. (the “Compahyiereby certifies, to such officer’'s knowledgettha

1. The accompanying Annual Report on Form 20-thefCompany for the year ended December 31,
2014 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requinents of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@&lamended; and

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition
and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 4, 2015

/sl Ziv Aviram
Ziv Aviram
Chief Executive Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pl® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.CtiGe
1350, and is not being filed for the purposes aftia 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amgnded,
and is not to be incorporated by reference to dimgfof the Company, whether made before or afterdate
hereof, regardless of any general incorporatiogdage in such filing.




Exhibit 13.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER UNDER SECT ION 906 OF THE
SARBANES-OXLEY ACT

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as createcebtjoB 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, the
undersigned officer of Mobileye N.V. (the “Compahyiereby certifies, to such officer’s knowledgettha

1. The accompanying Annual Report on Form 20-thefCompany for the year ended December 31,
2014 (the “Report”) fully complies with the requinents of Section 13(a) or Section 15(d), as
applicable, of the Securities Exchange Act of 1@&lamended; and

2. The information contained in the Report faphgsents, in all material respects, the finan@aldition
and results of operations of the Company.

Date: March 4, 2015

/s/ Ofer Maharshak
Ofer Maharshak
Chief Financial Officer

The foregoing certification is being furnished $pl® accompany the Report pursuant to 18 U.S.CtiGe
1350, and is not being filed for the purposes aftiBa 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934amgnded,
and is not to be incorporated by reference to dimgfof the Company, whether made before or afterdate
hereof, regardless of any general incorporatiogdage in such filing.




Exhibit 15.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referéme¢iee Registration Statements on Form S-8 (N8- 33
201435 and No. 333- 201840) of Mobileye N.V. of ceport dated March 4, 2015, relating to the finainc
statements that appears in this Annual Report omR20-F.

/sl Kesselman & Kesselman
Certified Public Accountants (Isr.)
A member firm of PricewaterhouseCoopers Internati&immited

Tel Aviv, Israel
March 4, 2015




